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DEFINITIONS

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the AFHRN > MXEBEHHATEIN » THFEGBEEGNLT
following expressions shall have the following meanings: e

“AGM”
[ERBFAE ]

“Audit Committee”
[EZZEE]

“Board”
[E%R]

“Bye-Laws”

[ARAY ]

“CG Code”
[{bEEE AP

“Chairman”

[E/F]

“Companies Act of Bermuda”
[BFEEQEDE]

“Companies Ordinance”

INSILESITN

“Company” or “Landsea Green
Properties”

[ARA] 8 [BAF R EE )

“Controlling Shareholder”

[ R

“Director(s)”

[E%]

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 30 June 2022
ARARRZZEZZFAA=1H (2E0) #BO2REBEFAE

the audit committee of the Company

ARBIEZZEE

the board of Directors

BER

the bye-laws of the Company, as amended from time to time
RRAT 2 REHA] (BTRHERT)

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

ERRIM A R E AT R

the chairman of the Board

BEERERE

the Companies Act of Bermuda, as amended from time to time
BRERRDE (BTRIERD)

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong)
BEENIE622F N alE R

Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability, whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 00106)

B EMERRAR RAEREIMKZ2ERAR - ERMABERAMER T (RH
5% : 00106)

have the meanings ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EMARRIE T 2R

the directors of the Company

ARBZEE
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“Easycorps”

[ Easycorps |

“Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee”

[RE - HERERZER]

“Executive Committee”

[MTZREE)

“FY2021”
[ZZ - —WBRFE]

“GFA”
[ZEEmE

“Greensheid”

[ Greensheid

“Group”
[R&E ]

“Hong Kong”
(&8

“Landsea Group” or
“Landsea Holdings”

[EARF SR E ) ok [BAFHEAR]

“LLandsea Green Life”

[BARFAR 08 ]

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

Easycorps Group Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian

Easycorps Group Limited * RIEBHBR RHEESFMK L2 BRARF - HHLEZEE=HE
B

the environmental, social and governance committee of the Company
RARZERR - HeREREESR

the executive committee of the Company
RAFIHITEES

the year ended 31 December 2021
HE T - —F+-_A=t+—HILFE

gross floor area

BEmE

Greensheid Corporation, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, and a company indirectly wholly-owned by Landsea Group

Greensheid Corporation * REBHBRHSHEMK L2 BERAR] - HAFSEEMEEELE
%E

the Company and its subsidiaries
RATRENE AR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REEERRITTH R

Landsea Group Co., Ltd. (BAzFEEM% AR A 7)), a company established in the PRC and
the Controlling Shareholder of the Company
R SEERMNBRAR - RPBIKI 2 AR RARFIERARR

Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1965)

AR EEEREERAR  RASESTMKZ 2 BRAR - ERGONEZFTER
(AP R5E - 1965)



DEFINITIONS

“Landsea Homes”
[Landsea Homes |

“Landsea International”

[Landsea International |

“Listing Rules”

[ AR A1)
“Model Code”
[1Z%E=<FA ]

“Mr. Tian”
[

“NASDAQ”
[ AT )

“Nomination Committee”

[fERLEE]

“PRC”
(B

“Project Management Services”

[ AR

“Remuneration Committee”

[FNZEE=]
“Restricted Share(s)”
[ BRIl A1 |

“RMB”
[ARR)]

h - N

Landsea Homes Corporation, a company incorporated under the State of Delaware in the
USA and the common stock of which are listed on NASDAQ, and is a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company (symbols: LSEA)

Landsea Homes Corporation * FREBIEFR ZE M FMA I A G - HEB
W WAARRNIEZEWBE LT (FHFMRE : LSEA)

B i ETE e

Landsea International Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and indirectly wholly-owned by Landsea Group

Landsea International Holdings Limited - MR B# B RS EMK L 2 BIR AR - BEAF
SERE2EHE

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B2 P AR A

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
LTRBIEE TR LM BITAEFTETELR 20T LSRR

Mr. Tian Ming, the Chairman, an executive Director and the Controlling Shareholder

AEALE » £F - MITERRIEBRER

National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotations capital market
EHZEEFRXHEABE AP REEARATIS

the nomination committee of the Company

ARBZIREEER

the People’s Republic of China
hE AR A

Project development and management services
18 B % R EERDS

the remuneration committee of the Company

AREZHMERS

the Shares granted or to be granted under the Share Award Scheme which are subject to
restrictions

RIRR D BB+ B H Sl TR th 2 SRR BB 1D

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
ARE - B ZEEE%
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“SFO”
& MR RD ]

“Share(s)”
[ A7 |

“Share Award Scheme”

[ Rcfn B2 =t & )

“Share Option Scheme”
[EERRAEET 2l )

“SPAC”
[SPAC

“sq.m.”

[FI5K]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B8 22 P |

“United States”
B0

“Us§’
ESH

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong)
BBEGIEST1EF S LAE KNI

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company
RARRAFR BIREEC.01E T2 T ik

the restricted share award scheme of the Company adopted on 2 July 2014

ARARRZFT—MF LA = BERA 2 ZR B 2R3

the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 25 April 2012
ARARIRZE——FWNA-+HAAFRHZ BAETE

special purpose acquisition company
R B BB A A

square meters

55k

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEMAERHMARAR

the United States of America
EFERAERH

United States dollars, the lawful currency of United States

X XBZEEER
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES IN 2021
BARF AR 3t B 2021 F A B REHEKE

S8R5 TOPS0O

CORPORATE’S ACCOLADES OR AWARDS IN
2021:

2021 FRFWRBRERIA :

o In January, the award announcement of “China Construction e
Science and Technology Award 2020 (20204F ¥ # & 2 % Rl 25, NETEREM  PBFL2ETHN [ EREEE
fir#%) "was officially released to reveal that project of AR ZIEEMEREIRA MR R ER] EE
“Technology Research and Application on the System RE—ER - WEMAFNEERITRIREES
Construction and Performance Improvement for Green Building
Standards (4% 232 SEIR YR8 BB AN AR IR T HAT A 5 L FEFR)”
completed by Landsea has won the first prize, highlighting

1A 2020 F EEERRMBRME | K

%

& A&

&

o

Landsea’s innovation and integration capabilities on green

building technology.

° On 16 March, at the “Assessment Result Conference cum e
Summit for 2020 Top 500 of China Real Estate Developers (2021

3A168  HPERFEMEXHS  LESER
b EE IR B Ko R B B st BRI BT L B A A

H B i ZE 50058 81 T A R E M & B 50058 = &5 1E)” jointly
organised by the China Real Estate Association, the Shanghai
E-house China R&D Institute (\E/& 5 EFENFCER) and the
China Real Estate Appraisal Centre (41 B &= 2 IFE ),
Landsea was awarded as one of the “2021 Best 100 of China
Real Estate Developers enterprises in China”, and was again
ranked as one of the “2021 TOP 10 of Performance of China
Real Estate Developers”.

Q.

[2021 7 B 5 #h = 500 58 B 5T A 5 3% 1 @ &8
500 m Emig] I - BAFFERE [2021 R EF
Hb 2 R 8 1 310058 | IF S8 Bk [2021 AR B 5 31,
EREDELEERI0E] -
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e On 10 April, at the 3rd CEIBS Social Responsibility Summit (| BX
HEeETSIE#%IE), Landsea won the first prize for Social
Responsibility ESG of the 3rd CEIBS Alumni (5 =& FBUR ).

o On 15 April, at the “2021 China Urban Organic Regeneration and
Consumption Scenario Creation Summit cum the 4th China
Urban Regeneration Forum” jointly organised by the China Urban
Regeneration Forum, the Chengdu Municipal Bureau of
Commerce (AXET B #5/8) and other parties, Landsea was
awarded the “2020 Top 10 of Urban Renewal Operators (20204,
BT+ R T E L 7).

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

4108 EFEZEP BT eETE EHmE
b RREE - ERRR A e EEESG—
L8

4R158 - @R BT EHwmE - KE TR
BEM A E MR [2021 A B4 T A 1 58 5 5L
BSREERNGBENES BT EHHE ]
£ - BATFER B [2020 3 T 5 3T + K3 1 & &
Al e



On 27 May, at the “2021 China Real Estate and Property
Management Services Listed Companies Appraisal Results
Conference”, Landsea Green Properties was awarded the “2021
Best 100 China Real Estate Listed Companies with Strongest
Comprehensive Strengths”, ranking 59th, and was also awarded
the second prize of the “2021 Best 5 of China Real Estate Listed
Companies of Risk Management”.

In the third quarter, the Talia model of Florida regional company
of Landsea Homes was awarded the first place for its detached
villa project in the $619k — $725k category by The Greater
Orlando Builders Association (GOBA).

In the third quarter, the ShadeTree sales team of Landsea
Homes, in the southern California won the Top Producer Award
at the GSMC Q2 Sales Awards.

MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES IN 2021
PR R AR B 1t 7 2021 F K BREBKE

5H27H ' [2021 R EIEHE LY ETHA A
BIFERK REME | £ BAFHE G E 287 2021
PRIEME LM ARGEEN1003] - (15
F590 - RAIRWE T 2021 FBIEHE M
NAEERIESISE] E=H -

% =FE - Landsea Homes# 78 =M@ A
AlTaiakREEFSARBEZHMEEZEHS
(GOBA) 78 % H) $619k-$725k B 1% [& & R 38 1R
RIEFEEE—H °

% =Z ¥ ' Landsea Homes i/t ShadeTree

HEBGRSHERTISREG _FRIAMK
EEHKE -
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On 21 October, at the 2021 Green Supply Chain & Climate
Action Forum, the Institute of Public and Environmental Affairs
(IPE) released the evaluation results of the 8th Green Supply
Chain CITI Index. Landsea was named as TOP1 of the CITI Index
in the real estate sector for five consecutive years, and ranked
among the top 5 of all brands in the Greater China, continuing to
maintain its leading position in China’s green real estate industry.

On 17 December, “the 11th Hong Kong International Finance
Forum cum China Securities Golden Bauhinia Awards Ceremony”
(F+—EFERR S rRIEBE D HE 5 K 2R 2IHE1E) was
held in Hong Kong and Landsea Green Properties was awarded
the “Listed Company with the Highest Investment Value for the
14th Five-Year Plan (TP AR AR EEE LT AR

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

10 A21H » f£2021 & B M EEZERIKTTE®
- ARRRMAEA O (PE)EHE N E
HEFECTHEEELER - MFFEBERIFEE
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES IN 2021

iR B E 2021 FASTRHEESE

MAJOR EVENTS IN 2021:

° On 7 January, Landsea Homes Incorporated completed the
SPAC transaction and was listed on NASDAQ in the United
States under the stock code of “LSEA”.

° In January, a regional company in the southern California of
Landsea Homes opened its first design center, the promotion of
which was conducted rapidly throughout the United States.

2021 £ KERL -

1 A7 8 - Landsea Homes Incorporated & A%
SPACR 5 » TEBIM T ER LT - RENRHE
A TLSEA] »

1 A * Landsea Homes & 1NN & 13 A 71 R EE
— (BT WREAEER2RHEE -
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e On 10 April, at the 3rd CEIBS Social Responsibility Summit (FFEL e
e &I SE#1E), Tian Ming, the Chairman of Landsea
Holdings, was invited to deliver a themed speech, sharing the
ESG practice of Landsea over the past 20 years, and exchanged
opinions with CEIBS Alumni (fEBX# &) and special guests
around the world, to explore the innovative development of
enterprises for practising social responsibility.

° On 4 May, Landsea Homes, acquired Vintage Estate Homes, e
expanding its footprint to Florida and Texas. The acquisition is an
important milestone for Landsea Homes to further become a
national homebuilder in the United States.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

AR10B EE-—BEPBHLEeEARERE
bR EERAAIABRREIREE
DERAF0OFRMESGER 2 - WHK A
RSB BUR R A a2 B IR 1
EBRTHEEINEAIFRRZE -

5H4 8 - Landsea Homes Y i Vintage Estate
Homes * /& FME & & 95 78 B 3% FAN1E s pE H N Th
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES IN 2021
FARTAR b 2021 F A B REHKE

=

BN IEE -

10 I YV

MEEH A .

-
el

5180 EE T H/ERIFR ARG R B
RAGENRMEERISES SR ESE
RIE LR EEEE - RRRII RIS TR A
main forum, while hosting two subforums for different fields to Mo#HRE  2EAENMES _TENGERIRE
FIAMBEBKR -

o On 18 May, at the 17th International Green Building and Building e
Energy Saving Conference & New Technology and Products
Expo, Landsea was invited to deliver a themed speech at the

fully demonstrate Landsea’s 20 years of innovation and practical
achievements for green technology.

5H19R  FTLEBRAAEREEREZHENE
REEMNMEERBES — MORERKZ
B5 E R EE D WIBIEKEERET - (FR
RERFEAGEEREXBMIERE  BIF

o On 19 May, the 17th International Green Building and Building e
Energy Saving Conference & New Technology and Products
Expo — the Subforum for Cooperation and Development
between Green Building and Green Finance (4% 2 i& 5t B4k =4

Eh i [E) 3 = 5 7 #8) was successfully held in Chengdu. As the
chairman of the professional group for green building and green
finance, Tian Ming, the Chairman of Landsea Holdings, said that
the professional group will take advantage of the cross-border
integration of green finance, property, scientific research and
think tanks to actively promote the calculation and methodology
for carbon emission reduction in the construction field and the
research and implementation on carbon trading in the
construction sector and on building energy efficiency labeling.

h = N

ERESEARART  SeREARCTRE
XEERBERCDR  WE  MEEBR
BAEMNES  BERESEEREIRIERE
TR BEERIRR 5 - BEBIRENT
FEEM -
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On 24 May, Landsea Green Property and Cinda Real Estate ({2
#EHE) formally signed a agreement for green and low-carbon
strategic cooperation to negotiate the better implementation of
the “dual-carbon” target. In the future, the parties will seek
suitable new projects of real estate investment together, while
exploring more opportunities for cooperation in areas such as
renovation of existing projects and entrusted construction
services, so as to form a new development pattern of
complementing resources and win-win cooperation.

On 5 June, the 8th Chinese Enterprises Green Compact Forum
of the SEE Conservation was successfully held in Beijing. As one
of the initiators of the GSC Action, Landsea has witnessed the
publication of achievement after the fifth anniversary of the GSC
Action with industry experts, enterprises and all walks of life in
the society, focused on promoting green economic
transformation with low level of carbon, resource conservation,
sustainability and socially acceptance by real actions, and
conducted in-depth communication for business innovations to
facilitate the dual-carbon action.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf
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"

New Progress of Green Supply Chain Program
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES IN 2021
FARTAR b 2021 F A B REHKE

On 23 June, the Huazhu Group (Z{F £ [E), a leading global hotel
management company, signed a cooperation agreement with
Landsea Green Property. Relying on the diversified product
matrix and development experience of Huazhu Group in the hotel
industry together with Landsea’s green technology strength in
the field of construction, a new generation of healthy and low-
carbon hotels is being created jointly under the background of
the dual-carbon strategy.

On 22 September, the 2021 “Zero Carbon Mission” International
Climate Summit, co-hosted by a number of organisations such
as Phoenix Media and the World Wide Fund For Nature (WWF),
kicked off in Beijing. Experts and institutional representatives in
countries and representatives for outstanding green and low-
carbon enterprises in China have gathered to discuss solutions
and feasible methods for “decarbonisation” by 2030. Tian Ming,
the Chairman of Landsea, was invited to attend the summit to
share his thoughts and practical experience on carbon neutrality
in the construction industry.

e

28N

6A23H  2RELMAEEEARETER
HPAGFMEEE S ERE - KIEEXEETH
JRITEMNZ T ERBEFMAECR  £4

FEREEINEERREN  TERBRY
BT HRITEN —RBREREE -

OH22H - mHmEEGREHRAEAES S
(WWF) & 2 RIERE FE R F #119 2021 Th(E
BRI RES A R AR ZEEX - #
BRENTEESGEEMEERRLR—
= - HFEFER20304F [Bifx ] BVARAR T 5 R A]
BT -PASEEREPIBEF L AES -
DEEHERTERP NN EE REBLSR
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° On 22 October, the “2021 Honggiao Klimaneutrales Forum”, e

which was hosted by the China Green Building Council of the
Chinese Society For Urban Studies (2 Bl T R £ %5 &), co-
hosted by the 50 People Forum of China Carbon Neutrality (4
B A50 A#%18) and the China Association of Building Energy
Efficiency, and jointly organised by the Green Building and Green
Finance Professional Group and Landsea, was successfully held
in Shanghai. Experts, scholars, and leaders from the government,
scientific research, finance, industry, ecology, low-carbon and
other fields have participated in the forum to discuss the practical
methods and development strategy for “carbon neutrality” in the
construction field.

MHSREEEERAR/ —T - —FEH

10H228  AHRBEIH MR ZRRESFEEE
HEREEEZE G M RERPM0AR
EHPEZENERE RN SEEEHRGE
S REESAMBAFFHLREADE [2021 THZE
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B ¢t BE £ ERSESINH
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBE

MARKET OVERVIEW

Since 2000, the real estate industry in the PRC has experienced 20
years of glorious development with increase in both the volume and
price, driven by high land profit and leverage ratio. Since 2021, the
economic development in the PRC has been under the pressure of
supply shock, shrinking demand and weakening prospect, and under
the sluggish sales of the real estate industry, the investment growth
rate has also shown a rapid decline. The continuous policy control and
the tightening of credit environment have created extreme difficulties
for real estate enterprises in terms of financing, and the entire industry
has entered the “ice age” and began to restructure. With the
disappearance of land profit and the deleveraging of the industry, real
estate enterprises in the PRC will also turn to the path for organic
growth with low profits, low growth and low leverage ratio.

OPERATION PERFORMANCE

Looking back to 2021, the contracted sales of “Landsea Products”
amounted to approximately RMB47.15 billion with contracted GFA of
approximately 2.64 million sg.m.. The total revenue was approximately
RMB8.08 billion. During the period under review, the Group secured a
total of 59 projects, among which, 15 were in the PRC and 44 were in
the United States.

h > N

RENS

REMEETES - TTTEMM  ELAA
EREE0ET  EBTRERA EFEE
MIBIZ20F - AT —F UK - REMDEERE

HRHAEE  FRWENEHEBSNES - Bt
ETEHEZEN  RELENMEZBRRETBNES
SENBRRBENTHRENEERE #5851
ELENRELTRTNE  BEATXEATKTY
Hi] FIAAERBIETE - BEE DA RDER RITER
E2RE  FENEEEHERENR  EEEK -
EEENAREERE -

ReEEE

BT ——% [BA:FHR] OBOEEBENAA
REEAT1 5B BYEEMEBLNA2648BF 5K -
BERARALEBAREB0.81ET > RIBEHAKRE
EHEERSEEE - HARE15(E - ER441F -
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REAL ESTATE BUSINESS IN THE PRC

The real estate industry in the PRC experienced significant difficulties in
the past year as a result of the weakness arising from over-
development over the years and strict policies and restrictions.
Besides, many companies has been facing capital chain rupture,
overdue payment of debt or even bankruptcy or restructuring. Since
the establishment of the Company 20 years ago, Landsea has always
respected the market. We are committed to green and low-carbon
construction, and shall neither hoard land of an exorbitant price, nor be
heavily indebted, for the solid financial position. In addition, we have
embarked on the strategic transformation for asset-light business since
2014. However, we may not be immune from the severe market
environment. Affected by policies such as price restriction, some
projects of the Company have suffered losses, when our determination
to reduce our debts has also exerted pressure on our cash flow to a
certain extent. Fortunately, our prudence and self-discipline over the
years has been helpful for us to weather the most difficult year.
Recollecting the past, we understand that survival means successful.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBE

As a green development service provider, research and development
and construction capabilities for green buildings are the foundation of
the Company. Landsea persistently focuses on green products
differentiation to enhance its position as a green brand. As of the end
of 2021, we had built over 150 green residential projects in 36 cities
across the PRC with a green residential development area of over 25
million sg.m. Currently, the Company has obtained a total of 98 green
building certifications in the PRC, of which 52, representing the
majority, were green building three-star certifications. The first green
building three-star certification in 9 cities, including Shanghai, Nanjing,
Hangzhou and Suzhou, were obtained by Landsea. In addition, we
have also obtained 21 international certifications for excellent green
buildings, including BREEAM and LEED. At present, there are over
77,000 users in the PRC living in Landsea’s technological residences.

Since the debut of “Ark of Freedom (B B A", a green healthy
residence, as a new generation of products of Landsea in 2020, it has
been launched throughout 16 cities in the PRC with over 8,279 sets of
residence launched.

In 2021, Landsea secured a total of 15 projects in cities such as
Tianjin, Chongqging, Wuhan, Suzhou, Xi’an and Zhongshan, with an
additional saleable value of approximately RMB31.45 billion and an
additional saleable area of approximately 1.77 million sg.m.. As of 31
December 2021, the accumulated saleable value in the PRC amounted
to approximately RMB77.33 billion, more than 60% of which were from
first-tier and new first-tier cities and more than 70% of which were from
the Yangtze River Delta and the Greater Bay Area.

Over the years, Landsea has been exploring the path of transforming
from a traditional asset-heavy housing model to an asset-light model.
We not only wish to become a branded service provider with light-
asset operation capability, but also wish our investment capability to be
of a certain level, such that our revenue level could be improved
through quality joint venture projects with minority interests. Today,
such exploration has begun to bear fruit.
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For 2021, 12 new Project Management Services projects were
acquired in the PRC, realizing a contracted sales from Project
Management Services of approximately RMB981 million with a year-
on-year increase of approximately 9%. The additional saleable area of
the Project Management Services projects was approximately 1.53
million sg.m. with its saleable value reaching approximately RMB25.86
billion with a year-on-year increase of approximately 18%. Meanwhile,
the gross profit margin of Project Management Services business
maintained at a relatively high level of approximately 40%. As of 31
December 2021, we provided a total of 83 Project Management
Services and development projects with minority interests, with a total
saleable area of approximately 3.78 million sg.m. and an estimated
saleable value of approximately RMB70.62 billion representing
approximately 91% of the total saleable value for the China region.

Due to the continuous widespread of the pandemic and the extreme
shortage of housing supply, the housing sales in the United States
peaked in 2021 for the past 15 years, and the average selling price for
new houses increased by approximately 20%, with the fastest growth
in the high-growth markets in the western and southern regions. Since
the acquisition of Vintage Estate Homes, a homebuilder, in April 2021,
by which, we entered the markets of the states of Florida and Texas,
and given the states of California and Arizona which have been our
focus for long, Landsea Homes sold 1,640 sets of residences in these
four fast-growing markets in 2021, assisting in boosting the total
revenue of our business in the United States to over the US$1 billion.
The rapid increase in selling prices has also offset the increase in raw
material prices and the labour costs, resulting in a significant increase
in profit margin.

During the period under review, the saleable areas of new projects of
Landsea Homes in California, Arizona, Texas and Florida were
approximately 950,000 sg.m. with the saleable value of approximately
RMB15.04 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 126.3%. As of 31 December 2021, the accumulated
saleable value in the United States was approximately RMB21.09
billion, of which more than 35% was for California, approximately 30%
for Arizona, and nearly 30% for Florida and Texas.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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OUTLOOK

In the past 20 years, although the real estate industry in the PRC was
in full swing, affected by the inherent mindset, most of the companies
are only engaged in residential development, and repeatedly adhere to
the business model of land acquisition and development and residence
sales. However, there are different modes in the real estate market
including retail, wholesale and investment of residence, public building
and new housing and existing housing. Different business may have
different requirements on areas such as technical capabilities, customer
service capabilities, financial strength and resource acquisition of the
companies. For developers of excellent quality, market segmentation
and in-depth development will undoubtedly bring room for
development and opportunities.

For the real estate industry in the PRC, after more than 20 years of
development, the problem of housing shortage has been fundamentally
alleviated. In the future, the industry will develop towards a more
healthy, comfortable, eco-friendly and low-carbon direction, and its
orientation will shift from the original new housing market to the existing
housing market, with the co-existence of the two. The rapid-cycle
model with financial orientation will be eliminated, with the focus
returning to residence, life and quality. In the new era, previous
experience of and exploration by Landsea will show its foresight and
lay a solid foundation for successful transformation.

Landsea positions itself as a service provider of green development
and also a “real estate investment bank + green builder”. The former
means the ability of resource integration and matching, while the latter
focuses on the application of green building technology in the
residential and the public building sectors. Such positional change has
not only affected the market and customers, but also meant a series of
adjustments on areas such as the organizational structure, talent
composition, incentive mechanism and financial model of the
Company. Landsea is fortunate to be a pioneer in exploring diversified
development of market, and has much experience in fields such as
green building and renovation for the existing buildings. We shall
continue to work hard to improve our capabilities for development in
the market segments.
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Since 2014, we have been realizing our strategic transformation to
product differentiation, asset-light transformation and revenue
diversification, and 2022 is a decisive year for completing the
transformation and for leaping. When competing in the industry, we
focus on disposing of distressed assets and on our core business of
quality. We will also launch an option incentive plan for the
management and core team to fully motivate the team. Meanwhile, the
Company has decided to change its name to “Landsea Green
Management Limited” (BAsF4% 2 B B R A F]) to more accurately
reflect the strategic positioning of becoming a green development
service provider and allow itself to be differentiated from the typical
“domestic real estate stock”. Adhering to our original dream of green,
low-carbon and sustainable development, Landsea shall move into a
new stage of industry development with a new face after streamlining. |
am confident in the transformation, upgrading and sustainability of the
Company as well as our development in the future market.

Tian Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

“E-FEAR - RABETERZRLL  BEER
£ WEEHANBEEL  —F - —FKIRM
TREEBREAREN —F - TRARBD 2K
BB ETPRIREMEEE  WZLOBEEBKE
£ BPTE S HE L B S TR B AL B B O HR R AR
BIat 8 URDHEBEEFNBERE - R - AQF
EREBAALGHEENSBAFREEEGRA
Al AR EENREZEMEREEOEREL -
ZEHEERAEKR] B L - AFHREZE
ik~ AIRFEERAL - BE LR UHinE
REATERROFMER - RYQAELUARLIF
m o BERRAREKZME » FEmED °

M

FE

& —E-—_HF#=HA=+—H



g

S, oy e

{

i
I|II ||l

|“'|I d”*

&h

11|[-’!I]|_I-‘I_II

A1 FTL TR

i

ANANNE

W

D




&

LEADING
GREEN LIFE
1 & 8 £

A
Y.

Gl

NN .ﬁﬁﬁmmﬁﬁ FEE ,n
 EEEEEEEEEAESRSSEEAE

e T A T T N A A A A A,




BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBEAERHT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tian was born on 24 January 1961. He was appointed as the
Chairman and an executive Director on 31 July 2013. He is the
chairman of the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee. He
obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration from China
Europe International Business School (“CEIBS”). Mr. Tian founded
Landsea Group in 2001. He is now the controlling shareholder and also
the chairman and president of Landsea Group. Mr. Tian has 21 years’
extensive experience in the fields of competitive strategy, operation
management and property investment and development.

Mr. Tian initiated the “Green Supply Chain Act of Real Estate Industry”,
which aims to mitigate the negative effect of the industrial supply chain
on the environment by promoting green procurement.

Mr. Tian was a non-executive director and the chairman of Landsea
Green Life Service since 15 January 2021. He serves as the chairman
of the board and a director of Landsea Homes since January 2021,
and he was an independent non-executive director of Chervon
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange; stock code: 2285) since 8 December 2021.

Aged 39, was appointed as an executive Director and chief executive
officer of the Company on 27 March 2020. He is also a member of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Committee. He graduated from
Wuhan University in 2004, where he obtained a bachelor degree of law
and Sociology. He also received a master degree in Sociology from the
Law School of Tsinghua University in 2007. Mr. Huang had worked for
Huarun (Dalian) Co., Ltd., CITIC Real Estate Co., Ltd. and Hailiang
Group Co., Ltd. as the sales manager and general manager
respectively. He has extensive experience in sales and marketing and
operation management in real estate industry. Mr. Huang joined the
Company in 2019 and served as the vice president.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Aged 45, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 25 February
2022. He is the vice president and chief financial officer of Landsea
Group. Prior to joining Landsea Group in 2021, he worked for well-
known corporations such as Longfor Group Holdings Limited, and was
the responsible officer of the group’s financial assets center. He has
over 19 years of experience in the finance and real estate industry. He
obtained a master’s degree in accounting from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics. He is a non-practising member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and has obtained the Financial
Risk Management (FRM) qualification.

Aged 49, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 30 June 2021.
He is also a member of the Audit Committee. He is the general
manager of the asset management center of Ping An Real Estate
Company Limited. Prior to joining Ping An Real Estate Company
Limited in 2015, he worked in China Overseas Development Company
Limited, Shenzhen Yitian Group Co., Ltd., COFCO Property Group and
KWG Group Holding etc.,
companies, and had been an architect, general manager of design

well-known property development

department, group vice president. He has over 26 years’ experience in
the property development industry. He obtained a Bachelor’s degree
of urban planning in Tongji University and possessed a Master’s degree
of Central Academy of Fine Arts.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBEAERHT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
31 July 2013. He is the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Committee. He obtained a PHD
of Economics from University of California Davis in 1991. He was the
managing director and head of research department in China
International Capital Corporation Limited, and senior economist of
Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) and consultant of World Bank. Currently, Mr.
Xu serves as the Honorary Professor in CEIBS and his research areas
include macroeconomics, finance, financial institutions and markets,
transition economics and China’s economic reforms. He is a famous
Chinese economist and was granted the highest award of economics
study in China, the “Sun Yefang Economic Science Award”. Mr. Xu has
more than 36 years’ experience in economics analysis.
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Aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
22 March 2019. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee. Mr. Chen is a tenured Full Professor of Accounting, and
Associate Dean and the Director of MBA programs at the School of
Business and Management at Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He earned his Bachelor of Business Administration from
National Cheng-Chi University (Taiwan), Master of Science from
University of lllinois at Urbana Champaign, and P.H.D. in Accounting
from University of Texas. His research interests are corporate
governance, auditing, and earnings quality. His research has been
published in top tier journals including The Accounting Review, Journal
of Accounting and Economics, Journal of Financial Economics, Journal
of Financial and Quantitative Analysis, and Accounting Organizations
and Society. Mr. Chen’s article in Journal of Accounting and
Economics (2007) (“JAE”) is one of the most cited JAE articles in the
year. His research has been featured in CFO.com, Accounting Today,
Thomson Reuters and American Accounting Association’s monthly
newsletter. Mr. Chen has more than 13 years of experience of teaching
financial and managerial accounting to MBA and EMBA students and
in Executive Education programs. He has won numerous teaching
awards including the Franklin Teaching Prize, the Best 10 Lecturers,
and Faculty of the Year by EMBA students. Mr. Chen is also a CPA
(Australia) and a Chartered Global Management Accountant (CGMA).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBEAERHT

Aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
27 May 2019. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of each of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee.
Mr. Rui graduated from University of International Relations (BFR Bd/&
E[) in the PRC in July 1990, where he obtained a bachelor degree in
international economics. He also received a master of science in
economics from Oklahoma State University in the United States as well
as a master of business administration and a doctor of philosophy in
business administration from the University of Houston in the United
States in May 1993, December 1996 and August 1997 respectively.
Mr. Rui has been a Professor of Finance and Accounting at CEIBS
since January 2012, and has held the title of Zhongkun Group Chair in
Finance at CEIBS from October 2015 to May 2019 and Parkland Chair
in Finance at CEIBS from May 2019. Mr. Rui has been professionally
designated as a Certified Financial Analyst by the Association for
Investment Management and Research since September 2000 and a
Financial Risk Manager by the Global Association of Risk Professionals
since April 2010. He serves as an independent non-executive director
and the chairman of the audit committee, and a member of each of
remuneration committee and nomination committee of Dexin Services
Group Limited (stock code: 2215; a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange) since June 2021 and Shang Gong Group Co.,
Ltd. (ETHR B E&E)RH AR A F) (stock code: 600843; a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), an independent non-executive
director and the chairman of the audit committee of China Education
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 839; a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange) and he has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director, chairman of the audit committee
and a member of the nomination committee of Country Garden
Services Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6098; a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) since May 2018. Mr.
Rui had been an independent non-executive director and a member of
the audit committee of COSCO Shipping Energy Transportation Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 1138 and stock code: 600026; a company listed on
both the main board of the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange) from June 2015 to June 2021, an independent non-
executive director and the chairman of the audit committee of Midea
Group (EREE D ABR A A) (stock code: 000333; a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) from September 2015 to
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September 2018, an independent director and the chairman of the
audit committee of Shanghai Winner Information Technology Co., Inc
(EBENE BRHEAR M BR A E]) (stock code: 300609; a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) from December 2015 to
September 2020 and an independent non-executive director of
Sichuan Languang Justbon Services Group Co., Ltd. (a company
formerly listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and its listing
status was withdrawn on 19 August 2021) from 17 June 2021 to 30
August 2021.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhou Kunpeng* (A#EHlE) (‘Mr. Zhou”), aged 46, is the vice
president of Landsea Green Properties. He is primarily responsible for
the management of manpower and administration, customer service
and reverse review. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in April 2007 as the
deputy director of the president’s office. From May 2008 to October
2020, Mr. Zhou held various positions such as the office director, the
compliance officer, the customer-service director, the general project
manager, the deputy general manager, the standing deputy general
manager and the general manager of regional companies, mainly
responsible for administration, customer relationship, operation and
management of various projects and regional companies. Since
October 2020, Mr. Zhou has been the vice president of Landsea Green
Properties, responsible for the management of manpower and
administration, customer service and reverse review. He obtained a
Bachelor’'s Degree in economics from Anhui Finance and Trade
College* (Z# B B EB7) in 1997 and an EMBA from CEIBS in
September 2019.

Mr. Liu Chengwei* (2| {Z) (‘Mr. Liu Chengwei’), aged 44, is the
vice president of Landsea Green Properties. Mr. Liu Chengwei is
primarily responsible for the overall operation and management of The
Shanghai Real Estate Company. Mr. Liu Chengwei joined the Group in
February 2014 as the deputy general manager of the regional
company. From May 2017 to February 2020, he served as the general
manager of the regional company. Since February 2020, Mr. Liu
Chengwei has been the vice president of Landsea Green Properties
and the general manager of the Shanghai real estate company,
responsible for its overall operation and management. He obtained a
Bachelor’s Degree in construction engineering from Xi’an University of
Technology in 1999, a master’s degree in construction engineering
from Tongji University in 2004 and an EMBA from the National School
of Development of Peking University in 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBEAERHT

Mr. Liu Shouwei (2/5F1&) (“Mr. Liu Shouwei”), aged 37, is the vice
president of Landsea Green Properties. Mr. Liu Shouwei is primarily
responsible for the overall operation and management of the Hangzhou
real estate company. Mr. Liu Shouwei joined the Group in July 2007 as
a deputy manager of the finance department. From December 2014 to
July 2019, Mr. Liu Shouwei held various positions such as the manager
of finance department, the assistant to general manager and the
deputy general manager of regional companies and the general
manager and the assistant to president of the financial management
centre of the regional company, mainly responsible for financial
management. Since July 2019, Mr. Liu Shouwei has served as the vice
president. Since January 2020, he has also assumed the position of
general manager of the Hangzhou real estate company, responsible for
its overall operation and management. He obtained a Bachelor’s
Degree in accounting from Southeast University in July 2007 and an
MBA from Sichuan University in September 2018. He is now studying
an EMBA in Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business.

Mr. Mao Jiangjun (E£ILE) (“Mr. Mao”), aged 42, is the vice
president of Landsea Green Properties. Mr. Mao is primarily
responsible for the overall operation and management of the Chengdu
real estate company. Mr. Mao joined the Group in April 2014 as the
general manager of The Chengdu Real Estate Company. Since
February 2020, Mr. Mao has served as the vice president and the
general manager of the Chengdu real estate company, responsible for
its overall operation and management. He obtained a master’s degree
in mechanical and electrical engineering from Zhejiang University in
March 2005 and an EMBA from CEIBS in April 2019. He is now
studying a doctorate in business administration in NEOMA Business
School.

Ms. Gu Jing (B&1%8) (“Ms. Gu”), aged 41, is the assistant to the
president of Landsea Green Properties. Ms. Gu is fully responsible for
the financial management of Landsea Green Properties. Ms. Gu joined
the Group in May 2014 as the treasurer. From August 2016 to
November 2020, Ms. Gu held various positions such as the assistant
to general manager, the deputy general manager and the general
manager, mainly responsible for finance, supply chain and post-
investment management. Since November 2020, Ms. Gu has been the
assistant to the president of Landsea Green Properties, responsible for
the overall financial management of the Company. She obtained a
Bachelor’s Degree in accounting from Nanjing University of Finance
and Economics in 2003.
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Mr. Xu Aibing* (fRE ) (“Mr. Xu Aibing”), aged 42, is the assistant
to president of Landsea Green Properties. Mr. Xu Aibing is primarily
responsible for the overall operation and management of the Nanjing
real estate company. Mr. Xu Aibing joined the Group in March 2018 as
the deputy general manager of the management centre for supply
chain. From February 2019 to February 2020, Mr. Xu Aibing served as
its general manager. Since February 2020, Mr. Xu Aibing has been the
assistant to president of Landsea Green Properties and the general
manager of the management centre for supply chain, responsible for
operation. Since September 2021, Mr. Xu has concurrently served as
the general manager of the Nanjing real estate company, responsible
for its overall operation and management. He obtained a Bachelor’'s
Degree in civil engineering from Southeast University in 2001.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan was appointed as company secretary and authorized
representative of the Company on 1 November 2006. Ms. Chan is a
fellow member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries)
and The Chartered Governance Institute. She is also a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Ms. Chan has over 25 years’
experience in handling listed company secretarial matters.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENmR D

BUSINESS REVIEW

OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP

The Group upheld the development strategy of “Product-differentiation,
Asset-light transformation and Revenue-diversification” and leveraged
its resource endowments to further achieve capability of green property
products differentiation. Meanwhile, with the advantages of products
diversification, the Group actively expanded various projects focusing
on minority interests and Project Management Services to achieve
revenue diversification.

With years of exploration and persistence in the business model of
asset-light, the Group has effectively reduced its reliance on financial
leverage and responded to the complex changes in the industry in a
lighter manner, which highlighted its strong risk resistance capability
amid the in-depth adjustment period of the industry.

In 2021,
approximately RMB47.15 billion (including the contracted sales of

“Landsea Products” recorded contracted sales of
approximately RMB46.98 billion from the Group and a small amount of
remaining projects of Landsea Group) (2020: approximately RMB41.19
billion). The contracted GFA of 2,635,383 sg.m. (including 2,627,549
sg.m. from the Group and a small amount of remaining projects of
Landsea Group) (2020: 2,333,585 sg.m.), representing an increase of
approximately 12.9% as compared with 2020.

In 2021, the Group secured 59 projects, of which 15 were in the PRC
and 44 were in the United States, all of the projects were under
development for sale (including 47 projects in which the Group held
equity interests and 12 Project Management Services projects).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERWR D

In 2021, the Group recorded an increase in the new project saleable
area of 2,719,499 sg.m., which were properties under development for
sale, with expected new project saleable value of approximately
RMB46.48 billion, in which new project saleable area of 1,186,443
sg.m. and expected new project saleable value of approximately
RMB20.62 billion are recorded from the new project the Group held
interest respectively. According to the Company’s attributable equity
interest in the new project, the Group recorded a new project saleable
area of 1,154,345 sq.m. as well as expected new project saleable
value of approximately RMB19.63 billion. During the period under
review, the Group obtained new Project Management Services projects
with GFA of 2,203,528 sqg.m. (saleable area of 1,533,056 sg.m.) and
expected saleable value of approximately RMB25.86 billion. By
adhering to a consistently stable and prudent investment strategy, the
Group’s costs for acquiring land and asset have significant advantage
in resisting the market risk in the future.

In 2021, the Group had project reserves with saleable area of
5,385,054 sq.m. and expected saleable value of approximately
RMB98.43 billion, in which saleable area of 2,457,752 sg.m. and
expected saleable value of approximately RMB42.27 billion secured for
the equity-held projects, with saleable area of 1,712,954 sgq.m. and
expected saleable value of approximately RMB30.17 billion attributable
to the Group. The Group had also acquired a total of 52 Project
Management Services projects, with saleable area of 2,927,302 sg.m.
and expected saleable value of approximately RMB56.16 billion. The
Group held the leased properties with total GFA of 192,681 sgq.m. and
the equity-held projects with GFA of 105,367 sg.m..

REZTBZ—FE  AEBGHEHESAYETE
HEE 2,719,499 F 5K « BEIAIEEENAARE
464.8187C + AR AKE 5 R$kSHE=IE B FIEAI &
HEA1,186,443F 5K « BATAIEEENAARE
206.2187T - IRBEARNTRHIEE EhHER - A5E
JEIL R B D FIE A S A A 1,154,345 F 770K + T8
SAUEEENABARKE196.31T o REIE BB
SE L H BN ERBIE B #5£EiE & 2,203,528 F
FoK - AIEmETEA 1,633,056 F K - A AIEEE

HNAARKSEOET AEERR—EBEER
WA TR AEERRAAEEEED

BHREERETSER o

RZBEZ—FE AEEHEEEFGEUEEER
5,385,054 F K R FEFTAIE BEL /B ARKE84.3
BT - BV HEmIE B Al S H A4 2,457,752 F 5K &
BAAUERENBARK 422 7B T - NEBEMN
PO A EMEMEL1,712,954 F KRB AIEE
BHNAAREI7TETL AEBZHABKRERS
BB H52M  AIEEE2,927,302F 5K - FEEHA
EEENABARKESSI6ETL  AEEFAF HAR
W EESEMEMEA192,681F HK  EEEZRID
BEmMIEAR 105,367 F K °
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT IN THE PRC

For expansion of real estate development in the PRC, Landsea
continued to take a prudent and pragmatic approach. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group secured a total of 15 projects in
cities such as Tianjin, Chongqging, Wuhan, Suzhou, Wuxi, Changzhou,
Zhongshan, Jinhua, Taizhou and Zhangzhou with an additional saleable
area of 1,770,000 sg.m. and saleable value of approximately
RMB31.45 billion, of which 12 projects were Project Management
Services projects with saleable area of 1,530,000 sg.m. and saleable
value of approximately RMB25.86 billion. Meanwhile, the new Project
Management Services contracts amounted to approximately RMB981
million (2020: RMB900 million),
approximately 9% over 2020.

representing an increase of

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT IN THE UNITED STATES
The Group’s property development business covers both the PRC and
the United States. Landsea Homes has successively entered Greater
New York, California and Arizona, and successfully entered Texas and
Florida in 2021. In 2021, Landsea Homes secured 44 new projects in
California, Arizona, Texas and Florida with additional saleable area of
approximately 950,000 sg.m. and saleable value of approximately
RMB15.04 billion.

CONTRACTED SALES IN WHICH THE GROUP HELD
EQUITY INTERESTS AND PROPERTIES SOLD BUT
NOT RECOGNISED

In 2021, the total contracted sales of the property projects in which the
Group held equity interests amounted to approximately RMB21.56
billion with contracted sales area of 1,246,580 sg.m., i.e. an average
selling price of RMB17,296 per sg.m.. The contracted sales were
mainly from the on-sale projects in Shanghai, Tianjin, Chongqing,
Chengdu, Nanjing, Hangzhou, Wuhan, Suzhou, Wuxi, Hefei, Jiaxing
and Zhongshan, etc. in the PRC and first tier and second tier gateway
cities in the United States. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s
accumulated areas of properties sold but not recognised were
2,497,779 sq.m. (31 December 2020: 2,681,693 sg.m.), amounting to
approximately RMB40.86 billion (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB43.65 billion), in which areas of properties sold but not recognised
attributable to the Group were 1,132,397 sg.m. (31 December 2020:
1,080,907 sg.m.), amounting to approximately RMB18.67 billion (31
December 2020: approximately RMB17.41 billion).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EXTERNAL CONTRACTS IN 2021 —EBE - —FHINEY
Average
Contracted Contracted
Equity Sales Contracted Sales Selling
Number Projects Holding Amounts Sales GFA? Price
BEHE EREHE
FFER 1HA Emfl BRHEESHE EEEE FHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB)
(AR®EFT) (F7K) (AR¥®TT)
1 Nanjing Youth Block 100% 2,174 - -
MREEHER
2 Nanjing Poly Landsea Weilan 50% 27,358 847 32,300
A R BAEF R AR EE
3 Nanjing Xihua Mansion 19% 124,871 2,917 42,808
R ERERT
4 Nanjing Zixi Mansion 20% 1,207,533 79,562 15,177
MR BRI
5 Sugian Weilan Court 51% 5,490 - -
EEHE D
6 Sugian Weilan Elegant Yard 51% 24,046 1,309 18,370
BB R B HESD
7 Hefei Landsea’s Hi-tech Court 49% 166,371 7,821 21,272
B RERA T = 3T b
8 Shangshi Landsea Future Block 100% 19,209 - -
FERKRER
9 Shanghai The Course of The Future 100% 38,492 1,242 30,992
EBEiE
10 Shanghai Changfenghui Silver Premier 100% 67,227 1,529 43,968
FERREREE
11 Wuxi Tiancu 100% 4,502 200 22,510
PRI
12 Suzhou Green County of Taihu 55% 6,405 356 17,992
BRIN AHRARED
13 Wuxi Luka Small Town 100% 41,487 4,166 9,958
EH 5 R /MR
14 Suzhou Qasis Elegant Court 20% 1,229 93 18,215
ERMNAR MR A HESE,
15 Yixin Xindu Mansion 26% 16,581 = =
B BT
# Contracted sales GFA does not include parking space # AREEREEBETREENMEE
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Average

Contracted Contracted
Equity Sales Contracted Sales Selling
Number Projects Holding Amounts Sales GFA? Price
BEHE BEEE
FFa 1HA Emltfl BRHEESHE EEmE FHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB)
(AR®EFT) (F7K) (AR¥TT)
16 Suzhou Blue Square 51% 179,923 16,691 10,780
#R N B B B 5
17 Suzhou Cheng Garden 100% 6,973 - -
ERMNEE
18 Suzhou Wuyue Xihua Elegant Court 15% 14,825 543 27,302
FRN SRBERZE TS
19 Wuxi Xihua Mansion 40% 112,528 3,254 34,581
B EREE AT
20 Changshu Shangjing Mingzhu 11% 292,194 11,193 26,105
BEAMREE
21 Zhangjiagang Le Mansion 50% 1,397,984 65,916 21,209
SRR B LT
22 Hangzhou Xihua Mansion 49% 15,850 = =
TN ERZE fF
23 Hangzhou Le Mansion 50% 45,095 369 122,209
AEJ ]
24 Hangzhou Light of City 40% 18,788 = =
BN T 2 S
25 Hangzhou Linglongyue 30% 166,055 7,230 22,967
UM 32 Tk
26 Haining Oasis Jing Yuan 20% 1,325,416 96,714 13,704
T ELEIMNERPT
27 Wuhan Xihua Mansion 30% 1,375,859 51,504 26,714
BUEBRERT
28 Changsha Lu Island Project 1% 85,422 13,657 6,255
RAOBSIER
29 Chengdu Muhua Road Project 5% 970,143 72,361 18,407
PR EDAR ZE B 1R B
30 Chengdu Xihua Mansion 33% 69,152 2,900 23,846
BERER 2 AT
# Contracted sales GFA does not include parking space EREEEEEBTEEEMEEA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W&

Average
Contracted Contracted
Equity Sales Contracted Sales Selling
Number Projects Holding Amounts Sales GFA?# Price
BEHE EREHE
FFER 1HA BELEH ARHEELE EEmE FHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB)
(AR®EFT) (F7K) (AR¥®TT)
3il Chongging Le Mansion 30% 1,092,821 76,972 14,198
BELNT
32 Chengdu Landsea Cuiyue 50% 19,759 1,636 12,078
P EBEA 55 25
88 Chengdu Shanglin Xihua Mansion 33% 891,498 59,410 15,006
D - MREREE T
34 Chengdu Future Zhe 50% 1,365,123 125,632 10,866
PR EBAR R ZE
35 Chengdu Le Mansion 76% 611,604 23,507 26,018
BERLE I
36 Chengdu XihuaTianxi 60% 944,904 32,331 29,226
B EREREE R EE
37 Mianyang Jiangyu Bay 60% 662,769 57,651 11,496
SCH Y
38 Landsea Golden Mansion Future Block 51% 508,099 58,647 8,664
B ERRER
39 Tianjin Emerald Lan Wan 75% 6,087 - -
KRR E
40 Tianjin Cuiweilan Pavilion 35% 130,056 7,677 16,941
REZRRE
41 Xi'an Future Block 100% 70,725 1,746 40,507
AZARRERE
42 Zhongshan Landsea Dezhou Shangjun 43% 368,946 21,922 16,830
L BA R R 151 B
# Contracted sales GFA does not include parking space # AREEREEBETREENMEE
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Average

Contracted Contracted
Equity Sales Contracted Sales Selling
Number Projects Holding Amounts Sales GFA? Price
BEHE BEHE
FFa 1HA Emltfl BRHEESHE EEmE FHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB)
(AR®EFT) (F7K) (AR¥TT)
43 14th & 6th 95% 326,799 2,138 152,853
44 Alamar 100% 132,119 11,152 11,847
45 Avora 51% 286,881 5,047 56,842
46 Bayridge 100% 17,511 1,742 10,052
47 Belle Oaks 100% 23,399 1,338 17,488
48 Catalina 100% 325,332 6,577 49,465
49 Centerra 100% 139,922 10,171 13,757
50 Country Club Lakes Estates 100% 136,575 6,871 19,877
51 Crestley 100% 71,591 2,632 28,274
52 Eastmark 100% 16,261 960 16,939
58 Ellis Town Country 100% 709,290 29,224 24,271
54 Estrella 100% 88,315 5,726 15,424
55 Georgiana Reserve 100% 100,638 5,749 17,505
56 Germann Country Garden Estates 100% 7,318 495 14,784
57 Halifax Plantation 100% 16,317 984 16,582
58 Halifax Plantation-Bulow 100% 50,182 3,468 14,470
59 Harvest Queen Creek 100% 145,461 10,261 14,176
60 Heathrow Country Estate Homes 100% 73,023 5,466 13,359
61 Heritage Pointe 100% 4,586 235 19,515
62 Heron Creek 100% 39,050 2,237 17,456
63 Iron Ridge 100% 504,133 15,135 33,309
64 Lavender 100% 89,226 1,223 72,957
65 North Central Phoenix 100% 138,084 5,376 25,685
(Madison Town & Country)
66 North Copper Canyon 100% 273,595 20,958 13,054
67 Northern Farms 100% 133,554 8,995 14,848
68 Novato 100% 38,572 1,111 34,718
69 Ontario Vander Eyk 100% 538,420 20,811 25,872
70 Orinda 100% 306,853 5,837 52,570
# Contracted sales GFA does not include parking space AREEREEBETREENEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Average
Contracted Contracted
Equity Sales Contracted Sales Selling
Number Projects Holding Amounts Sales GFA?# Price
BEHE EREHE
FFER 1HA BELEH ARHEELE EEmE FHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB)
(AR®EFT) (F7K) (AR¥®TT)
71 Palm Bay 100% 175,399 14,917 11,758
72 Palm Coast 100% 82,756 5,089 16,262
73 Park Forest 100% 36,175 3,237 11,175
74 Poinciana 100% 3,482 292 11,925
75 Saratoga Hills 100% 23,359 1,856 12,586
76 Sonora Crossing 100% 28,412 1,979 14,357
77 South Carpenter Estates 100% 17,737 821 21,604
78 St. Johns Preserve 100% 81,541 7,575 10,764
79 Stone Creek Ranch 100% 21,5632 1,482 14,529
80 Sundance 100% 112,636 9,170 12,283
81 Sunrise Ranch 100% 5,930 406 14,606
82 Sunset Farms 100% 104,525 6,941 15,059
83 Tevelde 100% 1,025,275 50,822 20,174
84 The Canyons 100% 6,856 657 10,435
85 The Westerly 100% 41,390 1,551 26,686
86 Verrado 100% 357,503 22,150 16,140
87 Vintage Oaks 100% 47,665 3,577 13,325
88 West Pointe 100% 136,809 11,486 11,911
89 Woods of Lake Helen 100% 16,797 1,248 13,459
Equity-held projects entered into by 21,560,359 1,246,580 17,296
the Company
RARIELRIER #E
# Contracted sales GFA does not include parking space # AREEREEBETREENMEE
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PROJECT RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had project reserves with saleable
area of 5,385,054 sgq.m. and expected saleable value of approximately
RMB98.43 billion. In terms of equity interests, saleable area attributable
to the Group was 1,712,954 sg.m. and expected saleable value was
approximately RMB30.17 billion. The Group had also acquired a total
of 52 Project Management Services projects, with saleable area of
2,927,302 sg.m. and expected saleable value of approximately
RMB56.16 billion.

ACCUMULATED LAND RESERVE AT THE END OF 2021

IHE #1%

RZZBEZ—F+ZA=+—H0 A5EHANEE
EHE P &£ 1E 5 5,385,054 F 752K » Tt Al S EEL
RARBIBAIIETT : R E - AEEEIGIER
B EEEA1,712,954 F 5K » st S EEL
BARKEIN7TET  AEB 2 HRERERKIEER
521 AIEEE A2,927,302F K » BETAI &
BEENBARKES561.618TT

“EC-FRAF LM

GFA for
Equity Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable
Number  Project Holding  Total GFA GFA FA development  Value Sold GFA Sold Value GFA
BRIN BREM  ARER
Fih ER RELH LREEE XEE  MEER  MXER 2 CEHE DEER 0 UERE  TEER
(sq.m.) (sqm.) (sq.m.) (sgm)  (RMB'000) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sq.m,)

(Frk)  (Fk) (¥R (¥R (ARETR)  (Fh%) (ARMTR)  (F4%)

1 Shanghai Future Block 100.0% 233,791 233,791
EERRER

2 Nanjing Youth Block 100.0% 314,8%4 314,804
HREEHR

3 Nanjing Future Home 50.1% 133,530 133,530

4 Suzhou Green County of Taihu 55.0% 438,677 438,677
M AR

5 Wuxi Luka Small Town 100.0% 139,689 133,919
T SN

6 Nanjing Xinua Mansion 19.0% 201,116 201,116
R

7 Hangzhou Xihua Mansion 49.0% 139,152 139,152
HMEEER

8 Hangzhou Le Mansion 50.0% 80,602 80,602
RE

9 Tianjin Emerald Lan Wan 75.0% 142,156 142,156
KEEERE

2,844,047 149,587 78,851 =

= - 2929612 245414 66,034 =

= = 969,822 109,579 14,970 =

= - 5649204 327,161 743 120

= 5770 742,774 97,527 23,194 1,787

= - 5,676,051 162,473 16,470 =

= - 4339390 88,760 46,440 =

= - 2,665,487 54,838 14,110 =

= - 1,567,944 108,563 3,314 =

10 Tianjin Cuiweilan Pavilion 36.0% 157,140 109,469 47,671 = 1,615,568 111,965 38,506 -

RERGRE
11 Shanghai Changfenghui Siver Premier 100.0% 18,875 18,875
LERBER#E

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

966,802 18,406 4,500 =



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W&

GFA for
Equity Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable
Number  Project Holding  Total GFA GFA GFA development  ValueSold  GFA Sold Value GFA
BAIH BRT  ARER
Fi 12 BRH AREEE XER  WXEE  YXER 2 BEEE BEER  UEREE  TEER
(sq.m.) (sqm.) (sq.m.) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sgm)  (RMB'000) (sq.m.)

(Fok)  (Fk)  (F9K)  (¥9K) (AR%Tn)  (Fh%) (ARMTR)  (FiK)

12 Wuhan Xihua Mansion 30.0% 140,553 - 140,553 - 1436859 531382 1,528,359 44839
HERER

13 Chengdu Xihua Mansion 33.0% 367,753 367,753 = - 4361% 233,494 448,826 21,917
AR ER

14 Hefei Landsea’s Hi-tech Court 49.0% 127,241 33,39 93,846 - 1,867,269 91,024 17,714 2,217
aRESFERNER

15 Chengdu Landsea Cuiyue 50.0% 30,316 30,316 - - 151,103 11,228 11,187 11,297
AR

16 Hefei Feidong Jade Garden 10.0% 57,398 = 57,398 = 147,220 8,584 365,935 31,838
AREREREE

17 Yixing Xindu Mansion 26.0% 220,045 171,171 48874 - 1,619,231 163,519 13,855 -
BRI

18 Sugian Weilan Court 51.0% 224,621 81,544 143,077 - 1,601,538 160,783 46,381 -
EEREZN

19 Sugian Weilan Elegant Court 51.0% 200,622 77,828 122,694 - 1470113 138,807 44,677 -
RERER

20 Chongging Le Mansion 30.0% 397,049 216,980 115,669 64,400 4,082,147 260,606 712,889 9,331
BRI

21 Nanjing Zixi Mansion 20.0% 209,504 90,685 118,819 - 2435402 150,003 122,000 1,150
ARERM

22 Suzhou Cheng Garden 100.0% 12,450 12,450 - - 277,453 6,999 6,667 176
HMEE

28 Hangzhou Linglongyue 30.0% 161,440 = 77,230 84,210 166,055 7230 2,071,515 84,868
T

24 Chengdu Golden Mansion Future Block 51.0% 384,307 196,017 188,290 - 2,085,561 287,648 168,750 -
AL EARER

25 Chengdu Shanglin Xihua Mansion 33.3% 265,576 = 265,576 - 2,752,907 192,347 295,880 =
A LR

26 Kunshan Langlu Garden 51.0% 43,362 = 43,362 = 666,260 26,337 = =
RIS

21 Shijiazhuang Future Block 25.5% 166,336 - 166,336 - 1,079,183 124,875 121,200 -
AREARER

28 Nanjing Wangjiawan Project 60.0% 136,671 - 121,469 15,202 - - 1873567 72,483
HREZXEER
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GFA for

Equity Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable

Number  Project Holding  Total GFA GFA GFA development  Value Sold GFA Sold Value GFA
241N BEY  ARBR

F 12 BRLH AREEE XER  WXEE  YXER 2 BEEE BEER  UEREE  TEER

(sqm.) (sq.m.) (sqm.) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sq.m.)

(Fk)  (Fk)  (F5K) (¥R (AR%Tm)  (Fh%) (ARMTR)  (FiK)

29 X'an Future Block 100.0% 85,111 - 85,111 - 795,057 57,089 3,8% -
BZARER

30 Chengdu Future Zhe 50.0% 216,938 - 190,319 26619 2,631,172 167,049 256,926 23,461
RERRE

31 Wuxi Xihua Mansion 40.0% 214,960 63,428 151,582 - 3,657,510 141,400 288,142 4,376
EHRER

32 Zhongshan Landsea Dezhou Shangjun 43.5% 80,160 = 80,160 = 905,026 56,994 41,520 =
BB RN

38 Chengdu Le Mansion 75.6% 124,114 - 124,114 - 2,189,075 84,006 150,181 -
LT

34 Chengdu Xihua Tianxi 60.0% 190,204 58,556 131,648 - 3446,030 124,241 168,705 140
HARERE

3b Changshu Shangjing Mingzhu 11.0% 48292 - 48,292 - 824,959 32,248 29,444 -
EARNELE

36 Zhangjiagang Le Mansion 50.1% 123,028 - 123,028 - 1,864,299 87,379 72,455 202
FREEN

37 Halning Oasis Jing Yuan 20.1% 314,250 73,291 240,959 - 1,791,201 132207 1,736,044 R414
BELNER

38 Mianyang Jiangyu Bay 60.0% 115,409 - 115,409 - 662,769 57,651 459,408 26,436
BBTiE

39 Tianjin Le Mansion 100.0% 196,742 - 178,809 17,933 - - 2837210 135,461
RS

40 Chonggin Xiyue Mansion 100.0% 95,605 = = 95,605 = = 1,644,440 06,325
BRRMAT

4 Wuxi Industrial Fabric Factory Project 10.0% 58,041 - - 58,041 - - 1,103,520 35,664
BHISHRER

42 Chengdu Muhua Road Project 49% 1022400 1,022,400 - - 4507633 266,378 4,022,868 457,800
R KRR

43 Changsha Lu Island Project 1.0% 266,216 80,301 112,098 73817 1,085,522 162,644 3,480 -
ROEBRR

44 Chongaing Future Times 0.0% 188,273 18,863 169,410 - 989,136 125,722 113,096 235
ERARREL

45 Nanjing Mountain and Jiuzhu Mansion 0.0% 124,989 - 124,989 - 1,259,690 47814 1,096,420 38,882
HRILAMAZR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W&

GFA for
Equity Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable
Number  Project Holding  Total GFA GFA GFA development  ValueSold  GFA Sold Value GFA
BAIH BRT  ARER
Fi 12 BRH AREEE XER  WXEE  YXER 2 BEEE BEER  UEREE  TEER
(sq.m.) (sqm.) (sq.m.) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sgm)  (RMB'000) (sq.m.)

(Fok)  (Fk)  (F9K)  (¥9K) (AR%Tn)  (Fh%) (ARMTR)  (FiK)

46 Nanjing Jiufeng Lanting 0.0% 102,630 20,656 81,974 - - - 2,546,455 75,324
HRUERE

47 Nanjing Landsea Linglongjun 0.0% 134,633 88,422 46,211 - 2,640,507 101,095 = =
BRI R

48 Chengdu Hefeng Yinyue 0.0% 39,514 = 39,514 = 489,777 25,933 73,633 -
AAMEEN

49 Wenling Qichen Court 0.0% 40,624 - 40,624 - - - 721,930 21913
B BRI

50 Nanjing Halyue Metropol 0.0% 278,748 278,748 = - 9610,126 206,953 25,465 =
BRERLH

51 Nanjing Landsea Golden Elephant Mangrove 0.0% 307,241 230,001 77,240 - 6,077,087 217,813 - -
HRAF S RATBI

52 Nanjing Jiulong Xi'an Plot C 0.0% 76,516 - 76,516 - 1283729 40,803 19,520 569
ARNERRCHR

53 Nanjing Jiulong Xi'an Plot A/B 0.0% 180,538 180,538 - - 2728965 105,526 458,931 19,802
HRNERFABIR

54 Hefei Wanxin Landsea Green County 0.0% 148 441 148,441 = = 1,332,040 102,268 10,405 655
AEGABHE

65) Wuxi Landsea New County 0.0% 297,136 - 297,136 - 3123125 82292 1,064,139 108,836
BHRFIE

56 Century Landsea Green County in 0.0% 200,269 36,248 88,687 75334 1968829 156,984 61,332 2,181

Yancheng Dongtai

BRI G

57 Nanjing G68 Project 0.0% 263,294 102,839 160,455 - 3966279 60,126 6,633,721 89,874
HRGe81EE

58 Zhangjiakou Dongshanyue 0.0% 134,908 = 134,908 = 599,951 86,593 411,505 14,424
FROR LM

59 Nanjing Jiangning G45 Project 0.0% 142,633 60,000 82,633 - 2,057,325 62,881 545,304 42,120
HRIEGHER

60 Wuhan West Coast 0.0% 171,838 171,838 = - 1088298 98,521 189,520 11,433
HERAER

61 Rugao Xihua Mansion 0.0% 292,587 73,658 218,929 - 3228260 220,997 230,107 29,089
MREER
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GFA for

Equity Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable
Number  Project Holding  Total GFA GFA GFA development  ValueSold  GFA Sold Value GFA
241N BEY  ARBR
F 12 BRLH AREEE XER  WXEE  YXER 2 BEEE BEER  UEREE  TEER
(sqm.) (sq.m.) (sqm.) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sq.m.)
(Frx)  (FK)  (Fhk)  (F5R) (AREFR)  (FhK) (ARBTT)  (FHK)
62 Suzhou Feiniaoj 0.0% 281,829 - 61,073 220,756 1,133,398 96,603 351,452 1,347
HINREE
63 Changzhou Xihua Mansion 0.0% 140,833 126,308 14,525 - 2,381,002 101,301 99,360 -
ENEER
64 Chengdu Yaolongwan 0.0% 188,652 - 188,652 - 428,230 61,845 379,320 44,881
RS
65 Chengdu Guanshanyue 0.0% 191,853 - 191,853 - 1,169,079 108,310 26,265 -
AL
66 X'an Huyug 0.0% 28,835 - 28,835 - 325,016 20,018 - -
sl
67 Beiing Jianguo Apartment Project 0.0% 22,483 = 22,483 = = = 1,110,000 12,885
IRREASEE
68 Kaifeng Bianjing Xihua Mansion 0.0% 278,468 - 278,468 - 827,859 88,241 1,390,727 123972
RENTREEMT
69 Chengdu Tianfu Green County 0.0% 276,000 - 276,000 - 1,622,161 136,850 58,600 -
e NG
70 Suzhou Hefeng Xihua Elegant Court 0.0% 185,379 = 185,379 - 48317967 131,524 249,600 -
FNNEREN
71 Xianyang Weichengfu 0.0% 394,474 - 223,452 171,022 1,877,170 177,220 1,286,272 102,928
RS
72 Nantong Haiyingli 0.0% 86,399 - 41,807 44572 588,450 63,872 49,338 2,882
MRERE
73 Suzhou Shangjun 0.0% 133,529 - 133,529 - - - 2013200 92,105
M3
74 Suzhou Siji Yunjing Huating 0.0% 72,615 - 72,615 - 100,522 3,981 596,738 20,903
FNMEEREE
75 Yixing Guaniin Project 0.0% 92,508 - - 92,508 - - 451,830 61,620
HEEHER
76 Jiangyin Linggang Plot B 0.0% 102,120 - 102,120 - - - 908,750 77,992
TREEBIR
i Wuxi Yucuili 0.0% 125,904 - 125,904 - 141969 79,914 39,780 -
EHUEE
78 Suzhou Zhong'ou Alumni Project 0.0% 91,500 - 91,500 - 411,836 19,099 53,633 -

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W&

GFA for
Equity Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable
Number  Project Holding  Total GFA GFA GFA development  ValueSold  GFA Sold Value GFA
BAIH BRT  ARER
Fi 12 BRH AREEE XER  WXEE  YXER 2 BEEE BEER  UEREE  TEER
(sq.m.) (sqm.) (sq.m.) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sgm)  (RMB'000) (sq.m.)

(Fok)  (Fk)  (F9K)  (¥9K) (AR%Tn)  (Fh%) (ARMTR)  (FiK)

79 Suzhou Le Mansion 0.0% 165,409 - 165,409 - - - 3088470 99,609
ERINERT

80 Jinhua Taoyuanli 0.0% 162,643 = 162,643 - 1,068,605 87,337 362,175 21,898
SRR

81 Ningbo Hangzhouwan Project 0.0% 217,847 = 21,609 196,238 15,896 1244 2,188,374 163,954
Sl

82 Tianjin Wuging Lanhujun 0.0% 77,762 - - 77,762 - - 981,000 93,143
RERBE M

83 Xi'an Le Mansion 0.0% 68,284 - 68,284 - 213,973 12,287 753,267 31,394
BRENR

84 Huizhou Luyuan Project 0.0% 139,615 = 139,615 - - - 2,179,500 94,390
EMBEER

85 Zhangzhou Changtai Project 0.0% 100,908 - - 100,908 - - 1,074,830 55,772
ENRZFER

86 Dongyang Lakeside Residence 0.0% 414,978 - 187,634 227,344 405,703 34886 3052818 226,974
R HRELR

87 Zhongshan Xincheng 0.0% 697,559 - 226,256 471,308 - - 7,604,380 510,248
Gl

88 Wuhan Caidian Electrical Appliance 0.0% 79,590 - 79,590 - - - 806,480 56,069

Factory Project

REEAEEFER

89 Suzhou Xihua Mansion 0.0% 98,296 - 98,296 - - - 1,690,340 67,189
HIMEER

90 Huaian Shiguangli 0.0% 33,287 - 33,287 - 19,449 2,189 127,009 14,454
EZREE

91 Changzhou Long Chen No.1 0.0% 251,018 - 251,018 - 1215521 48006 4,432,969 133,450
EMER—%

R Xi'an Chanba 727 Project 0.0% 117,593 - - 117,593 - - 2480560 76,045
BRART2718R

93 Tianchang Yongjin Mansion 0.0% 157,138 = 47,138 110,000 - = 731,680 104,384
ARERN

% Lianshui Shuian Chengbang Project 0.0% 173,366 = 173,366 - - - 1,041,080 144,555
EROKEAR

9% Suzhou Wuijiang Shengze Project 0.0% 39,171 - 39,171 - - - 456,320 30,922

HNRIZEER
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GFA for

Equity Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable
Number  Project Holding  Total GFA GFA GFA development  Value Sold GFA Sold Value GFA
241N BEY  ARBR
F 12 BRLH AREEE XER  WXEE  YXER 2 BEEE BEER  UEREE  TEER
(sqm.) (sq.m.) (sqm.) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sq.m.)
(Frx)  (FK)  (Fhk)  (F5R) (AREFR)  (FhK) (ARBTT)  (FHK)
9% 14th & 6th 95.0% 7,550 - 7,550 - 322,307 2,138 666,126 4,952
a7 Alamar 100.0% 16,151 9,397 6,566 188 183,693 16,151 - -
9% Alameda Marina 100.0% 35,197 - - 35,197 - - 1,400,150 35,197
99 Anthem 100.0% 198,747 - - 198,747 - - 3286689 198,750
100 Avora 51.0% 31,776 31,776 - - 1360318 23,467 19,839 362
101 Bayridge 100.0% 5,506 5,180 326 - 57,362 5,506 - -
102 Belle Oaks 100.0% 3,326 - 665 2,661 23,076 998 19,371 2,328
108 Bentridge 100.0% 51,335 - - 51,335 - - 477,779 51,335
104 Centerra 100.0% 45,047 20,991 17,808 6,253 324,698 28459 139,365 16,588
105 Citrus Park 100.0% 122,487 - - 122,487 - - 1083388 122,487
106 Country Club Estates 100.0% 13,898 - - 13,898 - - 167,465 13,898
107 Country Club Lakes Estates 100.0% 66,600 1,318 2,858 62,424 169,557 12,322 882,820 54,278
108 Courtyards at Waterstone 100.0% 14,953 - - 14,953 - - 131,150 14,953
109 Eagle Crest 100.0% 26,820 - - 26,820 - - 352,366 26,820
110 Eastmark 100.0% 67,833 8,501 4,316 55,016 85,928 8,501 766,251 59,332
11 Eber Cove 100.0% 1,067 1,067 - - 13,061 1,067 - -
12 El Cidro 100.0% 356,885 280,681 - 76,204 348,162 280,681 789,308 76,204
13 Ellis Town Country 100.0% 75,674 3989 16,576 55,109 692,691 28910 610,228 46,764
114 Encanta 100.0% 14,668 9,618 5,050 - 118,523 14,668 - -
115 Estrella 100.0% 32,909 7,382 10,131 15,396 130,478 10,431 214,620 2477
116 Gardens Waterstone 100.0% 9,757 = = 9,757 = = 122,464 9,757
17 Georgiana Reserve 100.0% 8,146 1,700 2,220 4226 111,892 6,657 11,261 1,488
118 Halfax Plantation 100.0% 1,412 1,412 - - 13,206 1,218 2,861 194
119 Halfax Plantation-Bulow 100.0% 14,000 - 1,372 12,628 49,492 3,843 167,214 10,157
120 Harvest Queen Creek 100.0% 19932 12,014 6913 1,005 259,506 19932 - -
121 Heathrow Country Estate Homes/Red Tall 100.0% 10,590 527 1,643 8,520 94,632 6,826 62,026 3,764
122 Heritage Pointe 100.0% 1,885 1,855 - - 20,534 1,855 - -
128 Heron Creek/Grand Lakes 100.0% 4,198 2,968 1,230 - 73,008 4,198 - -
124 Iron Ridge 100.0% 143,457 139,706 3,338 48 3038914 141,056 23432 2,401
125 Lavender 100.0% 16,738 - 3,608 12,135 88,000 1,223 979,930 14,515
126 Lincoln 65—Nolin 100.0% 10,175 - - 10,175 - - 264,512 10,175
127 Marbella 100.0% 348 348 - - 3,566 348 - -
128 Monarch Hills 100.0% 113,194 - - 113,194 - - 22471730 118,194

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W&

GFA for
Equity Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable
Number  Project Holding  Total GFA GFA GFA development  ValueSold  GFA Sold Value GFA
241N BRT  ARER
Fi 12 BRH AREEE XER  WXEE  YXER 2 BEEE BEER  UEREE  TEER
(sqm.) (sqm.) (sqm.) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sgm)  (RMB'000) (sq.m.)

(Fok)  (Fk)  (F9K)  (¥9K) (AR%Tn)  (Fh%) (ARMTR)  (FiK)

129 Montecito Townhomes 100.0% 4,545 4545 = = 54,705 4,545 = =
130 North Central Phoenix 100.0% 10,124 1,368 8,756 - 112,929 4,418 107,097 5,706
(Madison Town & Country)
131 North Copper Canyon 100.0% 90,196 70,964 14,690 4,542 887,249 83,750 32,966 6,446
132 North Copper Canyon (3.183.2) 100.0% 34,645 = = 34,645 = = 397,398 34,645
133 North Gopper Canyon (3.3) 100.0% 25,381 = = 25,381 = = 330,453 26,381
134 Northern Farms 100.0% 52,142 733 14,362 37,047 125,444 8,493 328,165 43650
135 Novato 100.0% 10,628 - 3,682 6,946 38,042 111 383,075 9517
136 Offste MEL 100.0% 225 225 - - 2,261 225 - -
137 Offsite TX 100.0% 971 647 324 - 9,036 97 - -
138 Ontario Vander Eyk 100.0% 47,074 14,375 17,936 14,763 521,271 20,457 381,022 26,617
139 Orinda 100.0% 9,131 7,656 1,475 - 468,201 9,131 - -
140 Palm Bay 100.0% 31,421 3228 5110 23,088 208,570 24,039 79,223 7,382
141 Palm Coast 100.0% 10,837 1,548 1,742 7,547 74,557 6,79 36,480 4,042
142 Palm Garden Lakes 100.0% 1,724 1,724 - - 19,140 1,724 - -
143 Park Forest 100.0% 42,583 42,338 245 - 405,100 42,583 - -
144 Placentia Heights 100.0% 15,786 = = 15,786 = = 523,320 15,786
145 Poinciana 100.0% 1,168 292 - 876 3,421 292 5,289 877
146 Saratoga Hills (Key Ranch) 100.0% 3,015 3,015 - - 5139 3,015 - -
147 Sarival Farm 100.0% 17,361 - - 17,361 - - 263,641 17,361
148 South Carpenter Estates 100.0% 3,622 199 1,222 2,201 43,732 3,622 - -
149 St. Johns Preserve 100.0% 13,819 2,554 4,457 6,808 79,311 7,011 325,743 6,808
150 Stone Creek Ranch 100.0% 2,274 - 568 1,706 16,979 650 27,585 1,625
151 Sundance 100.0% 30,148 29,380 768 - 320,628 30,148 - -
162 Sunrise Ranch 100.0% 99,809 - 14,252 85,557 - - 936,685 99,809
163 Sunset Farms 100.0% 28419 - 9,760 18,659 108,085 6,941 147,115 21,478
154 Synagogue 90.0% 4,552 1,141 3411 - - - 540,459 3412
155 Tevelde 100.0% 115,465 87,501 19,804 8160 1,803,657 101,416 180,801 14,048
156 The Canyons 100.0% 607 = 607 = 11,312 607 = =
157 The Groves 100.0% 13,712 - - 13,712 - - 146,601 13,712
158 The Junction 100.0% 16,914 - - 16,914 - - 173,394 16,914
159 Thousand Oaks 100.0% 363 - 363 - 2977 363 - -
160 Trrado 100.0% 21,333 - - 21,333 = = 666,310 21,333
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GFA for

Equity Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable
Number  Project Holding  Total GFA GFA GFA development  Value Sold GFA Sold Value GFA
BAIH BRY  ARER
Fif 12 Balkhl AESER R WEER  VEER 0 2EEE  EEEE WEEE  WUEER
(sqm.) (sq.m.) (sqm.) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sq.m.)
(®Ak)  (FAR)  (FAK)  (FAR) (ARETFR)  (FhR) (ARETR)  (FAK)
161 Verrado 100.0% 91,328 53,329 26,018 11,981 928,916 74,579 162,209 16,748
162 Vintage Oaks 100.0% 10,107 979 1,956 7172 84,679 3,260 67,304 6,846
163 Vistancia 100.0% 557 - - 567 - - 7,631 557
164 West Pointe 100.0% 51,844 49,308 2,389 147 559,501 51,844 - -
165 Woods of Lake Helen 100.0% 5,005 982 1,362 2,711 57,205 4,625 4475 380
Total 19653949 6,977,262 8940414 3636283 156955700 8,882,143 98425238 5385054
At

Of Which: Subtotal of Equity-held Project 10751292 5440692 3579657 1730943 94,971,041 5867,135 42,267,548 2,457,752

B EERGER N
Subtotal of Project Management 8,802,657 1536560  5360,757 1905340 61984659 3015008 56,157,690 2,927,302

Services projects

RERREHER N

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W&

Equity
Projects Holding Status Usage GFA
HE BEEbhl e Rz BEEE
(sqm.)
(F7K)
Beijing Landsea Tower” 50.0% Completed Leasing 21,906
SN PN 50.0% KT mapiils 21,906
Shanghai Huangxing Building 100.0%  Under renovation Partially leasing 11,427
tEEEXE 100.0% EEHuE #Boy A 11,427
Shanghai Senlan Apartment® 50.0% Completed Leasing 43,543
LEREAES 50.0% %I R 43,543
Shanghai Zhangjiang Landsea Center® 30.0% Completed Leasing 10,489
EBRIRAFEP.LA 30.0% &I H A 10,489
Shanghai Daning Landsea Tower* 50.0% Completed Leasing 19,390
FBRERFAES 50.0% %I mepiches 19,390
2/F, Building 5, Shanghai IBP 100.0% Completed Leasing 1,000
International Business Park

LB BPEREHEEHIE2E 100.0% %I mpiils 1,000
Guangzhou Jiefang Tower” 33.6% Completed Leasing 11,507
U ON 336% KT R 11,507
Nanjing Huafei Apartment 100.0%  Completed Leasing 5,729
ARERES 100.0% %I HAE 5,729
Nanjing Wangjiawan Building 60.0%  Under renovation Partially leasing 15,118
ARERERNE 60.0% Hl&suE #Bo B 15,118
Nanjing Tianlong Temple Project® 30.0% Completed Leasing 15,856
FARAEFIEE 30.0% KT R 15,856
Wuxi Neighbourhood Union 100.0% Completed Leasing 10,667
BHMEE 100.0% %I H A 10,667
Suzhou Blue Square® 51.0% Completed Leasing 26,049
FRINEYEE RIS 2 51.0% KT mpiils 26,049
192,681

A The property is held by joint ventures of the Company. a ZHEEBBHARRIZEERNREE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s revenue was
mainly derived from Project Management Services of approximately
RMB752 million (2020: approximately RMB686 million), from sale of
properties of approximately RMB7.32 billion (2020: approximately
RMB8.28 billion) and rental and property management fee income of
approximately RMB4 million (2020: approximately RMB28 million),
which in aggregate was approximately RMB8.08 billion (2020:
approximately RMB8.99 billion). The gross profit of the Group was
approximately RMB1.67 billion (2020: approximately RMB1.71 billion)
and the gross profit margin was approximately 20.7% (2020:
approximately 19.0%), representing an increase of 1.7 percentage
points as compared with 2020.

RECOGNISED SALES OF PROPERTIES OF
SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised revenue
of approximately RMB8.08 billion (2020: approximately RMB8.99
billion). In which, the consolidated subsidiaries of the Group recognised
revenue from sales of properties and total sales area of approximately
RMB7.32 billion (2020: approximately RMB8.28 billion) and 367,434
sg.m. respectively, mainly attributable to Shanghai Future Block and
Chengdu Future Home in the PRC, and Tevelde, Iron Ridge, Sanctuary,
Catalina, Relevae, West Pointe, Vintage, The Westerly and North
Copper Canyon in the United States. The average selling price in the
PRC was approximately RMB23,503 (2020: approximately
RMB14,179) per sq.m., while the average selling price in the United
States was approximately RMB17,699 (2020: approximately
RMB16,882) per sg.m..

INCOME FROM PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Benefiting from the full commencement of “asset-light” strategy of the
Group, the Group recorded Project Management Services income of
approximately RMB752 million (2020: approximately RMB686 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2021. Gross profit margin of Project
Management Services income was maintained at 40%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERWR D

INCOME FROM RENTAL AND MANAGEMENT FEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised rental
and management fee income of approximately RMB4 million (2020:
approximately RMB28 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 85.5% as compared with 2020. The decrease in rental
and management fee income was mainly attributable to the sales of

Landsea Tower in Shenzhen at the end of last year.

FAIR VALUE (LOSSES)/GAINS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the fair value losses of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB6 million (2020: gains of
approximately RMB81 million). The increase in fair value losses was the
combined effect of: (i) the gains on changes in fair value of warrants
brought by the acquisition of SPAC in the United States during the
period of approximately RMB14 million; and (ii) the increase in fair value
losses on investment properties during the period of approximately
RMB20 million (2020: gains of approximately RMB81 million). The
Group’s investment properties included Huangxing Building in
Shanghai, 2/F, Building 5, Shanghai IBP International Business Park,
Huafei Apartment in Nanjing, Wangjiawan Building in Nanjing and
Neighbourhood Union in Wuxi located in the PRC. The fair value of
investment properties was determined by a competent independent
valuer based on the property’s current business model adopted by the
Group and its expected income to be generated.
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SELLING EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded selling
expenses of approximately RMB486 million (2020: approximately
RMB407 million). The increase in selling expenses was attributable to
the strengthened stimulating policies to promote sales under the
impact of pandemic and market.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded
administrative expenses of approximately RMB1.28 billion (2020:
approximately RMB909 million). The increase in administrative
expenses was mainly due to the increase in listing expenses indirectly
incurred for the acquisition of SPAC in the United States (approximately
RMB377 million) and the increase in the number of staff through the
acquisition of Vintage Estate Homes.

NET PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON
FINANCIAL ASSETS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, net provision for impairment
loss on financial assets of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB275 million (2020: approximately RMB381 million). The
Company’s net provision for impairment loss on financial assets was
provided using the expected credit loss rate for financial assets such
as trade and other receivables in accordance with the standard
requirement of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

FINANCE COST

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded interest
expenses (excluding finance costs recognised for advanced receipts)
of approximately RMB629 million (2020: approximately RMB723
million). The capitalisation rate of interest expenses in 2021 was
approximately 59.6% (2020: approximately 33.5%). For the year ended
31 December 2021, the expensed finance costs of the Group was
approximately RMB254 million (2020: approximately RMB481 million).
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the interest income of the
Group was approximately RMB90 million (including interest income
from amounts due from joint ventures and associates, non-controlling
interests and loan to third parties) and the net finance cost was
approximately RMB164 million (2020: approximately RMB324 million).
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the weighted average finance
cost was approximately 7.0% (2020: approximately 7.6%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERWR D

TAXATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded taxation
charge of approximately RMB189 million (2020: approximately
RMB489 million), of which the increase in taxation arose from the
acquisition of SPAC in the United States amounted to approximately
RMB79 million.

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group incurred a net loss
of approximately RMB696 million (2020: net profit of approximately
RMB33 million), among which, listing expenses, changes in fair value of
warrants and tax impact related to the acquisition of SPAC in the
United States amounted to approximately RMB450 million (such listing
expenses was assessed to be charged to profit or loss in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, whereas if the
assessment was made in accordance with US GAAP or PRC GAAP,
such listing expenses would have been recorded in equity and would
not have had any impact on profit or loss), exchange losses amounted
to approximately RMB109 million, and net provision for impairment loss
on financial assets amounted to approximately RMB206 million (net of
tax). Excluding the above impact, the adjusted net profit of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB70 million.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Cash positions

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash amounted to approximately RMB4.22 billion (as at 31
December 2020: approximately RMB5.25 billion). As at 31 December
2021, the Group’s current ratio (current assets divided by current
liabilities) was approximately 1.3 times (as at 31 December 2020:
approximately 1.5 times).
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INDEBTEDNESS

As at 31 December 2021, the total indebtedness of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB8.49 billion (as at 31 December 2020:
approximately RMB6.55 billion). The indebtedness of the Group
primarily consists of shareholder loans, bank borrowings, senior notes
and EB-5 financing. As at 31 December 2021, total net debts* were
approximately RMB4.46 billion (as at 31 December 2020:
approximately RMB1.42 billion). As at 31 December 2021, the
proportion of short-term debts was approximately 45.2% (as at 31
December 2020: approximately 13.1%) and long-term debts was
approximately 54.8% (as at 31 December 2020: approximately 86.9%).
Long-term debt of the Company accounted for a greater proportion,
maintaining reasonable structure of long-term and short-term debt to
facilitate sufficient liquidity.

Debt analysis:
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HNAARKEBSS5ET) - AEBMEKEZBRERE
B RITER BEESFKEBSHE -R_FT
T H+ZA=1T—H FEEHEFHORARK
446EBIT(RZZEZTFTA=1T—"H HRARE
¥1428L) RZZE=Z—F+=-A=+—H  &H
EBLLBIH BB2%(R_"E_TEF+=-_F=+—
B:4A/131%) E%fﬁiﬂ%ﬁmwuw_
TEFF+A=1—H: %7;%869%%21&
HERELEBER  REHEBEERES %
RENMETTIA ©

BT -

31 December 2021

31 December 2020

—EZ_—f+ZH=+—H
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RMB’000 Percentage RMB’000 Percentage
AR¥T T HES K AREBT T HBES
Analysis of total indebtedness by BIEBANEEGE ST
settlement currency:
Denominated in RMB UAREES 1,568,436 18.47% 1,552,193 23.68%
Denominated in USD AETaEE 6,921,183 81.53% 5,001,399 76.32%
8,489,619 100.00% 6,553,592 100.00%
Analysis of total indebtedness by BERSARIEE DT
maturity:
Within one year —&FR 3,839,002 45.22% 856,706 13.07%
Between one and two years —FERF 111,292 1.31% 3,000,814 45.79%
Between two and five years —FERF 3,816,213 44.95% 1,896,831 28.94%
Over 5 years hELAE 723,112 8.52% 799,241 12.20%
8,489,619 100.00% 6,553,592 100.00%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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GEARING RATIO

The Group has been striving to optimize its capital and debt structure.
As at 31 December 2021, the on-balance sheet net debts* to equity
ratio of the Group was approximately 79.9% (as at 31 December 2020:
approximately 25.9%), which remained healthy in the industry. The
Group’s debt to total assets ratio (total borrowings divided by total
assets) was approximately 30.4% as at 31 December 2021 (as at 31
December 2020: approximately 26.5%). In addition, the debt to assets
ratio of the Group net of advance payment received was approximately
76.6% as at 31 December 2021 (as at 31 December 2020:
approximately 77.5%), representing a decrease as compared with that
as at 31 December 2020. The management will monitor the capital and
debt structure of the Group on a regular basis with aim of controlling
short-term debt ratio and mitigating its exposure to the risk of gearing.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowings of the Group were secured
by one or a combination of the following items: restricted cash,
property, plant and equipment, properties under development,
investment properties, equity interests in certain subsidiaries of the
Group and guarantee provided by Controlling Shareholders. Senior
notes were guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the Company. EB-5
loans are guaranteed by a subsidiary.

& net debts = total debts less cash and cash equivalents (excluding restricted cash)
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND CURRENCY RISK

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash were mainly denominated in RMB, Hong Kong dollar
and United States dollar. The functional currency of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the United States is United States dollar while that of the
subsidiaries in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollar, and that of the
subsidiaries in Mainland China is Renminbi. As at 31 December 2021,
the borrowing of approximately RMB918 million to the Group’s
subsidiary in the United States from the ultimate controlling shareholder
was the long-term financial support to the Group. The net amount of
approximately RMB1.59 billion of the Group’s Hong Kong subsidiary
due to its PRC subsidiary were the internal funds transfer of the Group.
The corresponding changes in foreign exchange rates resulted in an
exchange loss of approximately RMB120 million (2020: exchange loss
of approximately RMB193 million). As at 31 December 2021, the
Group’s assets denominated in US$ were approximately US$1.45
billion (equivalent to approximately RMB9.22 billion): representing
approximately 33% of the total assets; the liabilities denominated in
US$ were approximately US$1.09 billion (equivalent to approximately
RMB6.97 billion), representing approximately 31% of the total liabilities;
and assets denominated in US$ exceeds liabilities denominated in US$
by 1.32 times. As foreign currency assets are in line with the foreign
currency liabilities, no financial instrument has been adopted by the
Group for hedging purposes.

INTEREST RATE RISK

As at 31 December 2021, the debts payable borne with fixed interest
rate accounted for approximately 51.8% (as at 31 December 2020:
approximately 56.0%) of the total debts of the Group. The Group will
continue to monitor the trend of interest rates in the market closely and
seek to adopt appropriate risk management measures for mitigating
the exposure to the interest rate risk. In this regard, the Group
considered the exposure to interest rate risk is low.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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GUARANTEE

The Group cooperates with various financial institutions to arrange
mortgage loan facility for the purchasers of its properties and provides
guarantees to secure such purchasers’ obligations of repayment. As at
31 December 2021, the outstanding guarantees amounted to
approximately RMB1.25 billion (as at 31 December 2020:
approximately RMB1.52 billion). In addition, the Group provided a
guarantee for borrowings of Guangzhou Langxiu Business
(BMNEAF R EIRZRERAR),
and the balance of the guarantee as at 31 December 2021 was
RMB118 million (as at 31 December 2020: RMB148 million).

Management Consulting Co., Ltd.*

As at 31 December 2021, there were certain corporate guarantees
provided by the subsidiaries of the Group for each other in respect of
their borrowings. The management considered that the subsidiaries
had sufficient financial resources to fulfill their obligations.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2021.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 1,891 employees (as at 31
December 2020: 1,614) who were responsible for the managerial,
administrative, technical and general functions in Hong Kong, the
United States and the PRC. The increase in headcounts is mainly due
to an increase in the number of staff employed for the business
development arising from the merger and acquisition in the United
States and new property development projects in the PRC and United
States. The increment levels of the employees’ emolument, promotion
and remuneration were determined with reference to their duties,
performance and professional experience. Other employee benefits
included mandatory provident fund scheme, insurance and medical
coverage. According to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and the
Share Award Scheme, the Company will grant share options or
awarded shares to the Group’s management and staff based on their
individual performance.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Pursuant to the terms of the cooperation framework agreement (the
“Cooperation Framework Agreement”) entered into between
Nanjing Langming Real Estate Group Co., Ltd.* (F REAShESEE S
R A7) (“Nanjing Langming”), Xi’an Langshiming Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.* (AL AFF#EHERZEGRAR]) (“Xi’an
Langshiming”), which are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company,
Xi’an Jiapeng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (8% 3= s B E
ZHPR A F) (the “Project Company”) and Nanjing Luode Dening Real
Estate Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (@ R & & E
HERE AN E) (‘Dening Fund’) on 21 February 2019, and subject
to certain conditions, Dening Fund agreed to invest in the property
development project on BRFEE 78 % T AR R 78 S8R AR - ERAR A
it Rib4RSE FD2-14-32 (land parcel No. FD2-14-32 located in the
east of the Xihu Railway and the north of Kunming Road in Weiyang
District, Xi’an City, Shaanxi Province®) (the “Subject Project”) held by
the Project Company through the acquisition of the 70% equity interest
in the Project Company (the “Sale Interest”) and the provision of the
shareholder’s loan provided by Dening Fund to the Project Company
(the “Dening Fund Shareholder’s Loan”). Pursuant to the terms of
the Cooperation Framework Agreement, Dening Fund could request to
exit the Subject Project and Xi’an Langshiming and/or its designated
third party should agree to buy back the total investment amount of not
exceeding RMB140,000,000 including the provision of the Dening
Fund Shareholder’s Loan of not exceeding RMB126,000,000 and the
consideration for the Sale Interest of RMB14,000,000 (the “Dening
Fund Investment”) for a maximum amount of RMB280,000,000
pursuant to the agreed terms upon the earlier occurrence of either (i)
the Subject Project sales rate reaches 95% and all sales proceeds
have been received; or (i) 22 months from the completion of the
settlement of Dening Fund Investment (the “Buy Back”), for a maximum
amount of RMB280,000,000.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

EARE EAWEBERHESHE

BEHERAREESEER AT ([FEREAHK])
ARMAFHEEREAR AR ([ARBAFE] (%
ZRA AR ZENBAR) AL =EREHER
BERAR([ERQAT]) B S EEEREMER
BENEE(BEES )R- NF-_A=+—
BRI W& EEZRE G ([EEERBR]) - RTEH
TEEHRRT  EEESRAEEBKEEE QA
T0% R ([HERRE D) WHESESMIER QAR
HERER((BEESRRER]) REHE QA
FIF AR AE AT AREAFEEUR - B
B E& AL - R 4R 57 FD2-14-32 M Bt E R 3£ 1B B
(TEMER ] - BEBEAEEERBENGR  BEE
SAIENL TE—BR T (AR E BXE) TR HEZ
WIEE  r MAZMAFER IEEEEF=HERE
215 7 R A & = & %8 A R ¥ 280,000,000 7T [2] &
EBETHEB AR 140,000,0007T @ B IERE#
B 18 A R ¥ 126,000,000 L W B2 E S IR R E X
MIHE#EZMREAREK 14,000,000 ([BEES
BE]) : ()VIEMNEBMHEERERB%  WEMKZ
2HHEMBHIE: L) BTREINEEERERE
Bitbm—t—@AZB(EEB])  x=2tBAEAR
# 280,000,000 JC °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR T

On 8 February 2021, both conditions for the Buy Back had been
fulfilled. Accordingly, Shanghai Langyu Commercial Management
Limited* (/8BRS EE AR 2 7)) (“Shanghai Langyu”), Dening
Fund and the Project Company entered into the equity transfer
agreement, pursuant to which Dening Fund agreed to transfer and
Shanghai Langyu agreed to buy back the Sale Interest at
RMB42,000,000. There was no outstanding balance of Dening Fund
Shareholder’s Loan as at the date of the Buy Back. Upon completion
of the transfer of the Sale Interest on 10 March 2021, the Project
Company become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and its financial results has been consolidated into the financial
statements of the Company since then. The option to exercise the Buy
Back was previously announced on 21 February 2019 pursuant to the
requirements of Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For further details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 21 February
2019 and 8 February 2021.

On 27 April 2021, Landsea Homes US Corporation (the “Purchaser”)
and Landsea, Mr. Keith Buescher, Mr. Scott Buescher, Ms. Susan
Girard, Ms. Linda Swain, and Mr. Tom Buescher (collectively, the
“Sellers”), and Mercedes Premier Homes, LLC (the “Target
Company”) entered into the membership interest purchase agreement
(the “Agreement”), pursuant to which the Purchaser conditionally
agreed to purchase, and the Sellers conditionally agreed to sell the
entire membership interests of the Target Company. Upon closing of
the acquisition of the entire membership interests under the Agreement
on 4 May 2021, the Target Company become a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Purchaser and its results has been consolidated by
the Group since then. For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 27 April 2021.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any specific plan for
material investments or capital assets.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

M

On 4 January 2022, Nanjing Langming entered into an agreement
with Landsea Group for the borrowing facility of RMB500 million
for a term of 24 months and bears no interests. In March 2022,
RMB125 million has been drawn down.

On 18 January 2022 (United States Pacific Standard Time),
Landsea Homes of Florida LLC as purchaser (‘Landsea Homes
Florida”) and Landsea Homes, which are non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company, SAM Building Partners, LLC and
Edge Creek Ventures, LLC as sellers (the “US Sellers”), SWO
Holdings Irrevocable Trust, AJO Holdings Irrevocable Trust, JMO
Holdings Irrevocable Trust (collectively, the “Seller A Members”)
and J. Matthew Orosz, Andrew Orosz, and Stephen Orosz
(collectively, the “Orosz Principals”) entered into the
membership interest purchase agreement, pursuant to which
Landsea Homes Florida conditionally agreed to purchase, and
the US Sellers conditionally agreed to sell, all the issued equity
interests of Hanover Family Builders, a limited liability company
incorporated in the State of Florida of the United States (the
“Subject Company”) (the “Acquisition”).

The Acquisition constituted a major transaction of the Company
under Rule 14.06 of the Listing Rules and was completed on 19
January 2022, and the Subject Company becomes a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group since then. For further
information, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 19 January 2022 and 24 January 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company is committed to maintain corporate governance of high
standards and quality procedures. The Company has put in place
governance practices with emphasis on the integrity to Shareholders
and quality of disclosure, transparency and accountability to
Shareholders for the sake of maximizing returns to Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the CG
Code as its own code of corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company was in compliance with all
the relevant code provisions under the CG Code during FY2021.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.

The Company confirms that, having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors have complied with the required standards as
set out in the Model Code for FY2021.

ZIN/N EET‘E?T%/S%*%E ' %B'J&E%Wxiz.ﬂ% :
EMREER  BREREEN  BRRRRTERK
S INEIE

ERERESR
ADRCRMEEEATAOTAN - EREA
SR REERTR -
EERATAAR-_E-—MBRFE—HETLE
&R <P RIFTE 1R <P A -
EEETRESFRS
ADECRNBETA - FRA AR BMEFET

BHRX PR TER o

R E2REF

ARRAEEEFRFHABEWRER
ST RIPTELAR E AR

R-ZB-_—WRFE-—EETHRE

o

Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2021



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well
as reviewing the operation and financial performance of the Group. The
Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering
overall Group’s strategy, major acquisitions and disposals, annual
budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’
appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital transactions
and other significant operational and financial matters. The
management was delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the daily management of the Group. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees.

Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year at
approximately quarterly intervals in addition to other Board meetings
that are required for significant and important issues, and for statutory
purposes. Appropriate and sufficient information is provided to Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the Group’s
latest developments and thus can assist them in discharging their
duties.

The company secretary of the Company is responsible for taking
minutes of the Board meetings and drafts of which will be circulated to
all Directors for their review, comments and approval after the
meetings. The minutes books are kept by the company secretary of
the Company and will be open for inspection by the Directors upon
request. All Directors have access to the advice and service of the
company secretary of the Company who is responsible to the Board
for ensuring that the procedures are followed and that all applicable
laws and regulations are complied with.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

EER

EXRATEEREREARR  YBERIFTERE
R ARBZ EERMBRR - REZRRTE
HEBZEHEEREREERE EARERH
& FEEE 2FRkPHRE HREFZORE
MEEEFERDES HEBRERARZUNHEM
EXLEBENUBEE EZRRAEEEERREIR
BiE UEBAKEZAEER - Wi EFRTT
REEBREDRTEERES -

BRZEREG &~ PHBHNARER

BRBEARBEERAMEEENRTCHEMES
REe@) EEREBFEL/BTHARTREERS
& AHNEBFERIT R EZRKESERER
EENTRER  WETHRAKEENER - KM
BB ERITRE -

ARBZARMERAREZTREHMFCE AN
SRBEEREEREBEETHE - B RME -
CHRLEBARRZARWERT  IREREKR
THRNEN 2BEFHNERARBZAFANE
ZERAERYE MARRZARMWMEAREERA
B URERERERF RET R ERER LR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently consists of two executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Zheng (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Jiang Chao (Executive Vice President)
(resigned on 25 February 2022)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Liu Pengpeng
(elected at the annual general meeting held on 30 June 2021)

Mr. Xu Liang (appointed on 25 February 2022)
Ms. Shen Leying (resigned on 25 February 2022)
Mr. Zhou Yimin (retired upon conclusion of

the annual general meeting held on 30 June 2021)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Xu Xiaonian

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan

Mr. Rui Meng

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business
and family relationship among members of the Board. The biographies
of the Directors are set out on pages 32 to 37 under the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution

to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
by attending seminars or in-house briefing relating to their role as
Director/taking part in business-related training/acting as speaker for
seminars and refreshed their knowledge and skills and provided to the
Company a record of training they received for the financial year ended
31 December 2021.

The Company has also continuously updated Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is summarized below:

Attending or
participating in
seminars/in-house

HE TS+ - A=+—HIFKREE 28
EEEREHERSIEREST 2B 2 ATk
WEBE R, 2 NEHBAE I EEHRSE 2 EE
FLEBETERRELERNHERE  YERAAN
NAERMBATES 255k -

ARRPFFEAESRHEHE MR REMER
EERTEZEHNEREM  AEREFEBEREBT
RIFERERER

BHE_Z_—F+_A=1+—HILFE SE=M
BX 2 EAB AT

briefing relevant HERSH
to the business, BRER
regulatory updates EHEERIR
and director’s ESRE
Name of Directors duties EEpg g/ AER
Executive Directors: HITEE
Mr. Tian Ming v BHAEE v
Mr. Huang Zheng v B AE v
Mr. Jiang Chao (resigned on 25 February 2022) v  BREE (WZTZZF-A-TRAEMT) v
Non-executive Directors: FHTEE :
Mr. Xu Liang (appointed on 25 February 2022) N/A hekt W-BE-—F-A-+RRAEZEH) NER
Mr. Liu Pengpeng (appointed on 30 June 2021) v Bl E (M=Z-—F~A=THEZM) v
Ms. Shen Leying (resigned on 25 February 2022) v HELy+ (R-B-—F-F-+HAEHT) v
Mr. Zhou Yimin (retired on 30 June 2021) N/A PRREE (MZB-—F A=TBRE) NER
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIHTEE -
Mr. Xu Xiaonian v FFRE v
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan v BELEE v
Mr. Rui Meng v WERLE v
All Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional 2 82EEJFERFEEEER 2 EDI W WRHEGR
development and are committed to participating in suitable training to  E2A @ LTI ERA2 - LAKE B [ &8 AN ER R AL o

develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Tian Ming is the Chairman and
Mr. Huang Zheng is the chief executive officer of the Company. The
Company considered that the division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive officer is clearly established.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term and they
are also subject to the retirement by rotation at least once every three
years in accordance with the Bye-Laws and the CG Code.

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with specific
terms of reference, which is responsible for, among others, identifying
suitable individuals to become Board members and reviewing the
structure, size and diversity of the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
As required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed sufficient number of independent non-
executive Directors.

Mr. Xu Xiaonian is a famous Chinese economist and was granted the
highest award of economics study in China, the “Sun Yefang Economic
Science Award”. Mr. Xu has more than 36 years’ experience in
economics analysis.
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Mr. Chen Tai-yuan is a tenured Full Professor of Accounting, and
Associate Dean and the Director of MBA programs at the School of
Business and Management at Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He has more than 13 years of experiences of teaching
financial and managerial accounting to MBA and EMBA students, and
in executive education programs.

Mr. Rui Meng is professionally designated as a Certified Financial
Analyst by the Association for Investment Management and Research
since September 2000 and a Financial Risk Manager by the Global
Association of Risk Professionals since April 2010. He currently acts as
independent non-executive directors for several listed companies.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 30 August 2013
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company recognises that increasing
diversity at the Board level will support the attainment of the
Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable development. The
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from time to
time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to
the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will discuss
and review the necessities to set measurable objectives for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure
their appropriateness and the progress made towards achieving those
objectives will be ascertained.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT BOARD MEETINGS
During the year ended 31 December 2021, 4 Board meetings were
held. All Directors were given an opportunity to include any matter in
the agenda for regular Board meetings and were given sufficient time
to review the documents and information to be discussed in Board
meetings in advance.

EERERHELTE
BE_T_—F+-_RA=+—HIEEE EERY
RIT4REZ 2REFHARSINEFTRERS
EBETINAEMERBEEE - WRREHTHRERR
EXREZ|TAENAS T IR FRER -

Number of
Name of Directors meetings attended EENE HESBNE
Executive Directors: HITESE :
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) 3/4  HBAKLAE(FE) 3/4*
Mr. Huang Zheng 4/4 = AE 4/4
Mr. Jiang Chao ®ete 4/4 088 o A (mix ) 4/4
Non-executive Directors: FHITESE
Mr. Liu Pengpeng (Nete2 3/3 21 15 s o A (a2 3/3
Ms. Shen Leying Note 4/4 ER 4 4 77 - (s 1) 4/4
Mr. Zhou Yimin MNoted) 2/2 B 25 S 4 A (Es) 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIHHITESE -
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 4/4 FFNER A 4/4
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan 4/4  BRFRTLKE 4/4
Mr. Rui Meng 4/4 WNBA A 4/4
Notes: PRt -
1. Mr. Jiang Chao and Ms. Shen Leying resigned on 25 February 2022, and 4 Board 1. RBAERAERZTN_F__F_A-F+HAFE"
meetings were held during their tenure of office in 2021. R-F-_—FRECHNCRITOREEREH
2. Mr. Liu Pengpeng was appointed on 30 June 2021 and 3 Board meetings were 2 BWWEER—F_—FANA=THERIT  RERIR
held after his appointment. BRIT-ZAEERGE
3. Mr. Zhou Yimin retired upon conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 30 3. PEREEN-_F_—FNA=1H ﬁ%ﬁZﬁQﬁjﬁﬁﬁA

June 2021 (“2021 AGM”) and 2 Board meetings were held before his retirement.

* Mr. Tian absent for a Board meeting for discussing the exclusive sales agency
agreement between the Company and Landsea Green Life, in which Mr. Tian is also
the non-executive director and controlling shareholder of Landsea Green Life and
was deemed to have material interest in the transactions contemplated under the
agreement and was required to abstain from voting in respect of the resolution for
approving the same.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT GENERAL MEETINGS
During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, 2 general meetings
of the Company was held, being the special general meeting held on 7
January 2021 and the 2021 AGM.

BRAEHFE T

BE-FT-—F+-A=+—ALMBEE A2
AGBAMARTEAE PR -T-—F— A8
BT BRBRARR T —FRIVAFARE -

Number of HfE
Name of Directors meeting attended BEpg 2ERY
Executive Directors: BITESE
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) 2/2 HERELE (FE) 2/2
Mr. Huang Zheng 2/2 E=ESE A& 2/2
Mr. Jiang Chao Mt 2/2 TE R S A (M) 2/2
Non-executive Directors: FFHITESE -
Mr. Liu Pengpeng Mete2 N/A 2118 [ 4 A (M2 TiEHA
Ms. Shen Leying Mete ) 2/2 B 44 &8 7 (MfE 1) 2/2
Mr. Zhou Yimin ®eted 2/2 Bl 28 R o A (WiEs) 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUHHITESE -
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 2/2 SFINELE 2/2
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan 2/2 PRI T 2/2
Mr. Rui Meng 2/2 NERSL A 2/2
Notes: MisE -
1. Mr. Jiang Chao and Ms. Shen Leying resigned on 25 February 2022, and 2 general 1. B A GRS AN E - —F— B —+ 7 HEAE

meetings were held during their tenure of office in 2021. KRB —FHECHACRTRABREAS -
2. Mr. Liu Pengpeng was appointed on 30 June 2021 and no general meetings were 2. 2IMEEEER—_S-_—FNA=THEZT  HEZEE
held after his appointment. REBITRBAE -

3. Mr. Zhou Yimin retired upon conclusion of the 2021 AGM and 2 general meetings 3. PBHEREER-_E-—ERRBAERSERBIRE  HR

were held before his retirement.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meeting or other
general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their
participation. The chairman of each of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee attended the
abovementioned general meetings to answer questions and collect
views of Shareholders.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees under the Board,
namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee, Executive Committee and the Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee, to oversee different aspects of the Group’s
affairs and to assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange
and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Audit Committee currently comprises one non-executive Director, Mr.
Liu Pengpeng, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Rui Meng (as chairman) and Mr. Chen Tai-yuan. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are currently made available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
its resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the interim and
annual reports and financial statements of the Group; and overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff in charge of the
Company’s financial reporting function and their training arrangement
and budget, and to review the risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews the
interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit
Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
reporting and accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal
requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee held 2 & E_—_ZE-_—F+_A=+—BILFE E%ZEE
meetings. Each committee meeting has supplied with the necessary & ZRT2 &% - GRAEEeSRHEHNEY
financial information of the Group for committee members to consider, AEBEEKEL  UHEESKEEZE - EFH MFT
review and access significant issues arising from the work conducted. HETETIEELEZEKREE °
Number of
Name of Members meetings attended REHE HESERE
Mr. Rui Meng (Committee Chairman) 2/2 NEREE(ZE2 L E) 2/2
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan 2/2 BRI TR 2/2
Mr. Liu Pengpeng Mot 1/1 221 35 JiS 5 A (i) 1/1
Mr. Zhou Yimin Nete?) 11 Bl 25 B 4 A (32) 1/1
Notes: BaE -
1. Mr. Liu Pengpeng was appointed on 30 June 2021 and 1 Audit Committee meeting 1. BN —_E_—FNA=Z1THEZT  HELZTE
was held after his appointment. BRIT-ABEREZECEH -
2. Mr. Zhou Yimin retired upon conclusion of the 2021 AGM and 1 Audit Committee 2. PREREENR T —FRFBAFEASEREET  KE
meeting was held before his retirement. ERIGRIT—REZEZEGRH
During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the  ROIEFR @ BREE@ 2 TIEHT ¢
following work:
—  reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December — ZH|EEHZE— ﬂ;_%éi-f—:ﬁ] =t+—HItFEZ
2020 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June EFEEENHBE_ZT - —F A A=+THIENE
2021; A2 HEA%E

discussed with the management of the Company over the
completeness, fairness and adequacy of reporting and
accounting standards and policies of the Group in the
preparation of the 2021 interim and annual financial statements;

reviewed and discussed with the external auditor over the
financial reporting of the Company;

recommended to the Board, for the approval by shareholders, of
the re-appointment of auditor;

reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the Group
and relevant reports from external auditor; and

reviewed the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee in accordance with requirements of the
Stock Exchange and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code. The Remuneration Committee shall comprise at least three
members with majority of independent non-executive Directors, and an
independent non-executive Director should take up the role of
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (as chairman), Mr. Xu Xiaonian
and Mr. Rui Meng. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are currently made available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy, to review
and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management, and to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors.

FMEES
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration #HE_ZT—-—F+— H +—BIFE  FMHEE
Committee held 1 meeting. At the meeting, the committee members &% #ET{ A EHE - ReE L ZESKERTE
reviewed the remuneration policies and structure of the Directors and E R SR E] E/\E\Z FINECR MR BN LEE NS
senior management and recommended to the Board the proposed #HEIEAES EFMRESERIRLESE  Wilm
remuneration of the Directors and senior management and discussed —Z&E——4 E B i% EREaE
the assessment plan of the management for the year 2021.

Number of
Name of Members meeting attended REHE HESEH
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (Committee Chairman) 1/1 BRETLAEE(ZEESERE) 11
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 1/1 AN A 11
Mr. Rui Meng 1/1 WAL A& 11
Ms. Shen Leying M 1/1 Ff 4 & 77 - (i) 1/1

Note: Ms. Shen Leying resigned on 25 February 2022 and 1 Remuneration Committee
meeting was held during her tenure of office in 2021.

The emolument payable to Directors and senior management will
depend on their respective contractual terms under the employment
agreements, if any, and is fixed by the Board with reference to the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the performance of
the Group, their duties and responsibilities, remuneration benchmark in
the industry and the prevailing market conditions. Details of the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management are set out in
note 15 and note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee in accordance with requirements of the Stock Exchange
and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Nomination Committee shall comprise at least three members with a
majority of independent non-executive Directors, and the Chairman or
an independent non-executive Director should take up the role of
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee currently consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Xu Xiaonian (as chairman), Mr.
Rui Meng and Mr. Chen Tai-yuan. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are currently made available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are to review and monitor
the structure, size and diversity of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s strategy; to identify qualified individuals to
become members of the Board; to assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-election of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without
undue disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
as well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered
necessary), including periodical review of such plans. The appointment
of a new Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy
as and when it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for
decision by the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed
candidate by the Nomination Committee.
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The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as
well as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities
which, in particular, are set out as follows:

(@ participating in Board meetings to bring an independent
judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;

(b)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

(c) serving on the Audit Committee, and the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (in the case of
candidate for non-executive Director) and other relevant Board
committees, if invited;

(d) bringing a range of business and financial experience to the
Board, giving the Board and any committees on which he or she
serves the benefit of his or her skills, expertise, and varied
backgrounds and qualifications and diversity through attendance
and participation in the Board/committee meetings;

(e) scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

()  ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform
their powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

(@ conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by
legislation or the Listing Rules, where appropriate.
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If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in
accordance with, among other things, the factors as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made
by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where applicable, the totality
of the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience shall also
be evaluated to consider whether he or she has the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise for filling the office of an independent non-
executive Director with such qualifications or expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee
held 1 meeting. At the meeting, the committee members reviewed the
structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of services) of the Board; assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
considered the election and re-election of Directors.
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Number of
Name of Members meeting attended REHSE HESZIE
Mr. Xu Xiaonian (Committee Chairman) 1/1 HFINERE(ZESLE) 11
Mr. Rui Meng 1/1 WAL A& 11
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan 1/1 PRI ST A 11
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions were performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance to comply
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory requirements and make
recommendations to the Board, to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director, to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors, and
to review the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has
reviewed the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management and reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

The Environmental, Social and Governance Committee was established
on 30 June 2021 with written terms of reference to take over the
Company’s sustainable development supervision committee, which
was established on 19 December 2016. The Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee currently consists of two executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Tian Ming (as chairman) and Mr. Huang Zheng, and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Xu Xiaonian, Mr. Rui
Meng and Mr. Chen Tai-yuan. The terms of reference of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Committee are currently made
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Environmental, Social and Governance Committee meets annually
in accordance with its written terms of reference.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee (formerly named as ‘Operational Committee’)
was established on 18 March 2005, was reformed and renamed to
“Executive Committee” with all of the executive Directors as its
members and a new set of terms of reference was adopted on 31 July
2013, which has been subsequently amended to reflect the powers,
authorities and discretions delegated by the Board from time to time.

The Executive Committee meets on ad hoc basis in accordance with
its written terms of reference.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the
timely publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The responsibility statement of external auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 125 to 141.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any matters uncertainly relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out below:

ZEETE £
HE-_ZE-_—&+-_RA=t+—HItEE Bf
NARRZEHME RGBSR EST 2 B<
B

RMB’000
ARET T
Services rendered by PricewaterhouseCoopers B EFOK B TR BT R < RS
Audit services ZE RS 2,600
Non-audit services Mt IR B R FS D 400
3,000
Notes: Bt 3E
1. non-audit services include services for reviewing the interim results of the Group for 1. IRERGEEREREMAEREEZE T -_—F,A=1H
the six months ended 30 June 2021 and other non-audit services. 1E7SME A A A A R A 7 AR S N EAD FRAX BUARTS
2. The fees for the Company’s subsidiaries’ audit services, including statutory and 2, AATIMBARIZEXRGERRIENERS B REEI XN

non-statutory audit fee to their respective auditors and non-audit services of
RMB28,227,000, were included in legal and professional fees.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external professional company secretarial
services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to
provide compliance and full range of company secretarial services to
the Group in order to assist the Group to cope with the changing
regulatory environment and to suit difference commercial needs.

Ms. Chan Yuen Ying, Stella, the representative of Uni-1, is the named
Company Secretary of the Company. The biographical details of Ms.
Chan are set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management”.

Mr. Chan Chun Kit, the financial controller of the Company, is the
primary point of contact at the Company for the Company Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms.

Chan has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The amount of any dividends that the Company may declare and pay
in the future will be subject to the discretion of the Board and will be
based upon the Group’s overall results of operation, financial condition,
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements, liquidity
position, future expansion plans, amount of retained earnings,
distributable reserves and any other conditions that the Directors
consider relevant. Any declaration and payment of dividends may also
be limited by restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the Company’s
constitutional documents, the Listing Rules and any other applicable
laws and regulations. The amounts of dividend distributions that the
Group has declared and made in the past are not indicative of the
dividends that the Company may pay in the future.

The Directors may recommend a payment of dividends after taking into
account the general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and any other internal and external factors that may
affect the business and financial performance and position of the
Group in addition to the above-mentioned criteria. Any future
declaration of dividends may or may not reflect the historical
declarations of dividends and will be at the absolute discretion of the
Directors.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy on a regular basis and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy from time to time. The Dividend
Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called a special general
meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A SPECIAL
GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the Company
according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws and the
Companies Act of Bermuda. The procedures shareholders can use to
convene a special general meeting are set out in the document entitled
“Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for Election as a
Director”, which is currently available on the Company’s website.

PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO
THE BOARD

To ensure effective communications between the Board and the
shareholders and the investment community at large, the Company
has adopted a set of shareholders communication policy (the “Policy”)
on 12 March 2012. Under the Policy, the Company’s information shall
be communicated to the shareholders and the investment community
mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim reports and
annual reports), and its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website. Shareholders and the investment community may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available. Any such questions shall be first
directed to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward
a proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@ any number of members holding not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
requisition carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be
deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any
necessary statement, at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong in the case of:

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six
weeks before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with the
necessary procedures.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all
Shareholders. The Company’s annual general meeting is a valuable
forum for the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders.
The Chairman as well as the chairman of each of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee together
with the external auditor are present to answer Shareholders’
questions. The annual report together with annual general meeting
circular is distributed to all the Shareholders at least 20 clear business
days before the annual general meeting.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands.
As such, all the resolutions set out in the notice of the 2022 annual
general meeting will be voted by poll.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the development and
maintenance of risk management and internal control of the Company
and evaluation of their effectiveness. The Company adopts a
comprehensive risk management and internal control structure to
handle and manage its risks. The Company has set up strict
procedures to ensure that no assets would be subject to unauthorized
use or disposal and appropriate accounting records are kept for the
preparation of reliable financial reports in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.
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The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the risk management,
internal control and financial control systems. It discusses with the
management regarding the risk management and internal control
systems to ensure they have performed their duties to establish
effective risk management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee is also responsible for ensuring that the internal review
function is adequately resourced and has appropriate stand within the
Company, and reviewing the adequacy of qualifications and
experience, training programs and relevant budgets of staff in charge
of accounting, financial reporting and internal audit of the Company.

Based on the information and confirmation of the management and
internal audit department, the internal control system of the Group
covers all of its activities and transactions, and the management shall
conduct regular risk assessment (at least annually) and monitor and
report the progress of actions taken to cope with significant risks from
time to time. The Audit Committee considers that, for the year ended
31 December 2021, the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company were comprehensive and effective. The Company has
set up a supervisory and audit office which carries out audit and
supervisory work independently under the guidance and supervision of
the Board, and directly reports to the Chairman and the Audit
Committee. The accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
personnel have sufficient qualifications and experience and have
received adequate training within the review period.

IMPROVING INTERNAL CONTROL MECHANISM
The Group has formulated a comprehensive Manual of System
Development Procedures of Landsea Green Properties ( B34k £330,
ERMBEZREHEFM) ), which covers all important aspects
including the project positioning, design management, cost
management, project management, sales management, customer
management, brand management, financial management, operation
management and human resources, to optimize the internal control
system and safeguard a stable operation and management. The Group
has also formulated process standards such as “Management
Measures on Operation GB& & EHH%)” and amended “Management
BEIEHE)” and
BHEE)” in
accordance with business lines to further improve the management of

Ay 2%

Measures on Verification Change (% & &
“Management Measures for Company Seal (E1Z%&

business risks and regulate the management of business processes.
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OPTIMIZING INTERNAL CONTROL MEASURES

Based on the characteristics of different risks and business segments,
the Company adopts various specific measures in respect of market
risk, financial risk, product risk, operational risk and information system
security in order to enhance the internal control standards. The
Company has also formulated the Cultural Strategy Handbook ( {3Z{t
BLBEF M) ), the Landsea Brand Handbook ( {BAz% @ e F M) ) and
the Staff Handbook to strengthen the behavioral management and
regulatory guidance of staff.

CLEARLY DEFINING AUTHORITY OF
MANAGEMENT

Through a series of systemized and standardized measures including
the revision of Handbook of Authorities and Responsibilities ( {#£& F
fit) ), the Company has strengthened the daily authorization
management and the authorization system, which has laid the
foundation of the existing authorization management system of the
Company.

HIGHLY EMPHASIZING PREVENTION AND
CONTROL OF SIGNIFICANT RISKS

The Company attaches high importance in the prevention, control and
investigation of significant risks. Pursuant to the principle of “Full
Coverage and Comprehensive Investigation to Control Risk”, the
Company conducts investigation with focuses on major areas including
tender and procurement, housing maintenance and marketing, and
implements rectification measures against each of the problems
identified for effective prevention and solution.

STRENGTHENING INTERNAL AUDIT AND
RECTIFICATION

The internal audit department of the Company has conducted audit on
the financial and internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries,
including the financial management, budget management, cost
management, procurement management and expense management,
and provide advice on rectification and risk prevention aiming to
improve systems, standardize procedures and optimize mechanisms.
Improvement has been made in response to the rectifying opinions for
the year.
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IMPROVING ANTI-CORRUPTION MECHANISM
AND STRENGTHENING CASE MANAGEMENT
With strict legal compliance adhering to the core value of “people-
oriented, positive and green”, all of the Company’s employees ought to
develop sound legal awareness and act in compliance with laws and
regulations. The Company has established the Code of Anti-corruption
and set up the Work Ethics Committee as the highest executive
function for the Group’s anti-corruption work, with duties mainly
including promotion of anti-corruption measures, coordination of anti-
corruption work and handling and making decisions in relation to
relevant issues. The Work Ethics Committee is chaired by Mr. Tian
Ming, the Chairman of the Board, with members comprising all
executive Directors, senior management and staff representatives. The
Company’s monitoring department is a dedicated function operating
under the Work Ethics Committee to carry out investigation in
corruption-related matters and reports directly to the Chairman of the
Company. Cases will be filed, investigated and handled in an
independent, objective and just manner. The Company has set up
reporting email, reporting hotline and WeChat reporting platform, and
announcements are made to the relevant internal and external units
and personnel. The Company encourages autonym whistleblowing,
and all such cases will be filed and investigated, while the
whistleblowers will be informed of the result under various measures
that safeguard their legal rights. The Company has zero tolerance
towards corruption. Therefore, in the event of any corruption, the
Company will impose penalty in accordance with the Code of Anti-
corruption, including dismissal and reporting to judicial authority.

In addition, the Group regulates the handling and announcement of
inside information as set out in the corporate responsibility policy and
all subsidiary procedures in order to ensure that the inside information
shall be kept confidential until disclosure with proper approval and the
relevant information shall be announced in an effective and consistent
manner.
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Appropriate policy and supervision have been designed and put in
place to safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposal, ensure
compliance with relevant rules and regulations, maintain reliable
financial and accounting records pursuant to applicable accounting
standards and regulatory requirement on reporting and properly identify
and manage the major risks which may affect the performance of the
Group. The relevant system and internal control can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss as they are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business targets.

The internal audit department of the Group carries out auditing work
aiming to control risks. Its annual working plan covers all major works
and procedures of the operational, business and service units of the
Group and special review will be conducted in accordance with the
requirement of the management. The results of audit shall be submitted
to the Audit Committee. The internal audit department will review and
follow up on issues raised during the audit to ensure effective
implementation and regularly report the progress to the Audit
Committee.

The internal audit department of the Group shall independently confirm
to each of the Board, the Audit Committee and the administrative
management of the Group that the internal control system of the Group
is sufficient and effective. The head of the internal audit department of
the Group shall directly report to the chairman of the Audit Committee,
the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of the Group.

The management is responsible for the design, implementation and
supervision of risk management and internal control system, and shall
regularly report to the Board and/or the Audit Committee regarding the
effectiveness of the relevant system.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the internal control system of
the Company was comprehensive and effective, and was neither
subject to any significant or major internal control deficiency nor
material issues which may affect the financial control, operational
control, compliance control and risk management function of the
Company.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 44
to the financial statements respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages
142 to 144.

The Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend in
FY2021 (for the year ended 31 December 2020: HK3.00 cents per
Share).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any shares during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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DEBENTURES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
repurchased (i) the US$200 million 10.5% Green Senior Notes issued
by the Company in 2019 due on 20 June 2022 with an amount of
US$53,340,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB344,000,000) and (ii)
the US$200 million 10.75% Guaranteed Senior Notes issued by the
Company in 2020 due on 21 October 2022 with the amount of
US$30,600,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB197,528,000)
through the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

On 6 December 2021, Mr. Tian purchased the Guaranteed Senior
Notes due October 2022 in an aggregate principal amount of
approximately US$4 million in the open market through Easycorps
Group Limited, a company wholly-owned by him.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Particulars of a discussion and analysis on the activities specified in
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance including a fair review of the
Group’s business, a discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, future development in the Company’s business and
analysis using financial key performance indicators, are set out in the
sections headed “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT”, “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” and “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT” in this annual report. The above sections form an integral
part of this Directors’ report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The environmental policies and performance of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021 containing the information required
under Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules will be published on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website within five months
after the financial year ended 31 December 2021.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and therefore the
Company is subject to relevant laws and regulations in Bermuda. In
addition, the Company is registered as a non-Hong Kong company
under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance and therefore is subject to
the relevant provisions under the Companies Ordinance.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange and therefore the
Company is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules including
the disclosure requirements and corporate governance provisions
therein.

Under the SFO, the Company is required to maintain a register of
interests in shares and short positions and a register of directors’ and
chief executives’ interests and short positions and is obliged to disclose
price sensitive or inside information.

The Group is principally engaged in properties development in the PRC
and the United States and therefore is subject to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and the United States.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Company recognised that employees are our valuable assets.
Thus, the Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract
and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard. The Group also
understands that it is important to maintain good relationship with
business partners and bank enterprises to achieve its long-term goals.
Accordingly, the management has kept good communication, promptly
exchanged ideas and shared business update with them when
appropriate. During the year under review, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its business partners or
bank enterprises.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders entitle
to attend and vote at the AGM to be held on Thursday, 30 June 2022,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 24
June 2022 to Thursday, 30 June 2022, both dates inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfer of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 23 June 2022.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group revalued all of its investment properties at the year-end
date. The net decrease in fair value of RMB19,600,000 has been
credited directly to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Details of the movements in the investment properties and property,
plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in notes
19 and 20 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the amount standing to the credit of the
Company’s share premium account in the amount of RMB24,366,000
may be distributable in the form of fully paid bonus shares. Under the
laws of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed surplus account may be
distributed under certain circumstances, as at 31 December 2021, the
balance of the account was RMB484,415,000.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Zheng (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Jiang Chao (Executive Vice President)
(resigned on 25 February 2022)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Xu Liang (appointed on 25 February 2022)

Mr. Liu Pengpeng (appointed on 30 June 2021)

Ms. Shen Leying (resigned on 25 February 2022)

Mr. Zhou Yimin (retired upon conclusion of the 2021 AGM)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Xu Xiaonian

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan

Mr. Rui Meng

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 87(1), Mr. Huang Zheng,
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan and Mr. Rui Meng will retire by rotation at the AGM
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2), Mr. Xu Liang shall retire at the AGM
and, being eligible, offers himself for re-election.
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The Company entered into service contract with:

U

(i)

Mr. Tian Ming on 27 March 2020 for the continuous appointment
as an executive Director and Chairman of the Board for a term of
three years commencing from 1 August 2019; and

Mr. Huang Zheng on 27 March 2020 for the appointment as an
executive Director for a term of three years commencing from 27
March 2020.

The Company entered into appointment letter with:

(1)

Mr. Xu Liang on 25 February 2022 for the appointment as a non-
executive Director for a term of three years commencing from 25
February 2022;

Mr. Liu Pengpeng on 30 March 2021 for the appointment as a
non-executive Director for a term of three years commencing
from 30 June 2021;

Mr. Xu Xiaonian on 27 March 2020 for the continuous
appointment as an independent non-executive Director for a term
of three years commencing from 1 August 2019;

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan on 22 March 2019 for the appointment as an
independent non-executive Director for a term of three years
commencing from 22 March 2019; and

Mr. Rui Meng on 27 May 2019 for the appointment as an
independent non-executive Director for a term of three years
commencing from 27 May 2019.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any

of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one

year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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CHANGES OF INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF EREECERNETH

DIRECTORS

Below are the changes in Directors’ information required to be AT AERNEEARE AHBEE FH 05
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules during the ~ 13.51B(1) /B F B 2 B & K& E) -

year and up to the date of this report:

Name of Director Change(s)

EEnE 25

Mr. Tian — appointed as a non-executive director and chairman of Landsea Green Life since 15 January
HE4E 2021

B - A+hABEZERFMRELEEZIFNTESTREE

— appointed as an independent non-executive director of Chervon Holdings Limited (2 company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; stock code: 2285) since 8 December 2021
B2 —F+-A/\BREZERREEKRERAE (BRAERLETAR : BRHLE
2285) ZBIUEMITES

Mr. Rui Meng — appointed as an independent non-executive director of Dexin Services Group Limited (a

PRNAFSTE company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; stock code: 2215) on 21 June 2021
B-Z A+ HREZEREERBEEARAR (MIFAERETAE  ROK
S 0 2215) ZBUIEHITES

— retired as an independent non-executive director of COSCO Shipping Energy Transportation
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange; stock code: 1138, and
the Shanghai Stock Exchange; stock code: 600026) upon conclusion of the annual general
meeting held on 30 June 2021
RIBZ—FRA=THRBTZRFEFREERNRETEESECRERRNOERAT (B
REFFERETAR RN - 1138 1 R EBESFRZ S - RIS - 600026) 2B IEH
TE%

— served as an independent non-executive director of Sichuan Languang Justbon Services Group
Co., Ltd. (a company formally listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and its listing
status was withdrawn on 19 August 2021) from 17 June 2021 to 30 August 2021
RZE—_—FAA+tAE_ZE-_—FN\A=1+H HﬂF‘aEJ%J‘%‘EEJ IEXRERGEERNERA
A (RERZATERIEN LT - MEEMHUR=ZS=_—FNAT+NLBEHEE) 2BIERNTES

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EEK SN EE A B H N
MANAGEMENT

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid B EmR B+ NBFHEENESFMH LS
individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the T = & B A LHIFFIE D RIS R AN R E 2 B 75 = M
Listing Rules are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the financial statements 5= 15 16 °

in this report, respectively.
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DIRECTOR’S AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were

required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or were required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN ORDINARY SHARES OF
HK$0.01 EACH OF THE COMPANY

THEARRER

EERFETBRAERKRG - HER®D
SEE- ek £

—F+ZA=+t—RH BERARAETE
TTIRA BRAR B EA(IEEER (EERESF R
EHREIEXVER) 2By - BN REST - %
BREBERZZFNBABHRIIEXVIETREDRAMNE
RRRINBR Az EmPRR  IRBEEFMAE
R 56 352 R A RE RN s IR B P AL B iE i 0 2 B
KRR RRBRESTRIAS
Pz s ROXBINT

bk X

gp 2K

RAQXFZREEILNEBTEERZ

Approximate

Number of percentage in
ordinary shares total number of
Name of Director Capacity held issued shares
HERITROEH
EEHE 4 R EE WA B 2
Mr. Tian Interest of controlled corporation 2,752,457,866 58.28%
BtE RIEHEE R (Notes 1 and 2)
(f7E1 22)
Beneficial owner 8,901,500 0.19%
EmEE A
Mr. Huang Zheng Beneficial owner 20,000,000 0.42%
B=IES A EmEE A (Note 3)
(M47E3)
Mr. Jiang Chao Beneficial owner 10,000,000 0.21%
B E EREAA (Note 3)
(Mt7E3)
Ms. Shen Leying Beneficial owner 2,214,500 0.04%

P g

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

EDEAA
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Notes:

(1) These include (i) 2,008,525,187 Shares held through Greensheid; (i) 376,017,785
Shares held through Easycorps; and (i) 367,914,894 Shares held through Landsea
International.

2) Greensheid is wholly-owned by Landsea International, which is in turn wholly-owned
by Landsea Group. Landsea Group is owned as to 34.15% by Nanjing Ding Chong
Investment Management Consultants Ltd. (“Nanjing Ding Chong”) and 15.85% by
Mr. Tian. Nanjing Ding Chong is a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Tian. Mr. Tian is regarded as the controlling shareholder of Landsea Group.
Easycorps is a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian. Therefore, Mr.
Tian is deemed to be interested in these 2,752,457,866 Shares pursuant to the
SFO.

Q) These are restricted shares granted by the Company pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme adopted by the Board on 2 July 2014. For details, please refer to the
section headed “Restricted Share Award Scheme” below.

Save as disclosed, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company and their respective associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which
they are deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or which were required
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” below and
“Related Party Balances and Transactions” in note 41 to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, no contracts of
significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries were a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

GEE

(1) B $5() 2,008,525,187 % % iBGreensheid® B 2 B 15 : (i)
376,017,785 i%i% 8 Easycorps 78 Z i 15 + I (i) 367,914,894
fi%:% 48 Landsea Intemnational 24 2 A&7 °

@) Greensheid B Landsea International & & # A& * 1fi Landsea
International A HEAFF B 2 B A - FSEERERSE
BREEHEREGRAR (ARBE]) A 34.15% e - I
HEEEER15.85% % - ERRERALE 2 EERE
BZAT - MEEWIR BEAFEBEIZEALE - Easycorps 5
HELZEERERZAR - At - RIEBEZHRBAEKD -
H St AR RN R% 2,752,457,866 BRAR 1 F /5 #E 2 ©

@ HEBRNARARRBEERN-_ZT—NFLA-BRA
ZRBAO R EIRBZRAMERD - BAFBEFL2HTX
[BRHINER (D 2Bt & | —&f

B £ SCPT % BE %M\  R-IB_—F+_A=1—
B EZRARABEIZTRAEBULRBEESB 2B
%‘%/\*EEEE/\Z!S’AT&ﬁﬁHsmEE(E%ﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁﬁi@?
RBIEXVER) 2 Befn ~ EARG RESH - HHR
BESLMERIIEXVEE7 R8O HMAMEAR
B MR Pz s EOR R (BIREREE %&Hﬁi‘ﬂlﬂﬁﬂ
BRGXMEEFRARERSRER 2 EER

B) ¢ BREES M RPI5F 352 R BRI & 1%
PIFmiE MR BEIORR - IARBRETRIZA

MeARRNa ML ERBAE o

EENERGH KR

BIX HEXZERERERS | RTENEE
T_—F+-A=+—H JJ:EEZEH%#&?EWEM
(B AR R R 5 | METFT BRI RAFELE
REFFRATARE  AARAZESHEELLT]
HEMBRAFI L2 EMERGHTEERAREEE
BEMERES
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Each of the Directors has confirmed that none of them is engaged in,
or interested in any business which, directly or indirectly, competes or
is likely to compete with the business of the Group.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'’S INTERESTS
IN SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Other than those disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” below and
“Related Party Balances and Transactions” in note 41 to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, at no time during
the year had the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the Controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of
significance or any contract of significance for the provision of services
by the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year, the Group had charitable donation of RMB907,000
(2020: RMB815,000).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and the restricted share award
scheme of the Company as set out below in this report and also note
35 to the financial statements, there was no equity-linked agreement
entered into by the Group during the year or subsisting at the end of
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

EENHEFRETNES

BFEFRR  IEHMENFTCMNEAREEHER
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ERBRRRERGN z#E
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LR B B8 22 R 0 4 P43 8 42 AR i 3R sl L (AT Bl VB8
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 2 July 2014, the Board adopted the Share Award Scheme as an
incentive to recognise the contributions by employees and to give
incentives to retain them for the continuing operation and development
of the Group, as well as attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group. The Directors strongly believe that the
continued success of the Group is closely tied with the commitment
and efforts of the employees of the Group. The Restricted Shares can
serve as an incentive to motivate them to further contribute to the
Group. The Restricted Shares to be awarded will be with reference to
the performance, operating and financial targets and other criteria
determined by the Board from time to time. The Share Award Scheme
is effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the date of adoption
subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board.

The summary of the principal terms and conditions of Share Award
Scheme were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 2 July
2014. Details of movement of the Restricted Shares during the year are
set out as below:

PR 5 14 AR 40 R B =t &
R-_T—MEL AR - EFRRAA BB E
ERHBARFFREZER - ABMARANEE
FELENERBEE N  YRAEEE-PER
WEEEAS - EFWHE(E  AEEZHERER
SEEEZABERBNETE - REMER A IA
ER—RBABUNREMIIE-—FHAKEFELR
Bl B TROZBHMERNESLERR  AEERL
L RMBIEFEARBESBIMEAIREREE < i
REBE - B BB S MRABHEEN - B
TH  BRIEKESHREERSRL -

P fn BB a8 2 = 2 IRR G Z & INN AR F)
HRAR-T—HNFLtA-_BZAEA - RFARI
MR 2 B F BN T -

Date of grant Outstanding at Forfeited Outstanding at

Awardees of Restricted Shares 1 January 2021 during the year 31 December 2021
RTFIRSIME R-B=-—% R-TB=-—%F

BEBAL B4 B H3 —RA—BR#&RR FrRRY +-A=t+—-BZ#&&
Directors
Mr. Huang Zheng 31 March 2020 20,000,000 - 20,000,000
| E —E T

=A=+—H
Mr. Jiang Chao 31 March 2020 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
ELdih it —E T

=A=t—H”
Sub-total 30,000,000 - 30,000,000
NET
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Date of grant Outstanding at Forfeited Outstanding at
Awardees of Restricted Shares 1 January 2021 during the year 31 December 2021
RFIR&IME R=-F|=-—F R=-F|=—fFf
BRBAL IR B H# — A —B2#&ERR FARARK +=A=t+—Bz&E&
Other Employees 19 November 2014 980,000 - 980,000
Hitfg g —ZE—mEF
+—A+hAH
8 April 2016 309,750 — 309,750
—E—RF
MmANR
31 March 2020 62,800,000 (1,200,000) 61,600,000
—EFTF
=A=t+—H
Sub-total 64,089,750 (1,200,000) 62,889,750
Dt
Total 94,089,750 (1,200,000) 92,889,750
Ty
Vesting Conditions: SEEIRY

(i) Restricted Shares granted on 19 November 2014:

() MZE—NF+—A+NBREZREH MR

n:

(1)  Subject to fulfillment of the year’s preset performance, (1) BARAEERREMNBREAECFEE
operation and financial targets at the discretion of the MR BELMEBEE
Board

(2)  After satisfying condition (1), a waiting period of two years 2 EmeFENEIFEEE  BEEmFCE
is required 1 HA

(i) Restricted Shares granted on 8 April 2016:

(i) R-ZT—R_EMA/N\BREZEHMERSD

(1)  Subject to fulfillment of the year’s preset performance, (1) BARAEERREMNBREAECFEE
operation and financial targets at the discretion of the MR BELEBEE
Board

(2)  After satisfying condition (1), a waiting period of five years is 2 EmeFOEEEE  BEARFrE
required fi=Hp
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(i)  Restricted Shares granted on 31 March 2020:

(1)  Subject to fulfilment of the year’s preset performance,
operation and financial targets at the discretion of the
Board

(2)  After satisfying condition (1), a waiting period of five years is
required

Notes:

1. Subject to the fulfilment of the vesting conditions, half of the Restricted Shares
granted are exercisable into Shares at HK$0.66 each, and half of the Restricted
Shares are exercisable at nil consideration.

2. Subject to the fulfilment of the vesting conditions, there are 18,000,000 Restricted
Shares granted are exercisable into Shares at HK$0.66 each, and the remaining
46,600,000 Restricted Shares are exercisable at nil consideration.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION OF
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER UNDER RULE
13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company did not have any disclosure
obligations under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Share Option Scheme was adopted and became effective upon
passing relevant ordinary resolution at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 25 April 2012. Summary of the principal terms of
the Share Option Scheme were set out in the circular to the Company’s
shareholders on 22 March 2012. No share option was granted under
the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2021.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Options” and
“Restricted Share Award Scheme” above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Company’s Directors or chief executives to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

SN

iy RNZZTEZTE=A=+—BHL ZE&HERK

(1) BNAREERRENBEATEZFER
BRERE - 2ERMBGERE

el

@ wmEFNEGHR AECBAFZ
(34

BRE -

1. EmRHBIGME  ERERGIERDEd —FaREk
0.66 /8 TTITIR AR AR » 15 —FREMERMD ATRE
HEITE -

2. T B 57 B 15 14 1% + 18,000,000 A% B % H BB H1 14 B 49 AT #%
BAR0.66 /8T AR B AR + i 8k T 46,600,000 AR BR
HI AR D FTIR TR B TE -

ERBRRBRE EHRAE 138K 24
ERNEE

BiE EmRAEI318K BEZT=_—F+=A
=t+—H AARTETAFEEST -

iR AE

E-ZE——HFNA - +HRBBRTZARBIRRAE
AELARBBEALTBRAERE  BRESIEEN
B EAEER - R E 2 EZBRFBMERHIIRN
R F A+ —HBARABREZBEA -
REE-_E-_—F+-_A=+—HLEFER I8
BRBERES SR HERE

BEROSESF2ZH
B 3 TR B9 ) T [ IR BIMERR (3 S8 b3t 21 ) A
FrEE &SN « AR T EA IR TR E g

SEERZH BEARAREFTHTIETHRASR
FEBEARR S EAMEE 2 B fESF M o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2021, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain Directors and chief executives, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of

the Company:

ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.01 EACH OF THE

COMPANY

Name of Shareholder

RR#E,/ 8

FERR

RZFBZ—F+-A=+—H A2rAREEFN
HEHRPIEIBIHFEZIERRELMBT @ B
EXBEBEEEETEERIETRAB ZEA
S ATRREMEARREHBEARTCEITR
K2 At

AAFEBREEC.O1EBTHNEER

Number of  Percentage in

LLandsea Group Co., Ltd. (Note 1)
Landsea International (Note 1)
Nanjing Ding Chong (Note 1)
Greensheid (Note 1)

Easycorps (Note 2)

Ping An Insurance (Group) Company

of China, Ltd. (Note 3)

Ping An Life Insurance Company of
China Ltd. (Note 3)

Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance
Company of China, Ltd. (Note 3)

Ping An Real Estate Company Ltd. (Note 3)

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

HREERNBRAR (HEE1)

Landsea International (FifEE 1)

AREE (M)
Greensheid (Pff5E 1)

Easycorps (Fi7£2)

FEYZRE (RE)BDER

GER)

HEFZASRRENER

(F¥5E3)

PEYLHMERRBDER

GER)

FRABEFRAF (FES)

Long position/ ordinary total number of
Short position Shares held  issued Shares

HEBTRG
He/ %R Gigsizgalie BYFIL
Long position &7 & 2,376,440,081 50.32%
Long position & & 2,376,440,081 50.32%
Long position &7 & 2,376,440,081 50.32%
Long position & 2,008,525,187 42.53%
Long position 72 376,017,785 7.96%
Long position ¥ & 327,002,604 6.92%
Short position & & 327,002,604 6.92%
Long position {F& 327,002,604 6.92%
Short position & 327,002,604 6.92%
Long position #F& 327,002,604 6.92%
Short position & 327,002,604 6.92%
Long position & 327,002,604 6.92%
Short position % & 327,002,604 6.92%
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Number of  Percentage in

Long position/ ordinary total number of
Name of Shareholder Short position Shares held  issued Shares
HEBRTRG
RREE 28 BE/ %R FsERRSE BYFIL
Pingan Real Estate Capital Ltd. (Note 3) P YEEABRAR (M)  Long position 2 327,002,604 6.92%
Short position A& 327,002,604 6.92%
Fuiji Investment Management Limited (Note 3) E &1 &R AR AR (H:E3) Long position #F& 327,002,604 6.92%
Short position A& 327,002,604 6.92%
Ting Wang (Note 4) T (ffi3E4) Long position #7& 331,376,970 7.02%
State-owned Assets Supervision And ARMARBREREEEE Long position {F& 314,507,927 6.66%
Administration Commission of EEZE e (M5)
Nanjing Municipal Government (Note 5)
Nanjing Urban Construction Investment ARMAmERREER(KE) Long position & 314,507,927 6.66%
Holding (Group) Co,. Ltd. (Note 5) BEREEAT (K5E5)
Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment & ARMBEAEEREEREMR (5E) Long position i & 314,507,927 6.66%
Management Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. BREE AR (H3ES5)
(Note 5)
Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd. (Note 5) AREESEAREELR (KFE5)  Long position iF& 314,507,927 6.66%
Nanjing Textiles Import & Export Corp., Ltd.  FAR&&miE L ARG ER DA Long position & 314,507,927 6.66%
(Note 5) (Ft7E5)
Hong Kong Newdawn International Hong Kong Newdawn International Long position &7 & 314,507,927 6.66%
Co., Limited (Note 5) Co., Limited (Fiiz£5)
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Notes:

Save

These include (i) 2,008,5625,187 Shares held through Greensheid; and (ii)
367,914,894 Shares held through Landsea International.

Greensheid is wholly-owned by Landsea International, which is in turn wholly-owned
by Landsea Group. Landsea Group is owned as to 34.15% by Nanjing Ding Chong.
Nanjing Ding Chong is a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian.
Therefore, Landsea International is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Greensheid, and Landsea Group is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Landsea International and Greensheid, as well as Nanjing Ding Chong is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Greensheid and Landsea International pursuant
to the SFO.

Easycorps is a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian.

These include () 327,002,604 Shares held by Fuiji Investment Management Limited.
Fuiji Investment Management Limited is wholly-owned by Pingan Real Estate Capital
Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by Ping An Real Estate Company Limited.
Ping An Real Estate Company Limited is owned as to 49.5% by Ping An Life
Insurance Company of China Ltd. and 35% by Ping An Property & Casualty
Insurance Company of China, Ltd.. Each of Ping An Life Insurance Company of
China Ltd. and Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance Company of China, Ltd is
owned as to 99.51% by Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd..
Therefore, each of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd., Ping An Life
Insurance Company of China Ltd., Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance Company
of China, Ltd., Ping An Real Estate Company Ltd. and Pingan Real Estate Capital
Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fuji Investment Management
Limited pursuant to the SFO.

These include 252,608,635 Shares beneficially owned by Mr. Ting Wang (“Mr.
Ting”) and 78,768,335 Shares held through Ding Capital Management Limited
(“Ding Capital”). Ding Capital is wholly-owned by Mr. Ting.

Hong Kong Newdawn International Co., Limited is wholly-owned by Nanjing Textiles
Import & Export Corp., Ltd.. Nanjing Textiles Import & Export Corp., Ltd. is owned
as to 33.68% by Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd.. Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd.
is owned as to 60% by Nanjing Urban Construction Investment Holding (Group)
Co., Ltd. and 40% by Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment & Management
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd.. Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment & Management
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. and Nanjing Urban Construction Investment Holding
(Group) Co., Ltd. are both wholly-owned by State-owned Assets Supervision And
Administration Commission of Nanjing Municipal Government. Therefore, each of
State-owned Assets Supervision And Administration Commission of Nanjing
Municipal Government, Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment & Management
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd., Nanjing Urban Construction Investment Holding (Group)
Co., Ltd., Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd. and Nanjing Textiles Import & Export
Corp., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Hong Kong Newdawn
International Co., Limited pursuant to the SFO.

as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any

other relevant interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying

Shares of the Company as at 31 December 2021.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf
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B1 () 2,008,525,187 % 3% i#8 Greensheid 58 Z B 177 K (i)
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Greensheid F Landsea International & & # /A * 1M Landsea
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MEARKEEEARETRTD A EEETRTERRE
ER(EE)BERETAFAREARTEEEEREEEER
(£E)ERBEMEARIEA 0% K40%HE - mRMEEE
EREEERER(EE)BREERE KR m2REKR
BER(EE)AREAARYABRTARBRAEREE
EEEEZEERARA - Bt REBHFRBAEEKD
BARTARBNBEEEEEEEREZEE® mMATHAE
EREERER(EE)ERETAR  MAMMKMERR
BER(EE)ARETARF  MRIKEEBEERETAR
RERAHZRER ARG AR DA S B HE AR Hong
Kong Newdawn International Co., Limited Fr#5 4 2 B {7 -
it o

BREXIEEEN R —F+_A=+—
B - AN RIS EEME RARQ R RARRERD 2

Hib B RAEz )

NN
KB o

L7



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
=EEZR#EE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the year ended 31

December 2021 are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial

statements. Some of those transactions constituted connected

transactions or continuing connected transactions and have complied

with the relevant disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has the following

connected transactions:

(1)

On 31 December 2015, the Company entered into the
shareholder loan framework agreement (“Framework
Agreement”) with Landsea Group, pursuant to which Landsea
Group agreed to grant shareholder loan(s) in an aggregate
principal amount of not exceeding RMB4,000,000,000 (or Hong
Kong Dollar equivalent) to the Company and/or its subsidiaries
during the two-year period up to 31 December 2017 at an
interest rate of 5.5% per annum and the amounts are interest
free since 1 January 2018. As at 31 December 2021, Landsea
International, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Landsea Group has
granted an aggregate of RMB70,417,000 to the Company which
remains outstanding.

Apart from the grant of shareholder’s loan under the Framework
Agreement above, Landsea Group has also granted to Landsea
Holdings Corporation, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, certain loans in an aggregate principal amount of
RMB1,665,000,000 with interest rate ranging from 5.294% to
6.6345% per annum repayable in 5 years from the respective
date of drawdown. As at 31 December 2021, an aggregate of
RMB917,577,000 remain outstanding.
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On 21 December 2018, &M EAHEEHGRE A" (Suzhou
Langkun Property Limited*) (“Suzhou Langkun”) entered into
the supplemental agreements to the (i) two loan agreements
(“Loan Agreements I”) with T&BFELIXREHR A T
(Jiangsu Guotai Huading Investment Company Limited®)
(“diangsu Huading”), being a 22.5% owner of Suzhou Langkun,
in relation to the provision of a loan of RMB285,750,000 to
Jiangsu Huading (“Supplemental Agreement to Loan
Agreements 1”); and (ii) two loan agreements (“Loan
Agreements II’) with /T EIZRESEHRERGMR A A (Jiangsu
Guotai Zijin Technology Development Company Limited*)
(“diangsu Zijin”), being a 22.5% owner of Suzhou Langkun, in
relation to the provision of loan of RMB285,750,000 to Jiangsu
Zijin (“Supplemental Agreement to Loan Agreements II”).
Pursuant to the supplemental agreements, Suzhou Langkun
agreed to adjust certain terms under the Loan Agreements | and
Loan Agreements Il. Including the loan principal of the loans
under each of Loan Agreements | and Loan Agreements Il was
adjusted to up to RMB327,270,000 for a term extended from 31
December 2018 to 31 December 2021 at an interest rate of
4.35% per annum.
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On 16 December 2021, Suzhou Langkun entered into the
second supplemental agreement to Loan Agreements | (“Second
Supplemental Agreement to Loan Agreements I”) with
Jiangsu Huading and second supplemental agreement to Loan
Agreements |l (“Second Supplemental Agreement to Loan
Agreements II”) with Jiangsu Zijin, pursuant to which Suzhou
Langkun agreed to adjust certain terms under the Loan
Agreements |, Supplemental Agreement to Loan Agreements |,
Loan Agreements Il and Supplemental Agreement to Loan
Agreements Il. The terms contemplated under the Second
Supplemental Agreement to Loan Agreements | and Second
Supplemental Agreement to Loan Agreements Il are identical.

Suzhou Langkun is owned as to 55% by the Group, and as to
22.5% by each of Jiangsu Huading and Jiangsu Zijin. Therefore,
Jiangsu Huading and Jiangsu Zijin are regarded as connected
persons of the Company at subsidiary level. The transactions
contemplated under the Second Supplemental Agreement to
Loan Agreements | and the Second Supplemental Agreement to
Loan Agreements Il (the “Transactions”) constituted connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As the Directors have approved the Transactions and the
independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the
terms of the Transactions are fair and reasonable, the
Transactions are on normal commercial terms or better and in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
Therefore, the Transactions are subject to notification and
announcement requirements but are exempted from the circular,
independent financial advice and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules.
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has the following
non-exempt continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

1. Nanjing Xinbeisheng Investment Management Limited (F 523 B
BRIREEE AR AA) (“Xinbeisheng”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as landlord and Nanjing Landsea
Apartment Commercial Management Limited (B A% E
EEPR /A F]) (‘Nanjing Landsea Apartment”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shanghai Landsea Apartment Industry Development
Co., Ltd.* (E/BBAFB EEER B A7), as tenant, entered into
the rental agreement (the “Rental Agreement”) on 1 February
2017, pursuant to which Xinbeisheng agreed to lease the
property at the 11 buildings at Chang Ying Cun, Mai Gao Qiao to
Nanjing Landsea Apartment for a term of 15 years from 1
February 2017 to 30 January 2031.

Nanjing Landsea Apartment is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Landsea Group, and therefore a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being an associate of Landsea Group.

The rental paid/payable to Nanjing Landsea Apartment under the

Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
RMB2,688,000 (tax inclusive).
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On 2 November 2018, the Company entered into the services
framework agreement (“Services Framework Agreement”)
with Landsea Group, pursuant to which the Group shall entrust
Landsea Group or its subsidiaries to provide venues, facilities and
equipment rental for application testing of green residential
products and promotional display services for a term of three
years from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021 at the
respective annual caps of RMB12 million, RMB14 million and
RMB16 million.

The actual transaction amount under the Services Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 is NIL.

On 10 May 2019, the Company and Shanghai Landsea Planning
and Architectural Design Co., Ltd.* (F/8RF R IR R AR
A 7)) (“Shanghai Landsea P&A”) entered into the framework
construction design service agreement (“Construction Design
Service Agreement”) to govern the provision of construction
design services by Shanghai Landsea P&A to the Group for a
fixed term from 26 June 2019 to 31 December 2021.

Shanghai Landsea P&A is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Landsea
Group, and therefore a connected person of the Company by
virtue of being an associate of Landsea Group.

The annual caps for the construction design services and
construction design consulting services under the Construction
Design Service Agreement for the period from 26 June 2019 to
31 December 2021 are RMB9 million, RMB9 million and RMB3.5
million respectively.

The actual transaction amount under the Construction Design
Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 is
approximately RMB1,925,000.
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On 28 December 2020, the Company (for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries) and Nanjing Landsea Property Management
Limited* (A REAF W EXER AR QA

Property Management”) (for itself and on behalf of its

) (“Nanjing Landsea

subsidiaries) entered into the framework agreement (“New
Properties Services and Properties Consulting
Agreement”), pursuant to which Landsea Group and its
subsidiaries shall provide property management services and
property consulting services to the Group for a fixed term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023
at the respective annual caps of RMB75 million, RMB78 million
and RMB82 million.

The services include (i) property management services, including
but not limited to, preliminary property management services for
property projects prior to their delivery to the property owners,
management services for property units and car parking lots
which remain unsold and house repairing services; (i) sales
agency services for residential properties, commercial properties
and car parking lots of property projects which remain unsold;
and (iii) pre-delivery property consultancy and management
services, including but not limited to, preliminary planning and
design consultancy services and display units managements
services.

Nanjing Landsea Property Management is indirectly held as to
49.5% by Mr. Tian, and therefore is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Tian.

The actual transaction amount under the New Properties
Services and Properties Consulting Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is approximately RMB74,238,000.
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5. On 28 December 2020, the Company entered into the project 5. RZZE=ZT&+=-HA=+/\B ' XA G HEAF
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Z++tR - BHI=F c BEAFELRNT :

management services agreement with Landsea Group (2020
Project Management Services Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Group shall provide development and construction
management services and sales agency services to Landsea
Group and its subsidiaries for a term of three years commencing
from 28 December 2020 to 27 December 2023. The respective
annual caps are as follows:

Period Annual cap
AR FEER

RMB’ million

ARBBRET
28 December 2020 to 27 December 2021 —ZE-FE+ A -+ \BE-_T-—F+_-F_-++H 85
28 December 2021 to 27 December 2022 —E-—&F+ - A+ \HE-T-—F+-F-++H 85
28 December 2022 to 27 December 2023 —ZE-——F+_-_A -+ \BE-_ZT-_=F+=-A=++H 85

The actual transaction amount under the 2020 Project
Management Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2021 is approximately RMB84,956,000.

On 28 December 2020, the Company entered into the green
architecture technological services agreement (“2020 Green
Architecture Technological Services Agreement”) with
Landleaf Architecture Technology, pursuant to which Landleaf
Architecture Technology shall provide green architecture
technological services to the Group for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 at the
respective annual caps of RMB25 million, RMB28 million and
RMB31 million.

The actual transaction amount under the 2020 Green
Architecture Technological Services Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is approximately RMB24,616,000.
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Connected Parties Relationship

M

(i)

(i)

Landsea Group through its direct and indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries, is interested in 2,379,428,081 Shares, representing
approximately 50.4% of the total number of Shares in issue. Mr.
Tian, the Chairman and an executive Director of the Company, is
beneficially interested in 50% of Landsea Group, Landsea Group
is regarded as an associate of Mr. Tian. Landsea Group, being
the controlling Shareholder of the Company and an associate of
Mr. Tian, is regarded as a connected person of the Company;

Nanjing Landsea Property Management is indirectly held as to
49.5% by Mr. Tian. Therefore, Nanjing Landsea Property
Management is a connected person of the Company by virtue of
being an associate of Mr. Tian; and

As Mr. Tian also controls approximately 65.67% of Landleaf
Architecture Technology, Landleaf Architecture Technology is
regarded as an associate of Mr. Tian. Landleaf Architecture
Technology, being an associate of Mr. Tian, is also regarded as a
connected person of the Company.

Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under each of (1) the
Rental Agreement, (2) the Services Framework Agreement, (3) the
Construction Design Service Agreement, (4) the New Properties

Services and Properties Consulting Agreement, (5) 2020 Project

Management Services Agreement, and (6) 2020 Green Architecture

Technological Services Agreement constitute continuing connected

transactions of the Company and are subject to the reporting,

announcement and annual review requirements but exempt from

independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.
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The Company has engaged the auditor of the Company to report on

the continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2021. Below was set out in the letter from the auditor containing their

findings and conclusions of the review in respect of the continuing

connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this report.

1

nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

for the transactions that involve the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the transactions were not
conducted, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not carried out, in all
material respects, in accordance with the Relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to the auditor’s
attention that causes the auditor to believe that the amounts of
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded
the annual caps set by the Company.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary course and usual course of business of the
Company;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board would like to confirm that the connected transactions and
the continuing connected transactions carried out during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and as disclosed in this report have
complied with the requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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EXEMPTED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

On 22 November 2021, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement”) with Landsea
Green Life pursuant to which, the Company agreed to engage Landsea
Green Life and its subsidiaries (‘Landsea Green Life Group”) as the
exclusive sales agent to provide property agency services for the
properties held by the Group from the date immediately after the
fulfilment of all conditions set out in the Exclusive Sales Agency
Agreement to 31 December 2023. Pursuant to the Exclusive Sales
Agency Agreement, Landsea Green Life Group shall pay the Group
Security Deposit (as defined below) for the performance by Landsea
Green Life Group of its obligations under the Exclusive Sales Agency
Agreement.

Under the Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement, the Group on one hand
and the Landsea Green Life Group on the other hand will enter into
individual property agency agreements under which it will be agreed on
certain pre-determined minimum prices for the properties held the
Group for sale by the Landsea Green Life Group as the exclusive sales
agent and Landsea Green Life Group shall not sell the relevant
properties at less than the relevant pre-determined minimum prices.
Landsea Green Life Group shall, within fifteen (15) business days of the
execution of the relevant individual property agency agreement, pay
the Group a refundable security deposit (“Security Deposit”) equal to
the pre-determined minimum prices for the properties subject to the
relevant individual property agency agreement. The proposed annual
caps for the aggregate Security Deposit paid by Landsea Green Life
Group under the Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2021 and for the two years ending 31 December 2022
and 2023 are RMB4 million, RMB6 million and RMB3 million
respectively.

The Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement was approved by the
independent shareholders of Landsea Green Life at its extraordinary
general meeting held on 31 December 2021.

The maximum amount of Security Deposit received under the Exclusive
Sales Agency Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 is
approximately RMB3,610,000.

As at 31 December 2021, Landsea Green Life is indirectly held as to
40.02% by Mr. Tian. The Security Deposit constitute continuing
connected transaction of receiving financial assistance from a
connected person under Rule 14A.24(4) but is exempted from the
notification, annual review, announcement, circular and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.90.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchased from the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 16.8% of the Group’s total purchases
and purchased from the largest supplier included therein accounted for
approximately 4.2% of the Group’s total purchases.

During the year, the Group’s revenue from the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 2.9% of the Group’s total revenue and
revenue from the largest customer included therein accounted for
approximately 1.0% of the Group’s total revenue.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company, their
associates, nor any shareholder which to the best knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital,
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2021, other than those purchased by the trustee for the
Share Award Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
when the Directors’ Report prepared by the Directors is approved in
accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
=EEZR#EE

SUFFICIENT OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2021.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares. Intending
holders and investors of the Company’s shares are recommended to
consult their professional advisers if they are in any doubt as to the
taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing for, purchasing,
holding, disposing of or dealing in shares. It is emphasized that none of
the Company or its Directors or officers will accept any responsibility
for any tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of shares in the Company
resulting from their subscription for, purchase, holding, disposal of or
dealing in such shares.

AUDITOR
The Company has not changed its external auditor during the past
three years.

A resolution will be submitted to the AGM for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd.

Huang Zheng
Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B M AR

To the Shareholders of Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd.
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED

The consolidated financial statements of Landsea Green Properties
Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 142 to 337 comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

OUR OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“‘HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B M AR

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2.1(c) to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that as at 31 December 2021, the Group’s
current borrowings excluding those of Landsea Homes Corporation,
the Company’s listed subsidiary, amounted to RMB3,166.86 million. At
the same date, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents excluding those
held by Landsea Homes Corporation and certain other US subsidiaries
which the Company cannot freely use, amounted to RMB1,519.11
million, of which RMB993.41 million was subsequently repaid to related
parties in January 2022. These events or conditions, along with other
matters as set forth in note 2.1(c) to the consolidated financial
statements, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to
be communicated in our report.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Classification of Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate;

° Revenue recognition for development management service
recognized over period;

° Impairment assessment of trade receivables, contract assets and
other receivables;

° Accounting related to spin-off and separate listing of US
operations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B M AR

Key Audit Matter
ARETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ES NARERREET SR

Classification of Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate
MEBLE - SELERBENTHNSHE

Refer to note 4(a) (Classification of subsidiary, joint venture and
associate), note 17 (Interests in associates), note 18 (Interests
in joint ventures) and note 40 (Acquisition of subsidiaries) of the
consolidated financial statements.
B2RGAVBREWT 40 (MBAR &8 RERBER
AR o) ME7 (B E AR ER) - M 18(RE =
PERRER) K40 (BB AR -

The Group invests in certain properties projects with various
other parties under various arrangements. According to the
terms of these arrangements, the Group classifies the
investments into subsidiary, joint venture or associate. As of
31 December 2021, the Group had investments in associates
and joint ventures with carrying amount of RMB1,263.46
million and RMB2,538.67 million, respectively. At the same
time, the Group has non-wholly owned subsidiaries with total
non-controlling interest of RMB1,656.76 million.
ERERBEELHETAAMIAREETYWRIER - R
BRERENGK - BEXERZERESBRMEBLA -
AECEYBEN T  c RZEZ—F+=A=+—H' &
SEBEAMENTANRGERLERE  RHENIRARE
1,263.46 BB TR ARM2,538.67HE T - R+ B5EE
BIF2EMBAR - AIEEFIEERAEAAKK1,656.768
BT °

We understood, evaluated and tested the relevant control
over the Group’s classification of subsidiary, joint venture and
associate.

HMTE  FHMERRER EXEMRBAR -
NEIMD AT AAEREEIEE -

BELEREE

For material investments, individually or in aggregate, we
challenged management’s assessment and performed the
following audit procedures:

HREBBARE (ARE)ME - RAIEREREEONE - I
ETA TR

We examined the legal documents associated with the
investments that the Group made during the period, to
determine the key terms, including rights of the investors,
terms of shareholders’ agreements, dispute resolution
provisions, termination provisions, governance structures and
profit-sharing arrangements, and assessed these key terms
against the classification criteria.

BMEER SEERAMEREGENEEXY  UETE
BRI - BREREENEN - IRERGROIRRK - FHER
R~ BRI - BURRB MBS KL - ARERD R
ZRFHEZ BN ©

When there have been subsequent changes to the
shareholders’ existing agreements or governance structures,
we assessed whether these changes would impact the initial
assessments by management.
ERFRREHRLEAGEBLERGEZIE - LATHZE
SHEERE T ERENLME -
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Key Audit Matter
ARETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ES AR ERREET SR

The classification and change of classification of the Group’s
investment involves significant judgement in determining the
levels of control and influence based on a number of criteria.
The classification has significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated statements of comprehensive income and
consolidated balance sheet due to their effect on consolidation
scope.
BERERENIRZIAERET TR BRI RN E
TORESBREHFREZHE - DBEREEGSSHENY
R HY BRENGETHEERRGAEEARR
BERYE -

We, therefore, consider classification of subsidiary, joint venture

and associate a Key Audit Matter.
Bt - HPRABHEAR
EAtEHE -

]

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

C RECERBERTND BB

We sought for written confirmations or communicated verbally
with the contract parties, on a sample basis, to confirm the
contract clauses and completeness of contracts and
agreements we obtained and whether there are any
subsequent supplementary contracts and agreements or
amendments.

BPmBEER EE RS RO ORER - SRERHM
RENEHNLHEHNERRTRY  UWREERERE/MAS
A RIBRSAER] ©

We assessed whether the considerations paid for acquisitions
or received from disposals of investments represent the fair
market value in an arm’s length transactions when there was
acquisition or disposal.

HFIEHE T RIBRER X MR ERERFKIMNKERS
RERBBESREN A FRZHHRFHE o

We evaluated the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in
respect of the classification and carrying values of subsidiary,
joint venture, and associate against the accounting standards
adopted by the Group.

BAFHET SREHMEBAR  SL0XMBERRND
BLRAREENRBEREAL BEEERANSHAERES
7 e

Based on our audit procedures performed, we consider the
judgements made by management regarding the classification
of subsidiary, joint venture and associate were supported by
evidences we obtained.

ERBMATHENER RMRREBEEHBELRR - &
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B M AR

Key Audit Matter
ARETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ES NARERREET SR

Revenue recognition for development management services recognized over period

TR 78 53 1Y B 5% B2 IR T A R

Refer to note 2.29(a)(ii) (Accounting policy for revenue
recognition of management services), note 4(h) (Critical
accounting estimates and judgements for revenue recognition
for management services recognized over period) and note 5
(Revenue) of the consolidated financial statements.

E2 MRS MR 2.290)i) (BB RBBAERN S

B ~ a4 (R — REFFR R E’Jaﬁﬂ&%ﬂ’ﬂ&)\ﬁﬁu/bﬁﬁ
BAsE SR AR RHET) RARES (A -

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded
revenue from development management services recognized
over period amounted to RMB390.55 million (note 5),
representing approximately 4.8% of the Group’s total revenue.

E_T-—F+_A=1+—HIEFE  BESERHRER
MRAZEEEREBARARE390.558 T (M75)  HE
R EEEBEKALL.8% -

The Group provides development management services for
fixed amount or variable amount and recognizes revenue from
services over period of time. High degree of estimation
uncertainty and use of subjective assumptions are involved in
the determination of progress towards complete satisfaction of
performance, the cost budget and the projected sales.
EEERETH IS BIRMHFAEEERS - WNEANER
RISWA - BEX T LRAEER SRR E AT EEERE
REERE - BEKATEE RMEFHEERE

We, therefore, consider the revenue recognition for
development management services recognized over period a
Key Audit Matter.

At - MR AR —REHERNRAZEEREREBAERS
B ELTEIA -

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process of revenue recognition for
development management services and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as subjectivity.

AP T R E IR B A B B 3 B TR PR IS UL A FERR B P B 4% 1 N /T
BiEF  WEBERMGEATHREMENERE KA MERRERR
= (PlmnEHM) 8K - FHEHREARERRAE S R

G o
ZN

We evaluated and tested the key controls over revenue
recognition for development management services recognized
over period.

BT ST RN ENRER SRR E R R AER
FrREEEHIRZE -

We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of
progress towards complete satisfaction of performance, the
cost budget and the projected sales for development
management services to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process.

BT - RREEEREN T IRAEEER - KA
TRE REFHHER - UM E R E AR BB

We assessed if the estimate on progress towards complete
satisfaction of performance obligation based on the Group’s
inputs is reasonable and consistently applied. In respect of
cost incurred and cost to completion, we tested actual costs
incurred to supporting evidence, performed site visit to
project, and agreed cost to completion to approved budgets
on a sample basis.

BT EREARENBABNAENERT IRAOEED
EEMFEEEEAE/ER - R BEEEKARETIR
K- HEPREEREERAEFILEE  £THEEEME
2 WHEMRE R TSR B TREAT -
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Key Audit Matter
ARETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ES AR ERREET SR

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

We assessed the reasonableness and sensitivity of
management estimation for cost to completion with
comparison to similar projects of the Group and actual costs
variance to budget by stage.

HMmALE BESRENHECER  SEREBEKAEEH
ZERNERTEEEEBHR T NA 2 M58 6 B M kUK
M o

For estimation in respect of projected sales, we compared, on
a sample basis, projected sales volume and price to similar
projects and available market data including registered selling
prices for transaction, and also offer prices of properties
nearby with similar characteristics.

TEEHHE MR A E - BPIBEHLLEROUE R VTR HER &
BRUZXGAEEERSBAEENIONEREZRAEMS
g o

Based on the procedures performed, we considered the
accounting estimates used in revenue recognition for
development management services recognized over period
were supported by the evidences we obtained.
ERHTHERF - RMBARMPAIISRERIAFHENEAR
RN EE IR RGWARER AR AT
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Key Audit Matter
ARETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ES NARERREET SR

Impairment assessment of trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables

FEWIRSL - SR EE R A E WS AR B E 7

Refer to note 3.1(b) (Credit risk), note 5.2 (Assets and liabilities
related to contracts with customers) and note 27 (Trade and
other receivables, prepayments and deposits) of the
consolidated financial statements.
FE2HREMBHRERMEIAO)(EERR) « MiEs.2(HE
FatBRNEERAR) RWE27 (B IR K& H A FE U
R BENRRERE) -

As at 31 December 2021, net book value of the Group’s trade
receivables, contract assets and other receivables was
RMB426.89 million, RMB318.82 million and RMB4,390.38
million respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group recognized impairment provision of RMB80.07
million, RMB11.18 million and RMB183.78 million respectively
against trade receivables, contract assets and other
receivables.

RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—H ' BSEERKER GHE
EREMERFENRIFES I /ARKE4I26.80B8 8T
AR¥318.82BE TR ARK4,390.38F& T - BE_T
T+ A=T—BILFE - BEEDHRERERR
BREERHEMEWTIRERREREARE0.07TAET
ARENABEETRARKI83.78EET °

To measure the expected credit loss, trade receivables,
contract assets and other receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and ageing profiles.
The expected credit loss is estimated based on historical data,
including the past settlement profile and incurred credit loss in
observed period, with adjustment to reflect forward looking
factors.

RETERBAGEHEL - BIERN - SHEEREMEKRIEA
ERBHARNGEERRSEKLRKERNETHER - BHER
BARBERELBEMS  SERAEEEBALBERBNES
NEEERE - WETHBRURMAEERESE -

CEN

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process of impairment assessment
of trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables
and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or fraud.
BPEREEEH R KRR - 5 0EE MKHE M EKFIERE
A A A ER I B AT R - WERE BT T REMER
REAE G REREZAKT - FIIEHRR - 8L - 25
RRSGXINEBRAIMFNTE  FEERERR AL E
BRER -

We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of
impairment provision against trade receivables, contract
assets and other receivables to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process.
HPIRHAEE R RERTR - & W& E KAt EUGIAD
BERENFEAER - UsHEEREEEHBIZAMR

We evaluated and tested the key controls over the Group’s
assessment of impairment provision for trade receivables,
contract assets and other receivables.
HPEHERBIE EREHEURERER -
FIRH)BUE R Tl By = 245 -

BHEEREMER
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Key Audit Matter
ARESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ES AR ERREET SR

For trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables
with objective evidence of impairment, the Group assessed
the credit risk and the expected credit loss by considering the
nature of transactions, relationship with the debtors and their
financial position, etc. on an individual by individual basis.
HEEEEREZBNEEERER  aNEEKEMEKRIA
ms X BEEERERRHNE - EEKANBEERKEN
BARERE - @ARFHEERRRRFARERAEX -

We consider impairment assessment of trade receivables,
contract assets and other receivables a key audit matter
because the estimation of the impairment provision is subject
to high degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in
relation to the impairment assessment of trade receivables,
contract assets and other receivables is considered significant
due to the complexity of the models, subjectivity of significant
assumptions used, and significant judgements involved in
selecting data.

BARBREKIENR - B E REMEBFIANRER G/
BRETFE  RARBERENGAFESE NEEE
MR REEEMEE  TEAERBRRN B MR B8R
Rr MERAE - HPIRBEEERR - aNEEREMER
TIERREEFEE AN EARR
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We agreed historical data, including past settlement profile,
incurred credit loss, on a sample basis, to the accounting and
operating records of the Group.

BIRMEEE  RERELEE  AEBTEERNL BE
HEEREXE BEEENSIRESRE W e

We assessed the economic indicators selected by
management in determining forward looking factors based on
our understanding of the relevant industry and with reference
to external data source.

HIPRIREEATTRAERE - WRZINBEERIR - AT
BEEETAIEERRFBENLEER -

We assessed the key assumptions and data used in
management’s estimate of expected credit loss by agreeing
information to relevant supporting documents and comparing
with relevant data of companies in the same industry for
individually assessed trade receivables, contract assets and
other receivables, on a sample basis.
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Key Audit Matter
ARETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ES NARERREET SR

We tested, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of trade
receivables, contract assets and other receivables.
BAIHBORHEUERR - SHEE REMEKRFIERREE
D e

We tested the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of
impairment provision of trade receivables, contract assets and
other receivables.
HFPAHEKIRR - OB EMEBREFIBERERGTE
B E M EREE -

Based on the procedures performed, we consider the
estimate used in the assessment of impairment provision of
trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables were
supported by the evidences we obtained.

RIBPTAITIZF - BPIR AT EEURERR - aHEEREM
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Key Audit Matter
ARETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ES AR ERREET SR

Accounting related to spin-off and separate listing of US operations

HEE¥EB o FUBY EHEBRE T %

Refer to the note 39 (Spin-off and separate listing of US
operations) of the consolidated financial statements.

B 2R A IS HRAM 39 (BB AR IBL M) ©
On 7 January 2021, the Group completed the spin-off and
separate listing its US operations (the “Transaction”) via the
merger of LP Capital Acquisition Corp. (“LF Capital”), a
Nasdaq listed company and Landsea Homes Incorporated
(“LHI"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group before the
Transaction with LHI as the surviving corporation and LF
Capital as the surviving company. After the transaction, LF
Capital was renamed as Landsea Homes Corporation
(‘Landsea Homes”) and is 72% owned by the Group.
RZE_—F—HA+H AEEFESHMNITER EMAA]
LP Capital Acquisition Corp. ([LF Capitall) E£iLandsea
Homes Incorporated ([LHI] * 72 5% R 5 Al J%ZIKEIEﬁiéW
BAR)  EREEBEEZEBSHFLE Y T ((ZXZ])
LHIBX ATF 4 2 LF Capital BIFE&E N 7] axx%nﬁk{é d
LF Capital 5 % 7 Landsea Homes Corporation ([ Landsea

Homes|) ' i ESBEWEH 72% s o

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

We examined the major legal documents related to the
Transaction, including the merger agreement, sponsor
transfer, waiver, forfeiture and deferral agreement, the warrant
amendment and other relevant information to understand the
key terms of the transaction.
BMEEEEZRIEENEZEAENN - ERBREE0HH
= RBABR BR RWKIERE - RIREZERT R
HEEER - N THRZX I EZRR

=

We evaluated the Company’s analysis of the Transaction and
the appropriateness of the application of the relevant
accounting standards.
BMETEARAREZRGETHNONMARERBES
AIRBEE o

s

We tested the accuracy of the information used in the analysis
by comparing them to the relevant legal documents and
performed recalculation of the listing expenses.

BPARAS TR BRI RS LM - AR KEEBMEARX
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Key Audit Matter
ARETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ES NARERREET SR

The transaction resulted in a listing expense of RMB376.8
million, representing the Group’s proportionate share of the
differences between the fair value of the shares that are
deemed to be issued by LHI (“deemed consideration”) and
the fair value of net assets of the LF Capital and was recorded
as general and administrative expenses for the year ended 31
December 2021.

ZRXHEE FMERAREI768ET HERAEEEL
WAR BB LH TR AR EE ([RBMRME ) BELF Capital 3
BEAABECHAZRELS  FHSBLCHABE_T_—
FT_A=T—RLFEN—MRETHER -

The deemed consideration is determined by the fair value of
equity interests of LHI appraised by the independent external
valuer engaged by management.
BRREABEEMEE NG EMTAHLHERN R
BEET °

We consider the accounting related to the Transaction a key
audit matter because of the significance of the Transaction
and the accounting estimate involved in determining the fair
value of the deemed consideration.

HRZRXZBEKXN  URBERARENAABES RS
st MBFIEZR S EBNGHAR RS FE -

We evaluated the competence, capabilities, objectivity and
independence of the independent external valuer engaged by
the management. We obtained the valuation report, discussed
with the independent external valuer on the methodologies
and key assumptions used and involved our internal valuation
specialists to assist us in assessing the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the methodologies and key assumptions
by comparing them with common valuation practice with
reference to the relevant industry.
BMEFHEEEMBEBEINIEEMN AR - 82h - B8
MRBIIME - JABSEERS - BB INBIEERBLET A
TERFERZETHR - WEFEABEEERRBTEE
BHERTERREREERSIE - HARBHEMERITE
—MRAEEER T EETHR -

Based on the procedures performed, we consider the
accounting related to spin-off and separate listing of US
operations was supported by the evidence we obtained.
ERENITORRT - BHMIRREEHEBSFIE T i
BN @D AR R PVEFHE IR ST °
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in
Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. 2021 Annual Report (the “annual
report”) other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. We have obtained some of the other
information including the chairman’s statement and management
discussion and analysis prior to the date of this auditor’s report. The
remaining other information, including the corporate information, major
events and accolades of Landsea Green Properties in 2021,
biographical details of directors and senior management, corporate
governance report, directors’ report, financial summary and particulars
of investment properties and the other sections to be included in the
annual report, is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be included in the
annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to Audit Committee
and take appropriate action considering our legal rights and
obligations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

1B M AR

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B M AR

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Esmond S. C. Kwan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEZHRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

For the year ended

BZEUTHAHILEFE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

—B-—F —E_TF

+=Z—A=+—H +=—A=+—H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

BEE AR®T T ARET T

Revenue WA 5 8,076,070 8,991,903
Cost of sales and services HE K ARFSACA 9 (6,406,403) (7,283,701)
Gross profit EF 1,669,667 1,708,202
Other income Hibzs 7 103,209 178,806
Selling expenses HEEMA 9 (485,646) (406,890)
Administrative expenses 1THEH 9 (1,283,155) (908,853)

Net provision for impairment loss on S REEREEIERETFE

financial assets 3.1(b) (275,028) (381,184)
Fair value (losses)/gains NABE(ER),FIE 10 (5,632) 80,790
Other (losses)/gains — net Hib (BE), RIS FE 8 (93,215) 8,774
Operating (loss)/profit K (FE) FiE (369,800) 279,645
Finance income TSI A 11 18,227 27,028
Finance costs % E A 11 (253,943) (480,607)
Finance costs — net B1 7% & FF 58 11 (235,716) (453,579)
Share of net profit of associates FEAG B N | FE 17 31,482 452,771
Share of net profit of joint ventures fEREZEZFNE 18 67,124 242,902
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETEF AT (B51]) FIE (506,910) 521,739
Income tax expenses e & A 12 (189,281) (489,148)
(Loss)/profit for the year EE(BE) FE (696,191) 32,591
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Note

ﬁ!’:

For the year ended

BEUTHHLEE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—B-—-F —T_FTF
+=ZA=+—H +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss:
— Exchange difference on translation of
foreign operations

Iltems that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

— Exchange difference on translation
of foreign operations attributable
to the Company

— Exchange difference on translation
of foreign operations attributable
to non-controlling interests

— Revaluation gain on the property
transferring from property, plant
and equipment to investment
properties

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

Htt 2 E =
AlREBR D E R A HA -

— BEBIINEBELENELEZR

— BERARBRBRE I
EEELMER Z/

— BERIFEHIE RSN RE
BINETGELE S Z8R

— BTBHE IRARGEBE
REEMENMEE[HAE

FEHMEEYES
MERBLA

FE2E(GR)KWERAHE

84,135 129,391
23,675 -
(25,889) (2,3793)

1,289 -
83,210 127,018
(612,981) 159,609




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEZHRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

For the year ended
BZEUTHHILEFE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
+=ZA=+—8 +ZH=1—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE AR®T T ARET T
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: FE (551#8) FHERERN :
— The shareholders of the Company — RRRIEE (777,504) (100,572)
— Non-controlling interests — JEdE AR 81,313 133,163
(696,191) 32,591
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FEXE(ER) WEEERBRN .
for the year attributable to:
— The shareholders of the Company — KA RRLE (668,405) 28,819
— Non-controlling interests — JEE R A 55,424 130,790
(612,981) 159,609
Loss per share attributable to the EEAARATRREN
shareholders of the Company FESRER
for the year (expressed in RMB (UAEBRARYEIIR)
per share)
Basic loss per share SRR EAEE RMBARYT RMBARMT
13 (0.169) (0.022)
Diluted loss per share SRFERER RMBAR#7t RMBARET
13 (0.169) (0.022)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

a5 K 8 B BB BT P o — B -
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SEEERER

As at 31 December 2021

RZZE—_—F+=A=+—AH

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
=F=—F —t
t=A=t+-8 +=A=1—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
LhEz AR%T T AREBTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investment properties B 19 687,500 674,900
Property, plant and equipment TEE - TR ERE 20 201,044 251,893
Right-of-use assets EREEE 21 89,085 54,253
Interests in associates i N L= o 17 1,263,464 2,141,030
Interests in joint ventures REELEMER 18 2,538,674 2,405,748
Trade and other receivables, JFEE L R R % L At R KRR
prepayments and deposits R EZES 27 280,690 974,877
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTS T EE 33 709,043 567,900
Goodwill [EES 22 155,928 135,097
5,025,428 7,205,698
Current assets REBEE
Properties held for sale FEHEME 23 479,426 1,186,481
Properties under development M EME 25 11,402,110 5,158,500
Inventories EBEF 24 32,320 51,565
Contract assets BREE 5.2 318,822 179,226
Trade and other receivables, JFEE L R R R L Ath P MR
prepayments and deposits FENRIBERES 27 5,440,451 5,666,240
Financial assets at fair value through BAREFAEBEN
profit or loss TREE 28 63,747 -
Restricted cash XEHRE 29 189,739 121,407
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRHSEEY 29 4,031,310 5,131,678
21,957,925 17,495,097
Total assets EEHE 27,883,353 24,700,795
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SEEERER

As at 31 December 2021 W-_ZT-_—F+_-_HA=+—8H

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
—EZ-F —ECTEF
t=A=t+—-8 +=A=1—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiEE ARETR AREBTT
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Trade and other payables JIE 1~ BR R % L A JRE <P 3R 30 251,004 1,771,862
Financial liabilities at fair value through AR EBETABZR
profit or loss TREBE 31 50,103 -
Advance from lessees R B EFE AR 41(f) 23,106 25,794
Lease liabilities HEERE 21 56,417 38,354
Borrowings (EE 32 4,650,617 5,696,886
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEPSTHEE 33 186,855 160,761
5,218,102 7,693,657
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables JFEASTBR SR & E b B 5 5% 30 8,565,304 9,518,171
Advance from lessees LYERESi N VE TN 41(f) 2,692 2,692
Contract liabilities BHEE 5.2 4,029,269 304,896
Lease liabilities HEAE 21 37,555 19,519
Borrowings (EE 32 3,839,002 856,706
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFRIS R & & 610,167 810,015
17,083,989 11,511,999
Total liabilities BEHAEE 22,302,091 19,205,656
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31 December

31 December

2021 2020
R -F —ECTEF
t=A=t+-8 +=A=1—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE ARBT T AREFIT
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves attributable to the (EBAERTRRNERR HE
shareholders of the Company
Share capital & A 34 38,702 38,702
Reserves E ] 36 3,885,805 4,944,784
3,924,507 4,983,486
Non-controlling interests JEFE Il 1 A 2 37 1,656,755 511,653
Total equity R 5,581,262 5,495,139
Total liabilities and equity EERERAE 27,883,353 24,700,795
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction  _Ei#lisr& EE B &3 EEFEMN M T —RIE -
with the accompanying notes.
The financial statements on pages 142 to 337 were approved by the  142E 337 BFiHMNMEHRECN -_E-——F =1

board of directors on 31 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf.

Tian Ming

HeA =
Director Director
EE EF
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=+ BREZRIE  YHUTALTREREE -

Huang Zheng



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

Attributable to the shareholders

of the Company
BERARARE
Non-
Share controlling Total
Capital Reserves Total interests equity
El32 ] e
B 1 st 3 R
(note 34) (note 36) (note 37)
(Fizk34)  (FIzE36) (F5F37)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz  ARBTT ARETRT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR
At 1 January 2020 R-E-ZF5—-HA—H 38,702 5259996 5,298,698 805,633 6,104,231
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BR)/FH - (100,572) (100,572) 133,163 32,591
Other comprehensive income  H b2 iz
Exchange differences on MEBINEBEER
translation of foreign operations [ i, Z%8 - 129,391 129,391 (2,373) 127,018
Total comprehensive income FEZ2EKFELHE
for the year - 28,819 28,819 130,790 159,609
Movement of employee share  {& 5 lx {3 {55 R &
trust account 88 - (20,284) (20,284) - (20,284)
Employee share based & 8 PR S
compensation 35 - 24,666 24,666 - 24,666
Contribution from JEEGI MRS E
non-controlling interests 37 - - - 1,360 1,360
Transaction with BRI R S
non-controlling interests - 3,170 3,170 (146,027) (142,857
Distribution to RIFEE G| i 2 R
non-controlling interests 37 = = = (176,294) (176,294)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBRR] - - - (103,709) (103,709)
Dividend 85 14 - (351,583) (351,583) - (351,583)
Subtotal of transactions BERRRZDE
with shareholders = (344,031) (344,031) (424,670) (768,701)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-2E
+=-B=+—H 38,702 4,944,784 4,983,486 511,653 5,495,139

RN
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Attributable to the shareholders

of the Company
BERAARRE
Non-
Share controlling Total
Capital Reserves Total interests equity
T
[N it st & AR
(note 34) (note 36) (note 37)
(Bt 34) (Pi¥x 36) (B#x37)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iizr ARBTR ARBTR AR¥TR ARBTR ARBTx
At 1 January 2021 R-2-—-%—-H—H 38,702 4,944,784 4,983,486 511,653 5,495,139
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(FR) /78 - (777,504)  (777,504) 81,313 (696,191)
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 EEE
Revaluation gain on the property B REIE « TR & & &
transferring from property, BYRREMEN
plant and equipment to MEEMHFIG
investment properties - 1,289 1,289 - 1,289
Exchange differences on BEBINEBEEDN
translation of foreign operations [ 5 Z 8 - 107,810 107,810 (25,889) 81,921
Total comprehensive income FEZHENFAE
for the year - (668,405) (668,405) 55,424 (612,981)
Movement of employee share BERMDETHRE
trust account B - (31,078) (31,078) - (31,078)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB B A) 40 - - - 50,000 50,000
Employee share based 1E B B
compensation 35 - 13,868 13,868 - 13,868
The Spin-off and Separate HEREBA I BT L
Listing of US operations 39 - (245,090) (245,090) 1,018,002 772,912
Distribution to [RFEE ] M 2R R
non-controlling interests 37 - - - (24,839) (24,839)
Transfer the shares to mEBRERINNES
employees related to share EZRD
based compensation B - (8,653) (8,653) 46,515 37,862
Dividend I8 14 - (119,621) (119,621) - (119,621)
Subtotal of transactions HRRR 5 et
with shareholders - (390,574) (390,574) 1,089,678 699,104
At 31 December 2021 R-B=-f
+=A=+—H 38,702 3,885,805 3,924,507 1,656,755 5,581,262
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read |- i 434 4 25 55 B 3% 8 EARE MY B = — BFRIEE -

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

For the year ended

BZEUTHAHLEFE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E—F —E-TE
+=ZBA=+—8 +=ZA=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B sE AR®T T ARET T

Cash flows from operating activities RETENEESRE
Cash generated from operations KEFSHE 38 (2,159,036) 2,706,627
Taxes paid [N (529,559) (408,766)
Interest paid BERF A (505,312) (564,954)
Net cash (used in)/generated AR E) (BT BrE

from operating activities D HEE (3,193,907) 1,732,907
Cash flows from investing activities REZBNRERE
Interest received ERFE 167,617 92,834
Capital injection to joint ventures NG E T E 18 (103,933) (81,360)
Collection of investment in joint ventures WEREEDENKE - 60,700
Capital injection to associates REEFERRNEE 17 (122,152) (404,800)
Collection of investment in associates U [a] A B 2 A R B3R A - 64,600
Dividend from joint ventures KEEZSPFENIRE 290,549 97,782
Dividend from associates =SNG SN 178,900 368,379
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, HENRBARATSHKIEA

net of cash and cash equivalents RIS MIREEEY - 399,375
Proceeds from partial disposal of shares o HEEESFERGTE;

of joint ventures 8 7,000 -
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries, A GE L IENGIENE

net of cash and cash equivalents HNBIERESRIRESEEY 40 (193,876) (1,006,215)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 8% B RB)ZE « TR HEE (22,668) (26,157)
Proceeds from disposal of property, METHE - THESE

plant and equipment Fr1S 5008 351 990
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value W R AR EERT ABR

through profit or loss SREE (63,747) =
Funding to related parties mIfEEE 5 B E (250,091) (1,509,607)
Collection of funding to related parties W Bl =) AR H IR B & 41(h) 679,863 1,766,907
Advance to non-controlling interests [ FEE MR 2R 2 TR (23,463) (19,476)
Repayment from advance to 1 [ 1) FE47E ) 1t A 2 B 5K

non-controlling interests 91,939 70,000
Collection of lending to third parties g [B11H) 58 = A 1B H B8 3K - 16,984
Collection for investing related restricted cash Y [213% & 18 fd PR 1|28 & - 20,063
Net cash generated from/(used in) RE B (FTH)E % FE

investing activities 636,289 (89,001)

AN
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For the year ended

BEUTHHLEE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—EZ—F —E-TE
t=A=t+-8 +=A=1—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARBT AREETTT
Cash flows from financing activities METENRERE
Proceeds from borrowings B PrEEIE 38 6,061,404 5,448,677
Repayment of borrowings EEER 38 (4,116,744) (5,316,391)
Proceeds from related parties s Al R ] 41(h) 214,300 190,050
Repayment to related parties M) BA B 5 8 K 41(h) (401,679) (825,264)
Contribution from non-controlling interests FEI A R E 460,757 1,360
Distribution to non-controlling interests [A] 4 | 1 R 25 D R 37 (24,839) (176,294)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Wi B JE 7 ) M A s - (20,657)
Dividends to shareholders of the Company & it 482 &) A% 3R A9 A% £, 14 (68,208) (190,118)
Principal elements of lease payments HENFEREHB D 38 (23,638) (20,314)
Shares bought back for employee share R = R AR )
trust 35 (31,078) (22,075)
Consideration received for restricted FLBR HI MR SEE R T B B WA (E
share award scheme &5 6,109 13,805
Settlement of financial liability HELRAE 38 (531,623) -
Payment for financing related restricted SR ERBEZRSRES
cash (39,743) (8,901)
Net cash generated from/(used in) & EEPTE ()2 HEE
financing activities 1,505,018 (926,122)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash Tﬁﬁ}ifiﬁ%f’ /)]
and cash equivalents W) NS (1,052,600) 717,784
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January N—HA—HAOBESRIRETEED 5,131,678 4,504,393
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes GNEE FE SR By 2 (47,768) (90,499)
Cash and cash equivalents at RT+=-—BA=+—HHBEEK
31 December HEeZEEY 29 4,031,310 5,131,678
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  _Eill4R&E IR = 5% FE B2 BE P FT s — OF BI7E -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. was incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. The
addresses of its registered office and principal place of business
are Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11,
Bermuda and Unit 5103, 51/F., The Center, 99 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (‘HKEX”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries are referred to as the “Group” hereinafter. The Group
is principally engaged in development and sales of properties,
provision of management services and leasing of properties. The
Company’s subsidiary, Landsea Homes Corporation (“Landsea
Homes”) was listed on Nasdaqg on 7 January 2021.

The immediate holding company and the ultimate controlling
company of the Company are Greensheid Corporation, a
company established in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and
B EER M AR AT (Landsea Group Co., Ltd. (‘Landsea
Group”)), a company established in the People’s Republic of
China, respectively. The ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Company is Mr. Tian Ming (“Mr. Tian”), a director of the
Company.

The financial statements are presented in thousands of Renminbi
(“RMB’000”) unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 31 March 2022.

—RER

R EERR AR AR A REFMAIA
ERRBRAF o sFHH SR KT EER
1255 Bl & Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda A X & B R IR £/
RIEF Q95 IRA 51185103 % KA AR
DREBHERSMERAR (BB
ke

RARABREZRAR - TEHBARMNER
HIBERNGEM B RERWTEIL e RAFIRE
MEBARR TXHEA [ AEE] - REEE
ENEFERBENE RETERERTY
TAYIZEZEFS - 22 BT B A 7] Landsea Homes
Corporation ([ Landsea Homes |) /A —Z — —

FoAtAEMIER LT -

AARMERER AR RELIZER AR D RA
Greensheid Corporation (R B # B R & S
((EBEMEAEBE DKM AR) RFFEE
BRHOBBRAR(TEAREE] - RPZEARKEN
B KA R]) o AR AHREIZRRE AR
ARIEEHALE(THEE]) -

BRIERBAHE - BRIAMBHREAARETT
TAR®TR)Z2%H -

AU BBREREBEERR _E-_—_F=HA
=t+—BHETIE -
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the
Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Compliance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622 (“HKCO”)
The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs and
disclosure requirements of HKCO.

(b) Historical cost convention
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for certain financial assets and investment properties
measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(c)

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current
borrowings excluding those of Landsea Homes, the
Company’s listed subsidiary, amounted to
RMBS3,166.86 million. At the same date, the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents excluding those held by
Landsea Homes and certain other US subsidiaries
which the Company cannot freely use, amounted to
RMB1,519.11 million, of which RMB993.41 million
was subsequently repaid to related parties in January
2022 (note 29).

Due to the slowing down of Mainland China property
market since second half of 2021 which reduced pre-
sales volume and collection of pre-sale proceeds, the
Group’s China operations had experienced a decline
in the business of property development and sales.
At the same time, the Group’s China operation is less
accessible to financing because of the overall
tightened financing condition for property developers
in Mainland China.

The above conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
regarding the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. In view of such circumstances, the directors
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to continue as
a going concern. Certain plans and measure have
been formulated to mitigate the liquidity pressure and
to improve its cash flows which include, but not
limited to, the following:

2 FESHBERE®)

21 wREEEE)
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FHEE)RARBA51911ET
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(c) Going concern basis (Continued)

U)

(i)

The Group will continue to actively adjust sales
and pre-sale activities to better respond to
market needs, and make efforts to achieve the
latest budgeted sales and pre-sales volumes
and amounts. The Group will maintain
continuous communication with the major
constructors and suppliers to arrange payments
to these vendors and meet all of the necessary
conditions to launch the pre-sale. The Group
will also continuously enhance collection
progress from customers and banks in respect
of the property sales and pre-sales;

The Group will continuously comply with
financial covenants and other terms and
conditions of the borrowings, including timely
repayment of principle and interests of the
borrowings. In addition, the Group has been
actively negotiating with certain financial
institutions so that the Group can timely secure
project development loans for qualified project
development and secure loans through pledge
of equity interests in certain subsidiaries;

The Group has successfully obtained a
borrowing facility of RMB500 million from its
ultimate controlling company, Landsea Group
in January 2022, which have a term of 24
months of the date of drawn down and
RMB125 million was drawn down in March
2022;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(c) Going concern basis (Continued)

(ivy  The Group is in negotiation with potential
investors related to the sale of certain equity
interests of subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates of the Group. At the same time, the
Group has been in contact with potential
buyers to dispose certain investment properties
of the Group. In addition, the Group will
continuously seek for advances from certain
joint ventures and associates according to
those projects’ pre-sale and cashflow
conditions; and

(v)  The Group is also putting extra efforts on
collecting its trade and other receivables and
will also continue to take active measures to
control administrative costs.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections for a period of 12 months from 31
December 2021 and are of the opinion that, taking
into account the above-mentioned plans and
measures, the Group will be able to generate
sufficient funds to finance its operations and to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due
within twelve months from 31 December 2021.
Accordingly, the directors are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties
exist as to whether management of the Company will
be able to achieve its plans and measure as
described above. Whether the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern would depend upon the
Group’s ability to generate adequate financing and
operating cash flows through the following:
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(c) Going concern basis (Continued)

U)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

successfully adjust sales and pre-sales activities
to achieve budgeted sales and pre-sales
volumes, successfully arrange payments to
constructors and suppliers on schedule and
meet all of the necessary conditions to launch
the pre-sale, and timely collect the relevant
sales proceeds;

continuously comply with financial covenants
and other terms and conditions of the
borrowings, successfully and timely secure
necessary loans from financial institutions;

successfully draw down necessary funding
from the borrowing facility granted by the
ultimate controlling company;

successfully complete the sale of equity
interests in the Group’s subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates and disposal of certain
investment properties; and timely receive the
proceeds; as well as successfully receive
advances from existing joint ventures and
associates; and

successfully generate operating cash flows
through speeding up the collection of trade and
other receivables and controlling administrative
costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Going concern basis (Continued)

Should the Group fail to achieve a combination of the
above-mentioned plans and measures, it might not
be able to continue to operate as a going concern,
and adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

A number of new or revised standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards are
mandatory for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2021:

° Covid-19-related Rent Concessions —
Amendments to HKFRS 16

° Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 —
Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

The standards, amendments and interpretations
described above are either currently not relevant to
the Group or had no material impact on the Group’s
financial information.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(e)

2 FESHBERE®)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 21 HEEEEE)
New standards and interpretations not yet (e) [HKRIFABIHFETERRZFE
adopted

Certain new accounting standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been
published that are not mandatory for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2021 and relevant to the

Group and have not been early adopted by the

Group.

Standards, amendments
and interpretations

R - B KRE

aETHEE
&&iﬁaﬁ% BEAR_ET
——F—A—BRBRMNTERFER
B AR AR EE A A A REEN

SR - BEEAAE

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after

N N=E: =
ZEBRIRN
FEHBEX

Amendments to Accounting Guideline 5

SETHESI B 59 (1B
Amendments to HKAS 16

EH o= RS 165 ((82)

Amendments to HKAS 37

BB GRS 37 57 (B2
Amendments to HKFRS 3

EBMBREELE 35 (B
Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Standards 2018-2020
EEMBREEN T N\FE
—ECRFNFEBE
HKFRS 17
BEEMBREERNFE 75
Amendments to HKAS 1

FR G ERIE 15 (B2

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combination
FZEGIEHFOaHEOE

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before intended use

THE - TRERE : FRERER

COISiEE S/ Oz
Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract
EEEK — BITEABBAR
Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

UL AR RS

Insurance contracts

RRE 4

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non — current

155/\*5%/}&@&3'5//&@

1 January 2022

T _F%—H—H
1 January 2022

—E-_F—H—H
1 January 2022

—E2-_—F#—AF—H
1 January 2022

—E-_—%#—HF—H
1 January 2022

—E-_—F#—H—H
1 January 2023
—E-=F—AF—H

1 January 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(e)
adopted (Continued)

Standards, amendments
and interpretations

R - SR RE

New standards and interpretations not yet

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

FESHBEERBE®)

21 wEEEE)
(e) KIRMBIFATERIRZE(E)

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after

AT B
ZEBR
FEHBEXR

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

EERBFESR (T _FF)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

BERGTERNE R REBMBHRE LD
EREAE 25 (B2k)

Amendments to HKAS 8

ERGTERIE 85 (B2

Amendments to HKAS 12

R EAIE 125 (B

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

FEMBHREERIE 1057 K
B GRTERISE 285} (B2)

Classification by Borrower of a Term 1 January 2023
Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause

fERA RS B AR Z RIE R IR
EHEFETHE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

—F-=%—H-H

1 January 2023

BETBURH I EE —E-_=%—A—H

Definition of Accounting Estimates

SEHEFTER

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

1 January 2023
—E_=F—H—H
1 January 2023

Transaction
HREE-—RHGEENEER
B EEBERLESE
Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its

—E-=F—H—H
To be determined
associate or joint venture

REFEEBENR A ELEZH T
MEEHEHHE

N

s

The above standards, amendments and
interpretations are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFE2:HEREs&)
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 SUBSIDIARIES 22 WEAF

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Business combinations under common control

The Group incorporates the financial statement items of the
entities or businesses in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been combined from the
date when the entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
combined using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognized in
consideration for goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in
the net fair value of acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statements of comprehensive income
include the results of each of the combining entities or
businesses from the earliest date presented or since the
date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the common control, where this is a shorter period,
regardless of the date of the commnmon control combination.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by those
entities. All intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealized gains on transactions between combining
entities or businesses are eliminated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Business combinations not under common control
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations not under commmon control by
the Group (refer to note 2.7).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
balance sheet, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

ASSOCIATES

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This is
generally the case where the Group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting (see
note 2.5 below), after initially being recognized at cost.

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

Joint arrangements are classified as either joint ventures or
joint operations depending on the contracted rights and
obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the
nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method (see note 2.5 below), after initially being recognized
at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

EQUITY ACCOUNTING

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognize the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint ventures
are recognized as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

When the Group’s share of net loss in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealized losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is
tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 2.14.

CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity shareholders of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling interests and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to
non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or
received is recognized in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognized in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former shareholders of the
acquired business

° equity interests issued by the Group
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IE€iBERE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 2.7 %ﬁ‘é‘ﬁ?(fﬂ

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognizes any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

° consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the
fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognized directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in
fair value recognized in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognized in profit or loss.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwiill.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported to
the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major business and service lines.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”), which is Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), Renminbi (RMB) and US dollars
(US$) respectively. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognized in profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within “other gains/(losses) — net”.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing date of
that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions), and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.10 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(Continued)
(c) Group companies (Continued)
o all resulting exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all of
the currency translation differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
shareholders of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

2.11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
historical cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognized. All other costs, such
as repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or loss
during the year in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IE€iBERE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 211 AEE  IRERESE)

(Continued)
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values, over the shorter
of their estimated useful lives or, in case of leasehold
improvements, as follows:
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of their
estimated useful lives
or lease terms

Furniture, fixtures and 3-10 years
office equipment

Motor vehicles 5-10 years

Buildings 20 years

The assets’ residual value and useful life are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.14).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognized as “other gains/(losses) — net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.12INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by
the Group. It also include properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.12INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair value, representing open
market value determined at each reporting date by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If the information
is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values
are recorded in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in fair value gains or losses on
investment properties.

If an item of owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the
fair value of this item as at the date of transfer is treated in
the same way as a revaluation under HKAS 16. Any
resulting increase in the carrying amount of the property is
recognized in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a
previous impairment loss, with any remaining increase
recognized in other comprehensive income and increased
directly to equity in revaluation surplus within equity. Any
resulting decrease in the carrying amount of the property is
initially charged in other comprehensive income against any
previously recognized revaluation surplus, with any
remaining decrease charged to profit or loss.

2.13INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.7.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortized but it is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwiill relating to the entity sold.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating
segments (note 6).

Software

Costs associated with maintaining software programs
are recognized as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the
design and testing of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Group are recognized as
intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

° it is technically feasible to complete the
software so that it will be available for use

° management intends to complete the software
and use or sell it

o there is an ability to use or sell the software

° it can be demonstrated how the software will
generate probable future economic benefits

o adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the software are available, and

o the expenditure attributable to the software
during its development can be reliably
measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IE€:BERE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.13INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 21BEFEE (&)

(b) Software (Continued)
Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as part
of the software include employee costs and an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Capitalized development costs are recorded as
intangible assets and amortized from the point at
which the asset is ready for use.

(c) Research and development
Research expenditure and development expenditure
that do not meet the criteria above are recognized as
an expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognized as an expense are not
recognized as an asset in a subsequent period.

(d) Amortisation methods and periods
The Group amortizes intangible assets with a limited
useful life using the straight-line method over 10
years.

Software 10 Years

2.14 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Goodwill is not subject to amortization and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFE2:HEREs&)
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT OR 215 BT ERTEHEY =

HELD FOR SALE

Properties under development and held for sale are stated
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Development
cost of properties comprises cost of leasehold or freehold
land payments, construction costs and borrowing costs
incurred during the construction period. Upon completion,
the properties are transferred to completed properties held
for sale.

Net realizable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realized, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

Properties under development and held for sale are
classified as current assets unless the construction period
of the relevant property development project is expected to
complete beyond normal operating cycle.

All land in the Mainland China is stated-owned or
collectively-owned and no individual ownership right exists.
Land use rights are acquired by the Group for development
of properties. Land use rights held for development for sale
are inventories and measured at lower of cost and net
realizable value, of which those within normal operating
cycle are classified as current assets and included in
properties under development or held for sale, while those
out of the normal operating cycle are classified as non-
current assets. Land use rights fall within investment
properties are classified as investment properties (note
2.12).

2.16 INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.17 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS

(a

(b)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (OCI), or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at
financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognized on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.17 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

(c)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortized cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at
amortized cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in “other income”
using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognized directly in profit or loss and
presented in “other gains/(losses) — net”,
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.17 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through OCI,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognized in profit
and loss. When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognized in “other
gains/(losses) — net”. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in “other
income” using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in “other gains/(losses) — net”
and impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognized and presented net in profit or loss
within “other gains/(losses) — net” in the period
in which it arises.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.17 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investments. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognized in profit or loss as “other
income” when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets carried at
FVPL are recognized in “other gains/(losses) — net”
in profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortized cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk. Note 3.1 (b) details how the Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For contract assets and trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognized from initial recognition of the receivables,
see note 3.1(b) for further details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.18 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in consolidated balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers arising
from sales of properties or providing management services.
If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognized initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are
recognized at fair value, and other receivables are
recognized initially at fair value. Trade and other receivables
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
See note 2.17 and note 3.1 (b) for further information about
the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Restricted cash is excluded from cash
and cash equivalents.

2.21 SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issue of shares
are deducted from share premium to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFE2:HEREs&)
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2.22 FEBRF R H ft FE 4 K

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within 12
months after the reporting period (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

2.23 BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized
as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortized over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred
to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognized in profit or loss as finance costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.23 BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS

(Continued)

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and
the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to
extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a
gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity
instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets are capitalized during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

2.24 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
(Continued)
Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss,

except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this

case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group
measures its tax balances either based on the most
likely amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.

Current income tax also includes Mainland China land
appreciation tax which is levied on the appreciation of
land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including land cost,
borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
properties that are measured at fair value is
determined assuming the property will be recovered
entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognized
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries that are expected to
be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognized in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as current employee benefit obligations in the balance
sheet.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by the employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognized until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit plans which are available to all
relevant employees. These plans are generally funded
through payments to schemes established by
governments or trustee administered funds. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays contributions on mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods.
The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans are expensed as incurred and, in most cases,
are not reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognized
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are
expected to be settled within twelve months and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
they are settled.

Housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances

Employees of the Group in Mainland China are
entitled to participate in various government-
supervised housing funds, medical insurances and
other social insurance plan. The Group contributes
on a monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees, subject
to certain ceiling. The Group’s liability in respect of
these funds is limited to the contributions payable in
each year. Contributions to the housing funds,
medical insurances and other social insurances are
expensed as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFE2:HEREs&)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 2.26 R+

Share-based compensation benefit is provided to
employees via the share option scheme, restricted share
award scheme and stock incentive plan of subsidiaries.
Information relating to the share-based payment is set out
in note 35.

The Group operates above schemes and plans to
recognize the contributions by employees. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the grant of
options and restricted shares is recognized as employee
benefit expense.

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is
determined by reference to the value of the options and
restricted shares granted:

o including any market performance conditions;

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions; and

° including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

The total expense is recognized over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options and restricted shares that are
expected to be vested. It recognizes the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to other reserves.

Employee share trust is established, for the purposes of
awarding shares to eligible employees under the share
option scheme and restricted share award scheme.

The employee share trust is administered by an
independent trustee and is funded by the Group’s cash
contributions and recorded as contributions to employee
share trusts, an equity component. The administrator of the
employee share trust buys the Company’s shares in the
open market for award to employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.27 PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

2.28 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the
higher of

° the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9, and

° the amount initially recognized less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognized in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESBERE %)

POLICIES (continued)

2.28 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 228 BIEEREN (&)
(Continued)
The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based B EROAAEBEEETABEFEIARR
on the present value of the difference in cash flows A A R B AR (RIS T ATB N A
between the contractual payments required under the debt HETREEZ=RRE  NFE=-FFKESHT
instrument and the payments that would be required MmENE=FHNE&5E -

without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would
be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of HEt L AT E RS E M ERIERE
associates are provided for no compensation, the fair mERMTS HEAAALABEEASTIEA
values are accounted for as contributions and recognized B ERBIRERAR—ZD

as part of the cost of the investment.

2.29 REVENUE RECOGNITION 2.29 AR
(a) The Group develops and sells properties, and (a) AEBERZENEEVE WRERP

provides management services to its customers. TR EIEARTS o WAFE B 12 Hi) 4

Revenues are recognized when the control of the HBEEEEREER - SBFE NER

asset is transferred to the customer. Depending on FERRESHER LR - BE

the terms of the contract and the laws and rules that 72 | A 4B — ER B R S K — B

apply to the contract, control of the asset may MR ER o WA EEEBABET

transfer over time or at a point in time. Control of the WE NHEE - BELESIEBE S

asset is transferred over time if the Group’s — R

performance:

e  provides all of the benefits received and o REEHFE G MEFINE
consumed simultaneously by the customer; or SR ENTEFERBETZ : o

° creates and enhances an asset that the o BBV IRAAEEBEAREER
customer controls as the Group performs; or PRI Hl R &EE ¢ 3%

e do not create an asset with an alternative use s UWEARHAEEMmMSAEH
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable HABMEE  mMAKER
right to payment for performance completed to cRE|ITEREF YO B2
date. S BT ELIE D HIFKIE
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BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.29 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)
(Continued)
If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognized over the period of the contract by

(a)

reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognized at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the asset.

()

Property development and sales

The Group develops and sells residential
properties in Mainland China and US. Revenue
is recognized at a point in time when the
property is delivered to the customer, the
customer has accepted the property in
accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provision have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied. Revenue is
recognized over the development period by
reference to the costs incurred up to the end of
reporting period as a percentage of the total
expected costs to complete the contract.
Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of
progress toward completion are revised if
circumstances change. Any resulting increases
or decreases in estimated revenues or costs
are reflected in profit or loss in the period in
which the circumstances that give rise to the
revision become known by the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.29 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

(Continued)

(a)

(i)

Management services

The Group provides management services to
its customers at fixed or variable amount. If the
consideration is variable, revenue is only
recognized to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal will not
occur. The Group recognizes revenue from
management services over period of time
where the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group or the Group’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.
Otherwise revenue was recognized at a point in
time. For revenue recognized over period of
time, the Group measures the progress
towards complete satisfaction of performance
obligation on the basis of the actual costs
incurred up to the end of the reporting period
as a percentage of total estimated costs for
each contract or on basis of direct
measurements of the value transferred to the
customer. Where the outcome of a contract
cannot be measured reliably, revenue is
recognized only to the extent that the expenses
incurred are eligible to be recovered. Provision
is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they
are anticipated by the Group.

(b) Contract costs — costs of obtaining a contract

The costs of obtaining a contract with a customer are

immaterial and are expensed when incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.29 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

The Group adjusts the transaction price for the time
value of money where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods or services to the
customer and payments by the customer exceeds
one year considering it provides a potential significant
benefit. The transaction price is adjusted by the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Group and its

Where the contracts include multiple performance
obligations, the transaction price will be allocated to
each performance obligation based on the stand-
alone selling prices. Where these are not directly
observable, they are estimated based on expected

(c) Financing component
customer at contract inception.

(d) Multiple performance obligations
cost plus margin.

(e)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

As agreed in the contracts, the customer pays fixed
or variable amount based on a payment schedule. If
the services or goods rendered by the Group exceed
the payment, a contract asset is recognized. If the
payments exceed the services or goods rendered, a
contract liability is recognized. Any unconditional
rights to consideration are presented separately as
receivables.

2.30 INTEREST INCOME
Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in

the net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortized cost and

financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective

interest method is recognized in profit or loss as part of

“other income”.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFE2:HEREs&)
POLICIES (continued)

2.30 INTEREST INCOME (Continued) 2.30 7| B Wz (&)

Interest income is presented as “finance income” where it
is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see note 10 below.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the expected credit
loss).

2.31 DIVIDEND INCOME

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at
FVPL and at FVOCI. Dividends are recognized as “other
income” in profit or loss when the right to receive payment
is established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-
acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of an investment. In this case,
the dividend is recognized in OCI if it relates to an
investment measured at FVOCI. However, the investment
may need to be tested for impairment as a consequence.

2.32 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognized in profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs they are intended
to compensate. Government grants that become receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
are recognized as income of the period in which they
become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.33 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

(b)

2.34 LEASES

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

the after income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a

corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset

is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease

components. The Group allocates the consideration in the

contract to the lease and non-lease components based on

their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real

estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESBERE %)

POLICIES (continued)
2.34 LEASES (Continued) 234HE (&)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially HMEEENEERAGYV A RB AR

measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include E-HEABEBREUTHENZKFEER

the net present value of the following lease payments: 1B :

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed o BERNK(BEEELEERM)ME
payments), less any lease incentives receivable fIEWHEEER

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or o HPNBEERIERMAIEHEENK -
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at REE B B A B B e R 1T
the commencement date Rt =

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under o  AEBETEEHNBERERRTEMNARK
residual value guarantees i)

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is . HEENTEE(MAEESEM
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and WEITHEZEERE) &

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the . A E P S A A9 S A (W B
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option. MR ARE BT ZRIERE) o

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain REETAETHEERELENEE

extension options are also included in the measurement of DIt ABESES o

the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate HMENREREAEMES A = TR

implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily 0 o M EE T MNR (ANEFNTEE R

determined, which is generally the case for leases in the EERER)  BlERAEAREEE

Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, A= - BME R AT A EEUKEIRIE

being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay R AECUES s B IREEAESE

to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar BRFREEEAUNEUEEMRSZE

value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic SMAZEF]R -

environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group: AETIRESERNE  KER :

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing o ERTREIE T @ EAERIAFE AKX
received by the individual lessee as a starting point, MESME=ZTRE AT EL
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions AR B ERFE =77 RE AR
since third party financing was received BB A Ay



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.34 LEASES (Continued)

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which
are not included in the lease liability until they take effect.
When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or
rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and
adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment
property are measured at fair value applying the fair value

model.

Other right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

o any initial direct costs, and

° restoration costs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFE2:HEREs&)
POLICIES (continued)

2.34 LEASES (Continued) 234HE (&)

Right-of-use assets which do not meet the definition of
investment property are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment
and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are
recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
12 months or less without a purchase option. Low-value
assets mainly comprise IT equipment.

Rental income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognized as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on
their nature.

2.35 DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

Dividend distribution to the Shareholders of the Company
is recognized as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Shareholders of the
Company.

2.36 EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AND SHARES HELD

FOR SHARE AWARD SCHEME

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs. Respective distributions if and when declared are
treated as equity dividends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.36 EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AND SHARES HELD

FOR SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity instruments, for example as the result of a share
buy-back or a share-based payment plan, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to the Shareholders of the Company as
treasury shares until the shares are cancelled or reissued.
Where such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued,
any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax
effects, is included in equity attributable to the shareholders
of the Company.

Shares held by the Company’s Employee Share Trust are
disclosed as treasury shares and deducted from equity
attributable to the shareholders of the Company.

2.37 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT

ASSETS

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognized because it is not probable that
outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognized but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognized as a
provision.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.37 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT

2 FESHBERE®)

237 FAREBRIAREE (£)

ASSETS (Continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognized but are disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognized.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. According to
the Group’s risk management policies, the financial risks
shall be assessed continuously by the management taking
into account of the prevailing conditions of the financial
market and other relevant variables to avoid excessive
concentrations of risk. The Group has not used any
derivatives or other instruments for hedging purpose. The
most significant financial risks to which the Group is
exposed to are described as below.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates
and invests in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
US and with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB, HK$ and
US$ respectively. Foreign exchange risk mainly
arises from certain borrowings and other
current liabilities of the Company (with
functional currency of HK$) and other
subsidiaries located in US (with functional
currency of US$) which are denominated in
RMB.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

()

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ and US$,
respectively, with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2021 would have been
approximately RMB154,252,000 (2020:
RMB185,015,000) higher/lower, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange differences on
translation of RMB denominated borrowings.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest — bearing
assets and liabilities other than bank deposits
and borrowings. Bank balances and borrowings
at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group’s exposure to
market risk for changes in interest rates relates
primarily to bank balances which bear floating
interest rates. Management monitors the
interest rate risk and performs sensitivity
analysis on a regular basis.

At 31 December 2021,
balances and borrowings had been 50 basis

if interest rates on bank

points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year would
have been approximately RMB21,572,000
(2020: RMB14,416,000) lower/higher. The
sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The credit
risk of the Group mainly arises from cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, contract assets, trade
and other receivables and deposits. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk on Group’s cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings. The credit risk on the Group’s
investments in debt instruments measured at FVPL is
limited because the debt instruments are either
bonds issued by policy bank or wealth management
product managed by large multinational bank. In
respect of contract assets, trade and other
receivables and deposits, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all debtors. These evaluations focus
on the debtors’ past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the debtors as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
debtors operate. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a large number of counterparties and customers.
The Group does not obtain collateral from customers
or counterparties in respect of certain receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

BRRER &)
3.1 BEREZEE)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group typically provides guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of
properties for an amount up to 70% of the total
purchase price of the property. If a purchaser defaults
on the payment of its mortgage loan during the
guarantee period, the bank holding the guarantee
may demand the Group to repay the outstanding
amount under the loan and any interest accrued
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is
able to retain the customer’s deposit and re-sell the
property to recover any amounts paid by the Group
to the bank. In this regard, the directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
Detailed disclosure of these guarantees is made in
note 42.

The Group provides guarantees in respect of related
parties’ borrowings to banks jointly with other
investors of the related parity. Typically, the related
party guaranteed by the Group is a property
development or property holding entity which could
liquidate or sell some or all of its assets to repay the

(b)
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borrowings immediately. In this regard, the directors SENEERBRAIAREBRD - %F
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly EROEBEAN 42 -

reduced. Detailed disclosure of these guarantees is
made in note 42.

The following credit risk modelling applies:

The Group has the following types of financial assets
that are subject to expected credit loss model:

° Trade receivables

° Contract assets

o Amount due from related parties
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BERRER &)
3.1 BEAREZ®)
(b) EEEREE)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

° Amount due from non-controlling interests

o Other financial assets carried at amortized cost

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information, which could include:

internal credit rating

o external credit rating

o actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant change
to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

° actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower

° significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same borrower

° significant changes in the expected
performance and behavior of the borrower,
including changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the Group and changes in the
operating results of the borrower.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HXEREE®
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1 BBREMEEE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1=ERE(E)
(i) Contract assets and trade receivables () BHEERENKRA
The Group applies the simplified approach to NEBRIBEEEVIEREE
provide for expected credit losses prescribed Al oSt FE AL 7 X Bt T8
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime A= BB B - 2
expected credit loss provision for contract BIR A a B E K EWER
assets and trade receivables. To measure the PERAEEFEHOTEE B
expected credit losses, contract assets and BREE - REtERHER
trade receivables were grouped based on BER AHBEENEWRER
shared credit risk characteristics and the days BELREER RS LS
past due. HR#mH o
As at 31 December 2021, the expected credit RZE-_—F+=_A=+—
loss provision was determined as follows. The H BHERAEBXEEN
expected credit loss provision below also T o A TNTEHI{Z BB LB E
incorporated forward-looking information. INBIERIEEE LR -
Third parties
=5
Related  Less than More than
—E--F parties 1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years  Syears Total
31 December 2021 tZA=1-H BEEF  OWME  1E2f 0EF  JEMF 4B5F EBSF &3t
Expected credit loss rate EHERaLR 1-15%  3%-10% 10%-25% 25%-60% 60%-85% 85%-100% N/A
(Gross camying amount miaE
— Contract assets - alEE 54167 225203 40488 14,895 - - -3
— Traderecehiables (note 27)  — &R (fiiztor) 180,476 48379 38246 33689 39822 38,19 - 681,715
234343 273,602 78,73 351,791 39,822 38,196 - 1,016,488
Expected credit loss provision  BEER B KA
— Contract assets - &HEE 167 (675 (4049  (2979) - - - (15951)
— Trade recelvables — [ (26397) (3317 (6,038 (150687)  (33,554) (34,839 - (254,8%)
(28,564)  (10,074)  (10,087) (153,665  (33,554) (34,833 - (210,717)
Total conractassetsand ~ AMAEREUER
fracle receivables s 05779 263528 68647 198,126 6,268 3,363 - 5T
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HH¥EKRERE#)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1 BBEMEEE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1=ERE(E)
(i) Contract assets and trade receivables (i BB E N EUBRE ST (48 )
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2020, the expected credit N-E_TE+-_A=+—
loss provision was determined as follows. The H BHERAEBEXEEDN
expected credit loss provision below also T o A TNTEHIZ BB LB G
incorporated forward-looking information. INBIERIEEE LR o
Third parties
=5
Related  Lessthan More than
“5°%% parties Tyear 1-2yeas 2-3yeas 3-4dyeas  4-byears 5 years Total
31 December 2020 TZA=t+-H BEy  OME 1ERE 0ESE SR (ESE RO it
Expected credlt loss rate BHERRLX 19%-10%  3%-10% 10%-25% 25%-75% 75%-100% NA N/A
(Gross camying amount miaE
— Contract assets - RlEE 8712 7935 1490 - - - - 183997
— Trade receivables - B
(note 27) (Rzkor) 204508 92204 302449 4149 38345 = - 874
384220 171,689 407,369 41,149 38,345 - - 1,042,742
Expected crediitloss provision - TR (ERBIEA R
— Contract assefs - ahEE 097 @38 (149 - - - - @)
— Trade receivables - EUWER (16,255) 2769 (91,162 (30,058  (34516) - - (174,760)
(17450 (151 (92654 (30058  (34516) - - (179531)
Total conractassetsand ~ ANBERENER
frad receivables ] 367,068 166508 314715 11,091 3829 - - 863211
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HXRKREREE)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1 MBEMEZEE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1=ERE(E)
() Contract assets and trade receivables () BHEEREKRA(E)
(Continued)
The expected credit loss provision for contract BHEBEENEWRERNR_-Z
assets and trade receivables as at 31 ——F®+=-_A=+—HKNFHE
December 2021 reconciles to the opening HA(Z P 1B Sk ¥ 5 B H ) 78 HR
expected credit loss provision are as follows: EREBABENSERNT
Contract Trade
assets receivables Total
EHEE FEUBR X et

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

Opening expected creditloss R=—FE—_ZFF—H—H

provision as at HYEHEA

1 January 2020 BREBE (2,892) (74,158) (77,050)
Additional expected credit KINEHAS R 1B R B

loss provision (1,879) (100,602) (102,481)

Closing expected creditloss R-ZE=-ZF

provision as at +=—A=+—H

31 December 2020 BAEHERERRE (4,771) (174,760) (179,531)
Additional expected credit BINEER (S FRIE R

loss provision (11,180) (80,066) (91,246)
Closing expected creditloss R=-T=—4%

provision as at +=A=+—H

31 December 2021 HARFERERABRRE (15,951)  (254,826)  (270,777)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Amounts due from related parties, non-
controlling interests and other financial assets
at amortized cost

The Group uses three categories for other
receivables which reflect their credit risk and
how the expected credit loss provision is
determined for each of those categories. The
Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected credit
losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
both historical loss rates and forward-looking
macroeconomic data. A summary of the
assumptions underpinning the Group’s
expected credit loss model is as follows:

3 HH¥EKRERE#)
3.1 BEAREZ®)
(b) EEEREE)

(i)

FEH BE B 77 500 - FEFE L
s R B H K ARGt B
b B &2

RE B E bR R =
BRI - PARBRE (S B [ 2
RIS EEEBERER
BAEE AEBEBER
RIEMERBRREHEE &
B AKBEEERRAR-
EHERBERBRERR
AEBEEZBEELEREREA
EREKERE AKEE
HERBRRELNNRERME
L

Expected
Basis for recognition of expected credit loss
Category Group definition of category credit loss provision rate
L
bzl REBBRERIFTER BREHEAEABREBNESE EREAXE
Stage one Customers have a low risk of 12 months expected credit losses. 1%-4%
default and a strong Where the expected lifetime of an
capacity to meet contractual asset is less than 12 months,
cash flows expected losses are measured at its
expected lifetime
FEHEER BARBRRBERENEHNRE 12EAEBEREX - WMEEMNTED
MERENBRYE S FHOM12ME R - BIFEHEIRIR TR
FHEE
Stage two Receivables for which there is  Lifetime expected credit losses 4%-10%

a significant increase in
credit risk since initial

recognition
E R B V)T HER LA RE B AR AR
b0} e

Receivables for which there is
credit loss since initial
recognition

BYIPHERARSEGEEER
B FE LR

Stage three

E=MA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)  Amounts due from related parties, non-

controlling interests and other financial assets

at amortized cost (Continued)
As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided
for expected credit loss provision against other

receivables as follows:

3 HHXEKRERE#)
3.1 BEREZEE)

(b) EE@ERE)

(i)  FEMEIHE 5 S E - FEFE S
B RIZEHEK A 2R
fh £ A& E ()
R-E-——&+=-A=+—
B« N5 B 5 H fth fE W kAT
REHBEABRBHEOT

Estimated Carrying

Expected gross carrying Expected amount (net of

credit amount at credit loss impairment

31 December 2021 Category loss rate default provision provision)

BEE

BHER hEHER HHER (2R

“E--f+-A=+-H =l REZ FEAE BEARE HERE)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTR AR%TR

Amounts due from related parties ~ Stage one 1%-4% 2,223,459 (88,787) 2,134,672
FEN B 7 FOR F-HR

Amounts due from related parties ~ Stage three 10%-80% 898,022 (378,091) 519,931
FEN B 7 3R OR FE=FEE

Amounts due from non-controling  Stage one

interests 4% 847,518 (33,901) 813,617
ezl b F-HER

Deposits for purchase of land Stage one 1% 405,577 (4,056) 401,521
BETHNRS FHER

Others Stage one 1%-4% 537,977 (17,340) 520,637
Hity FHER

4,912,553 (522,175) 4,390,378
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)  Amounts due from related parties, non-
controlling interests and other financial assets
at amortized cost (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided
for expected credit loss provision against other
receivables as follows:

3 HH¥EKRERE#)

3.1 BHEREE @)

(b) EEmEE(E)

(i)  FEHBEBE T SR ~ FEHE R
o R B ARGt B i H

fth & B & E ()

N-B_BFE+A=+—
A - R B B A B IORKET
RIBEEABRREENT -

Estimated Carrying

Expected  gross carrying Expected  amount (net of

credit amount at credit loss impairment

31 December 2020 Category loss rate default provision provision)

FREE

BEBER fhEHER RHER (2R

“E-TF+-A=+—H 25l BEE RE#E BXEE BEEE)

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETFT ARBTT AREFT

Amounts due from related parties ~ Stage one 1% 3,278,978 (32,789) 3,246,189
FEN B F0R F-ER

Amounts due from related parties ~ Stage three 10%-80% 1,297,528 (289,057) 1,008,471
FEN B 7 R FE=FEE

Amounts due from non-controling  Stage one

interests 1% 674,714 (6,747) 667,967
RN R 5R0R FHER

Deposits for purchase of land Stage one 1% 209,011 (2,090) 206,921
BE TieRe FHER

Others Stage one 1%-3% 636,482 (7,710) 628,772
Hity FHER

6,096,713 (338,393) 5,758,320
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Amounts due from related parties, non-
controlling interests and other financial assets

at amortized cost (Continued)

The expected credit loss provision for amounts
due from related parties, non-controlling
interests and other financial assets at amortized
cost as at 31 December 2021 reconciles to the
opening expected credit loss provision are as

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

3 HHXEKRERE#)
3.1 BEREZEE)

(b) EE@ERE)

4%
b

(i) KD

K~ IR

s RIL B H K ARGt B i E
fth & @& E ()
& U5 R B 07 SR OR - R I
o MR EHK AT EME
MEREER _T_-—F
TZA=T—H®WEHER
BABEEBARERRE

follows: KBHEOHERAT
Amounts
Amounts  due from  Deposits
due from non- for
related controlling  purchase
parties interests of land Others Total
e
FEdr G BEL
HBARE EERE iz Hith st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT AR®Tr ARETT ARETT ARETR
Opening expected credit ~R-Z-FF—-F—H
loss provision as at BOEGER
1 January 2020 BABE (55,156) (8,195) (1,718 (7.127) (72,196)
Additional expected credit BINEHERRAX
loss provision B (279,196) - (372) (583)  (280,151)
Recoveries (e = 1,448 = = 1,448
Written off i85 12,506 - = = 12,506
Closing expected credit R-ZB-EF
loss provision at +=BA=+-H
31 December 2020 BARMERARARE (321840 (6,747) (2,090) (r,710)  (338,399)
Additional expected credit BINRHE AR
loss provision B (145,032)  (27,154) (1,966) (9,630)  (183,782)
Closing expected credit R-B--—-&
loss provision at +=A=+-AH
31 December 2021 BABHERBLEE  (466,878)  (33,901) (4,056)  (17,340)  (522,175)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been
for the payments of property development projects
and operating expenses. The Group finances its
working capital requirements mainly through internal
resources and borrowings from shareholders, banks
and other financial institutes. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and adequate credit
facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay as of 31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

BRRER &)
3.1 BEREZEE)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) #BELREE(E)
Less than
1 year or
repayable Between1 Between 2 Over
ondemand and2years and5 years 5years Total
DR—FH
REXEER -ZME WEEF  RENML #@sr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 31 December 2021 R-B=—-F
+=A=+-H
Trade and other payables JEN R R M EN T 8,163,629 5,000 145,958 - 8,314,587
Financial liabilties at fair value BAABEFAER
through profit or loss HEREE - - 50,103 - 50,103
Borrowings and interest thereon  fE X ARRH & 4,303,189 277,784 3,854,216 758,024 9,193,213
Guarantee in respect of HETERZRBRE
mortgage facilities for RAHER
certain purchasers 1,254,314 - - - 1,254,314
Guarantee in respect of wEn L HEEE
related parties’ lease TR - - 118,400 - 118,400
Lease liability HEERE 37,318 26,987 34,898 6,947 106,150
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-ZF
+=A=+-H
Trade and other payables JERTBR S B A RE A 5K 8,991,477 951,171 741,136 - 10,683,784
Borrowings and interest thereon  fE X K AREEF S 1,293,481 3,307,207 1,995,606 837,828 7,434,122
Guarantee in respect of HETERZEBRE
mortgage facllities for RALER
certain purchasers 1,623,236 = = - 1,523,236
Lease liability HEERE 20,230 15,839 25,654 5,446 67,169
The different levels of valuation method for financial TXEFNFABEESTIEAAE
instruments carried at fair value are as follows: BEARNERTAZTRER
(@) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets @ HREEXEENERETS
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1). HIFRE(CREARE)(FE1E) o
(b)  Inputs other than quoted prices included in b KE1BMERmORESN
level 1 that are observable for the asset or MEEXEEAEENERE
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or (BE#) S HEE(BRE B
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). BB ASIR(FE2E) -
(©) Inputs for the asset or liability that are not ) EBESEGEILIFKEFETHE
based on observable market data (that is, m%%@ﬁE’JﬁaJ)\%ﬁJﬂEHTT
unobservable inputs) (level 3). BRm ASIR)(E3E) -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

3 HXRKRERE)
3.2 DAEEME

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E 2 FE3E st
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets at fair ZAABEEA
value through BRNemEE
profit or loss
At 31 December 2021 N-TE-—4F
+=—A=+—H 28 63,747 - - 63,747
At 31 December 2020 R -FTF
+=—A=+—H 28 - - - =
Financial liabilities at fair 3 2 R B{EFT A
value through BEMEmes
profit or loss
At 31 December 2021 KRB —F
+=—H=+—H~H 31 14,966 - 35,137 50,103
At 31 December 2020 i
+=A=+—~ 31 - - - =
Investment properties &EMYE
At 31 December 2021 N—E——F
+—_HA=+—H 19 - - 687,500 687,500
At 31 December 2020 R -FTF
+=—A=+—H 19 - - 674,900 674,900
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued)

There were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximize the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

3.3

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued)
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The remaining financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, and investment properties held by the Group are not
traded in active markets nor does the fair value determined
by using valuation techniques that use observable market
data. Therefore, they are included in level 3.

See note 19 for disclosures of the investment properties
that are measured at fair value.

See note 31 for disclosures of financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other current financial
assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values
due to their short maturities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are:

o to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern; and

° to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or obtain borrowings.

The Group monitors its capital structure on a basis of
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings and
lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash pledged for the Group’s borrowing. Total
capital is calculated as net debt plus total equity as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.3 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are

BRRRER®)
3.3 EXEKREE#)
RZEZ—FR=ZZT_FTF+=A

as follows: =t+t—HEMEESELENAT :
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E-F —E-TE
+=B=+—-H +=ZA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Borrowings (note 32) B (F17E32) 8,489,619 6,553,592
Lease liabilities (note 21) HEaE(WEe1) 93,972 57,873
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 29) & : 3¢ RIS ZEEY (Fizk29) (4,031,310) (6,131,678)
Restricted cash (note 29) SR HIER 2 (Ff7E29) (89,884) (70,141)
Net debt &% F5 4,462,397 1,409,646
Total equity b 5,581,262 5,495,139
Total capital BR4REE 10,043,659 6,904,785
Gearing ratio BEAMELX 44% 20%

Restricted cash with the amount of RMB89,884,000 (2020:
RMB70,141,000) was pledged as securities for borrowings
of the Group and the Group considers that such restricted
cash should be included in the calculation of net debt in
order to reflect an appropriate gearing ratio of the Group.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4

JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing material
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

RN

+E A ARKS80,884,000L(ZE=-F
F: AR% 70,141,000 7T) B2 BR $I3R &
ERIREAAEBERNER  A5E
REZEZRHE S ET AERFEN
FE - URBAEENSEBELE -

BAREE ST {4 ET R A

AEBEELARARRBANHE - et kR
®EEERE  SRHEERBLEENER
BERAER - bt RBRRRATGEEEAH T — @
MRFENEERBBRABHFEHENFHE
BT
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(A)

(B)

(€)

CLASSIFICATION OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT
VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE

In the normal course of business, the Group develops
properties together with other developers or institutions,
through entering into co-operation agreements with these
parties. The rights and obligations of the Group and the
other parties are stipulated by respective co-operation
agreements, article of associations of the project
companies and etc. Due to the complexity of the
arrangements, significant judgement is needed in
determining whether the project company is subsidiary,
joint venture or associate to the Group. The Group makes
judgement based on the substance of the arrangements
and the definition of subsidiary, joint venture and associate
as disclosed in notes 2.2, 2.3 and 2.4.

ESTIMATES OF FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value
which is determined by independent professional valuers.
Such valuation is made based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainties and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making the judgement,
reasonable consideration has been given to the underlying
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the balance sheet date. These estimates are
regularly compared to actual market data and actual
transactions in the market.

NET REALIZABLE VALUE OF INVENTORY,
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND
HELD FOR SALE

The Group estimates the net realizable value of inventory,
properties under development and held for sale based on
the current market condition and the historical experience
of selling properties and products of a similar nature. It
could change significantly as a results of change in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates at
each balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(D)

(E)

INCOME TAXES AND DEFERRED TAX

The Group is subject to income taxes in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and US. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain in the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated
tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year when such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognized when the Group
considers it is likely that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilized. When the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets and income tax
charges in the period in which such estimates are changed.

MAINLAND CHINA LAND APPRECIATION
TAXES

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes (“LAT”) in
Mainland China. However, the implementation and
settlement of LAT varies among various tax jurisdictions in
cities of Mainland China, and the Group has not finalized its
LAT calculation and payments with local tax authorities in
Mainland China for most of its property development
projects. Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of land appreciation and its related
taxes. The Group recognizes these liabilities based on its
best estimates. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
expenses and provisions of LAT taxes in the period when
such determination is made.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(F)

(G)

IMPAIRMENT OF INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURES

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 36 to identify any
impairment indicator for interests in associate and joint
ventures. This determination requires significant judgement.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates the fair
value of an investment by taking into account a market
participant’s ability in such interests in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would
invest in interests in its highest and best use. The Group
considers the financial health of and short-term business
outlook for the investee, including factors such as industry
and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow.

REVENUE RECOGNITION FOR PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT AND SALES

The Group develops and sells properties to its customers
in different countries. Revenue from sales of properties is
recognized over time when the Group’s performance do
not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date. The Group may not
change or substitute the property unit or redirect the
property unit for another use due to the contractual
restrictions with the customer and thus the property unit
does not have an alternative use to the Group. However,
whether there is an enforceable right to payment depends
on the terms of sales contract and the interpretation of
applicable laws that apply to the contract. To assess the
enforceability of right to payment, the Group has reviewed
the terms of its contracts, the relevant local laws, the local
regulators’ views and obtained legal advice, when
necessary, and a significant judgement is required.

For property development and sales contracts for which
the control of the property is transferred at a point in time,
revenue is recognized when the buyer obtains the physical
possession or legal title of the completed property and the
consideration amount is collected. The Group seldom
provides long credit or payment terms to its property buyer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BERISTHEFTRAE @

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(H) REVENUE RECOGNITION FOR

0

MANAGEMENT SERVICES RECOGNIZED
OVER PERIOD

The Group provides management services to its customers
at fixed and variable amounts. If the consideration is
variable, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for the promised
services. The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

The Group recognizes revenue from management services
associated with fixed and variable fees over time where the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits, by reference to completion of the specific
transaction assessed on the basis of the actual costs
incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract or on
the basis of direct measurements of the value transferred
to the customer.

Where the outcome of a contract cannot be measured
reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent that the
expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The provision for expected credit loss for financial assets
are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward-looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the
key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in the note
3.1(b).

(H R—REEHRINEZRBHWRA

()

e

AEEZETEMAESHERTPRERHE
BR  WREAE  AEEGEGFEA
RWHRH KRB - UREAGE R o
EEAERENHERATETERRERS
AR - BUE SRt AT 2R ESRRAR
RETSEBEEEEREANRTWA -
AL AR ESET AR SER

il =2 P (B S I ER W E RE A 25 - AR
R—BRERAEREEE A2 EMA
ANEERBEA  EHSEHERS
HREENERKRAEEE OB
RENAOLAERTEBRERFPHN
BEMFEHEXZNTREBER

HE AR SERT ERMMAER - AIEERR
ELEAAERKREIMNIER THERUA -

cREERE
CREEEHERABABHENREH
EHRRRTEHBEENBRRED - ®
BREPRR  AEERKEEBEFLE
TN R AT RE M 5T - BB HIET1E
ZERBIERRESENE AR -
BRAFZERERFABAZBNFER
MzE3.1 (o) WEE -

Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2021



4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

W)

(K)

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The Group performs goodwill impairment assessment both
annually and whenever there is an indication that a cash
generating unit (“CGU”) to which goodwill has been
allocated may be impaired. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the CGUs to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the CGUs and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2021 was
RMB155,928,000. Further details are given in note 22.

ESTIMATES OF FAIR VALUE OF DEEMED
CONSIDERATION

The fair value of deemed consideration was determined by
valuation on the equity interests of Landsea Homes
conducted by independent firm of professional valuers
using valuation techniques which involve certain
assumptions including multiples selected from the market
comparables, expected volatilities, discount for lack of
marketability and control premium. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair value of the equity interest of Landsea
Homes and the corresponding adjustments to the amount
of listing expense recognized in profit or loss (note 39).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

5 REVENUE

5.1 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH

CUSTOMERS

5 WA
51 BEFEHWA

For the year
ended
31 December

For the year
ended
31 December

2021 2020
BE-ZE-—F HE_T-TF
+=ZA=+—H +ZHA=+—H
LEE EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTT
Revenue recognized at a point in time R E R AW A
Property development and sales EHERERIEE
— Mainland China — R AL 809,187 3,209,379
— Us — X 6,511,065 5,068,627
Management services (a) EIEARTS(a)
— Mainland China — R AL 215,371 275,907
—US — XE 2,467 -
7,538,090 8,553,913
Revenue recognized over period R —ER BRI RN R R M
Property development and sales FEHERZERIBEE
— Us — XH - -
Management services (a) EIEARTS(a)
— Mainland China — R AL 533,913 409,973
533,913 409,973
Rental income HEUWA
— Office investment properties — WRIEEYE 4,067 28,017
8,076,070 8,991,903
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5 REVENUE (continued) 5 WAm@®

5.1 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 51 BEFEHRA %)
CUSTOMERS (Continued)
(a) Breakdown of the revenue from management @@ BEREUABRMANT :

services is as follows:

For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-Z-—F HE_T-_TF
+=ZA=+—HB +ZA=t—H
LLFE IFFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

Revenue from development FEEIEREBA

management services 390,553 256,948
Revenue from sales SHEEERBKA

management services 215,371 275,907
Revenue from green product FEEMBEREWA

integration services 33,613 57,304
Revenue from brand o R AR TS U A

authorisation services 112,214 95,721

751,751 685,880




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

5 REVENUE (continued)
5.2 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
The Group has recognized the following assets and
liabilities related to contracts with customers:

5 WAm®
52 EEFENERNEERERE

AEEERAUNTEEFENEHNE
ERAE:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
+=A=+-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT

Contract assets related to HTNIEEEENENEE
— Property development and sales — EHERERHEE 39,100 -
— Management services — BIBARTE 295,673 183,996
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1 (b) (i) 7 : ZEBRE M (M4 3.1(0)()) (15,951) (4,770)
318,822 179,226

Contract liabilities related to HELATNIEE BN EHNEE
— Property development and sales — B ERBLIEE 3,984,096 195,222
— Management services — BRI 45,173 109,674
4,029,269 304,896

(a)

Significant changes in contract assets and
liabilities

Contract assets consist of unbilled amount resulting
from development management services in Mainland
China when revenue recognized over the service
period by reference to the costs incurred up to the
end of reporting period as a percentage of the total
expected costs to complete the contract exceeds the
amount billed to customers.

The Group receives payments from customers based
on billing schedule as established in contracts.

Contract liabilities increased RMB3,994,914,000 is
mainly due to the acquisition of two property
development and sales companies in Mainland China
during the year (Note 40).

(a) BHNEEREEEALE

B R ARTS AR R A WA (2 RE
EREPRMEERAEROTT
BHERANA D LLERE) BiBR
EFRENESHE  ANEESRES
PEIFMEE R R RFMERA -

AEERBEEZFNA QTR
Wk By PR R MRS 3K

A B EEINARES3,994,914,000
TL o THERAFERERR T EA
Hh 55 b 2 A 2% K 85 & A B AT B (B
F£40) o
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5 REVENUE (continued) 5 WAm@®

5.2 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO 52 HEFAYNERENEERBE (&)
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (Continued)
(b) Revenue recognized in relation to contract (b) REHEEEZHKA
liabilities
The following table shows how much of the revenue T % BT AN 34 HA RS fe 7 Bl 4
recognized in the current reporting period relates to AMBEEEHA -

carried-forward contract liabilities.

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
+=A=+—8 +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Revenue recognized that was included 45 A& 48 &4 ERHY

in the contract liabilities balance at BB
the beginning of the year
— Property development and sales — FHERBEREE 172,896 2,983,159
— Management services — BEEARRS 109,674 39,408
282,570 3,022,567
(c) Contracted amounts to be recognized in future (c) HRARERWETHEEE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—B-—-F —T_FTF
+=A=+—-H +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
Expected to be recognized within TEEI —FNTER
one year
— Property development and sales — BERZENIEE 3,964,995 177,269
— Management services — BEEARFE 43,173 109,674

Expected to be recognized after one year Y& i —F 14 1R

— Property development and sales — BHERZENIEE 19,101 17,953
— Management services — BER® 2,000 -
4,029,269 304,896




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

5 REVENUE (Continued) 5 WA

5.2 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (Continued)
(d) Contract cost
Costs directly attributable to obtaining a contract
such as stamp duty and sales commissions are
immaterial and expensed when they were incurred.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the executive directors that are used to
make strategic decisions. The reports are prepared on the same
basis as consolidated financial statements.

The executive directors consider the business from services
perspective and have identified the following operating segments:

Property development and sales in the US;

o Property development and sales in Mainland China;

° Management services; and

o Office property investment.

The executive directors assess the performance of operating
segments based on a measure of segment revenue and segment
profit.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of net finance costs and corporate expenses
charged in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
This is the measure reported to the management of the Group
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

52 HEFENEHNEEREE W)

(d) BREE
MSEAMERELHKA (A E
EBRHERET) RELER AR
RAXH 2RIFERX -

7 EER
ERERBEHMPTESENRBIERBRE

MBEEEREED T - ARBREREKRANH
HRERWEERH o

HWITESKRGAREZREY - LHERATE

B

o XBFEHERBEREE:

o  HERMEMERENEE

s EBERS:K

o MRAMERKRE -
HITESRIED BUPRA KD B BT EFEE

BD BRI ©

7 BFE IR R 2 BRAT REREO FE - B YRR
AGFAEHBRRNMBERRARERFR
DB - AEBEEBREMRESOTEDE
BRMFHAERE -
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 oEER®E

The segment information provided to the executive directors for BE_E-_—F+-_A=+—"HIEFE A#H
the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2021 TEERMENRESEEANMOT -
is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-B--Ft-A=t+-HLEE

Property
Property development
development  and sales in Office
and sales in Mainland Management property
us China services  investment Total
LERLE TERBELE MWAmE
RERHE HERHE BRI RE st

RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  AR®TR  ARBTR  AR¥TR  ARETR

Segment revenue (from extermal DEWA REINFZF)
customers) (note 5) (KizE5)
— Revenue recognized at a point in — BEBEBIEHEES
time under HKFRS 15 ER Il Sk
L ON 6,511,064 809,187 217,839 - 7,538,090
— Revenue recognized over period — RESBHEREER
under HKFRS 15 F15KN—R AR
LN - - 533,913 - 533,913
— Rental income —HEUA - - - 4,067 4,067
6,511,064 809,187 751,752 4,067 8,076,070
Depreciation of property, plant ToE ITBRRENE
and equipment (23,586) (7,565) (10,683) - (41,834)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (10,259) (1,706) (9,024) - (20,989)
Fair value loss on investment BREUEMENDLEERE
properties (note 19) (K3E19) - - - (19,600) (19,600)
Fair value gain on financial liabiliies at fair A7 BE ABHNL B AR
value through profit or loss (note 31) #9274 EfEMES (Fiz31) 13,968 - - - 13,968
Share of net profit of associates (note 17) {22 1% A (i 17) - 31,482 - - 31,482
Share of net profit of joint ventures ERA B EEH
(note 18) (Kr3E18) 15,369 51,755 - - 67,124
Segment profit/(loss) AEFIE/ (E8) 28,702 (131,879) 37,788 (26,506) (91,895)
At 31 December 2021 R-E--#+-HA=1+-H
Segment assets DEUEE 9,221,086 16,488,664 1,461,763 711,840 27,883,353
Interests in associates (note 17) B A B AR (FTEE17) - 1,263,464 - - 1,263,464
Interests in joint ventures (note 18) REEERMER (i 18) 2,603 2,536,071 - - 2,538,674
Additions/(deductions) to non-current 11,/ (5 4) RN & B
assets (excluding financial assets, (TeERAE
deferred income tax assets) EEFMEHERE) 55,184 (41,535) (8,835) 32,200 37,014
Segment liabilties NERE 6,204,013 15,309,711 730,898 57,460 22,302,091
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BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 2EER A
The segment information provided to the executive directors for BE_E-_TF+_A=+—HIEFE  A#H
the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2020 TESIEHNRESLENLT -
is as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-E-ZF+-A=1-BIL4E
Property
Property  development
development and sales in Office
and sales in Mainland ~ Management property
Us China services investment Total
FEREME HRERNEE BWRME
FERIEE REREE EBR% BE @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARBTT ARETT ARt AR%TR
Segment revenue (from external HERA (RENPER)
customers) (note 5) (KizE5)
— Revenue recognized at a point in — RIER RIS ERE &L
time under HKFRS 15 F1SRIE —RERIE
BREBA 5,068,627 3,209,379 275,907 - 8,553,913
— Revenue recognized over period — REEBHHKRE%ER
under HKFRS 15 F155RN—RARER
BREBA - - 409,973 - 409,973
— Rental income — HElA - - - 28,017 28,017
5,068,627 3,209,379 685,880 28,017 8,991,903
Depreciation of property, plant and THE  TRRIENE
equipment (0,715) (7,560) (12,817) (1,008) (31,100)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EHEEENE (11,518) (1,902) (6,071) - (19,491)
Fair value gain on investment BREEMENDAEERNE
properties (note 19) GEIL) - - - 80,790 80,790
Share of net profit of associates (note 17) FE(EHRES A &S FI8 (HiEE17) = 452,771 = = 452,771
Share of net (loss)/profit of joint EEAECEF(BR)/
ventures (note 18) 8 (FrsE18) (103,404) 346,306 - - 242,902
Segment (loss)/profit A (EB),/FH (279,489) 1,226,553 78,753 233,374 1,259,191
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-ZF5+-A=+-H
Segment assets PHEE 6,635,732 15,808,567 1,626,950 729,546 24,700,795
Interests in associates (note 17) S R AR R (M 17) - 2,141,030 - - 2,141,030
Interests in joint ventures (note 18) RagtxmEsR (H18) 131,632 2,274,116 - - 2,405,748
Additions/(deductions) to non-current 3241,/ (Ei4) EREAE
assets (excluding financial assets, (TeEeRAE
deferred income tax assets) BRMENERE) 96,529 (3,866) 2,516 (261,115) (165,936)
Segment liabilities NEAE 4,191,847 14,094,023 864,605 55,181 19,205,656

BN
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6

The Group does not have any single customer which contributed
to more than 10% of the Group’s revenue. The Group’s revenue
from external customers and non-current assets are divided into

the following geographical areas:

Revenue from external customers

oEER(#)

A B A A E B U A 10% A E B B
—EF o AEEKEIMBESHRARIERD
BETRA T HIE GRS :

Non-current assets

HBEFWA kRBEE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
BE-B--Ff @E_T_ZF
+=ZB=t-B fZA=1—H —EC-F S -2
LFE 58 +=A=+-B +=A=1-H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT AR%BF T AREFT
Mainland China HE A 1,562,538 3,923,276 5,604,674 6,758,293
us x5 6,513,532 5,068,627 315,858 446,565
Hong Kong (domicile) B8 (i) - - 4,896 840
8,076,070 8,991,903 5,925,428 7,205,698

The revenue information above is based on the location of the
customers. Non-current assets information above is based on

the location of the assets.

Reconciliation of segment (loss)/profit to (loss)/profit before
income tax from continuing operations is as follows:

A ERABRTDREPRAEMEMIEL « AL
FRBEEEMNREEMEMIEL -

D E (IR, /B ERF B E B PAS DA
(&), FIEHRMNT -

For the year For the year

ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

BE-Z-—F HE-Z_TH
t=A=t+t—-8 +=A=1—H

IHEE IHFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AREEFIT

Segment (loss)/profit DE (&), FE (91,895) 1,259,191
Finance costs, net (note 11) e R FRE (isE11) (235,716) (453,579)
Unallocated corporate expenses Fs N B/NGIE=§55 (179,299) (283,873)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRET1SFLAT (B518),/FIE (506,910) 521,739

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

Ly
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BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

7 OTHER INCOME 7 Hiblkzs
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-Z-——F BE_Z_TF
+=ZA=+—8 +=ZA=+—H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Interest income from: FEW=RE -
— Amounts due from joint ventures and — RSN ENEE N T
associates (note 41(h)(ii)) FRIA (M EE 41(n)Gi)) 47,575 101,855
— Amounts due from — EUCGEZE S M = R IE
non-controlling interests 22,787 26,293
— Loan to third parties — RE=FTEX 1,633 1,391
Government grants (a) BT 8 (@) 31,214 49,267
103,209 178,806
(@) Government grants for the year ended 31 December 2021 was mainly tax (@) BEZZ - —F+ZA=+—HIEFENEITHHE

rebate with amount of RMB21,022,000 (2020: RMB26,620,000).

FEARK  £EAARE21,022,000L(ZE=F
& AR¥26,620,0007T) °
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8 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET 8 Hfth(F5#E) RS FHE

For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-ZB-—F HE_T_TF
+=A=+—8 +ZA=+—H
LEFE 1FFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETIT

Gain on re-measurement of existing interest A& &M EEIR AW EBARIEEH

in joint ventures upon conversion to STERAERNANE(EE18)
subsidiaries (note 18) 68,000 -
Gain on partial disposal of a joint venture HOEE—HAEELENFNG 7,000 -
Gain on settlement of guarantee senior notes 4 E R BB 5%7,&)% B FI1F 10,561 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEN B R RMFIE - 193,944

Loss on disposal of property, plant and HERBE - TRAEREHNER
equipment (18) (59)
Net exchange losses I H 518558 (120,113) (193,387)
Late payment fine on land acquisition i e B A 280 R ST R (61,303) -
Others HAth 2,658 8,272
(93,215) 8,774
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BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

9 EXPENSES BY NATURE

BENEH

For the year

For the year

ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-Z-—F HE_T_TF
+=ZA=+—H +=A + H
IEFE IFFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Employee benefit expenses EERANER
Directors’ remuneration (note 15) E=HM(MFE15)
— Fees — e 900 1,041
— Salaries and allowances — ¥ MoEBL 16,525 19,820
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions  — iR /R FIET 2 5% 89 156
— Restricted share award (note 15(a)) — PR &R 1D 228 (M 5E 15(@))
(note 35(b)) (MI5E35(0b)) 2,017 3,621
19,531 04,638
Other staff costs B =
— Wages, salaries and allowances — I& - ¥a KER 477,380 455,039
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions ~ — $RIR1EFFT S X 39,147 17,260
— Other staff benefit — BB TR 11,469 11,563
— Restricted share award (note 35(b)) — PR #I1%E R 1 22 8h (B 5E 35(b)) 5,742 =
— Restricted share award of subsidiaries — MIB 2 &) R PR HIl AR 1 22 B
(note 35(c)) (BI5E35(c)) 37,862 -
571,600 483,862
Cost of property development and sales P b 2= 7 B IR SH A AR
— Mainland China (a) — R EAM (a) 565,060 2,445,045
—Us — %[ 5,343,051 4,372,281
Cost of management services BERRH A
— Mainland China — FEAH 449,085 415,741
—Us — XH - 120
Rental and expense in respect of properties ¥4 &K E B 7,392 18,203
Operating costs in respect of WKEUMERNEESE
investment properties 1,396 7,020
Other taxes HAth 18 79,846 120,526
Advertising and promotion expenses BEREEER 337,898 260,518
Legal and professional fees (b) ERRBEEEM ) 166,454 207,795
Listing expense (note 39) LR (H5E39) 376,827 -
Research and development 2 1,137 52,783
Depreciation of property, plant and TEE - TN RETE (M£20)
equipment (note 20) 41,834 30,372
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 21)  {# A EITE (3£ 21) 20,989 19,491

BN
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9 EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued)

9 RHUHEBES»ENER®

For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

BE-_T-_—% HZE_T-_ZTHF
+=ZBA=+—-8 +=A=+—8
LHEE IHFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREFIT

Auditor’s remuneration 1% 85 Al Z B
— Audit services — BZIRT
— Non-audit services — TR
Provision for decline in the value of properties  #{ESE M BE T LR E
under development and held for sale (f17E23)
(note 23)
Others EHAh
Representing: 15
Cost of sales and services $HE MRS A AR
Administrative expenses T E A
Selling expenses HEEMA
(a) Cost of property development and sales includes decoration materials used (@)
of RMB32,141,000 (2020: RMB31,843,000).
(b) Legal and professional fees include subsidiaries’ audit services including (b)

statutory and non-statutory audit fee to their respective auditors and non-

audit services of RMB28,227,000 (2020: RMB11,123,

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

000).

2,600 2,540

400 2,080
33,596 25,276
156,508 111,153
8,175,204 8,599,444
6,406,403 7,283,701
1,283,155 908,853
485,646 406,890
8,175,204 8,699,444

EHERERHEBREEERAEMIBARE
32,141,0007c(=ZZ=FF : ARH31,843,0007T) °

FEREXERAENBARNBZRY - 21ER
HEGEMZNOETERIEATEZERAARIEE
R AR 28,227,000 L(ZE=_FF : AR
11,123,0007T) ©
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10 FAIR VALUE (LOSSES)/GAINS 10 AAEE(BE) FE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-ZB-—F HE_T_TF
+=A=+—-8 +=AH + H
LEFE LFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Fair value (loss)/gain on investment properties & MME AR EBE(BEE),/

(note 19) F13 (FIzE19) (19,600) 80,790
Fair value gain on warrant liabilities (note 31)  EREBE AR BENE (FzE31) 13,968 =
(5,632) 80,790
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11 FINANCE COSTS, NET 11 BRERFER
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-ZE-—F gz_Z2-%F
+=A=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Financial cost B & A
— Bank borrowings — RITER 257,911 199,107
— Loans from the ultimate controlling — REEKIERAFNER
company (note 41(h)(i)) (B & 41 (n)(ii)) 51,473 51,614
— Senior private notes — BELEZE 253,420 371,648
— EB-5 loans — EB-5E% 2,470 1,820
— Loans from other financial institutions — REEMBERENER 34,185 20,385
— Interest expense on amounts due to — FERT R S SRIER A B E R
related parties (note 41(h)(ii)) (B 5 41 (h) (i) 11,046 55,007
— Loans from non-controlling interests — REJEZEFIMERERAE R 9,373 9,398
— Financing component of contracts with — BREA4NmME D
customers - 156,018
— Lease liabilities —HEBE 4,382 3,579
— Other finance charges — Hith 7% & A 4,403 10,381
628,663 878,957
Less: interest capitalized W BREFE (374,720) (398,350)
253,943 480,607
Finance income B s W e
— Bank interest income — BRITH B (18,227) (27,028)
235,716 453,579
The average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalized for the BE-_ZT-——F+_-_A=+—HItFE X
fLIERERABFHFENEL F£6.32% (T =

year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately 6.32% per

annum (2020: 6.37%).

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

T 6.37%) ©

=
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12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

12 FISHER

For the year
ended
31 December

For the year
ended
31 December

2021 2020
BE-ZE-—F gz_Z2-%F
+=ZA=+—-8B +=-—A=+—H
IHEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT ARETTT
Current income tax BNERFT1SAY
— Hong Kong profit tax (a) — HEFEF (9
Tax expense for the year FEHIBER - -
— Mainland China enterprise income tax (b)  — 1Bl At % 5% (b)
Tax expense for the year FEHIBER 111,654 125,153
— US profit tax (c) — EEFIBF (o)
Tax expense for the year FEHIBER 108,607 19,367
220,261 144,520
Mainland China land appreciation tax (b) R R A 3+ H R B F (D) 54,237 349,936
Deferred income tax (note 33) EIEFTIS TR (FI5E33) (85,217) (6,308)
189,281 489,148

Hong Kong profit tax has been provided at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China are subject to enterprise income tax at the rate of 25% (2020: 25%)
except for one subsidiary which is located in western areas of Mainland
China engaged in encouraged industries and is subject to a preferential tax
rate of 15% in accordance with relevant regulations.

Land appreciation tax in Mainland China is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures including cost
of land use rights and all property development expenditures. The tax is
incurred upon transfer of property ownership.

@ EANEHIIUNEENEBSELNEERABEIER
L16.5% (ZE-TF : 16.5%) EHBE -

by HEZT-——F+-A=1+-—HLFE ~£EH
AR B A B B A R B 1K 25% (Z T =T 4 : 25%) K
MEHZEEMSHR - E—BuR R EEBLEER
B E eV M B 2 A IR AN - EAR R AR B AR 4R
15% HYE BB BT -

B P 3 3 (B T DA S R ) E PSSR S AT 4
A (BRELERERMAEYERER)NL
HoIE(EIZ T T 30% 2 60% K R AT RN o 1342
ERNMEMEREBREL
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12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(©

In accordance with US tax law, the statutory tax rate for federal and state
tax purposes was 25.78% (2020: 26.51%).

Under the Law of Mainland China on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and implementation regulations of the EIT Law, a withholding tax at 10% is
imposed for dividends distributed by a Mainland China-resident enterprise to
its immediate holding company outside Mainland China for earnings
generated beginning 1 January 2008. A lower 5% withholding tax rate may
be applied when the immediate holding company is established in Hong
Kong according to the tax treaty arrangement between Mainland China and
Hong Kong. The Group controls the dividend policies of subsidiaries in
Mainland China. The directors of the Company confirmed that the remaining
retained earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China as at 31
December 2021 will not be distributed to its immediate holding company in
the foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2021, deferred income tax
liability of RMB496,763,000 (2020: RMB504,181,000) on the remaining
unremitted distributable profit generated by the Group’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China attributable to its immediate holding company with the
amount of RMB4,967,631,000 (2020: RMB5,041,814,000) was not
recognized.

Pursuant to the requirements of the US Department of the Treasury on
Withholding of Tax on Nonresident Aliens and Foreign Entities, a withholding
tax at 30% is imposed for dividends distributed by a US-resident enterprise
to its immediate holding company outside the US. A reduced rate, including
exemption, may apply if there is a tax treaty between the country of
residence and the US. The Group controls the dividend policies of
subsidiaries in the US. The directors of the Company confirmed that the
remaining retained earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries in the US as of 31
December 2021 will not be distributed to its immediate holding company in
the foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2021, deferred income tax
liability of RMB45,515,000 (2020: RMB28,064,000) on the remaining
unremitted distributable profit generated by the Group’s subsidiaries in the
US attributable to its immediate holding company with the amount of
RMB168,950,000 (2020: RMB104,172,000) was not recognized.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group has unused tax losses
RMB162,125,000 (2020: RMB74,273,000) available for offset against future
profits for certain entities in Mainland China which have not been recognized
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses in
Mainland China would expire within five years.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

12 FIEHER#)

()

BEREBRER - B @ BH R INBAEE R =
B25.78% (— T -F4F : 26.51%) °

RIEFEMSEMEHE((LEFAEHE]) REEH
&0 PRERCEM _SENE—F—BRES
F e mE P BRI EEER A RIREMHREA
BN 10% R FEINEL o BAR A BB H AT L /0B Uk 1%
ERH BEEZERARKINES  TIEARK
H) 5% TEINFRBI R - ANEEE 5] R B KB A m 8RS
BR - AARESHEAEEFEMNBEARR-S
——F+ A=+ BB EREHEETERA
BARRDERFEERERAR] - R=T=—F+=
A=+—8 ' AEBIRSAEEFEKE R RE
EMEE RZERA R EML T AR E H A5 BFE
SHEARKA967,631,000L(ZTE-FF : ARK
5,041,814,0007c ) ERBELEFFSH B EBEARK
496,763,0007( = = F F : AR ¥504,181,000
JT) °

RIEEB B B ERCTEHEE RIMEA T RINHERE 2
MEOMEX - EBERGFRAEREBRFINGEE
FERR A R R B B B8 4N 30% TEFNHL - & E (F B 81
EEZEAERKIHE - AIREARER X (BEEH
) o AEEEFIZEKNEARNBREIRE - AAF]
EEHR ASEETEHRNBARTERA R
RAEEEZERARSEREE—ZT=_—F+=A
—t+—BNFHSBBEkRE - R=FE=—F+=4
=+—HB A£EETEENBARIMEEEBRN
HEEEZERQAMFSARE LT 2RFBEARE
168,950,000 7T ( =T = T4 : A R 104,172,000
TC) BEEFT S B B E AR 45,515,000 (= =
& AR¥ 28,064,000 7T ) REHER °

REZBE=Z—F+=ZA=+—8 AEEHFAIHEK
HPEETEBORRFBEORDARBEEEAR
#162,125,000 T ( ZE —ZTF : AR¥ 74,273,000
7T)  HEE A TE R ARRFE R M AR o P B
TIEESIEHR AT AEIE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Taxes on profit assessable elsewhere have been calculated at

the applicable rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which

the Group operates, based on existing legislations, interpretations

and practices in respect thereof.

Reconciliation between (loss)/profit before income tax and

12 FISHER &)

H b it [ R R B A B B IRIR AR BE & 575
PrERDEEBARITERRERAE - WREZX
FRVEERNBRITEN - RERIEPIEL -

BRETISBLAT (B1R), /MR EMS T & RaH iR

income tax expense is as follows: O
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-B-—F HE-Z-ZTF
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETS R AT (E518), /T8 (506,910) 521,739
Mainland China land appreciation tax ] + M1 (B (54,237) (849,936)
(561,147) 171,803
Tax on (loss)/profit before income tax, B BT 15 Ei Al ( Jgﬂ% ) / FERFE - %
calculated at the rate of 25% (2020: 25%) FE25% (ZTZFF : 25%) 5T H (140,287) 42,951
Effect of different tax rates of the Group’s REAM DA R &2 R A EE B
subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions NATEHENTE (2,566) (18,826)
Tax effect of non-taxable income (i) BERRB AT IEZE () 16 (143,355)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses (ii) A HUR A S R T B2 2 (i) 106,286 46,843
Tax effect of unrecognized tax losses RIERT B RIS & 106,542 190,403
Others (i) LA (iif) 65,053 21,196
135,044 139,212
Mainland China land appreciation tax R B A+ b 3 (E R 54,237 349,936
189,281 489,148
[0) Non-taxable income includes mainly share of results of associates and joint (i) BERBWEEZEREEHE R REEDEFH

ventures.

(i) Non-deductible expenses include listing expense of RMB376,827,000 (ii)

(note 9).

(i) Others mainly represent tax effect of realization of unrecognized temporary (iii)
difference in prior periods and derecognition of temporary differences or tax

losses which can not be utilized.

e

#9) -

R HE A X B4 T < A R#376,827,0007T (Ff

HWZIgib“fﬁsﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂFﬂ*ﬁ&‘”%’*%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁzﬁﬁ
REFEHEN AR AHRABENORGZE -
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13 LOSS PER SHARE
(A) BASIC LOSS PER SHARE
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to shareholders of the Company by the

13 BRER
(A BREXER
SREABREDEBERAL FREDY
BRI AR I8 B BT BRI ) AT 49

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during HEtE
the year.
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-Z=-—F BE_ZT_TF
+=ZA=+—8 +ZA=1+—H
LHFE LFFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREBTT
Loss attributable to the shareholders 5B N AR R R KB 1A
of the Company (777,504) (100,572)
Weighted average number of ordinary BT EERE N T IIE
shares in issue (in thousands) (Fh%) 4,590,548 4,631,416
Basic loss per share SRERNEE RMBAR¥T RMBARMT
(expressed in RMB per share) (AR ARET|R) (0.169) (0.022)

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

13 LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)
(B) DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Company has one category of dilutive potential
ordinary shares: restricted share award scheme. The
shares granted under the restricted share award scheme
are assumed to have been transferred to the grantee. The
effects of restricted share award scheme were excluded
from calculation of diluted loss per share as the effects
would have been anti-dilutive during the year ended 31
December 2021.

13 BREE#)

(B) BERFHEER
SRFEEEENBIERERAREY
BEEE T BR T AED BT L RR
METHHEE - AAFE—HAKRE
2B MBI LB - R S E
B) o IR 11 AR 15 B2 B ST BITE TR AR
HBRAERTEBA - STEERKIE
JE518 30 7 60 $E IR 41 M IR 15 S5 B 3 By &7
2 REANEREBE-_E-_—fF+-
A=+—BUHEEARRE

For the year For the year

ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-ZE-—F Bz_Z2-%F
t=A=+—-R +t=ZA=1+—H

LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Loss attributable to the shareholders BEENARN AR EE
of the Company (777,504) (100,572)
Weighted average number of ordinary BET T B A IR &
shares in issue (in thousands) (FR%) 4,590,548 4,631,416
Adjustment for: LTS IERE
— Assumed distribution of shares under ~ — RE&IBIE R I 1E A7) 22 E)
restricted share award scheme T8I IRMED (FRR)
(in thousands) - -
Adjusted weighted average number of BEEEBRBERZERN
ordinary shares for diluted earnings per I 37 AR A S B N S 19 X
share (in thousands) (Fh%) 4,590,548 4,631,416
Diluted loss per share BRWEEBE
(expressed in RMB per share) (AR ARESIR) RMB(0.169) RMB(0.022)
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14 DIVIDEND

14 RKRE

For the year
ended
31 December

For the year
ended
31 December

2021 2020

BE-ZT-—F HEZZT-THF

+=ZBA=+—-8 +=—A=+—8H

IEFE IEFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARETTT
Final dividend for the year ended HE_ZT-_ZTF+-A=+—H
31 December 2020 of RMB cents 2.50 LIEFERER B SR ERD

(2019: RMB cents 7.40) per fully paid share ~ AR¥2509 (ZZT— .4 -

AREET.405) 119,621 351,583

For the year For the year

ended ended

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
BE-Z——F BE_Z_TH
+=A=+-8 +=ZA=+—H
IFFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AREETTT
Proposed no distribution of final dividend out 357 £ 5 B 8 Z 640k 2R HAE 2
of contributed surplus (2020: HK cents 3.00 ZECTF - GREEAR3.0081L
(equivalent to approximately (HHERDARKE2.505))
RMB cents 2.50) per ordinary share) - 119,621
The final dividend relating to the year ended 31 December 2020  E_T_TFF A=+ BLEFENRD

was amounted to RMB119,621,000, of which RMB68,208,000
had been paid by the end of 31 December 2021.

The Board did not propose to make a distribution for the year
ended 31 December 2021. (2020: HK cents 3.00 (equivalent to
approximately RMB cents 2.50) per ordinary share).

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

A% B & AR #119,621,0007T © Efh AR
68,208,000 tER T -—F+_-_A=+—H

ERBNKE o

EERUYTER
=t BHIFEELED

RBE-T- £+ A
/}E —?—?fﬁ lﬁﬁ

ER3.008 L (HHERVARK2507))

= 4



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

15 EEEANRER
A EE=ME

The remuneration of each director is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2021:

EEZNMESHIIWT

BE_Z_—F+_A=1+—BLFE:

Contribution
Salaries, to retirement
allowances Discretionary  and other  Restricted
Fees  and bonus bonuses benefits share award Total
Ii%. BIREER G5
we  ERRBL MERAL  REAET e by
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AREBTR ARETR AR%Tr ARETR ARETR
For the year ended BE-Z--F
31 December 2021 TZA=+-HLEE
Executive directors HTES
Tian Ming sal: - 5,768 - 15 - 5,783
Huang Zheng (i B1E() - 2,003 5,610 37 1,345 8,995
Jiang Chao (g) Ei() - 1,664 1,480 37 672 3,853
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Xu Xiaonian FINE 300 - - - - 300
Chen Tai-yuan BRI 300 - - - - 300
Rui Meng A 300 - - - - 300
Non-executive directors FHTES
Liu Pengpeng (k) 2K - - - - - -
Zhou Yimin () FRE() - - - - - -
Shen Leying () REEL() - - - - - -
900 9,435 7,090 89 2,017 19,531

Landsea Green Properties Co.,
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15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15 EERANER (&)

(Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (A) EEME(#)
Contribution
Salaries, to retirement Restricted
allowances  Discretionary and other share
Fees and bonus bonuses benefits award Total
I%. RIS R
e EEREL BEED  REMEF iR 428 @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
For the year ended B2-E-E%
31 December 2020 +=A=t-HLEE
Executive directors HITEE
Tian Ming sal:] - 4,978 - 75 - 5,053
Xie Yuanjian (f) HERN - 1,034 - 12 = 1246
Zhou Qin Bk - 1,649 - 18 - 1,667
Huang Zheng () &) = 4,023 = 21 2,414 6,458
Jiang Chao (g) %#() - 4,967 - 21 1,207 6,195

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors

Xu Xiaonian NE 300 - - _ _ 300
Lee Kwan Hung (] 290 () 141 - - - - 141
Chen Tai-yuan BT 300 - - _ _ 300
Rui Meng PR 300 - - - - 300
Non-executive directors EHTER

Zhou Yimin () F=R() = - - - - _
Shen Leying (n) S - 2,969 - 9 - 2978

1,041 19,820 = 156 3,621 24,638

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf ﬂ



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

15 EER/ARERS 2
(A ESHE &)

Aggregate emoluments
paid to or receivable by
Aggregate emoluments directors in respect of
paid to or receivable by their other services in
directors in respect of connection with the
their services as directors, management of the affairs

whether of the company or of the company or its

its subsidiary undertaking subsidiary undertaking Total Total
ENFESRESZEW
ENFESHAESTRRES EREBEANRREME L AN
ARBRHEMBRRNESM EBEBENERT

REBRBHMSEE RENH MRS AR e e
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
—B-—fF —E-TF —B-—-F —ETF —B-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBFTT AR¥TT ARBFIT AR®TT ARBFIT
19,531 24,638 - 2,884 19,531 27,522

(B) DIRECTORS’ RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND
TERMINATION BENEFITS

(B) EEHRAKBEFNRAILEREF

(€)

(D)

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits or termination benefits during the year (2020: nil).

CONSIDERATION PROVIDED TO THIRD
PARTIES FOR MAKING AVAILABLE
DIRECTORS’ SERVICES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2020: nil).

INFORMATION ABOUT LOANS, QUASI-
LOANS AND OTHER DEALINGS IN FAVOR OF
DIRECTORS, CONTROLLED BODIES
CORPORATE BY AND CONNECTED ENTITIES
WITH SUCH DIRECTORS

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favor of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such directors
(2020: nil).

(€)

(D)

RAFEE @ HEEECD WEEKKRERE
MEAREANXREEAGMN(ZE=F
FE) -

RRHESREOE=FRHNK
B

HE_E-_—F+-_A=+—HItHF
B ARABESIREEERS A EM
FEAXNREB(ZE_EFE &) -

BEUES HIEZiEREBE
BERAZHEANER  EERRH
i3 5 B E#

MENESE HIWLBMEBETE
ABRBEANER EERAREMZHE
H(ZE_TF &) -
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15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

0

W)

(K)

(L)

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Except for transactions with ultimate controlling shareholder
and its fellow subsidiaries as disclosed in note 41, no
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Group was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year (2020:
Nil).

Resigned on 19 June 2020.

Appointed on 19 June 2020 and resigned on 25 February
2022.

Re-designated from executive directors to non-executive
directors on 20 November 2020. And resigned from non-

executive directors on 25 February 2022.

Mr. Huang Zheng is the chief executive as of 31 December
2021.

Xu Liang was appointed as non-executive director on 25
February 2022.

Appointed on 30 June 2021.

Retired on 30 June 2021.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

15 EER/ARERS #)

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

()

W)

(K)

(L)

EENRS  REISHNERE

B BT 5 41 P i BB B AR AR PR AR AR PR R HL )
ZHBRARETZR I AEEHE
RINEAEBERER  MARAGES
ERSHEREEAESERFERNE
RERBBEENEARS  THEEE
H(ZE_TF &)

R=B=BERATABEE -

R-ZE_ZTFA+HLBEEZRTRN=
T —E-A-+HHEBHE -
RN-ZE-_TF+—HA -+ BHATES
FEBIERTESE AR _ZE_—_F_A
—+ A BEBEEMITES -

BITBUHRE, -

BRER_TE-__F_A-THhBEZE
RIFBITES °

MN-ZE-——FA=1THEEZE-

KRB —FA=+HRE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

16 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
The five highest paid employees during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

16 EEREBEFMATERESREEEN

it B
BE_ T KT _FTF+_A=+—H
IHFE AZRaHHEEWNT :

For the year ended

BZUTHHILEEE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF

t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—H

Director =
Non-director JEE

The emoluments of the remaining three (2020: one) individuals
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as

2 4
3 1
5 5

BE_ZT-_—FR-_ZF_ZFF+_A=+—H
FEE - #TF=2(ZT=-_ZTF : —2)ARA

follows: THFBAT
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—% T
+=ZA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, share EARTE - EE200 - BT -
options, other allowances and benefits H )28 R EWF
in kind 32,164 6,896
Contribution to pension scheme RIREFIET SR - -
Discretionary bonuses FIBTEAL 19,017 3,448
Inducement fee to join or upon joining the RSNk BB AREEER RS
Group - -
Compensation for loss of office: BB #R(E
— contractual payments — BHIR - -
— other payment — H - -
51,181 10,344

=N

Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2021



16 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND 16 IEBReFMALTIRSREEEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS il (=)
(Continued)
The number of above remaining employees whose remuneration fee HENAE N HIAREBE AN i NMEEH B W0
within the following band is as follows: T
Numbers of Numbers of
individuals individuals
2021 2020
A AEL
—E—F —E-TE

Emolument bands (in HK dollar)
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000

HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000
HK$26,000,001 to HK$26,500,000
HK$27,000,001 to HK$27,500,000

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

FHEAAE R (BT)

8,000,001 7T £ 8,500,000 7 7T
11,500,001 &7 £ 12,000,000 7T
26,000,001 /8 7T % 26,500,000 7 7T
27,000,001 7 7L % 27,500,000 7 7T




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

17 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

17 REE QTR

For the year For the year

ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-Z——F BE_Z_TF

+=A=+—-H +=—A=+—H

IFFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT
At 1 January R—A—H 2,141,030 1,858,413
Additions: 120 :
— Additional investments in associates — REE R RIMBEIMNEE 122,152 404,800
Disposals: HE :
— Capital reduction of associates — BERAREIRER (447,704) (64,600)
— Associate becoming joint ventures — BENRKAEERE (fFE18)
(note 18) (398,187) -
— Associate becoming subsidiary — B2 NAIKAHRBQ - (50)
Share of net profit of associates (note 6) FE(REE S N RIF A (Wu£6) 31,482 452,771
Elimination of transactions with associates HIFRBE N AINR S (6,409) (11,812)
Reversal of receivables from associates JE MBS & A R OB R 0] - (5,113)
Dividends from associates REEE D ARRS (178,900) (493,379)
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 1,263,464 2,141,030

None of the Group’s associates has quoted price available.

For the year ended 31 December 2021,

no associate is

considered to be material to the Group individually.

BE_Z_—F+-_A=+—RHLFE A&
EREE A AREAKEBER
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17 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The following table summarizes financial information of the
Group’s associates:

17 REEENTNER &)
TR AEEBRLATMHBER -

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
t=A=t+-8 +=A=1—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually & RIFEE A & A R AR E 42 1E
immaterial associates 1,263,464 2,141,030
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of net ZN£= [ f& (& Rl JE 288 KB = 2 &)
profit of individually immaterial associates 4t 1| 4B 31,482 452,771

(A) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT (A) BREEATNEAERIAEE
LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF ASSOCIATES
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
et —E-THF
+=A=+-8 t-A=t-~
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Commitments R
— Commitment to pay up the — BRIEE ARy
subscription capital - 98,791
(B) UNRECOGNIZED COMMITMENTS TO (B) Wi ERFERRRNARBERE

ACQUIRE ASSOCIATE PARTNERS’
OWNERSHIP INTERESTS

As of 31 December 2021, the Group has commitments to
acquire certain associate partners’ ownership interests in
associates at market price in the future upon fulfilling
predetermined conditions.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

e

NZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H K&£H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

17 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(B)

(€)

AN

UNRECOGNIZED COMMITMENTS TO
ACQUIRE ASSOCIATE PARTNERS’
OWNERSHIP INTERESTS (Continued)

These unrecognized commitments are disclosed below
and were not recognized by the Group due to uncertainties
of one or more particular events in the future which are not
controlled by the Group.

17 REFENTMNER &)

(B)

W S Bt 3 R P 8 Y R R
'@

A ERMERAIEN T XEE - WARBAN
SERER - RER/ANEEEEZEHH—
R ZRAKFFEEMHBRTEERE ©

% of % of
ownership ownership
interest interest

held by committed to

the Group acquire
rEERR g
MBS R AR
B ADL
MMNEABEREBR A A
Hangzhou Langning Investment Co., Ltd.* 30.00% 70.00%
KBRFEERR AR
Chengdu Chenshi Real Estate Co., Ltd. * 25.00% 35.00%

English translations are for identification purpose only.

UNRECOGNIZED SHARE OF NET LOSS OF
ASSOCIATES

The Group applied the equity method in recognizing its
respective shares of net profit or loss of associates. After
the Group’s interests in associates is reduced to zero,
additional shares of losses of associates were not
recognized if Group has not incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates.

(€)

EXBREHBRAR -
AEREEBE QR FER

AEERAERZERSEREBER
BN B EE - NREE R E QA
MEDRETE  HARELEELSE
ESMEERERRBERBNHAE
AN EHERRINEIEH L A REE -

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—EZ-F —E-TEF
t=A=t+-8 +=A=t+—-H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Aggregate unrecognized share of RIEREGE S NG FBERE

net loss of associates

- 13,845
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18 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

18 RAELRNES

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZE HE
—E—F —E-THF
+=B=+—-H +=ZA=+—8H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR¥ETTT
At 1 January n—HA—H 2,405,748 2,329,032
Additions: AN -
— Additional investments in joint ventures — REZEDENFEINEE 103,933 81,360
— Associate becoming joint ventures — BENTKAEEE
(note 17) (FFEE17) 398,187 =
— Subsidiaries becoming joint ventures — B RARIKASE - 37,703
Disposals: HE -
— Capital reduction of joint ventures — BEDEERER (99,950) (57,825)
— Partial disposal of shares of joint ventures  — ZH HE S S DERMD - (1,831)
— Liguidation of a joint venture — —HEELEEBE - (1,044)
Share of net profit of joint ventures FEMhE & 55T E 67,124 242,902
Elimination of transactions with joint ventures — #f$HE1 & Z P ERR 5 (38,167) (63,514)
Reversal of receivables from joint ventures UL A &SRB RE D (6,038) (51,891)
Dividends from joint ventures REEEDPEMRE (290,549) (97,782)
Exchange difference b H = &8 (1,614) (11,362)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—8H 2,538,674 2,405,748

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

18 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 18 REELENER®)

None of the Group’s joint ventures has quoted price available. AREBEEDEWEAFRE -

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no joint venture is BE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIIFE U&
considered to be material to the Group individually. FEREEPENRNEFRBEAX °

The following table summarizes financial information of the TR AERESEPENTIFER

Group’s joint ventures:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
+=BA=+—-8 +=-HB=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Aggregate carrying amount of individually fERIFEERE A EREAE
immaterial joint ventures 2,538,674 2,405,748

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of  AEEE(LERIIEE RS EDE

net profit of individually immaterial fFBE
joint ventures 67,124 242,902
(A) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT (A) BAREELENEERIAREE
LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF JOINT
VENTURES
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-TF
+=ZA=+—H +ZHA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBFIT
Commitments A
— Commitment to pay up the — BN RBE AR AR
subscription capital 403,780 866,287

“ Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2021



18 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
(B) UNRECOGNIZED COMMITMENTS TO

ACQUIRE JOINT VENTURE PARTNERS’
OWNERSHIP INTERESTS
As of 31 December 2021, the Group has commitments to
acquire certain joint venture partners’ ownership interests
in joint ventures at market price in the future upon fulfilling
predetermined conditions.

These unrecognized commitments are disclosed below
and were not recognized by the Group due to uncertainties
of one or more particular events in the future which are not
controlled by the Group.

18 K&

(B)

EhENER @)
BEERBHERRESARERE

=
i

T—-——F+-_HA=+—H8 KA&£g
EEBABEERETHEKGEHEEATE
WEETaEtENE SR HARER -

ZERERAZER T XHE - HARAAR
SEER  RA/NEEEEZESHN—
HRZEARFGESHBATHEERR

% of
% of ownership
ownership interest
interest held committed
by the Group to acquire
AEEFEN EGEWE R
EEEzE L HEEZED
FREAEEERERR AR
Nanjing Langrun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* 50.10% 49.90%
AR R E AR AE
Chengdu Shanggao Investment Co., Limited* 50.00% 50.00%
LEREREHERZEER AR
Shanghai Langju Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* 51.00% 49.00%
PR RAM R EIR B R AT
Chengdu Langyue Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.* 50.00% 50.00%

*

English translations are for identification purpose only.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

18 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(€

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES PLEDGED
AS SECURITY

Certain equity interest in joint ventures held by the Group
are pledged or temporarily registered to financial institutions
for joint ventures’ borrowing arrangements.

18

REELENER B
(C) EEHEAERADN

B EER

AEBFMBETRECERECEMK
ERELToRBE UEETAED

EMEEZHE -

% of
ownership
interest
pledged or
% of temporarily
ownership registered
interest held to financial
by the Group institutions
2E %
ERERT
REBEEH BB
REREZE L BEEEZASL
A bR EIEAABR AT
Chengdu Langyu Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd.* 51.00% 51.00%
ERRERREREGRAT
Beijing Maojia Business Management Co., Ltd.* 50.00% 50.00%
B FTIRAMBEE AR AA
Wuxi Xinkunlangxu Real Estate Co., Ltd. 20.00% 20.00%
EEREEMEREARARA
Chongaing Xingde Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* 29.99% 29.99%
BREEIRLEE HRNDBR AR
Chengdu Haixing Cold Industry Trading Co., Ltd.* 33.33% 33.33%
RERALVE R BR AT
Wuhan Langhong Real Estate Co., Ltd.* 30.00% 30.00%
FEEMBLEFAERAA
Shanghai Jiali Mining Electronics Co., Ltd.* 30.00% 30.00%
PRERRAEE R AR E AR A A
Chengdu Langtao Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* 75.61% 50.61%
RIS EERE AR AR
Mianyang Langxiao Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* 60.00% 60.00%
MINEBIREFRAA
Hangzhou Fengyun Investment Co., Ltd. 50.00% 50.00%
PP S F AR E AR QA
Chengdu Huaming Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 51.00% 51.00%
BMNEREXEEEAFRAR
Guangzhou Jianzhao Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd. 35.00% 35.00%

English translations are for identification purpose only.

XA THIEHR
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18 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
(D) UNRECOGNIZED SHARE OF NET LOSS OF

JOINT VENTURES

The Group applied the equity method in recognizing its
respective shares of net profit or loss of joint ventures. After
the Group’s interests in joint ventures is reduced to zero,
additional shares of losses of joint ventures were not

18 NEB P ENER &)
(D) RERELEELEIER

AEERAERZERSERAES LD

EFFNBRER AKRERAERE

EHHEEREHIRE

recognized if Group has not incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint

ventures.

31 December

AT SERBINEEE

MEDRETE  HARBELEELSR
LERARR
BRREE -

31 December

2021 2020
—EB—fF —E-THF
+=A=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTFIT
Aggregate unrecognized share of net REREGEEDRE
loss of joint ventures FERRE 78,070 199,415
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held certain properties
located in Mainland China. Changes to the carrying amount of
investment properties in the consolidated balance sheet are
summarized as follows:

REMYE

RIB-—F+-A=+—0H KEEHAL
RABE RS T - RireEEREBRD
A MY EREEZ ST

For the year ended
BE+T-A=+—HLEE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

At 1 January Rn—H—H 674,900 852,500
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (a) ¥ 8 T &) 2ZE « TH M &1 (@) 32,200 -
Transfer from properties under development &7 B 2P FE Bt E - 107,810
Fair value (loss)/gain AREE(ER) TG (19,600) 80,790
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHTE AR - (366,200)
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—8 687,500 674,900

For the year ended 31 December 2021, rental income and
operating expense arising from leasing of investment properties
are as follows:

BHE_ZE_—S+_A=1+—HItFE  #HE
KEEYEEENHSWARKEER/IT ¢

For the year ended
BE+-—A=1+—HLEFE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TE
+=A=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Rental income He A

4,067 28,017

Direct operating expense from properties REEEHSBARNYIZER

that generate rental income BEELEER

CEN

1,396 7,020
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group’s rights on investment properties at its carrying

19 REMYE »#)
AEEREE S ENERZEEEES N

amount is analyzed as follows: N
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—F BT
+=A=+—H +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

In Mainland China, held on: FERBEAMREE

Lease of 40-70 years 40ET70OFHIEE 687,500 674,900

(A) In August 2021, the Group commenced the leasing of the A) RZZ_—FNA AEEFRKEENQ
second floor of a commercial building (International REEAM EeNEEEFT(BHEER
Business Park) located in Shanghai, Mainland China, which ) —EOREXBEEBFENAE - E
represents a change in use of the commercial building. CAEEBEEEFHAETYES
Accordingly the Group reclassified the commercial building ;gﬁ SHEEIHEUEE - ReER | B
from properties under development to investment property. ZMENEEDBAEMLMAAEBED A
As at the transfer date, the carrying amount and the fair AR # 30,482,000 7T (Mi5E20) & A R
value of the property is RMB30,482,000 (note 20) and 32,200,0007C - NEEHR HBAKREESERQ
RMB32,200,000 respectively. The difference between the NEBEZENEZEEYEREAGESE2EIK
carrying amount and the fair value at the transfer date was @RI N EMME R -
credited as other comprehensive income in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

(B) Investment properties were valued at 31 December 2021 (B) #E&EMER T -_—F+_-_A=+—H
by an independent professionally qualified valuer, Jones BBV EXSERGEMPEHITLE
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, FEREAERARETHE - (P2
who is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and TEFERZBRAER AR AEB IS
has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the MmEees  WEASHEKREES
valuation of similar properties. ST TIEE AT HR AR o

(C) As at 31 December 2021, investment properties with (C) R=ZE=——F+=—A=+—8" @EE@

carrying amount of RMB101,800,000 (2020: nil) was
pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings (note 32).

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(D) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

Independent valuations of the Group’s investment
properties were performed by an independent and
professionally qualified valuer to determine the fair value of
investment properties as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all of the Group’s
investment properties were within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy as valuations were arrived at by reference to
certain significant unobservable inputs. There were no
transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31
December 2021 by an independent professionally qualified
valuer who holds a recognized relevant professional
qualification and has recent experiences in the locations
and segments of the investment properties being valued.
For all investment properties, their current use equates to
the best use.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the independent valuer
for financial reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation
processes and results were held between the finance
department and the valuer at least once every six months.

At the end of each reporting period, finance department:

° Verifies all major inputs in the independent valuation
report;

° Assesses property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation report;

° Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

19 BEMYE»)

(D)

AREEER
AEEMNKEUMECHBLIEEEE
WG EMETE L EE UEEREN
MER_TE_—FR_F_TF+_H
=t+—H®AREE -

AEESEETEATABRER ARE
BrEH R-E-_—ER_F_FF
T-A=1t—H8 AEEMBEREUY
EHOBAREBEERNEIE - FAFE1
CF2EBHEFEIE AL EES -

AEEA L ERE
AEENREUEMER T _—F+=
A=1T—HABIEXEERMEERME
TfhE - ZEEMAEFRERIIEXE
1% WA ENRE YRR EM
FrBERNAIRHELR - BRMAR
BEMYERHEERRERR -

REE I 5B PT A B KB B L (L E D
BfE1E - DAME VR B 5 FR ¥R o B 5 REFT

&ﬁﬁEﬁit/dlﬂE VEIT-REH
ARt b ERIE R4
M EMAARN S ERE R

s REBUMERSHZHMIESH
2

A

o  HMAMEMERRL-FEMBER
imz‘z

o HFIEMETHR
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(D) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued)

Valuation techniques

In valuing the properties, income approach and discounted
cash flow analysis (“DCF analysis”) were adopted by the
Group. When using income approach, the Group takes into
account the net rental income of the properties derived
from its existing leases and/or achievable in the existing
market with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the leases, which have been then capitalized to
determine the fair value at an appropriate capitalization
rate. DCF analysis involves discounting future cash flow of
the property to its present value by using an appropriate
discount rate with due allowance for the reversionary net
income of the property, which is capitalized with a terminal
capitalization rate. In the course of valuation, the Group
assumed the property is available for lease. With regards to
the existing market conditions, the incomes and expenses,
stabilization period and rental growth for each component
of the property are estimated to reflect the property
performance in the market. Where appropriate, reference
has also been made to the comparable sale transactions
as available in the relevant market.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf
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(D)

[IRBEEERE)

118 75 %

HYERETHER  ARERBRAL
EB2RFHE(RERTRED - K
RBAOER - AEBEEF REREAHELY
PR K,/ SRR BT 5T A BENY
EHEWAFE  YERHENERE
EHSFHEERE Bz ke
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 19 REMYE @)
(D) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) (D) AREEEHK &)
Information about fair value measurements using significant BEREREATERG ABBETY
unobservable inputs (level 3) is as follows: ARBEAE(EIB)MERDT :
Valuation Unobservable Unobservable inputs Relationship of
Description Fair value at technique(s) inputs (probability-weighted average)  unobservable inputs to fair value
REECIN ¢ TUBZEAYE
g MMEE fhERE TIRERAGE (T 1781 ) BARBENER
31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
eSS “30%E
t-A=t-B fZA=1-A ZEC-F 3
(RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(AR®TR)  (ARETRH)
Building Block No. 5 of 148,400 143,200 Termand reversionary  Term yields 450% 4.50%  The higher the term yields, the lower
Landsea Green Center method EflEm® the fair value
Pk ER D EE EBRERA FRhaES M ERGE
Reversionary yields 5.00% 5.00% The higher the reversion yields, the
EEkGE lower the fair value
EShaEs M ERGE
Vacancy rate 10.00% 8.00% The higher the vacancy rate, the
ZEX lower the fair value
ZERYE  MEBEEE
Average daily rental 2.24 2.21 The higher the average daily rental
per square meter per square meter, the higher the
BYHRHARR fair value
SERATREER
MEBEES
Nanjing Huafei Apartment 69,600 68,900 DCF analysis Discounted rate 6.00% 6.00% The higher the discounted rate, the
HRERLE Bamiria RE lower the fair value
TRERR  MBEEE
Vacancy rate 5.00% 5.00% The higher the vacancy rate, the
ZEX lower the fair value
ZERYE  MEBEEE
Average daily rental 3.86 3.82 The higher the average daily rental
per square meter per square meter, the higher the
BYHRHARR fair value

SEHATERERS.
DARELR

Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2021



19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

19 BEMYE )

(D) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) AABHEERZ)
Valuation Unobservable Unobservable inputs Relationship of
Description Fair value at technique(s) inputs (probability-weighted average)  unobservable inputs to fair value
TIEREAHE FIEREAHE
it MEE fhER % FIERBAHE (T8 %) HAABENER
31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
“8--f “%2°%
tZA=t-B fZA=1-H “B--f 2%
(RMB’000) (RMB'000)
(AR®TT)  (AR%TT)
Landsea Neighbour-hood 91,500 117,900 Term and reversionary  Term yields 5.00% 500% The higher the term yields, the lower
Union method FllGE the fair value
HiHes ERRERE FHNRRES  AEELE
Reversionary yields 5.50% 5.50% The higher the reversion yields, the
e lower the fair value
ERYERES  ALEELE
Vacancy rate 12.00% 500% The higher the vacancy rate, the
ZEX lower the fair value
FERHE  MAEEHE
Average dally rental 0.66 1.86  The higher the average daily rental
per square meter per square meter, the higher the
SEHRHIRR fair value
STHRTIRRES
MEEER
Huangxing Building 345,800 344,900 Term and reversionary  Term yields 4.00% 4.00% The higher the term yields, the lower
EAAR method FllGE the fair value
ERRERE FHNRRES  AEELE
Reversionary yields 4.50% 4.50% The higher the reversion yields, the
e lower the fair value:
ERYERES  ALEELE
Vacancy rate 11.00% 15.00% The higher the vacancy rate, the
ZEX lower the fair value
FERMR  NAEELE
Average dally rental 3.08 3.09 The higher the average daily rental
per square meter per square meter, the higher the
SEHRHIRR fair value
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 19 REMYE »#)
(D) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) (D) AREEEHKE)
Valuation Unobservable Unobservable inputs Relationship of
Description Fair value at technique(s) inputs (probability-weighted average)  unobservable inputs to fair value
TUEREAHE TIEREAHE
it MEE fhER % TUBZEAEE (T8 %) HOAEBNBE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
“g--f 23
tzZA=t-B fZA=1-H B 2%

(RMB000) (RMB'000)
(AR®TR) AREFT)

Second floor of Interational 32,200 n/a Termand reversionary  Term yields 4.50% n/a The higher the term yields, the lower
Business Park TEE  method ERlEE TER  thefairvalue
BRERIE ERRERE ERGEES  MEEGE
Reversionary yields 5.00% n/a The higher the reversion yields, the
RElEE TER  lower the fair value
EEUaEES  AMEEEE
Vacancy rate 11.00% n/a  The higher the vacancy rate, the
ZEX TER  lower the fair value
ZERYE  MEBEEE
Average dally rental 3.84 n/a  The higher the average daily rental
per square meter TNEA  per square meter, the higher the
SEHRHARR fair value
STARTIARES
MBS
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20 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

20 TBE IHERE

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total
HEEF KA KB
BF & RIRAERE E FCER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR%®TT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2020 R-E-2F—-A—H
Cost B 202,626 70,412 91,458 3,703 368,199
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (10,871) (62,216) (37,411) (3,459) (113,957)
Net carrying amount RHFE 191,755 8,196 54,047 244 254,242
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZ_—_FE_F&
+TZR=1+—HLEFE
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B A A - - 248 = 248
Additions bl 4,020 796 20,086 1,255 26,157
Depreciation e (8,850) (4,238) (17,090) (922) (31,100)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEBA A (1,915) - (30) - (1,945)
Disposals & = = (1,045) = (1,045)
Exchange difference PE R - (50) 5,386 = 5,336
Closing net carrying amount FREMmEE 185,010 4,704 61,602 577 251,893
At 31 December 2020 R-E-E2F+-A=+—H
Cost %N 204,731 71,158 116,103 4,958 396,950
Accumulated depreciation ZEHNE (19,721) (66,454) (54,501) (4,381) (145,057)
Net carrying amount BEEFE 185,010 4,704 61,602 577 251,893
Year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—ZT—-——%F
+-A=+-HLEE
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40) UgB& B2 & (FfizE40) - - 50 - 50
Additions A0 - 3,004 19,664 - 22,668
Depreciation neE (8,920) (976) (31,866) (72) (41,834)
Disposals & = = (369) = (369)
Transfer to investment properties BB ER AW (FizE19)

(note 19) (30,482) - - - (30,482)
Exchange difference b 5 =58 - (52) (831) 1 (882)
Closing net carrying amount FREHFE 145,608 6,680 48,250 506 201,044
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—f+=-A=1+-—H
Cost AR 174,249 74,110 134,617 4,959 387,935
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (28,641) (67,430) (86,367) (4,453) (186,891)
Net carrying amount RHEFE 145,608 6,680 48,250 506 201,044
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

20 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

21

(Continued)

(@ As at 31 December 2021, property, plant and equipment

HE_T-_—F+=

A=+—HItFE

with carrying amount of RMB143,996,000 (2020:
RMB176,571,000) was pledged as collateral for the

Group’s borrowings (note 32).

LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a

lessee.

(A) AMOUNTS RECOGNIZED IN THE BALANCE

SHEET

@ RZE-_—F+ZAH=
i (fH7E32) ©
21 HE

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to

leases:

20 F*HE- - IRESE®

+—H - REE

A ANR#143,996,000 (= F T 4F ¢
AR#176,571,00070) R EE « T
LB EEEIBIEA RSB IS A RA K

A ERBEEBAREERARANEER

B o
o

(A REERBRBRNEHE

BEABERBIIATEHEESRNEHE

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-THF
+=HB=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T

Right-of-use assets FREEE
— Office properties — WA 88,962 53,848
— Furniture, fixtures and office equipment — 1R « £ B M AR E 123 405
89,085 54,253

Lease liabilities HEEE

Current pinEd) 37,555 19,519
Non-current IERE 56,417 38,354
93,972 57,873
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21 LEASES (Continued) 21
(B) AMOUNTS RECOGNIZED IN THE STATEMENT

OF PROFIT OR LOSS

HE @)
(B) REZRERNESE

The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts BRXRANMTHAEEBEAN S
relating to leases:
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-Z-—F HE_T_TF
+=B=+—-H +=ZA=+—8H
LEFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR¥ETTT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEENITEER
assets
— Office properties — WA 20,713 19,046
— Furniture, fixtures and office equipment — (X1 « £ & Lt A& G 276 445
20,989 19,491
Interest expense HEEM 4,382 3,579

During the year ended 31 December 2021, cash payments
for the interest portion of the lease liability amounted to
RMB4,382,000 (2020: RMB3,579,000) and was included
in the interest paid of operating activities in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, while the principal element of
lease payment was included in financing activities.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

22 GOODWILL 22 HE
Goodwill
(5ES
RMB’000
AREETTT
At 1 January 2020 R=-2B-F%-H—H
Cost BN 37,078
Accumulated amortization RErEH _
Net carrying amount REVFE 37,078
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-_ZF5+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FYHREFE 37,078
Acquisition of subsidiaries W RSB A A 106,013
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMBAR (7,994)
Closing net carrying amount FAREEFE 135,097
At 31 December 2021 R-B-BF+=-A=+—8H
Cost [D#%N 135,097
Accumulated amortization 2t -
Net carrying amount REVFE 135,097
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE-_—F+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FYHREFE 135,097
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40) U BE BB A =] (B 5E 40) 24,333
Exchange difference PE W =R (3,502)
Closing net carrying amount FRRMFE 155,928
At 31 December 2021 R=-B-—-%+=-A=+—8H
Cost [D#%N 155,928
Accumulated amortization 2T -
Net carrying amount BREFE 155,928

SEN
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22 GOODWILL (continued)

22 BEEE)

(@  Goodwill was allocated to the following CGU: () MHEEOREUTNBRSEASN:

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—F T TF
t=A=+-8 +t-A=1-H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT

Arizona: TR SARIN -

— Pinnacle West Homes Holding Corp. — Pinnacle West Homes

(“PWH”) Holding Corp. ([PWH ) 33,886 34,667
— Garrett Walker Homes (‘GWH”) — Garrett Walker Homes ([GWH J) 98,121 100,430
132,007 135,097

Florida: 1R 78 B3N -
— Vintage Estate Homes (“Vintage”) — Vintage Estate Homes ([ Vintage |) 23,921 -
Total HEt 155,928 135,097

As at 31 December 2021, management performed

impairment testing on goodwill based on cash flow

forecasts. With reference to the recoverable amount

assessed as at 31 December 2021, the directors of the

Company determined that there was no provision for

impairment of goodwill for the year ended 2021. The

WZE-_—F+-HA=+—H BEE
RERSREE NS HEETRENR
R B2ER-_ZBE-_—F+-_A=+—8
FEMATRESE  ARRESREE
EE - —FEEWENERER
He TR ESNEEAFNENRSE

following table sets out the key assumptions for the CGU ABMNTRMR
that have significant goodwill allocated to them:
Arizona Florida
SR FISRBRM HEBEEM
2021 —E-—F
Long term growth rate (%) RHERIE R 3R (%) 3% 3%
Pre-tax discount rate (%) FRATHTIR 2R (%) 12% 12%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

22 GOODWILL (continued)

(@  Goodwill was allocated to the following CGU: (Continued) (a)

Management has determined the values assigned to each
of the above key assumptions as follows:

Assumption

R

22 BHEB)
HEBESBEUTHSEL SR (8)

ERERTIITABEE LASEETERR
M E -

Approach used to determining values

BESEMALE

Long-term growth rate

RIEEE

Pre-tax discount rates

BB IR R

The recoverable amount of the Arizona CGU is estimated
to exceed the carrying amount of the CGU at 31 December
2021 by RMB1,130,787,000. The recoverable amount of
the Florida CGU is estimated to exceed the carrying
amount of the CGU at 31 December 2021 by

RMB156,493,000.

The directors of the Company have considered and
assessed reasonably possible changes for other key
assumptions and have not identified any instances that
could cause the carrying amount of the Arizona CGU and
Florida CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

This is the weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the budget period. The rates are consistent with forecasts included in industry

reports.
Lt AR EETEAAE R @ REMMET L RE - GG REETEREF
TR —Bk -

Reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments and the countries in
which they operate.
[ AR AERE 7 B0 R LA & PR B R eV e E B

fEET A RBMNESEED B AT
ElefEEl —T-—F+=-_A=+—H
WMIREEABNEREEENARE
1,130,787,0007C © fl 5T #h 7 RE MRS
EESBEMNMAIKEBEEELE T = —
F+-_RA=T—HMRESEABNER
B4 AR ¥ 156,493,000 7T °

ARBEFCERBLAMGEEMERZRR
AR e s WAEREMMAIES
HEMNEBMNRASEEDEMRHESR
ENReEEDEMNREEBLEA
Yol e Eff
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23 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 23 FEHEWE
Analysis of properties held for sale is as follows: FEHEMENDITOT -

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—¥=—%  "B-TF
+=A=t—-B +=A=+—H
RME’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETTT

Properties held for sale: FHESHEWE ¢
— Mainland China — AEAH 540,207 1,213,666
—uUs —xm - _
540,207 1,213,666
Less: provision for decline in the value of W SRS EEE T REE
properties held for sale (60,781) (27,185)
479,426 1,186,481
Movements of properties held for sale are as follows: FEHEMENEFHNT -

For the year ended
BE+-A=+—HLEFE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
t=A=+—-8 +t=ZA=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TFR ARETTT

As at 1 January nw—HA—H 1,213,666 1,195,705
Transfer from properties under development 8% (& 5326 1 ¥ 3£ (i3 25)

(note 25) 5,234,652 6,755,085
Addition as results of acquisition of subsidiaries F Y BE It B A B MR E - 71,895
Cost of property development and sales B KSR A (B EE9)

(note 9) (5,908,111) (6,809,019)
As at 31 December nNt+=—_A=+—H 540,207 1,213,666




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

23 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (Continued) 23 BEHEWHE &)

All of the properties held for sale are within normal operating
cycle and hence included under current assets. The amounts of
properties held for sale expected to be recovered after more than
one year is RMB7,333,000 (2020: RMB26,322,000).

Movements of provision for decline in the value of properties held
for sale are as follows:

FTERIEHENEIRERCLBHNEE -
A ERENEE - TEEIB N BB —FRIKER
HEHEMERBEAARK7,333,000(=F
—=4F : AR¥26,322,0007T) °

FHEHEMXEETHREBESHWT

For the year ended

BE+-A=1+—HLHFE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
t=A=+-8 +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

As at 1 January n—H—H

Provision during the year F NS

Recycled to cost of sales during the year F R E U HE A
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognized no
impairment reversal (2020: RMB594,000) on properties held for
sale (note 9).

As at 31 December 2021, no properties held for sale (2020: nil)
were mortgaged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings (note
32).

27,185 27,779
33,596 25,276

- (25,870)
60,781 27,185

HE-_TZ-—F+-_A=1+—HIFEE K&
B ERSEHE M ERRBAERE (22
=& AR¥504,0007T) (FizE9) »

RIBZ—F+-A=+—H  SEERHE
HEME (ZT_ZFF : B)FRAKENGE
FRE) AR a8 (HEE32) ©
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24 INVENTORIES

24

iz

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

—EZ—fF —E-TE

t=A=t+—-8 +=A=1—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREETTT

Decoration materials 2L B A 32,320 51,565

The cost of inventories included in cost of property development
and sales amounted to RMB32,141,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB31,843,000) (note 9).

25 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

25

BE-_ZT-—F+-_A=1+—HIEFE 5t A
EHERELREEXNANETEAA
ARBIR2AM 00T (ZZT_ZFF: ARK
31,843,000t ) (FizE9) °

EE-GIEIES

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—B-—F —TTF
+=B=+—-H8 +=ZA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Properties under development located in: PR
— Mainland China — FRE A 5,648,120 515,650
— Us — X 5,753,990 4,642,850
11,402,110 5,158,500
Less: provision for decline in the value of W RERYEEE T SREE
properties under development - -
11,402,110 5,158,500
Amount comprises: RIEBIE
— Land payments — TR 5,886,042 2,792,749
Leasehold land, Mainland China AR (R it A S 3,325,628 463,911
Freehold land, US EB R AZEREL M 2,560,414 2,328,838
— Development expenditures and — BRSSO R B IR
improvements 4,882,206 2,073,910
— Finance cost capitalized — FBEXRL 633,862 291,841
11,402,110 5,158,500

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

25 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 25 BAEHPYE®)

(Continued)

Movements of properties under development are as follows: FEER YR BN -
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE HE
—E-—F —T-TF
t=A=t+-8 +=A=1—H
1234 IR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETTT
As at 1 January w—HA—H 5,158,500 6,590,927
Additions N 7,465,855 5,272,010
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40) UGB R B A 7] (B sE 40) 4,131,939 822,834
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKN B AR - (374,156)
Transfer to investment properties (note 19) SRR EYE (MIFE19) - (107,810)
Transfer to properties held for sale (note 23) B E 4 /ESSE W2 (FisE 23) (5,234,651) (6,755,085)
Exchange difference b H ZRE (119,532) (290,220)
As at 31 December Nt+=—_A=+—H 11,402,110 5,158,500

All of the properties under development are within normal
operating cycle and hence included under current assets. The
amount of properties under development expected to be
completed after more than one year is RMB9,960,200,000 (2020:
RMB4,247,636,000). The remaining balance is expected to be
completed within one year.

As at 31 December 2021, properties under development
with carrying amount of RMB9,250,325,000 (2020:
RMB4,419,430,000) were mortgaged as collateral for the
Group’s bank borrowings (note 32).

As at 31 December 2021, properties under development with
carrying amount of RMB937,633,000 (2020: nil) were mortgaged
as collateral for the Group’s loans from other financial institutions.
(note 32)

RN

FIERBRYELREBKLRABAFE - W
PIVEREBNEE - BEIBNBR—FRETINH
) H R A AR 9,960,200,000 7T (= F
—TF  ARM4,247,636,0007T) © 8258 ATE
B —F R HIFRIA o

RZE-_—F+-A=+—H8 REEAAR
#9,250,325,0007t( —E T F: AR
4,419,430,000 7T ) KRR M IRIBIEA RS
B R1T AR @ (FsE32) -

RZZ-_—F+_A=+—0 EEEAAR
¥ 937,633,000 L (ZE=FF : ) M EF
MERBIERASE B E M mEBERE
e (fRE32) o
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26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The Group hold the following financial instruments as at the

respective balance sheet date as follows:

26 &%

TEZINEMTA

REERATEREERFE N IRIEA -

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
t=A=t+t-8 +=A=1—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M E AR¥T ARETFIT
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BREEK AT EZ ERMEE
Trade receivables FEU AR R 27 426,889 683,985
Amounts due from related parties JE s Ba S 5 5K IE 27 2,654,603 4,254,660
Amounts due from non-controlling JE U PR ) 1 A 2
interests 27 813,617 667,967
Other receivables H At E UK 27 520,637 628,772
Deposits for purchase of land Wi - i & 27 401,521 206,921
Restricted cash and cash and ‘?‘\@ﬁ%‘lfﬁ/f ARIRE K
cash equivalents ReEEY 29 4,221,049 5,253,085
9,038,316 11,695,390
Financial assets at fair value through BAREBEGTAEEN
profit or loss CREE 28 63,747 =
Financial liabilities cRaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HBERAGTEZ AR
Trade and other payables* FEATBR SR N E b R~ 30 30 8,302,228 10,668,825
Borrowings B= 32 8,489,619 6,553,592
Lease liabilities HEaE 21 93,972 57,873
16,885,819 17,280,289
Financial liabilities at fair value through ~ #ZA R BEET ABZEH
profit or loss CHEaE 31 50,103 =
Excluding non-financial liabilities * TeEFemAR

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 26 #®ZoEE%HNEmIE )

(Continued)
The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the AEBAZEHeM T ENSERBAKES
financial instruments is disclosed in note 3. The maximum WE o  MEARATNEERR LR A ElE
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the e EEMNREE -
carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.
27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 27 BWERFREMEKR  BAARKE
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS ®e
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—fF —TE-TF
+=B=+—-H +=ZA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETTT
Included in non-current assets: FTAFERBNEE ¢
Amounts due from related parties (note 41(2)) &Y BEHsE )5 5IR (B EE 41(a)) 398,810 1,034,406
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(b)(ii)) A AR (P RE 3.1 (o) (i) (170,584) (129,421)
228,226 904,985
Other receivables A W R
— Deposits for building construction — BARES 50,000 50,000
— Lendings to third parties — RE=ZHEE - 16,090
— Deposits for property maintenance (d) — MIFEMEEZ S () 5,580 5,579
55,580 71,669
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(b)(ii)) B EEER A (BT EE 3.1(b)i) (3,116) (a,777)
52,464 69,892
280,690 974,877
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27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

27 FWERFREMEKRTE - AARK
BE )

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—B-—-F —T-TF
+=ZA=+—8 +ZA=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Included in current assets: FTARBIEE :
Trade receivables (a) FEUW R K (a)
— Related parties (note 41(c)) — BB (M5t 41(0) 180,176 294,508
— Third parties —£= 501,539 564,237
681,715 858,745
Less: provision for bad debt W EEREE
— Related parties (note 3.1(b)(i) — BB (=L 3.1(0)() (26,397) (16,255)
— Third parties (note 3.1(b)(i)) — F =75 (K= 3.1(0)(i)) (228,429) (158,505)
(254,826) (174,760)
426,889 683,985
Prepayments SELRE
— Prepayments for purchase of land — BB TR TR A 542,500 -
— Prepaid value added tax (“VAT”) and — TR ER ([EER]) &
other surcharges (b) E MM 02 (o) 104,090 56,742
— Prepaid taxes (b) — FARHITE () 92,789 61,823
— Other prepayments — HAMFEMR 164,495 80,247
903,874 198,812
Amounts due from related parties (note 41(a))  F& Uk BARE 75 718 (BTt 41(a)) 2,722,671 3,542,100
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(b)(ii)) B AR (P RE 3.1(0)(i)) (296,294) (192,425)
2,426,377 3,349,675
Amounts due from non-controlling interests (c) & W FE e & 4 #E 25 28 (o) 847,518 674,714
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(b)(ii)) B AR S (BT EE 3.1(b)(i) (33,901) (6,747)
813,617 667,967
Deposits for purchase of land BE THNES 405,577 209,011
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(b)(ii)) B AR S (BT EE 3.1(b)i) (4,056) (2,090)
401,521 206,921

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 27 BUWERRREMERR  BERR

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

BRE )

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
+=ZA=+—8 +ZHA=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Other receivables oA e Wk
— Lendings to third parties — ME=FEE 332,746 242 448
— Deposits for land bidding — THEHRIES 42,000 -
— Escrow Receivable — EWGEEE 31,246 75,806
— Deposits in housing fund — FERAERES 8,860 11,535
— Deposits for building construction — BAREZES 3,377 3,538
— Deposits for apartments rental — REfHeZE 3,350 2,368
— Consideration Receivables — R E - 171,500
— Others — Hith 60,818 57,618
482,397 564,813
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(b)(ii)) W AR (P RE 3.1(o)(i)) (14,224) (5,933)
468,173 558,880
5,440,451 5,666,240
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27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)
(A) TRADE RECEIVABLES

27 FWERFREMEKRTE - AARK
BE )
(A) FEWBRRK

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—B-—-F ZETF
+=A=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETTT

Trade receivables from property 5 3 72E ) 25 % 8 65 FE W AR K
development and sales 255,482 237,993

Trade receivables from B 12 AR S FE W AR X

management services 426,233 620,752
681,715 858,745
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(b)(i)) &l : ZEEREAE (FiFE£3.1(b)() (254,826) (174,760)
426,889 683,985

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 27 EWRFREMEKRR  BAIRK
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued) B’E#)
(A) TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) (A) FEWEEER (&)
The aging analysis of the current trade receivables based 15 75 R B B HA Ay B EA FE AR SR BR R
on the invoice date is as follows: Moo

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
+=BA=+—-8 +=-HA=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Related parties B2k
— Less than one year — DR—1F 64,556 115,212
— One to two years — —EWF 26,750 83,025
— Two to three years — ME=F 34,627 79,489
— Three to four years — ZEOF 46,258 16,782
— Four to five years —HERF 7,985 =
180,176 294,508
Third parties F=h
— Less than one year — bR—F 48,379 92,294
— One to two years — —EWF 38,246 392,449
— Two to three years — ME=F 336,896 41,149
— Three to four years — =ZENF 39,822 38,345
— Four to five years — EHF 38,196 =
501,539 564,237
681,715 858,745
The credit terms granted to customers of purchasing BETEFPEEMENEEHR BN T30
properties are generally ranging from 30 days to 60 days, HZ60H @ MAKEREFREEER
while for the customers to whom the Group provides % REREEIHEEFARETER
management services, decoration services and sales land, WEEBRNA—F -
the credit terms are around one year.
Information about the impairment of trade receivables and EBEBWERRERASEEFEERBRD
the Group’s exposure to credit risk can be found in note BRFE2HEMESAD)) °

3.1(0)).
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27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

(B)

(€)

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China which develop
properties for sale are subject to prepayment of VAT at the
rate of 3% on advance collected from customers. Such
prepayments are recorded as “prepayments — prepaid
VAT and other surcharges”.

These subsidiaries are also subject to prepayments of EIT
and land appreciation tax on expected profit margin and
land appreciation tax based on advance collected from
customers together. Such prepayments are recorded as
“prepayments — prepaid tax”.

In December 2018, #k/NBAE EH R AR (Suzhou
Langkun Real Estate Co., Ltd.) (“Suzhou Langkun”), an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with its owners, pursuant to
which Suzhou Langkun agreed to extend the loan term
from 31 December 2019 to 31 December 2022. The loan
is unsecured, repayable within four years, and Suzhou
Langkun shall charge an annual interest rate of 4.35% per
annum on the actual amounts of drawdown. As at 31
December 2021, the outstanding amounts due from the
non-controlling shareholders of Suzhou Langkun amounted
to RMB604,190,000.

The remaining amounts are interest-free and repayable on
demand.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

27 FWERFREMEKRTE - AARK
BE )

(B)

(€)

AEERBHEMENTEMNMBRRA
FUER R P Y A TRIE AN 3% HOIRETH © %
ERBEARS MR — BNEERRK
HAHpnE ] -

ZEMBARMARBRAMNBREMEE
PEB kL EER - MRERKER
MFRIRTEB L IR ER - RFBARA
fRm TN — RAHE] -

R=ZZ—N\F+=A AREHEIEE
BB A mEMBAME XA R AR ([ %
MERS ) EEHB AGT L MR hE - B
IEHMBAHEESERRHR=Z—N
F+_A=Z+—HERE-_T_-_—F
+TZA=+—H -EXRAEER AR
—FANEE - MR BEHEREE4.35% )
FHERBETDNERSETE - R=
T-_—F+-A=1+—8 " EKEIMNH
HIEERRREHREERBEARE
604,190,000 7T °

BRTIHRARE AR ERRER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 27 EWERFREMERR - AARK
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (continued) B’E#)
(D) Deposits for property maintenance are repayable within 2 (D) ME#HEZRSEBERNFERETMEENE
to 8 years from the end of the year. MEE o
As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of trade and R-ZE-—F+-_A=+—H8  BUREIFIEE
other receivables, prepayments and deposits (netting off MW - FEN R RIES (R EREE) R
provision for bad debt) were denominated in below currencies: B T 5 S sHE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
+=BA=+—-8 +=-HB=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

RMB AR 5,196,774 6,281,941

US$ =TT 516,094 349,077

HK$ BT 8,273 10,099

5,721,141 6,641,117

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the fair value of trade and RZBE_—FR-_F-_FF+_A=+—8H"

other receivables approximate their carrying amounts. FE AR SR R E M FE R B A 7 (B (A B E AR A
& °
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28 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

28 BAREBEEFABENEHEE

(A) CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AT (A) BAAREBEFABENEMEEZ
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS VAR |
The Group classifies 1) debt investments that do not qualify AREEBUATS T ERAXBETTA
for measurement at either amortized cost or fair value BR((#BRAABETTAER]) 1)K
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”); 2) equity SIREEKATESIR AN BEAE

investments that are held for trading or for which the Group
has not elected to recognize FVOCI as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”).

feemPm((BAABEERARMEE
W) WEBIRE : 2) AEEA REE

EREARBEFARLMBEZE RSN

R ZEDRE

Financial assets measured at FVPL included following: BRARBEFABRNSCHEERT

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
=F=—F —ToRF
t=A=+-8 +-A=t-H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFTT
Current assets REEE
Wealth management products BEEEEmM 63,747 -
(B) AMOUNTS RECOGNIZED IN PROFIT OR (B) RIEZEANEE
LOSS
During the year, the following gain was recognized in profit FER - LATHEE AR -
or loss:
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZE HZE
—B-—-F —ECTF
t=A=+—-R tZA=1+—H
LFE IFEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBET T

Fair value gain on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

}r—\-.

.

DAEESARRNSBEE
AR EERE -

N

y - 4



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

28 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 28 BAREBEFABEZEHNERMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) (45)
(C) RISK EXPOSURE AND FAIR VALUE (C) EEAAEBEE
MEASUREMENT
Information about the Group’s exposure to risks associated REBEBIZARBEF ABENER
with FVPL is provided in note 3.2. For information about BRENHF32 - BEARBEMAS
methods and assumptions used in determining fair value, FERBRRER 2 BRI RHES.2

please refer to note 3.2.

29 RESTRICTED CASH AND CASHAND CASH 29 ZREREURBERBFEEEY
EQUIVALENTS

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
+=BA=+—-8 +=-HB=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Restricted cash ZRFIRS
— Restricted for project developments — [RH%lIAEERRE 77,021 28,188
— Pledged for discounted bank — ERERRIRITAH AR
accepted notes 20,000 -
— Pledged for the Group’s bank — EAARE BRI TS RA KT
borrowings (note 32) (Ff17E32) 89,884 70,141
— Others — Hith 2,834 23,078
189,739 121,407
Cash and cash equivalents B RIREEEBY 4,031,310 5,131,678
The carrying amounts of restricted cash and cash and cash RN UARRE KRR EBYREER
equivalents approximate their fair values. HAAEBRS -
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29 RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (continued)
The carrying amounts of restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents were denominated in below currencies:

ZRHARESURAERRESSEY
(#)
ZRHREURR SRR S SENOREER
BAT 5 514 -

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

—E-—F —TE-TE

+=ZA=+—8 +=-A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T ARETIT

RMB AR 1,642,583 3,925,760
uss$ e 2,565,797 1,306,175
HK$ BT 12,669 21,150
4,221,049 5,253,085

Cash and cash equivalents held in Mainland China are subject to
exchange control regulations, which provide for restrictions on
exporting capital out, other than through dividends. The cash
balance included in the consolidated financial statements to
which these restrictions apply is RMB1,642,583,000 (2020:
RMB3,925,479,000).

Included in cash and cash equivalents are cash
balance of US$342,810,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,185,652,000) held by the Company’s listed subsidiary,
Landsea Homes and cash balance of US$51,218,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB326,552,000) held by certain other US
subsidiaries, which relates to the operation of the property
development and sales in the US, and are not available for
general use by the Company. As a result, the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents excluding those held by certain other US
subsidiaries of Landsea Homes which the Company cannot freely
use, amounted to RMB1,519,106,000.

Cash and cash equivalents includes RMB993,410,000 which
was subsequently repaid to the related parties of the Group in
January 2022.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

RPBERHEE 2R KRS EEBMIINEE
HIRBTRE - ERREESE ARG
BIERE) - SRE M BRI ANEAZERH A
B s AR 1,642,583,000L(ZE=F
F: AR#3,925,479,0007T) °

ReERREEEBYRERART LTHBAR
Landsea Homes FT #5 A I8 & 4 ££ 342,810,000
ET(HERHARK2185,652,0007T) K&
THEHERWBRARAMBH ARG & #
51,218,000 % 7t (18 E I 49 A R 5 326,552,000
L) HEXENEHERERIEEEKE
W TEEEARDR—RAR - Bt - AEER
B MR e FEY (FEFELandsea Homes &
TFEHMEBEMBARMSTEARRTEBBE
B#E)AAREA1,519,106,000 7T °

He kB eSBYRREER S -_—_F—A7
BB B R HE 5 M AR ¥ 093,410,000 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

30 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

30 YRR H AR

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
—EB-—-F —TTF
+=B=+—-H +=ZA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Included in non-current liabilities: FTAFEREBIAE ¢
— Amounts due to related parties — JERTRARE 5 708
(note 41(b)) (@) (MzE41(b)) (a) 145,958 1,687,307
— Warranty accrual — [EHREE R 100,046 76,533
— Other payables — HAM eI 5,000 8,022
251,004 1,771,862
Included in current liabilities: FFAREBEE :
— Amounts due to related parties — JET AR 5 5k IE (M9 5E 41 (o))
(note 41(b)) 4,412,922 6,024,107
— Payables for construction materials — AN TR N RIS 8
and services 1,925,063 1,656,954
— Deposits received from rental and — HERTIRERBEE WiEZE
construction services 497,663 454 127
— Interest payable — ENFE 319,376 267,287
— Amounts due to non-controlling — FEASEIEHI M RE R TR (a)
interests (a) 269,187 259,837
— Funding from third parties (b) —REE=FE® D) 252,919 138,854
— VAT and other tax payables — BER R E A E R IE 220,111 247,359
— Dividend payable (note 14) — BERARRE (FiFE14) 204,245 161,222
— Accruals for staff costs — BB TEA 193,923 255,693
— Notes payables — ENZERE 39,520 8,168
— Consideration payables (c) — ENRE (0 4,626 27,676
— Other payables — HAbERTK 225,749 116,887
8,565,304 9,618,171
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30 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

(@)

As of 31 December 2021, amounts due to non-controlling
interests include RMB233,382,000 bearing interest at
4.65% per annum and the remaining amounts are interest-
free.

As of 31 December 2020, amounts due to non-controlling
interests include RMB224,009,000 bearing interest at
4.65% per annum and the remaining amounts are interest-
free.

All amounts due to non-controlling interests are unsecured.

As of 31 December 2021, all funding from third parties are
interest free and unsecured.

As of 31 December 2021, consideration payables are
mainly related to payables for acquisition of investments, of
which RMB4,626,000 was due to the former shareholder
of BERAGAE 2 AR AR (Wuhan Langhong Real Estate
Co., Ltd.).

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of trade and

other payables approximate their fair values.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

30 BERRARHEAMEMARR @)

@ R-ZTE=Z—F+-A=+—8" Eft3*k
R I 1 25 FUOE B FE LA I R 4.65% =t
B AR 233,382,000 © #& a2 E

RE e

R-_E_ZTF+_A=+—H " Eft3
V22 1) 1t R 25 TR B FE DA I R 4.65% 5t
B AR 224,009,0007T © #42 FIEE]

=

PATE P SEHE B MR 22 SR IR /5 SRR o

) RZT=—_—F+-_A=+—8 XBa%F
= HASHABRIEY AR S REKA -

© HM-TE-_—F+-A=+—8  EfR
BEESRNBRENEMK R A
R 4,626,000 TLIE EVERABABE 2B IR

RAMAIIR ©

R-ZE-_—F+-A=
o EN R EEEREE AR EEES -

T—H BARREE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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30 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
As at balance sheet date, the aging analysis of the payables for
construction materials and services based on invoice date is as

follows:

30

FEAS BRI EL A IR A R (42)

&

BRIEHRE DT

31 December

MEER - RIERZAHNEN TEDH &R

31 December

2021 2020

—E-F —E-TE

+=A=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Less than one year PR—F 1,192,113 885,351
One to two years —ZEWE 436,909 497,393
Two to three years ME=F 202,174 153,504
Over three years = 93,867 20,706
1,925,063 1,556,954

As at balance sheet date, the carrying amounts of trade and
other payables were denominated in below currencies:

2

FIEHEHE

—

31 December

PAEE R - A BRRRNE B A5 SR B0 BR TE (B A

31 December

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-THF

+=B=+—-8 +=-HA=+—8

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

RMB AR 7,319,858 10,290,856
uss$ I 1,211,918 892,796
HK$ BIT 284,532 106,381
8,816,308 11,290,033
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31 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

31 BRARBEFARENEHEAE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E_—F+-"A=+—HLEE

Public warrant Private warrant Total
ABRRABRER AERRER z
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARET T ARETTT

At 1 January ®1A1H

Addition through the spin-off and BREREBDIFR
separate listing of US operations B TN

Fair value gain (note 10) A EEWE (BEE10)
Exchange difference EHZERR
At 31 December (note 3.2) R+=ZA=+—R (f&E3.2)

As of 31 December 2021, the Group’s subsidiary, Landsea
Homes had 18,825,000 outstanding warrants, consisting of
15,525,000 public warrants and 3,300,000 private placement
warrants. Each public warrant is exercisable at US$1.15 into one
tenth share of common stock of Landsea Homes. Each private
placement warrant is exercisable at US$11.50 into one share of
common stock of Landsea Homes. The public warrants and
private placement warrants will expire five years after the
completion of the Spin-off and Separate Listing (refer to note 39
for the detailed information) or earlier upon redemption or
liquidation. The warrants are presented on the consolidated
balance sheets as a liability recorded at fair value with
subsequent changes in fair value recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income at each reporting date as a
fair value gain/(loss) on remeasurement of the warrant liability.

The public warrants are valued using market price without
adjustment and the private warrants are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis using a Black-Scholes option pricing model.
The significant unobservable input as of 31 December 2021 was
the volatility rate implied from the public warrants, which are
exchanged on an open market, of 45.5%.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

21,263 44,141 65,404
(5,879) (8,089) (13,968)

(418) (915) (1,333)
14,966 35,137 50,103

HE_TE-_—F+-_A=+—H A&E{B
A 7] Landsea Homes & 18,825,00017 & 17 {#
RARIEE - B 15,525,000 A RBIRAEE K
3,300,0007 TLE R AR HERE - T D RBAME
B AR 11517 LA & Landsea Homes
Toz—REBR - SHALERREE TR
11.50 £ o171 LA#E 1 & Landsea Homes — %
L@ - DERBREELLERREFER D
WRBY EMERERF(EEFBERLHEN
FE39) IR E RSB R E R o RIEEE
HEEERGBREINRBRAABEARNEA
& HEAABEZEIRNSREBHELRES
HWmxERREFN T ERREERENAR
EEKE(&8) -

ARERBREFAERARCHABRNTHARSE
WihE MALASRAREZIEEIRAMESR
— TRTHREEERAREEEA R BER
EHE-ZT-_—F+-_A=+H  EATH
BERGABBATEAAMSE LRXIHNARRK
B S| R 18 45.5% ©

s



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

32

BORROWINGS 32 fEX
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
—E--%+-A=+-H ZTCEETA=1—H
Current Non-current Current Non-current
TRE ¥R e ERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥ETR ARET T ARBT T
Secured v
— Bank borrowings (a) — RITEK@) 1,154,933 2,993,989 720,385 1,376,770
— Loans from other financial — REHfthE BEER
institutions (e) (e 623,700 - - -
Total secured borrowings B HETEE 1,778,633 2,993,989 720,385 1,376,770
Unsecured IR
— Bank borrowings (a) — RITIE (@) 10,000 - 10,000 27,833
— Senior notes 2019 () - E-NEFEBEEE() 932,592 - 4141 1,287,542
— Senior notes 2020 (c) — “E-ZEELEER () 1,117,777 - 62,180 1,271,611
— Loans from the ultimate — REFEER AR
controlling company (b) B () - 917,577 - 917,577
— EB-5 loans and — EB-56E5 X EB-5
contributions from BEANHERK (D)
EB-5 investors (d) - 739,051 - 815,553
— Loans from other financial — REHEMSHEESN
institutions (e) X - - 60,000 -
Total unsecured borrowings EIR RS A5 2,060,369 1,656,628 136,321 4,320,116
Total borrowings EpEE 3,839,002 4,650,617 856,706 5,696,886
Borrowings carry interest ranging from 0.10% to 12.30% (2020: BRIZEMENT010% E12.30% (ZZE=F

0.10% to 10.75%) per annum.

F:010% E10.75%) 5t & °
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32 BORROWINGS (continued) 32 ER@#®)
At end of reporting period, the carrying amounts of borrowings REREHR - EXHEmMENL N EEEHE
were denominated in the following currencies:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

et —E-THF
+=A=+—-8 +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

RMB ARE 1,568,436 1,552,193

us$ e 6,921,183 5,001,399
8,489,619 6,553,592

The Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows as at each REEER  AEBEZER NYREERZS :

balance sheet date:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F =T
t=A=+t—-8 +t=A=t1—H©
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Within one year —F R 3,839,002 856,706
Between one and two years —EMF 111,292 3,000,814
Between two and five years MERSF 3,816,213 1,896,831
Over five years HEMNE 723,112 799,241

8,489,619 6,553,592




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

32 BORROWINGS (continued)

(A) Bank borrowings are secured by:

(B)

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

restricted cash with carrying amount of
RMB89,884,000 (2020: RMB70,141,000) (note 29);

properties under development with carrying amount
of RMB9,250,325,000 (2020: RMB4,419,430,000)
(note 25);

investment properties with carrying amount of
RMB101,800,000 (2020: nil) (note 19);

guarantee provided by the ultimate controlling
company;

equity interest of certain subsidiaries of the Group
(note 44);

property, plant and equipment with carrying amount
of RMB143,996,000 (2020: RMB176,571,000) (note
20).

Bank borrowings carry interest ranging from 1.0% to 8.25%
(2020: 3.61% to 8.60%) per annum.

THE LOANS FROM THE ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING COMPANY

The loan from the ultimate controlling company is
unsecured and carry interest is 5.65% (2020: 5.65%) per
annum.

32 B #E)

(A) SRITEFIATIISIBIELRER

U)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

BRI E A A R #89,884,000 T (=
T _FTF: AR¥70,141,0007T)
KPR HI3R & (B EE29)

BREE A A R #9,250,325,000 7T

T E2E_FF: OARE
4,419,430,0007T ) A 7 35 AR ¥ 2 (B
+25)

BREE A AR 101,800,000 JTH]
WREEME (T -5 : &) (f
319) :

BRI A BTt MR

ANEE B T B A R EY B RE (BT &E
44) ;

BRMEE A A R%143,996,0007T (=

T _FTHF : AR¥176,571,0007T)
B E « TR &% (FIsE20) ©

RITERIRFR RN F1.0%E8.25% (=

T _FTF :361%E8.60%)5H8 °

(B)

RERRERDTNWER

KARKERABNERREER I
BENE565%(=FT_FF :5656%)
AE-I_/%\ °
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32 BORROWINGS (continued)
(C) SENIOR NOTES

Senior notes 2018 issued by the Company were repaid on
25 April 2020. Senior notes 2019 issued by the Company
were listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited on 20 June 2019 and will mature on 20 June 2022,
with interest at 10.50% per annum paid semi-annually in
arrears. Senior notes 2020 issued by the Company were
listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited on 21 January 2020 and will mature on 21 October
2022, with interest at 10.75% per annum paid semi-
annually in arrears. All senior notes are guaranteed by
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

At any time, the Company will be entitled at its option to
redeem the senior notes in whole but not in part, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of
the senior notes redeemed plus the applicable premium as
of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not
including), the redemption date.

At any time and from time to time the Company may
redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the
senior notes with the proceeds from sales of certain kinds
of capital stocks of the issuer at a redemption price of
110.5% of the principal amount of the senior notes
redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but
not including) the redemption date, subject to certain
conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
purchased guaranteed senior notes 2019 with the amount
of US$53,340,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB344,656,000) and guaranteed senior notes 2020 with
the amount of US$30,600,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB197,528,000) through the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

32 &)

(C) BERE

ARRABITHN_ZE—\FEREZER=
TE_TFENMA-—THBEEE AR A
T NFERERZBR_ZT—NF
NAZTERFINEBFRZMERA
AlEm R ZTEZ=ZFA=+H
B H - B FIRE A E10.50% % 7
B RABBRITH _ZE_ZEFELER
RZZEZTF—A =+ —ARFMNEE
HERXGHBERAAI LT AHNRZT
“—E+A-+ BRI BEERE
FEA10.75% ZHHE - FTEBEREY
BAREE TH B R EERER -

AR B A HERE R 2 M 2 B (T JEED
7)) BAERE  BRERASNELRELN
TE100% = NEBZETEHEER A
FSE PR B DA R FERT BRI FLE (20

ARRRAEER M ARAHERTAET
BERANMERRBELELEREAS
HERZ35% @ BEEMFNAERE
EEBAEFE1105% ZMEEETEFE
BO BN RS RANAE(mE) -
ARETIRITERTRR -

HEe—_T-—F+_-_A=+—HI%F
B ARRBBFNERZESFR S
B R AR E $ % 453,340,000 F 7T (48
BN AR 344,656,0007T) I —ZE— N
FHERBEZE KRS /30,600,000
Z ot (HEE R AR 197,528,0007T ) K
“ETFERREBERE
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32 BORROWINGS (continued)
(D) EB-5 LOANS AND CONTRIBUTIONS FROM

(E)

(F)

EB-5 INVESTORS

EB-5 Loans of RMB15,939,000 (2020: RMB16,312,000)
represent loans from third parties and carry interest of
4.00% (2020: 4.00%-6.00%) per annum and are
guaranteed by Landsea Holdings Corporation, an indirect
subsidiary of the Company. The balance is repayable on 29
June 2023 (2020: 29 June 2023).

Contributions from EB-5 investors with the amount of
RMB723,112,000 was accounted for as financial liability.
The Group may, in its sole and absolute discretion, to avoid
repayments to EB-5 investors until 25th anniversary from
the fund establishment day. The financial liability bears
effective interest ranging from 0.10% to 1.00% (2020:
0.10% to 1.00%) per annum.

LOANS FROM OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS

Loans from other financial institutions carry interest from
11.80% to 12.30% (2020: 8.00% to 8.70%) per annum.
The balances are repayable on demand.(2020: 16
November 2021 to 26 December 2021).

Loans from other financial institutions are secured by:

(i) properties under development with carrying amount
of RMB937,6383,000 (2020: Nil) (note 25);

(i) guarantee provided by Nanjing Langming Properties
Group Limited, an indirect subsidiary of the
Company, and Landsea Group;

(i) equity interest of certain subsidiary of the Group (note
44).

As at 31 December 2021, fair value of the senior notes
2019 and senior notes 2020 are RMB799,476,000 and
RMB815,433,000, respectively. Fair values of the remaining
borrowings are not materiality different to the carrying
amounts, since either the interests on those borrowings are
close to current market rates or borrowings are of a short-
term nature.

32 B #E)

(D)

(E)

(F)

EB-5 &8 KR EB-55 8 & A HER

A ARMA15089,000 (ZE=F
F: AR#16,312,0007T) HIEB-5 &
EREBEE=ZFTHWENR  FFH=EE400%
(= & — T £ :4.00%-6.00%) I &
Landsea Holdings Corporation (7% 2 &)
EHBARDIER - BHARZZT==F
NAZTNB(ZE=ZF : ZT=-=F
ANAZTAR)EE-

EB-5#% & A H &R AR 723,112,000
TARIIECRAE - AEEAT 2D
BERATHREERTEBSREAN  HEH
SRS B Ei#ERT SR 25 BEAIE - SREAE
BEREBEFMENT0.10% = 1.00% (=
T_FF :0.10% & 1.00%) 58 °

REEMEHEBHER

RKEEMEREENETIZFEFNENT
11.80% & 12.30% (ZZE=Z 4 : 8.00%
£870%)FH B - BHAKRER(ZE =
TFE - R_E_—F+—A+HEZ
E-—&E+=-H=+A)EES-

KAHEMSBEBHOERATIIEAE
HRHEA

() BREEAARY937,633,0007T(=
TTF | RER Y (MR
25) :

(i) ARAEEENERRE SRS E
EEAR AT MAFEBRTIRED
R

(i)  ANEEETHE R B A (M &
44) o

R—E-_—F+=-_A=+—H ' =%
—NEBAERR S -_TEBLEE
HA R EED R A ARKT799,476,000
TR AR ¥ 815,433,000 7T © & 5KE A
BEEAREEVESAER  RABZ
SHEROF) S EEAITISH EME - sk
fBIREHRE -
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33 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

33 EEFTEB

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is

a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against

current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate

to the same fiscal authority. The net amounts are as follows:

EAERAN BFMITEMNGRARIAEERR
ERBEAGEERE - BREMRSHSRFE—IK

o FEWT

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—¥=-%  "F-%F
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETTT

Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled
after one year

Deferred income tax assets:
— to be recovered within one year
— to be recovered after one year

Deferred income tax assets, net

RN — FREEHPEIEFT S

Bl

ELFBREE :
— R —FAE
— R —F RIS

BEEFSREERR

As at 31 December 2021, deferred income tax assets were offset

against deferred income tax liabilities with the amount of

RMB20,200,000 (2020: RMB73,266,000).

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

186,855 160,761

23,552 31,377
685,491 536,523
709,043 567,900
522,188 407,139

RZBZ—F+_A=+—0 BEREHRE
EEERLEAEH 8 E A K% 20,200,000 7T
—E-FF . AR#E73,266,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

33 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax, net are as follows:

33 EILEFBH (&)

BEEFRSTUFREEMT

For the For the

year ended year ended

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

Bz =
=F=—F —F_FF
+=ZHA=+—-H +ZA=1t—H
IEFE FFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

At 1 January

Credited to profit or loss (note 12)
Charged to other comprehensive income
Disposal of subsidiaries

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40)
Currency translation differences

At 31 December

R—A—H

ERz=ER (HEE12)

7 B i 2 T W e S 8K

HEMH B F]

U R B /8 2 m) (B RE 40)
BRI EZE

R+=-—A=+—8

407,139 338,864
85,217 5,308
(429) =

- 68,915
31,999 =
(1,738) (5,948)
522,188 407,139
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33 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in the deferred income tax liabilities, prior to

offsetting, are as follows:

33 EEMBH (&)
EHEAMETHERaEESHNT

Change in
fair value
of identified
Revaluation of  Differencein  Accelerated  Unrealized Re-  assets upon Unearned
investment  capitalized tax exchange measurement acquisition of interest
properties interests  depreciation gains gain  subsidiaries income Others Total
WENEA RS
RE# 3[4 IR FERI-( RER
WEEfR  NEEE NMERERE  EANE ENHEANE QAEERD 0 ASME At st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR ARBTR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETn  ARMTR  ARETR
At1 January 2020 R=Z-%4-A-H 68,512 56,401 4,981 20,665 16,71 41,704 39,485 16,340 263,829
Charged!(Credited) to profitorloss~ 7EIBES 8/ (14
(note 12) (FzE12) 2,88 (3008) 6,692 (20421) (4,731) (654) 37,887 5905 44,55
Disposal of subsidaries HERBAF ©8915) - - = - = - = (68915)
Curency tansition diferences ~ EEHEZE - (3,654 (632) o - = = (859 (5439
At31 December 2020 RZEZZF
T-A=1-H 2419 49739 10,991 - 11,040 41,050 77,342 21,386 234,027
At1 January 2021 R=F--%-H-H 2479 49739 10991 - 11,040 41,050 71,342 21,386 234,027
Charged/(Credited) to profit or loss EBEYH/ (55)
(note 12) (Fz12) (1,657) (51,281) (4,250) - (4,567) 25,141 16,863 (12,521) (32,272)
Credited to other comprehensive ~— EEM2EREE T
income 429 - - - - - - - 429
Acquistion of subsioiaries (note 40)  WEEKIB /A (Ff3t40) - - - - - (20,258) - 24,003 38%
Currency ranslation differences ~~ EHMEEE - 1,542 (203) - (161) - - (142) 1,03
At31 December 2021 RZB_—F
+-A=t-H 21,251 - 6,538 - 6,312 45933 94,205 32,816 207,085

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

33 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 33 EEFIBH (#)

The movements in the deferred income tax assets, prior to

offsetting, are as follows:

HHEABRLERSHEEZSNT :

Temporary
difference on Temporary
unrealized difference on Provision
profit of recognition of  for bad debt Revaluation of
intercompany revenues and  and accrued investment
transactions Taxlosses  cost of sales expenses properties Others Total
AREREH BRUAR
RERHEN HEBRAN  REREG REH
ERER HEEE ERER ERRE NEER Heh @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET ARBTTL ARBTT ARBT
At 1 January 2020 W=E-TF—-F—-A 116,957 168,450 136,556 178,989 - 1,741 602,693
(Charged)/Credited to profit or loss B35 (X #4),/ £ %

Continuing operations (note 12)  #¥ &8 & %7 (i 12) (56,676) 77,941 (131,025) 159,543 - 77 49,860
Currency tranglation differences ~ E¥HE =5 - (40) - (11,347) - - (11,387)
At 31 December 2020 e

+=A=1-H 60,281 246,351 5,531 327,185 - 1,818 641,166
At 1 January 2021 W=B=-f-f—-H 60,281 246,351 5,531 327,185 - 1,818 641,166
(Charged)/Credited to profit or loss 7E4835 (344) /#%

(note 12) (WizE12) (10,832) 11,490 (6,670) 56,873 1,269 815 52,945
Acaisition of subsidiaries (note 40) I KB A= (it 40) - - 35,834 - - - 35,834
Currency tranglation differences S ihE £ - (199) - (444) - (59) (702)
At 31 December 2021 i

+=A=1+-*H 49,449 257,642 34,695 383,614 1,269 2,574 729,243
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34 SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORIZED SHARES

The Company has authorized shares of 6,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each as at 1 January 2020, 1 January 2021 and 31

34 B
ETE R 7
RARBR_ZT_EF—A—B ZT=—F—
A—BR=ZZE-_—F+=-A=+—HA

December 2021. 6,000,000,000 & & A% 18 0.01 7 7T 8/ TE B
{/\ ®
Issued shares ERTR 7
Nominal Equivalent
Number value nominal value
of ordinary of ordinary of ordinary
shares shares shares
EER
ZERHE EEREE LHEE
’000 HK$’000 RMB’000
T8 FAT AREFTT
Issued and fully paid: BETREAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SR EE0.01/8 T8 L A%
Opening balance as at RZZTZ—F—H—A/
1 January 2021 FOEERR 4,722,307 47,223 38,702
At 31 December 2021 N-TE——4F
+=—A=+—H 4,722,307 47,223 38,702
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35 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME
(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 April 2012, the
current share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. Since the
adoption of the Share Option Scheme, no further options
can be granted under the old scheme.

The Company operates the Share Option Scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and reward to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. The Scheme is effective on 30 April 2012 and
unless otherwise terminated, remains in force for 10 years
from that date.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less than
the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by
the HKEX on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the HKEX for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
grant. The subscription price will be determined by the
board of directors at the time the option is offered to the
participants.

The scheme limit under the Share Option Scheme is
198,660,605 shares, representing 10.0% of the issued
share capital of the Company on 25 April 2012, being the
adoption date of the Share Option Scheme and
approximately 4.21% of the issued share capital of the
Company on 30 June 2021, being the date of the annual
general meeting.

There was no outstanding share option under the Share
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020.

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE
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35 EERETE
(A) RERAEGTE

BERZE——FHA-+HABERTH
RARRRBFAE LiBBNE ARG
R ARAFEMNE TR BRI 8
BRAESTEI]) - BFMBEARERT S BAPK -
PR IR B 5T 85 L Ath AR () BARE o

RRBRIBIAERT S - 5 EER B
HEDAKEEBRINAERZ A
EoERN T —_FMNA=1+AHAE
M MERIEAEMIT XL - BRIEE
ZERE10FHEABK

HITEER D B T T AR R,
NRBETFERATIERHESH
B: () AARBMHREGL B BEEEH
RN E R RERATOKTE - (i)
ARRABBHREZRFE L B BRI A EZ X
REZEMIAELNEARERAT
BT B FI91E ¢ K (i) NABRORIE
HABNEE - EZ/BNASEER
ERMBESEEREE -

BEERE S -8 LR A
198,660,605 - HE R AR AN =T
——FWA=-+A A (ANEREEER
A AR B EITIRZAAI10.0% KA A E R
ZE—FAA=THBEIRRBEFAE
HHY) B B1TRAL 4.21% ©

R—_E-_—F+_A=+—HBER=_ZT=
ZE+-_A=+—H BEBREFEI T
SR AR TR YRR (D B o
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35 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued)
(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 2 July 2014, the Group adopted a share award scheme
(the “Restricted Share Award Scheme”) as an incentive
to recognize the contributions by employees and to give
incentives in order to retain them for the continuing
operation and development of the Group, as well as to
attract suitable personnel for further development of the
Group.

Pursuant to the Restricted Share Award Scheme, existing
shares of the Company will be purchased or new shares
will be subscribed for restricted shares (“Restricted
Shares”) by a trustee appointed by the Company and be
held on trust for the relevant grantees until such shares are
vested with the relevant grantees in accordance with the
rules of the Restricted Share Award Scheme. The
Restricted Shares will be awarded with reference to the
performance, operating and financial targets and other
criteria determined by the Board from time to time.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

35 EEREE(®)
(B) PRI D REEE

RZZT—ME+ A NEB AR
n 52 Eh T &I ([ PR &I AR 43 SE ot &1 1) -
ERRBASZTEEMELNER &
BB EEAAEBMNIFELSE R
BAEEN  UARNERE-—SERR
SliEE AT °

RIRIR B MR D S2B)FT &) - ARBIFER
ENXEABBEARRRBR D XA
FE 37 B0 1 73 BR 1) 1 B £ (T BR 61 4 AR
@) WAEFETAKBE AR AR
B EEABRMDRIER B D ZE
AHEIMBRAIEERAEEARARLE - R
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35 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued)
(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

(Continued)

U

35 EEREE(®)
(B) FRFIMRGIERETE (&)

The movements of shares held for Restricted Share () EFEARBRNDEEFEFENRG
Award Scheme by the trustee are as follows: EEnT
For the year ended For the year ended
Restricted Shares PR %14 Bz 12 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
BE-E-_—-% BEZZ-TF
+ZA=+-HLEE TZA=+—BLEFE
Employee Employee
Number of share trust Number of share trust
shares reserve shares reserve
BER®T EERN
R#EA ErRE RHEE EthE
’000 RMB’000 '000 RMB’000
TR AR%Txn T ARETR
At 1 January ®—H—H 130,618 82,435 96,954 62,151
Acquisition of shares Wk 75,172 33,203 33,664 22,075
Dividends received (a) BEHEE (@) - (2,125) - (1,791)
At 31 December R+ZHA=+—8 205,790 113,513 130,618 82,435

(@)

Dividends of granted Restricted Shares received by the
trustee are payable when these shares are transferred to the
relevant grantees. Other dividends received by the trustee
become part of the trust fund and are treated as a deduction
of employee share trust reserve.

(@  EREARREEHRGIERD RS
RZEROBBERBEARARE
o FFEARMAE MBS EKRBIE
REEHN 5 - LERENRES
R EFERERE -

Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2021



35 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued)
(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2020, 94,600,000 shares of Restricted
Shares, with market price of HK$0.81 per share, were
granted to certain employees of the Group according to the
rules of the Restricted Share Award Scheme adopted on 2
July 2014, among which, 61,600,000 shares (“Gift
Shares”) were granted for free, another 33,000,000 shares
(“Discount Shares”) were granted at a cash consideration
of HK$0.66 per share. Discount Shares were fully vested
as at the grant date and will be transferred to the grantee
at the date of 5 years after grant, Gift Shares can only be
vested while the grantee serves the Group continuously for
5 years since the grant date and Gift Shares will be
transferred to the grantee upon vesting. Share-based
payment expenses at the amount of HK$9,347,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB7,759,000) were
recognized as staff costs and share based compensation
reserve respectively for the year ended 31 December 2021.
As at 31 December 2021, cash consideration at the
amount of HK$6,686,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB6,109,000) received from Discount Shares grantees
were recognized as other reserve. There is no remaining
cash consideration not yet been received.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

35 EEREE(®)
(B) FRFIMRGEERETE (&)

RZBE-ZTE=A=+—8 2BER
—ZT—E+ A~ BERHE R B
HEEAIMASEEE TEERD
94,600,000 A% IR &l 1 i 1 - T B AR
0.81/%8 70 » E & » 61,600,000 % ([ 6% i
B 1) hR B - 54)33,000,000 %
BRr(THERS D DIRESRESR
0.66 B THEL - TERMURFLAHE
HFEE UHRRLEAFEAEET
ARA - BEEOEITREARABRE
HERREE R F AAEBIRERGERE S
eRE MEBEEROGENEEREET
ERAN - BEZZE-_—F+-_A=1+—
BEFE UROAEBRSTRAEX
9,347,000 7T (188 R A R 7,759,000
) BER AR T E R RIRERMGEE -
ATE——F+_A=+—H8  BYIT
B #E % AH IR 21K (& 6,686,000 7T
(A& K AR 6,109,000 70 ) R A H b
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35 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued)
(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME
(Continued)

35 EEREE(®)
(B) FRFIMRGIERETE (&)

Details of the Restricted Shares granted by the Company KRBT R SRR D R BT
are as follows:
Outstanding at Outstanding at
1 January Granted Transferred Forfeited 31 December
2021  during the year  during the year  during the year 2021
R-E=-f% RZB=-%
-A-A t2A=1-8
Name of employees EE#A HATE FRRH FRER ERRR i RATE
Directors £z
Huang Zheng (appointedon & (R=E=%F
19 June 2020) NATBEZE) 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
Jiang Chao (appointed on Bi(h=2=%
19 June 2020) NATBEZE) 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000
30,000,000 - - - 30,000,000
Other employees HitES
In aggregate Febs 64,089,750 - - (1,200,000) 62,889,750
94,089,750 - - (1,200,000) 92,889,750
QOutstanding at Qutstanding at
1 January Granted Transferred Forfeited 31 December
2020 duringtheyear  duringtheyear  during the year 2020
RZZE-ZE RIZEZZE
-A-R +-A=t+-H
Name of employees EELZ AT FRRH FREY FREH AT
Directors B
Huang Zheng (appointedon & (R=Z=ZF
19 June 2020) ~NATHBEZ() - 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
Jiang Chao (appointed on BR(RN-Z-ZF
19 June 2020) ~NATHBEZ() - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
- 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000
Other employees HitES
In aggregate @z 1,289,750 64,600,000 - (1,800,000) 64,089,750
1,289,750 94,600,000 - (1,800,000) 94,089,750
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35 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued)
(C) STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Landsea
Holdings Corporation (‘Landsea Holdings”), a subsidiary
of the Group, created a long-term incentive compensation
program designed to align the interests of Landsea
Holdings, Landsea Homes Incorporated (“LHI”), a
subsidiary of Landsea Holdings, and its executives by
enabling key employees to participate in the company’s
future growth through the issuance of phantom equity
awards. The value of the phantom equity awards was not
based on the shares of comparable public entities or other
equity, but was based on the book value of Landsea
Holdings’ equity. Landsea Holdings measured the value of
phantom equity awards on a quarterly basis using the
intrinsic value method. In connection with the Spin-off and
Separate Listing of Landsea Homes (note 39), all of the
phantom equity awards vested and were either paid out in
cash or were converted to stock of Landsea Holdings and
the program was terminated. The Company granted
179,038 shares of Landsea Homes with a grant date value
of RMB12,316,000 at the time of the Spin-off and Separate
Listing and recognized such expenses in the year ended 31
December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Landsea
Homes adopted the Landsea Homes Corporation 2020
Stock Incentive Plan (“2020 Stock Incentive Plan”) which
provides for the grant of options, stock appreciation rights,
restricted stock units, long term performance share unit
awards and restricted stock, any of which may be
performance-based, as determined by Landsea Homes’
compensation committee. Landsea Homes reserved a total
of 6.0 million shares of its common stock for issuance
under the 2020 Stock Incentive Plan. As of December 31,
2021, approximately 5.1 million shares of common stock
remained available for issuance under the 2020 Stock
Incentive Plan. Landsea Homes granted 886,551 shares of
long-term performance share unit awards and restricted
stock units to certain executives under the 2020 Stock
Incentive Plan. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group recognized RMB25,546,000 expenses in relation
to the 2020 Stock Incentive Plan, of which 118,151 shares
were vested upon satisfaction of above conditions.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

35 EEREE(®)

(€)

M ARz R E R B E
BHE-_ZT-N\F+ZA=+—HLHF
£ - AN B B X 7 Landsea Holdings
Corporation ([ Landsea Holdings |) £l37
—HERAKERMTE  EEBREN
HTHRREE FXEEELEANT
KRR FEE - {1 < Landsea Holdings *
Landsea Holdings #) #J & 72 7] Landsea
Homes Incorporated ([ LHI]) R EITERA
BERNFERE W - T FERRENE
(ERIZE 9N = s A SN/ S =
% 0 M A2 & R Landsea Holdings H9 # 5
/) B M {8 ° Landsea Holdings & £ & f§
RARTEEEETENY FERZBNE
{E » BE & Landsea Homes 7 #f X387 +
M (FIEE39) - FTA & FRE= REIR K
ERE - WAR® X H3 78R Landsea
Holdings ) A 58 » %7t &I 2 & & 1k - B0
DI RIBIL E TR - AR R 179,038
A% Landsea Homes % {7 + 7 #% i H BB
BAR¥K12,316,0007T * WHREEZZ
T+ A=+ FERRZSE
HEJ °

IS -

Corporation — & —

Landsea Homes%;‘TéﬁH Landsea Homes

ZERRUB T E

(ZZ2-2FERERBMAH ) - %18
RERTREEE BREEEE R

ARE BN - ERAR (0 B8 s B2 K PR i 1
BRE - HAE W — BRI A EEAETR -
i Landsea Homesﬁﬁaiﬁﬁﬁ)ﬂé EEEF o
Landsea Homes IR & = Z = T F & 17
BEtERB A 6.0 B BT AARLAHE
7o %§_§:*$+ A —Jr*EI :
BE-_E_TFREHEENELS1

A& KERE HX—H Z% 17 o Landsea
Homes*EHJ%_ T T FRELEEIM

A TITHRA B 886,551 A% & B4 28
ARt AL SR R PR HIIEIRE B AL - BLE
:Z:—i‘?— A=+—HIFE K
SRR T _TFRELETEERA
¥ 25,546,000THE A - HH 118,151
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35 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued)
(C) STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

35 EEREE(®)

(C) MBLARZREHBE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—HLFE

Share based Non-

Number of compensation controlling

shares reserve interest

RGEE  RERMEE  FEESIEES

Stock incentive RMB’000 RMB’000

plan of subsidiaries MEARZRERBE ARET T AREEFTT
Outstanding at 1 January R—A—BREB = =

Granted in connection with AT KRB ETHFED

Listing the Spin-off and

Separate Listing 179,038 - 12,316
Granted under the 2020 R-ZZ_ZTFEREYE

Stock Incentive Plan FTEIE TR 886,551 - 25,546
Transferred to employees #ETES (MizE36)

(note 36) (229,104) (8,653) 8,653
Outstanding at 31 December R+ A=+—BAEE 836,485 (8,6593) 46,515
Vested and exercisable at R —F

31 December 2021 +=-—HA=+—H

BB RAITTE 68,085
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36 RESERVES 36 f#E

Revaluation
gain on the
property
transferring
from property,
plant and
Share based Capital equipment to
Merger Share  Translation compensation ~ Employee  redemption Statutory Other  Contributed  investment Retained
resernve premium reserve reseve  share trust reserve reserve reserve surplus  properties eamings Total
AFEE-
IRR
REEHE
ki s &% RERMEN
AffEE  ROEE  FERE  BMEE  BBER 0 WERE  %ERE  HfBE  REBR DREMAE ERiE it
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
it ARMTL  ARBTT  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR

At January 2021 H-B=--F-§ {3305 %6 (1753 s @45 BI85 46191 400 604036 1588 4103476 494784

Loss for the year EEEE - - - - - - - - - - (e (g0
Other comprehensive income: K2
Bxchange diferencearisng fom ~ AEIE AR

franslation of foreign operations ERER - - 107,810 - - - - - - - - 107810
Revaluation gan onthe property B EE » THRRG

transfering from property, EYERERNEN

plant and equipment to nEafie

investment properties - - - - - - - - - 1289 - 1289

Total comprehensive income ~ EE2FNRHHE
forthe year - - 0810 - - - - - - 1280 (TS0 (668405)

Movement of employes share BERNEREFLEY

trust account B0 - - - - (31,078) - - - - - - (31,078
Employee share based EERERH

compensation B - - - 7,759 - - - 6,109 - - - 13,868
Translerthe shares toemployees ~ RABRERHNEEEARG

related fo share based

compensation o) - - - (8653) - - - - - - - 8,653)
Dividend declared to orcinary AERRREE RS

shareholder 14 - - - - - - - - (119,621) - - (119,621)
The Spin-off and Separate PEAERARRBL LT

Listing of US Operations 39 - - - - - - - (245,090) - - - (245,090
Appropriaion of tatutory resenve. AREEREE ] - - - - - - 31,376 - - - (31,376) -
At 31 December 2021 R-Ez-E+ZR=1-R (83,36) 24,366 (67,514) 10,692 (113513) 2,185 493,367 (197,580 484415 17,187 3,294,596 3,885,805
At1 January 2020 R-B-%5-5-H 83,39) 824,366 (304,719) 125 (62,151) 23,185 339,738 24426 165,619 15,898 4,326,301 5,259,996

Profit for the year FERA = = = = = - - - - - (10057 (100572
Other comprehensive income: ~ Ef2ENE :
Bxchange diferencearsng o~ BB EREE

ranglation of foreign operations EfZE = - 129,391 - - - - - - - - 129,391

Total comprehensive income EERENEEE

for the year - - 129,391 - - - - - - - (100572) 28819
Movement of employee: EERbERERES

share trust account B0 - - - - (20,284) - - - - - - (20,284)
Employee share based EERERH

compensafion B0 - - - 10,861 - - - 13,806 - - - 24,666
Divdend declared to ordnary HERRREERRS

shareholder 14 - - - - - - - - (351,583) - - (351,583)
Transfer o share premium to B EEERZES RS

contriouted surplus - (800,000 - - - - - - 800,000 - - -
Transaction wihnon-contoling.~ E3EAHIEERNR 5

interest - - - - - - - 3,170 - - - 3110
Approprigion of tatutory esenve. AREEREE ] - - - - - - 122053 - - = (122253) -
At 31 December 2020 R-B-FE+-A=t-B 83,39) 24,366 (175,324) 11,586 (82,435) 2318 461991 41401 604,036 15,898 4103476 4944784
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36 RESERVES (Continued)

@)

In accordance with the Laws of Mainland China on
Enterprises Operated Exclusively with Foreign Capital and
the Articles of Association of the Group’s subsidiaries
incorporated in Mainland China, an appropriation to
statutory reserves has to be made prior to profit distribution
to the owners. The appropriation to statutory reserve of
these foreign investment enterprises shall be no less than
10% of the net profit until the accumulated appropriation
exceeds 50% of the registered capital.

In connection with the phantom equity awards stated in
note 35(c), the Company granted 179,038 shares of
Landsea Homes, such shares were vested upon the grant
date and transferred to employees, thus the non-controlling
interests were increased by the amount of RMB5,605,000
with share based compensation reserve decreased by the
same amount representing these employees’ proportionate
shares of the net assets of Landsea Homes as at the date
of Transfer. In addition, as stated in note 35(c), Landsea
Homes adopted the 2020 Stock Incentive Plan, and the
Group recognized RMB25,546,000 expenses, of which
50,066 shares were vested upon satisfaction of certain
conditions and transferred to employees, thus the non-
controlling interests were increased by the amount of
RMB3,048,000 with share based compensation reserve
decreased by the same amount representing these
employees’ proportionate shares of the net assets of
Landsea Homes.

36 e

@)

BREREAMIINGBECEERAEE
A R B A b 7 17 B S B B BB A B A 48 45
ERMA - mEE AELFESIRAT -
BHETRHEELOR - ZENEDLE
PREZEZEFHBHSETEORER A
10% ' EERF D EBRAZMELRD
50% &1k °

BT EES5(C) Tl s T B M = -
7N A 7] #% 179,038 % Landsea Homes
B ZEROARBELARBEREET
B8 BUtIEZEmEa=gmARE
5,605,000 7T - ifi I 42 = B i 48 AR A 48
AeE BERZEEIREEARN
Lanesea Homes Y5 & & & FT{f L1 ©
It N - 58 40 B 5E35(c) BT #tt 0 Landsea
Homes iR ZZ T FRE MBI E -
REBRER AR 25,546,000 & -
H 150,066 R E TIEREEKED S
BRERTES @ FULIFTE bR
AR # 3,048,000 7T » 1M A% 42 3 B =% 4
AR 2E  HERZFEIR
Landsea Homes #),5 & EE HR FR L EL A -
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37 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 37 FEHIMHER
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Bz H=
—B-—fF —ETF
+=B=+—-H +=ZA=+—8H
IFFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREEFTT
At 1 January n—HA—H 511,653 805,533
Profit for the year FEFHE 81,313 133,163
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40) Us BE BT B8 A B (Bd5E 40) 50,000 =
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR - (103,709)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W B 1 ) M R 2 - (146,027)
Contributions from non-controlling BESHREL ETH
interests in connection with the ISR RS E
Spin-off and Separate Listing 1,018,002 =
Contribution from other non-controlling B IR H ST E
interests - 1,360
Transfer the shares to employees of MM BARESEERND
subsidiaries (note 36(b)) (Pt £ 36(b)) 46,515 =
Distribution to non-controlling interests ) FE4E ) 1 A 2 20 I (24,839) (176,294)
Exchange differences M H ZERE (25,889) (2,373)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8” 1,656,755 511,653
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38 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HItEE

38 REREEH

(A) CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (A) REFMBES
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated B BT &5 Al A B & & P15 IR £ 1 H BR
from operations is as follows: N
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZ HE
—B-—fF —ETF
+=B=+—-H +=ZA=+—8H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETTT
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRFTSFLAT (E518),/ F1E (506,910) 521,739
Adjustments for: B
Interest income (note 7) B Es (PHFET) (71,995) (129,539
Depreciation of property, TEE « TRERENITE

plant and equipment (note 20) (Fff3E20) 41,834 31,100
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (note 21) {# FA# & ZE= g2 (fisE21) 20,989 19,491
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment BEMEMEDRALEE(EIR),/

properties (note 19) A5 (HEE19) 19,600 (80,790)
Fair value gain on financial liabilities BRAREBEFAESNESRAE

at fair value through profit or loss AR EBENE (13,968) -
Loss on the spin-off and separate EREK DT MEYL ETAEE

listing of US operations (note 9) (f15E9) 376,827 =
Interest expense (note 11) MEEM(HE11) 253,943 480,607
Gains on partial disposals of shares of o HEEELERMDHFIE

joint venture (note 8) (FfzES) (7,000) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARG - (193,944)
Share of net profit of associates (note 17)  FE{LEE & A TIEFE (FHzE17) (31,482) (452,771)
Elimination of transactions with associates BB« N G1¥ 4532 5 (FiizE17)

(note 17) 6,409 11,812
Share of net profit of joint ventures (note 18) FE(E & &2 FF)E (MizE18) (67,124) (242,902)
Elimination of transactions with HE BRI S (FE18)

joint ventures (note 18) 38,167 63,514
Employee share based compensation 1E B AR RE RN (Pf17E35)

(note 35) 7,759 10,861
Employee share based compensation of [ /&2 &l{& & M E R B

subsidiaries (note 36 (b)) (P £ 36(b)) 25,546 =
Loss on disposal of property, HEREE - TRAERENER

plant and equipment (note 8) (fIzE8) 18 55

L
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38 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

38 RaREER ®)

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

(A) CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (A REFBEEE)
(Continued)
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZE HE
—B-—fF —EFTF
+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—8H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Gain on re-measurement of existing REBENBARRETT=N
interest in a joint venture upon BETFEIBEEENNG
conversion to a subsidiary (note 8) (FfzES) (68,000) -
Gain on settlement of guarantee HENEERREEEEFGE (HES)
senior notes (note 8) (10,561) -
Provision for decline in the value of FE R Y3 RIS TESHE W3
properties under development and held BE T B (51 23)
for sale (note 23) 33,596 (594)
Provision for impairment of financial assets 4 &t & & (B 5 275,028 381,184
Operating profit before movements in BrigiE B & BB AR L L F)E
working capital 322,676 419,823
Decrease in properties held for sale HEEEER D 673,459 53,934
(Increase)/decrease in properties RS R 3 (38 0n) R
under development (1,856,483) 1,881,425
Decrease in inventories BER 19,245 3,759
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other FEWBR R N E b R UM =~ FEST R
receivables, prepayments and deposits Rize R,/ (3gm) 855,598 (170,793)
Increase in contract assets SABEZN (150,777) (26,998)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and FEAS BR 3N N B Ath FE A~ 20
other payables CRiA), /0 (1,727,436) 3,382,276
Decrease in contract liabilities AHaERD (264,041) (2,957,402)
Decrease in advanced proceeds received A A Y EY &9 78 1~ Fr15 5018
from lessees Vo (2,688) (2,599)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash ZREIFRS (3%hn) R/ (28,589) 123,202
Net cash generated from operations R FrEH £ T8 (2,159,036) 2,706,627

L



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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38 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(B) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

38 HEREER (&)
(B) MEEBFIELABNYIER

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing

activities are those for which cash flows were, or future

cash flow will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated

statements of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.

TR AKEERMEZDMELRE
MER(ERERERIFRSEE) B -
BRERPMELENABRARERNE
ERERERDVERRELTHAFRS
MENRAEREIXRKRSRE -

Amounts
due to Amounts
non- due to
Lease controlling related
Borrowings liabilities interest parties Total
FER3EESEl  ENEEA
ET HERE WESIE MR Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR%ETT AR%®T
As at 1 January 2020 R-ZE-TF—H—H 6,961,140 62,380 215,611 5,165,010 12,404,141
Cash flows ReERE 132,286 (23,893) 34,828 2,642,6750 2,785,896
Acquisition — leases Wi — g - 23,459 - - 23,459
Cancellation — leases i - HE - (4,766) - = (4,766)
Increase from acquisition of W BB KB 1 Al
subsidiaries #0 18,300 - - - 18,300
Decrease from acquisition of Wil B A R
subsidiaries s - = = (266,838) (266,838)
Increase from disposal of HEHRBLAEMm
subsidiaries 0 = - - 273,406 273,406
Decrease from disposal of HEHRBARM
subsidiaries W (289,000) - - (32,847) (321,847)
Deduction of dividend received BB A I YRS,
from associate companies - - - (125,000) (125,000)
Exchange difference arising MEBINESELER
from translation of foreign EHER
operations (345,566) (2,886) - - (348,452)
Accrual of interest FEHA B 76,432 3,579 9,398 55,008 144,417
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-ZTF
+-B=1+—-H 6,553,592 57,873 259,837 7,711,414 14,582,716
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38 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(B) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

38 BEREER#®

(B) MEEBFIELAENYHKRE)

Amounts
due to Amounts
non- due to
Lease  controlling related
Borrowings liabilities interest parties Total
EREEE  ECEER
By HEEE MEENE ME @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR AR%T=x
As at 1 January 2021 R-E-—F—H—H 6,553,592 57,873 259,837 7,711,414 14,582,716
Cash flows BeRE 1,413,037 (23,638)™ (23" (1,891,890  (502,514)
Acquisition — leases Wi - 88 - 58,847 - - 58,847
Cancellation — leases iHiE — e - (1,949) - - (1,949)
Increase from acquisition of WeEEM B AR
subsidiaries (note 40) 12 (K13E40) 631,288 - - - 631,288
Decrease from acquisition of =30 =NGTNi]
subsidiaries W - - - (625,683) (625,683)
Deduction of dividend received  HBREE %A A1 B YRS,
from associate companies - - - (279,730) (279,730)
Deduction of collection of eI ENN =N
investment of associates and BETENRE
joint ventures - - - (360,690) (360,690)
Gain on settlement of quarantee &N EERELZED
senior notes (note 8) F15 (PrzE8) (10,561) - - - (10,561)
Exchange difference arising ME BN FBEEM
from translation of foreign BEHER
operations (127,731) (1,545) - - (129,276)
Accrual of interest FEHA B 29,994 4,384 9,373 5,459 49,210
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-—F
+-RA=+—H 8,489,619 93,972 269,187 4,558,880 13,411,658

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf
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38 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(B) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

(i) The cash flows include financing cash outflow of
RMB189,572,000 (2020: cash outflow of
RMB666,216,000) and operating cash outflow of
RMB1,702,318,000 (2020: RMB3,308,891,000).

(i)~ The cash flows include financing cash outflow of Nil
(2020: Nil) and operating cash inflow of RMB23,000
(2020: cash inflow of RMB34,828,000).

(iiy ~ During the year ended 31 December 2021, cash
payments for the interest portion of the lease liability
amounted to RMB4,384,000 (2020: RMB3,579,000)
and was included in the interest paid of operating
activities in the consolidated statement of cash flows,
while the principal element of lease payment
amounted RMB19,254,000 (2020: RMB20,314,000)
to was included in financing activities.

39 SPIN-OFF AND SEPARATE LISTING OF US

OPERATIONS

On 31 August 2020 (US time), Landsea Holdings and LHI, both
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company in the US at
that time entered into a conditional agreement with LF Capital
Acquisition Corp. (“LF Capital”), a special purpose acquisition
company in the US with its Class A common stock, public
warrants and units listed on National Association of Securities
Dealers Automated Quotations capital market (“Nasdaq”) and
LFCA Merger Sub, Inc. (“Merger Sub”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of LF Capital in relation to a merger transaction by
which Merger Sub merges with and into LHI with LHI being the
surviving corporation and LF Capital being the surviving company
of such merger (the “Merger”). The Merger constituted a spin-off
of the Company’s US operations and effected the separate listing
of Landsea Homes on Nasdaqg (the “Spin-off and Separate
Listing”). The Company obtained approval from HKEX on 18
December 2020 and the Spin-off and Separate Listing was
consummated and completed on 7 January 2021 upon the
approval of the proposed ordinary resolution by the independent
shareholders of the Company. The name of LF Capital was
changed to Landsea Homes.

h - N

38 HEREER (&)
(B) MEETHFIELEBHNYERE)

() BernEpEmERSTHARE
189,572,000 L (ZE-FF : ;RE
i A R 666,216,000 7T ) K 4%
204 m AR 1,702,318,000
T(ZEZZF: AR K
3,308,891,0007T) °

iy RerseFREReREZ(Z
ToTF E)RKEERERAA
R¥23000T(ZE-_ZF: B4
MAANRE34,828,0007T) °

iy BEZZT-_—F+-HA=+—HL
FE HEABNEBINRSM
RANRE 4384000 (ZZE=-F
% :3,5679,0007T) * RERAIRE7
EXRFTALEEFHNENAFE - M
HENMRO TSRS ARK
19,254,000 c(ZE —FF : AR
#20,314,0007T) AlJs T ARV EVEED ©

39 XEIEHIHFRBEL LD

RZZE_ZEFNA=+—H(ZEFKMH)
Landsea Holdings & LHI (39 & & BF AN A Rl 5
MEEZE2EWNB A A ) HLF Capital
Acquisition Corp ([LF Capital | - 3= B 45 7k B
WUEE AR - EABTERK ARRREER
BUREREZEELFR FEHE ([HFER])
BE)FREZEATSE L) & LFCA Merger Sub,
Inc (.[Merger Sub] ' LF Capital {9 2 & [ B A
A BLE PR SET ML B EHiE - & Merger
Sub & Bt ALHI - MLHIR & HENATFER S
ifi LF Capital 7B A& ([&6f]) - & OB
RARIEREBHDT - WEIR LHIRHHETZE
By R ((2FRBIYER]) - KAARER
—E-EF+ T N\BESE B RATAHL
o MOFEEBL EMER=_E-_—F— At
ARARRBYREHEEZZNT BRAREER
5% X ° LF Capital #) % 18 B & F /& Landsea
Homes Corporation °
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39 SPIN-OFF AND SEPARATE LISTING OF US

OPERATIONS (continued)

Upon the consummation of the Spin-off and Separate Listing of
Landsea Homes, the Company, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Landsea Holdings, received consideration in the form
of 32,557,303 Class A common stock valued at US$10.56 per
share in LF Capital (renamed “Landsea Homes”) and Landsea
Homes has become an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company with the approximate share percentage of 72%.

The Spin-off and Separate Listing of Landsea Homes does not
constitute a business combination under HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations and was accounted for in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as a continuation of the
financial statements of LHI, together with a deemed issue of
shares for the acquisition of LF Capital. This deemed issue of
shares by LHI will be accounted for as an equity-settled share-
based payment transaction whereby LHI will be receiving the net
assets of LF Capital, generally cash, together with the listing
status of LF Capital. As the listing status does not qualify for
recognition as an asset, and therefore was expensed in profit or
loss as listing expense with the amount of RMB376,827,000,
representing the Group’s proportionate share of the difference
between the fair value of the shares that are deemed to issue by
LHI in order to acquire approximately 72.0% ownership of LF
Capital and the fair value of the net assets of LF Capital, as at the
completion date of the Spin-off and Separate Listing of LHI. The
original shareholders of LF Capital became the non-controlling
interest of the Group. The Group recognized an increase in total
non-controlling interests of RMB1,018,002,000 representing the
non-controlling interest’ proportionate share of the net assets of
the enlarged group including LHI and LF Capital, and the
difference between the recognized non-controlling interests and
the fair value of net assets of LF Capital plus listing expenses with
the amount of RMB245,090,000 were charged to reserve as at
the completion date of the Spin-off and Separate Listing.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

39 XEXHKIHFRBYL L (&)

Landsea Homes W0 4 S &L L 7EAki% « AR
A R)EBE 2 E M B A F] Landsea Holdings 4
EXLF Capital ( 5 % 4 [Landsea Homes]) &Y
32,557,303 AR EBIRHNE - FIREER
10.563<Jt * Landsea Homes E ik & AN 2 7] £
MEFE2ENBLR ROBSLEH A
72.0% °

Landsea Homes B2 #f &8 32 E TN NEAE
B IR EEREIRERSHRENESE
B MERAEBLREMBRER ARALH
B 53R M AE - & R LIS LF Capital 13 &
BTG o LHI R R BEITR O AR AR
DHEENRGEIARS - LHIBEELF Capital
RFEE  —MReEREIRE MLF Capital /) £
AL o AR ETTHAL RS B ERM RGN -
E A ETE A AR 376,827,000 LN 18
Y FEE R AL E R Landsea Homes B 5>
W B £z 5eRk B 8 LHI AU EE LF Capital
H72.0% EEEMRABEITROMAA BEHR
LF Capital FEEM AR BEZEHZEEHR AT
15l o LF Capital 9 R B 5B 4 78 52 B /9 3E
TR R o RS BRI S S AR KR
AR #1,018,002,000 7T  +BE 7 FE 2 H 4
ez PEE RS B (B4 LHI & LF Capital) #9)5
BEFPAMELE] - MEERIERG SR
Capita /FEEMNAREBEESMETERARE
245,090,000 7T 2 M ZFER D IF R B £
SERK B BAR B 0B o
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40 ACAQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

40 WEEHELQF

(A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (A) EKE6t
On 8 February 2021, the Group acquired 70% equity R-ZTE-—F-AN\B  KNEEIRAKRE
interest of Xi’an Jiapeng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. AR ¥ 42,000,000 T BB AL == H =
(a joint venture of the Group before the combination, “Xi’an HEAR AR (ANEBREHAINEG &1
Jiapeng”) at a total consideration of RMB42,000,000. After * [AXEME] A70%8 % - W% -
the acquisition, Xi'an Jiapeng became a wholly owned AL REK AN EENEENE AR
subsidiary of the Group.
On 15 December 2021, the Group acquired 10% equity NR-E-—F+—-—HA+AH ' A&EFZEE
interest of Chengdu Desun Rongda Property Co., Ltd. (a JEE AR % 30,000,000 70 2 K B0 7E 45
joint venture of the Group before the combination, EBEEARAR(REBRAHEINAE
“Chengdu Desun’) through additional capital contribution T R ERERRS ) BEE R EBE R 10% A% HE ©
of RMB30,000,000 to Chengdu Desun. After the WeiE 1% - ERER R ANEE M IER A M
acquisition, Chengdu Desun became a non-wholly owned B E] e
subsidiary of the Group.
On 4 May 2021, the Group acquired 100% equity interest R-ZTE-—FHAWE  AEEILERE
of Vintage at a total consideration of US$54,600,000 54,600000% 7m( # & N A R &
(equivalent to approximately RMB354,097,000). After the 354,097,0007T ) B Vintage #1009 fi% 12 °
acquisition, Vintage became a wholly owned subsidiary of WBE © Vintage K BAEB RN 2 EM B A
the Group. A o
Xi’an Chengdu

Jiapeng Desun Vintage Total

ARENE PR ER Vintage st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Purchase consideration BEAE ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETET
— Cash consideration — BHERKE 42,000 30,000 354,097 426,097
— Re-measurement of interests — BEEtE & L2

in joint ventures (i) 25 (i) 18,000 50,000 = 68,000

Total consideration HBR(E 60,000 80,000 354,097 494,097
()  As at the acquisition date, the carrying amounts of () REEBH ZEAFNEGELE

interests in joint ventures of these company was nil.

The re-measurement of interests in joint ventures
resulted in gain of RMB68,000,000 (note 8).

EENEBEAS - EF:tE4%
PEEZERRZIARE
68,000,000 7T (Ff5E8) °
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40 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40 WEEKIB AR (&)
(A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) (A) ¥EKE6tE)
The assets and liabilities recognized as a result of the RAWEmMERANEENAGBNAT :
acquisition are as follows:

Xi’an Chengdu
Jiapeng Desun Vintage Total
i3 R EBERE Vintage F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETET

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEEY 79,972 86,986 65,263 232,221
Trade and other receivables,  FEULBR FX & E Ath R UL FR ~

prepayments and deposits BNRRERS 754,594 745,550 35,705 1,535,849
Properties under development  FZEH#)5 526,898 2,997,376 607,665 4,131,939
Property, plant and equipment TBIE « T & & HE = 50 = 50
Deferred tax assets IR B = 35,834 = 35,834
Trade and other payables FE A BR R % L Ath FE AT 3R (394,092) (221,429) (170,571) (786,092)
Borrowings B (180,000)  (242,990)  (208,298)  (631,288)
Contract liabilities aHAE (723,537) (3,271,377) - (3,994,914)
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBBE (3,835) = = (3,839)

Net identifiable assets acquired &2 72 B EFTHEER

at fair value ARREEE 60,000 130,000 329,764 519,764
Goodwill (EES = = 24,333 24,333
Less: non-controlling interests 3 : FEIE &l RERS - (50,000) - (50,000)
Total acquired net assets BAREBEBEED

at fair value HEERE 60,000 80,000 354,097 494,097

Cash outflow on acquisiton: MRS :

Total consideration settled IR E X TR AHRME
by cash (42,000) (30,000) (354,097) (426,097)
Cash acquired in the Lt B P M B BT /BB 2 R A
subsidiary acquired R 79,972 86,986 65,263 232,221
Cash inflow/(outflow) on WENRESRA(Rt)
acquisition 37,972 56,986 (288,834)  (193,876)
The goodwill is attributable to the workforce and the high profitability @ HERNUBEROLES NIRRT
of the acquired business. It is expected to be deductible for tax 7 o FEEF AR 15 FE I INFIE o

purposes over 15 years.



40 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continueqd)

The acquired business contributed revenues of
RMB798,875,000 and profit of RMB18,179,000 to the
Group for the period from their respective date of
acquisition to 31 December 2021.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2021,
consolidated pro-forma revenue for the year ended 31
December 2021 would have been RMB353,214,000 higher
and loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 would have
RMB24,320,000 higher. These amounts have been
calculated using the subsidiaries’ results and adjusting
them for:

o differences in the accounting policies between the
Group and the subsidiaries’, and

o additional cost of sales that would have been
charged assuming the fair value adjustments to
properties under development had applied from 1
January 2020, together with the consequential tax
effects.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

40 WEEMEB D E @)
(A) %(B&0tw)

BElERREE - —F+_ A4
=+—RHIEHE REEBEAREE
2 B B B A A R # 798,875,000 7T &
FE AR 18,179,000 7T °

W BEBR S —_—F—A—HBE%4% -
HE_ZT-_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE
WiEeEEZERAHFENARE
353,214,0007C * MEAZ T —F+=
A=+—RHIEFENEBRIPEMARE
24,320,0007C ° ZE S FEHL AT HE
BEWBAREENESD -

e  AKENMBARZENSFTEHE
Z82 K

s RRU-_ZF-_ZFF—A—BEHHF
BRYERETANEERAE A
BEIR DNV RESMEE A - LA KRR
MR & -
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41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 41

TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party balances and transactions
elsewhere disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, the

Group had the following significant balances and transactions:

(A) AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

Eﬁﬂ%ﬁmnﬁ%&g&%

BRim & BT R EL A &R 0 P I BB 1O B R 07 4E 8R
KRR BN -

AEBBANTEANERR RS

(A) FEUREAHE TS FRIE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F T TF
+=ZA=+—8 +ZH=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Included in non-current assets (note 27): st AFERBIEE (HiFE27)
— Joint ventures (i — AERE() 398,810 1,034,406
Included in current assets (note 27): STARBEE (HFE27) -
— Associates () — B R E() 445,044 549,689
— Joint ventures (i - AM/Jt\%(ii) 2,276,669 2,991,900
— Ultimate controlling company and S NIV
its fellow subsidiaries CEREMEAT 958 511
2,722,671 3,542,100
0} As of 31 December 2021, amounts due from associates are interest- [0} BE_Z-—F+-_A=+—H EKE=ZL

free.

As of 31 December 2020, amounts due from associates are interest-

free.

(i)

As of 31 December 2021, non-current amounts due from joint
ventures are interest-free. Current amounts due from joint ventures
include RMB449,524,000 bearing interest from 5.00% to 10.00%
per annum and the remaining amounts are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2020, non-current amounts due from joint
ventures include RMB118,459,000 bearing interest ranging from
5.00% to 12.00% per annum. Current amounts due from joint
ventures include RMB483,959,000 bearing interest at 8% per annum
and the remaining amounts are interest-free.

All amounts due from related parties are unsecured.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from related parties

approximate their fair values.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

RAEARBARRE °

BE-T-FFT-A=+—R0 mlmEE
RAFERRE °

BHE-ZT-—F+=-A=+—H BRE%E
m%;ﬁ;mi)ﬁ IE;?_:,%EI r”ﬁA%Q\%/m@J
RIBBIE AR 449,524,000 7T © 12 F | R
5.00% E 10.00% T2 « HB#ARRE °

HE-T-_TF+-_A=t+—8 Ek&%
i%gE//ILQTAIE@?E/\EM118 459,0007T *
B EF RN F5.00%E12.00% 1 8 ° B
& & EREFIEBIE AR 483,959,000
T RFEFIE8%ETE  HEpR B -

P FEMR BB ESE 77 SRR /S SRR AR o
FEWRRRE D AR R EEE AR EE

GEES

- 4
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41

RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 41

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(B) AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

BB EERER S (#)
(B) FETEEEE S FXIE

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
—E-F —E-TE
t=A=t+—-8 +=A=1—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFTT
Included in non-current liabilities (note 30): 5+ AJEREN & (& (FizE30) :
— Associates ()) — Bt RN Al () - 310,240
— Joint ventures (ii) — & &1 (i) 145,958 1,377,067
145,958 1,687,307
Included in current liabilities (note 30): sTAREIAE (IEE30) -
— Associates (i) — B AR () 1,476,029 1,727,839
— Joint ventures(i) — BB 2,769,806 3,653,392
— Ultimate controlling company and — RRERAA R
its fellow subsidiaries (iii) EH[F R A A (i) 167,087 642,876
4,412,922 6,024,107

0] As of 31 December 2021, non-current amounts due to associates
are interest-free. Current amounts due to associates include

@) HE-_T-—F+-A=+—8 ' EftH2

NGIE

FIRBRE - BNBERBR

(i)

RMB181,300,000 bearing interest at 3.00% per annum and the
remaining amounts are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2020, non-current amounts due to associates
are interest-free. Current amounts due to associates include
RMB147,000,000 bearing interest at 3.80% per annum and the
remaining amounts are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2021, non-current amounts due to joint ventures
are interest-free. Current amounts due to joint ventures include
RMB9,000,000 bearing interest at 4.35% per annum and the
remaining amounts are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2020, non-current and current amounts due to
joint ventures are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2021, current amount due to ultimate controlling
company and its fellow subsidiaries are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2020, current amount due to ultimate controlling
company and its fellow subsidiaries are interest-free.

All amounts due to related parties are unsecured.

S

(i

(i)

P FE 1< BRI

KB B IE AR 181,300,000 + & F F =
3.00%&ME - H#Ape S o

BE_ZT-_ZTF+_-_A=+—8  ENHE
AREERBKBARE - BRHBME QTR
I B 1E A R ¥ 147,000,000 7T © 1% & F R
3.80%:tE s o

B2 - —F+-_A=+—RH EREE
TEFRDEBEEE - BRNALCERD
A B HE A R ¥9,000,0007T + 1% F F &
435%FT R HEREE ©

HE-_T-_TF+-_A=1+—H " EtA%
TEIFERBRBRRBFEHAEE

HE-_T-—F+-A=1+—8 " ' BEANRK
ERAREERRHBARREBRIBARS

HE-_T-_TF+-_A=1+—H " BEHNRK
ERAREERRHBARREBRIBARS

IR RELE -
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41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(C) TRADE RECEIVABLES

4 BERSERRERS &)

(C) EWERRX

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
t=A=+—R +t=ZA=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

Included in current assets (note 27): FFARBIEE (FsE27)
— Associates — B2 N A 59,968 89,927
— Joint ventures — a8 hE 120,208 179,583

— Ultimate controlling company and — RBEIERR AT R

its fellow subsidiaries HEXME A A - 24,998
180,176 294,508
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(0)())  J&l : 22 BR B (B 5E 3.1(b)(i) (26,397) (16,255)
153,779 278,253

(D) CONTRACT ASSETS

(D) ENEE

31 December

31 December

2021 2020

—EC-—F —E-TF

+=BA=+—-8 +=A=+—8

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AREFT

— Associates — BN A 676 156
— Joint ventures — GEPHE 53,491 48,095

— Ultimate controlling company and — R AE R

its fellow subsidiaries HERZRKEB AT - 41,461
54,167 89,712
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(0)()) & : T ER A (M EE3.1(0)(i) (2,167) (4,770
52,000 84,942

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf
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41

RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(E) BORROWINGS

41 BESERRERS &)
(E) B

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

—E-—F —T-TF

+=ZA=+—H +=ZHA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TR ARETTT

— Ultimate controlling company (note 32) — &4z p& A 7] (FizE32) 917,577 917,577

(F) ADVANCE FROM LESSEES

(F) REFABEANBRK

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—EC-—F —E-TF
+=B=+-B +=A=+-H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBFTT
— Ultimate controlling company — BRI A A 25,798 28,486
(G) GUARANTEE (G) TR
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—B-—-F —F_FTF
+=ZA=+—8 +ZH=1—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREBFT
— Guarantee in respect of related — LEAEE T SR HER
parties’ borrowings (note 42) (PfF5E42) 118,400 =
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41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 41 BEAESRRRS @)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(H) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS H BEBAIRZ
(i)  Funding with related parties (i) HEBLEXRED

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-B2-_-F+-fA=+-HLEE

Funding to Collection of funding to
related parties related parties
MEEARAES mEHLKEEE
Operating Investing Operating Investing
ge RE Re RE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARMTRT ARBTR

Associates

NS 212 219,190 5,000 219,190
Joint ventures RENE 3,902,962 30,901 4,681,415 460,673
Ultimate controlling company — SA&IEAA B K%
and its fellow subsidiaries HRZMERF 891 - 607 -
3,904,065 250,091 4,687,022 679,863
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-B--F+-A=+-HLEE
Proceeds from Repayment to
related parties related parties
o) B B 5 R & nEHLIEEES
Operating Financing Operating Financing
ge e Re MmE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Associates /NG 293,962 181,300 862,259 147,000
Joint ventures BEME 5,615,603 33,000 6,603,866 254,679
Ultimate controlling company ~ H&IEIRA R R
and its fellow subsidiaries HEZWBAR 9,460,563 - 9,886,052 -
15,370,128 214,300 17,352,177 401,679




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

41

RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(H) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

(i)  Funding with related parties (Continued)

41 BESERRERS &)

(H BBLRZ %)
() HEHLTHEREE(HE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEE

Funding to Collection of funding to
related parties related parties
mEk TR E S A S K EE &
Operating Investing Operating Investing
K= RE g ®E
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Associates NS 1,878,973 - 2,023,112 73,284
Joint ventures RENE 3,432,494 1,509,607 2,799,998 1,693,623
Ultimate controlling company — SR&IERA B K%
and its fellow subsidiaries HRRME QA 11 - 2,830 -
5,311,478 1,509,607 4,825,940 1,766,907
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLEFE
Proceeds from Repayment to
related parties related parties
o) B R 77 R E & MEHLERES
Operating Financing Operating Financing
g mE g &
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TR
Associates /NG| 733,983 147,000 546,334 825,264
Joint ventures BEDE 7,144,112 43,050 4,392,717 -
Ultimate controlling company — SA&IERA &K%

and its fellow subsidiaries HRZHB AT 12,640,564 - 12,270,716 -
20,518,659 190,050 17,209,767 825,264
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41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(H) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(il Management services, other income and (i)

finance cost

4 BERSERRERS &)

(H) BELEXZ &)

EERE - Atz REEKK

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZE HE
—E-—F T TF
+=A=+—8 +=ZA=+—H
IEFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREEFTT
Management services income REBENRIREELEL
from associates and joint ventures (a) BB R (a) 147,719 290,389
Management services income KRB FEZER A RIE R
from fellow subsidiaries of the B AR B RIS E (0)
ultimate controlling company (b) 84,956 59,219
Rent income from fellow subsidiaries of & B & &% A FlHI R &
the ultimate controlling company (c) FE A B2 e W o) 2,560 2,560
Rent income from fellow subsidiaries of 78 B & 4% 122 J& A% 58 19 [7] %
the ultimate controlling shareholder WEA Rz He s 1,060 =
Construction design service fee paid to  [A1& AL A BIHIF R B A 7
fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate S 2 BRERA RIS E (0
controlling company (c) 1,925 2,949
Property management Service fee ElswS NS IEEA =N
paid to fellow subsidiaries of the TRZYEEBRREE (0
ultimate controlling company (c) 74,238 49,917
Purchase of green architecture TR R AR B B R T B A 7]
technological products and services B B B EERMEM KRS ()
from fellow subsidiaries of the
ultimate controlling shareholder (d) 24,616 13,938
Decoration services fee paid to fellow Els S 2 NG G E R =PNG
subsidiaries of the ultimate controling {7 ZEMREE (d)
company (d) - 187
Facilities and equipment rental and EisESdi NIl | ER: 1) PNE]
display services fee paid to fellow IRz B REEEEAR
subsidiaries of the ultimate BTRRBE
controlling company - 13,643
Interest income on amounts due JRE itHst & A B R IE 2 FILE WA
from associates (note 7) (BIzE7) - 44,039
Interest income on amounts due JEU A &> E A 2 FI B A
from joint ventures (note 7) (M5£E7) 47,575 57,816
Interest expense on loans REKKERA R ZEFHF S
from the ultimate controlling ER(ME11)6)
company (note 11) (e) 51,473 51,614
Interest expense on loans REME N ZERFSER
from associates (note 11) (FF3E11) 5,092 54,024
Interest expense on loans RESECEZEFRFEER
from joint ventures (note 11) (BFzE11) 5,954 983
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=1+—HILtEE

41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(H) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(ii)

Management services, other income and
finance cost (Continued)

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
continuously provided management services to its associates
and joint ventures. The prices of these services are based on
the prevailing market prices of similar services.

Pursuant to the management services agreement entered
into between the Group and its ultimate controlling company,
the Group provided certain development management
services and sales management services to fellow
subsidiaries of the ultimate controlling company during the
year ended 31 December 2021. These transactions
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Group
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and such transactions
have complied with the relevant disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the rental agreement, construction design service
agreements and property management service agreements
entered into between the Group and its ultimate controlling
company, the Group provided certain services to fellow
subsidiaries of the ultimate controlling company during the
year ended 31 December 2021. The prices of these services
are based on the prevailing market prices of similar services
provided by the Group to independent third parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
purchased certain green architecture technological products
and services, decoration services, property services and
properties consulting services from fellow subsidiaries of the
ultimate controlling shareholder. The prices of products and
services were based on the prevailing market prices of similar
products and services.

The ultimate holding company provided interest bearing
loans to the Group during the year. The interest expense on
loans is based on prevailing market interest rate and is
exempted from the reporting and disclosure requirement
pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

41 BESERRERS &)

H) BHEXRZ#E)
(i) EBEERE BEMUmREBELKX
(&)
(@) BE-_T-_—4F+-_A=+—HiLHF
B AEEBERBERRIREED
EIRMEERS - ZSREUEUR
BRI EREEEE -

) BEAEEEESKRERABGINCZ
EERGHE  BE_T=_—F+=
A=+—HB L FEREBRZALER
NEIHNR RN B A RREE THES
BEREREEEERE - RELETR
AIEE14AT  ZERFBRAEEZ
HERERS  MZzEXSHEETLE
TRAIE 4ASFEABEERT -

© BIEAEEREREIERAFTILZ
HEW®  EERTRBHERYE
EERGHE  BE_T=_—F+=
A=1+—HBLFEREBRZALER
ARIEFRRKTE A RIRES TR ©
ZERBAARE BB E=H =4
ZEURBZRITMEATEEE -

() BE-_Z-_—4F+-_A=+—H8HL#HF
B - AN B RRLIER A B R R
BARREETHEEERNER R
BRTS - £ E0ARAS - YIS RRTS B %55
AR o ZEEmEREUELUE SR
RREZBITHEAEEREE -

©) FR - BERERA R A EERES
BEXR - BRABBADNKRRITTIS
MEFE - WRE ETHRAISE 14A.90
BERPETRREIBEERT -

¢

nk
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41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

41 BEBAIERERZ ®)

() Included in employee benefit expenses are key () EERMNERGERENTENIZIE
management personnel compensations which comprises EIRAEME
the following categories:
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZE BHZE
—EC-—F —E-TF
+=B=t+-8 +=A=t-A
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETT
Short term employee benefits EAESRF 17,425 23,711
Contributions to retirement RRE R B
benefits schemes 89 190
Restricted share award PR 11 R 15 22 B 2,017 3,621
19,531 27,522
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

GUARANTEE

42 HAEE

ER

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECTEF
t=A=+-8 +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AREETTT

Guarantee in respect of mortgage facilities BETERZIZIERERBER@Q)
for certain purchasers (a) 1,254,314 1,523,236

Guarantee in respect of related parties’ TR 5 B SRR R (b)

borrowings (b) 118,400 148,400
1,372,714 1,671,636

(@) The Group cooperated with various financial institutions to arrange (@)
mortgaged loan facilities for the purchasers of its properties and provided

guarantees to secure such purchasers’ obligation of repayments. Such
guarantees will be released by banks upon earlier of the issuance of the real
estate ownership certificate and the satisfaction of relevant mortgaged loan.
In the opinion of directors of the Company, the fair value of the financial

guarantee contracts is not significant.

(b) As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided guarantee to Guangzhou (o)
Langxiu Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd., a 33% joint venture of
the Group, for its bank borrowing with the amount of RMB118,400,000.

AEBEZROREBAGE REMERERLHR
BEFREYHZEER 2 EFAETRBEER -F
BRRENEREHER G EE R ERZBER (A
REERE)RARITRR - KRRRAERERA ¥
BRENZARBELTENR -

RZZEZ—F+-A=+—8 AEERRTER
AR ¥118,400,0007T * ALK B HEH33% 26 &
EEEMASEEERAR A RRMEER -
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43 COMMITMENTS 43 EifE

(A) OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group — As lessee
The Group leases various offices, equipment and vehicles
under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within six
months to five years. The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the
terms of the leases are renegotiated.

The Group has recognized right-of-use assets for these
leases, except for short-term and low-value leases.

The Group — As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties under operating
lease arrangements, with lease terms ranging from one to
twenty years, and with an option to renew the lease terms
at the expiry date or at the date as mutually agreed
between the Group and respective tenants. The terms of
the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At the reporting date, the Group has contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

(A)

RERERH

EEE — EREABA
AEERBENAIBGHLLHERRET
WAE  RERAE BHERANEAE
hFERER - BEFTATRER - hnE
R R BEERN - BEK - HEKRRA
BEHER o

AEERZSHERREREEE - &
RH R EEEEERI -

FEE — EBLHBEA

AEERBEEEERHFHBERKRE N
WE BPENF—E2-+F EER
BB R AR EESEFERBEZ
RHEEM - HEGK—REEBEP I
REZ LRRBEREITTRE BHAEME

S
i

REEBE - AREAXTRESTH
2 RFBIEAE A

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

et —E-THF
+=A=+—-8 +tZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Within one year —FR

Later than one year but no later than —FRETBBRF
five years

Over five years AR E

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

2,138 4,814
4,230 17,953
6,333 28,974
12,701 51,741
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

43 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 43 EiEE)
(B) DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE (B) BAEEZ AR
COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had the following RZE-_—F+_A=+—H ' A&H
development expenditure commitments: ZFAE HAENT
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—B-—-F —TFTF
+=BA=+—-H +=ZRA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AREETTT
Contracted but not provided for: BETABEAREE ¢
— Development expenditure — %L E 175,542 66,689
— Purchase of freehold land — BEKAEELM 2,544,516 1,680,730

2,720,058 1,747,419
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44 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are

set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital

consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held directly by the

Group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the

voting rights held by the Group. The country of incorporation or

registration is also their principal place of business.

Place of incorporation/

4 TERBLQTE
RZBE-_—F+-A=+—0  KEETE[K
BRAREIMT - BBBAHRBAEIN ZERF
MR AMERAEBEES AT RAARK - AT
FHEE RSN AIRSERAEEFENEE
7 AR AEMBRINAZEARNEER

BRI

Ownership interests

establishment and held by the Group Directly owned or
Name of entity operations Registered capital As at 31 December indirectly owned Principal activities
HfEL/ RTZB=t-R%&H ERER
ERERE HIREEDE R kR kRS AEEEE IERH
2021 2020
Z8--F TR
(%) (%)
Cathay Holdings Limited (o) Hong Kong 2 shares of HKS1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
BEREEERAAD & 2R BRIET B RARR
China Information Indlustry Limited (b) Hong Kong 2 shares of HKS1 each 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
EREBELERDTY : o BRIAT i AR
GOI Limited (b) Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holaing
(3 % BRIET B REER
Green Future Holdings Limited (o) Hong Kong 1 share of HKS1 100 100 Direct Investment holding
BERTERERARD) (3 1R - BRIET B REER
(Green Homeland Limited (o) Hong Kong 1 shere of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holaing
BEFEBRATD) ? 1R - BRIET B REER
(Green Theme Limited (o) Hong Kong 1 shere of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holaing
(3 1R - BRIET B REER
New Phenomenon Technology Limited (b) BVI 1 share of USS1 100 100 Direct Investment holding
ARGARHEE 1R BRIET B REER
Aqua Sky Limited (b) Hong Kong 1 share of HKS1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
HEBRARD) ? 1R - BRIET B REER
Easy Shine Global Limited (o) Hong Kong 1 share of HKS1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
RIRRERAA) (3 1R - BRIET B REER
Green Era Limited (o) BVI 1 share of USS1 100 100 Direct Investment holding
ARGARHEE 1R BRIET B REER
Power sky enterprises Limited (o) Hong Kong 1 share of HKS1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
RREFERATD) ? 1R - BRIET B REER
Prosperous eagle Limited (o) Hong Kong 1 share of HKS1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
ERARAAD (3 1R - BRIET B REER
Landsky Investment Holdings Limited (o) Hong Kong 1 share of HKS1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
PRRERRERARD) (3 1R - BRIET B REER

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf
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e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

44 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 4 FENBQT @)
Place of incorporation/ Ownership interests
establishment and held by the Group Directly owned or
Name of entity operations Registered capital As at 31 December indirectly owned  Principal activities
L/ RTZA=t-B%&EH ERER
ERtEE HIREERE R fiskARES AEEES IBEH
2021 2020
ZB--F CBCRE
(%) )
Shanghai Landsea Investment Management Limited Mainland China US $5,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
HEARAERAR AR RER AR5,0000007 i REER
Shanghai Langming Property development Limited Mainland China RMBA50,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
HESEHERERRAA hERY AR50,0000007 ik FHERY
Beihai Langyue Enterprise Management Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
Consutting Co., Ltd.
TERHAREREAERAR" RER ARH10,00000070 3 ek
Nanjing Xubohui Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China RVB100,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holaing
BREERCRERARAR" RER ARH100,00000070 ik KRk
Nanjing Landsea Investment Management Limited Mainland China RMB200,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holaing
BRRRAERARAR" RER AEH200,000,0007 ik KRk
Nanjing Wangjiawan Logistics Centre Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB106,116,346 60 60 Indirect Investment holding
R EERERA R RER ARHE106,116,34670 ik KRk
Xi'an Jiapeng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100 30 Indirect Property development
BREERHERLARAR" () RER ARH20,00000070 3 BHERE
Nanjing Langming Properties Group Limited Mainland China RVB2,000,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holaing
BB EERARAR" RER ARH2,000,000,0007 ik KRk
Nanjing Xinzhousheng Investment Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB350,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holaing
BRENERAERARAR" RER AERH360,000,0007 ik gRmk
Zhongfuyiyang (Tianjin) Real Estate Co., Ltd. Mainland China RVB100,000,000 75 75 Indirect Property development
hiERE (K2) EXERARY hEIR AEH100,000,0007 3 BHERE
Tianjin Langyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMBA50,000,000 100 NA  Indirect Property development
REFUREREERAT ) RER ARHE50,00000070 NER A BHERE
Ningbo Landsea Enterprise Management Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holaing
Gonsutting Co., Ltd.
ERARt R ERARARAR hEIA, ARRH10,000,00070 3 REER
Chengau Deshang Rongaa Real Estate Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB25,000,000 60 5 Indrect Investment holding
FAEHREEXERAA ) ) HER ABRH25,000,00070 3 REER
Chengau Landsea Enterprise Management Mainland China RMB200,000,000 100 100 Indlrect Investment holding
Consutting Co., Ltd.
RBAFCFERERERAR hE, ARH200,0000007 B BEHR
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44 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 4 TENBLR @)

Place of incorporation/ Ownership interests
establishment and held by the Group Directly owned or
Name of entity operations Registered capital As at 31 December indirectly owned  Principal activities
e/ RtZA=t+-AAER ERER
12 HIREERE B3 fekERER EEES IBEH
2021 2020
bt bt 3
(%) (%)
Suzhou Langkun Property Limited Mainland China RMB100,000,000 55 5 Indirect Property development
FNRmESERAR" hER AKH100,000,0007C itk EUERE
Suzhou Langming Management Consuiting Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
SRR EREAERAR" hEIR ARRE10,000,0007 3 REMR
Chongaing Langhua Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100 NA Indirect Property development
EEPERMEREERAT @ REIRi ABE#50,000,0007 TER FHERY
Chengdu Langming Property Limited Mainland China RMB8,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
RBRFEXRRAR HER ARRH8,000,0007 3 REAR
Suzhou Langrui Investment Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
FMRs R A ERER AR hERH ABH10,000,0007 3 REER
Suzhou Langxu Management Consutting Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
FNBNEREAERAR" RERH ARRE10,000,00070 g REAR
Bejing Landsea Investment Management Limited Mainland China RMB100,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
IRk AERERAT" RERH AKH100,000,0007C itk RAsR
Hangzhou Langhui Investment Management Limited Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
NABREERERAT RERH AFRHE5,000,0007 g REAR
Nanjing Langging Real Estate Co., Ltd. Mainland China HK§127,480,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
ERfEERERAR PER 127,480,000 7 i FHERE
Chengdu Langsong Enterprise Management Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
Consutting Co., Ltd.
AR E TR ARAR" hE R AR#5,000,0007C & RAzR
Suzhou Langyou Industrial Co., Ltd. Mainland China RVB100,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
B EXARAT hERY, ARH100,000,0007C & BHERE
Nanjing Xinhuisheng Investment Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China RvBS,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holaing
BREEERATEARAR hE R AR¥8,000,0007C & e
Chengdu Langduo Enterprise Management Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holaing
Consulting Co., Ltd
RERECEERERARAT () hERH ARH30,000,0007 B REHR
Nantong Diding Business Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB300,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
EETRLEERRRAT" () hERK ARH300,0007T 3 REHR
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44 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 4 FENBQT @)
Place of incorporation/ Ownership interests
establishment and held by the Group Directly owned or
Name of entity operations Registered capital As at 31 December indirectly owned  Principal activities
e/ RTZB=t-RA&H ERER
L1503 HIREERE R fregaREs AEEES IBEH
2021 2020
ZB--F CBCRE
(%) )
Landsea Holdings Corporation Us US$327,272,149 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
S| 87,272,195 [ RERK
Landsea Equity LLC Us US851,900,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
e 5190000057 i RERR
Landsea Homes Corporation Us US$46,281,091 .51 100 Indirect Investment holding
e 46,281,091 %7 i RERR
LS-0C Portola LLG US US$165,497,892 100 100 Indlrect Real estate
development and
sales US
e 165,497 892570 i FHEREREE - 27
LS-SF Jordan Ranch LLC Us 1S819,900,870 7151 100 Indirect Real estate
development and
sales US
ES5] 19900870570 & FHERERHE - 28
SFVale LLC (@) US 15$9,000,000 5 5 Indirect Investment holding
| 9,000,000 & gRnk
LS-LASimi LLC Us US840,687,727 100 100 Indirect Real estate
development and
sales US
28 40.687,721%TC [ BHERSRHE - £8
Pinnacle West Homes Holdings Us US§173,644,464 .51 100 Indirect Investment holding
X2 173644 4645 TC i RERR
Pinnacle West Homes and Development LLG Us - .51 100 Indirect Investment holding
e - i RERR
Garrett Walker Homes Holding LLC Us USS64,117,694 .51 100 Indirect Investment holding
e 64,117,604 i RERR
Landsea Homes of Florida LLC Us US$54,309,753 .51 100 Indirect Investment holding
e 54,300,753 7 i RERR
Landsea Homes of Texas LLC Us US$85,306 .51 100 Indirect Investment holding
e 85,3065 i RERR
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44 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

4 TEWB AR (&)

Ownership interests

establishment and held by the Group Directly owned or
Name of entity operations Registered capital As at 31 December indirectly owned  Principal activities
HEL/ Rt=A=t+-R%E&E EREE
1511 HYREELE Rl feRRER: HEREE ITER
2021 2020
ZRz-§  CECRE
(%) (%)

212 W 93rd JVLLC Us US850,694,685 100 100 Indirect Redl estate
development and
sales US

EL 50,694,685 % TC Rk FHEREREE - 26

Epic China Limited BVI US850,000 100 100 Direct Investment holding

REERRES 50,0005 73 AR
# Limited liability company registered in Mainland China & R R ARz BRA R
G English translations are for identification purpose only * HX A TREEER

(a) The Group is the only managing member of the Company.

(b) The senior notes (note 32) are irrevocably, fully and unconditionally
guaranteed on a senior basis by these subsidiaries (each and collectively).

(c) The equity interests of the subsidiary were pledged for bank borrowings of
the Group.

(d) The subsidiary was established during the year ended 31 December 2021.

(e) The equity interests of the subsidiary were pledged for loans from other

financial institutions.

() The subsidiary was transferred from joint venture to subsidiary during the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

45 SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

45 HEARFEZEHIMEERMHE 2 R

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December 2021 were
approximately RMB1,656,755,000 (2020: RMB511,653,000), of
which approximately were RMB1,122,389,000 (2020: nil)

R-E-—F+ - A=+—B 8 H 1t
HH B ANRA,656,755,0007C (T T4 :
AR#511,6538,0007T) * EH Landsea Homes

FEAE A AR #1,122,389,000 T (ZEZF £ -
QR o

attributed as below for Landsea Homes.

The non-controlling interests of Landsea Homes arised from the Landsea Homes R 3EiE Fl 1R R DB E ==
spin-off and separate listing of US operations during the year T+ - A=t—BHItFEBERESHIF
ended 31 December 2021. (note 39) WIS ETETE o (KiFE39)

SUMMARIZED STATEMENTS OF BALANCE EEEERRBE
SHEET
31 December
2021
—E-—F
+=-—A=+—H
RMB’000
ARETIT
Current mEp
Assets BE 7,735,082
Liabilities A& (1,534,568)
Total current net assets mENFEERE 6,200,514
Non-current ERB
Assets BE 333,455
Liabilities =N (2,587,095)
Total non-current net assets EREFEELE (2,253,640)

Non-controlling interests of subsidiaries of Landsea HomesP1 /& 2 7] 8 FEFE il 1 f 2
Landsea Homes (7,970)

Net assets attributable to the shareholders of 5% E M Landsea Homesfs R A F & &=

Landsea Homes 3,938,904
Accumulated non-controlling interest BT IR R S 1,122,389

h == N
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45 SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 45 BE KXFEHIMEREZRME A R ME

ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON- BERBE2)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
SUMMARIZED STATEMENTS OF 2HEHKRERBE

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

31 December

2021
—E-—F
+=HA=+—8H
RMB’000
AREEFTT
Revenue A 6,601,232
Profit before income tax R PS5 A A1 436,347
Income tax expense FTiSHi & F (90,280)
Total profit IbERGE 346,067
Total comprehensive income for the year attributed to  Landsea Homes 3E4% 1 14 4 25 FE 15 4F 4
the non-controlling interests of Landsea Homes FHE W= B (329)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEAEW=REE 346,396
Total comprehensive income attributable to R RS (L 2 I ES 4858
non-controlling interest 98,705
Distribution to non-controlling interests ) FE4E ) 1 e 2 2D VI =

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf ﬂ



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

45 SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BE_T-_—F+-A=1+—RHILLFE

45 HEARFEZEHIMEERMHE 2 R

ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON- HBERBE#)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
SUMMARIZED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS RERERFE
For the
year ended
31 December
2021
BE
—E_—F
+=H=+—8H
IHEE
RMB’000
AREEFTT
Net cash generated from operating activities KRBTSR S F 58 212,948
Net cash used in investing activities REESFRAR T (163,084)
Net cash generated from financing activities BB EEATS I F5E 1,436,981
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R& KIF e EEBYIEINFEE 1,486,845
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BHRERBLEEY 718,052
Effect of currency translation on cash and ReRReEEMELKRENTE
cash equivalents (16,419)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December Rt A=+—HNRENELEEY 2,188,478
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46 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

rRTAEERER

31 December

46 FARAEERERRREESEY

31 December

2021 2020
—EC-—F —E-TF
+=ZA=+—H +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIRE 575,518 566,556
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, HA R - AR R RIES
prepayments and deposits 4,185,044 4,528,169
Cash and cash equivalents He RIRSZEEY 49,675 136,750
4,234,719 4,664,919
Total assets BEMBE 4,810,237 5,231,475
Current liabilities RENEE
Other payables H fth FEAS X 3,655,850 3,028,111
Borrowings &=k 2,083,442 73,336
5,739,292 3,101,447
Non-current liabilities FkRBERE
Borrowings =N 89,180 2,622,282
Total liabilities HwaE 5,828,472 5,723,729
Equity s
Share capital R& 7R 38,702 38,702
Reserves 1 @) (1,056,937) (530,956)
Total deficit #8815 A (1,018,235) (492,254)
Total liabilities and equity HEeERER 4,810,237 5,231,475

RRARBERBREN - ZE__F=A=1+—
BREEHHE  AHUTALTRRES -

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the board
of directors on 31 March 2022 and was signed on its behalf.

Tian Ming Huang Zheng
B 3 <03
Director Director
EF =

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

L=



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—_ZT—_—F+_A=+—HILFE

46 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 46 KRR EEEBEXRERAEED @
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(A) RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (A) ERFHEES
Share based Capital
Share  Translation compensation ~ Employee  redemption  Contributed Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve  share trust reserve surplus reserve losses Total

BREEH  ERRR  EAED
BiiE  FEERE i it BF  EABR  ApEE  2HER it
Nott  RMBO0  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMB'O00  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBO0D
i ARBTR ARRTr ARETz ARWTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR

At1 January 2021 W=8--%-5-A 24,366 98,376 11,586 (82,435) 23,185 604,036 13805  (1,223875)  (530,956)
Exchange difference rising from BEBNEBHELER 2R

translation of foreign operation - 23,658 - - - - - - 23,653
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - (412,804)  (412,804)
Total comprehensive loss FEAEFRAE

for the year - 23,653 - - - - - (412,804) (389,151)
Movement of employee share EERMETERS

trust account 35(0) - - N (31,078) - - - - (31,078)
Employee share-based compensation B E RS 35 - - 7,759 - - - 6,100 - 13,868
Dividend declared to ordinary shareholder & ERERE RRS. 14 - - - - - (119,621) - - (119,621)
Subtotal of transaction BRRRA NG

with shareholders - - 7,759 (31,078) - (119,621) 6,109 - (136,831)
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-%+-f=1-A 24,366 122,029 19,345 (113,513) 23,185 484415 19914 (1,636679) (1,056,938

Share based Capital
Share  Translation compensation ~ Employee  redemption  Contributed Other  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve  share frust reserve surplus reserve losses Total

REgs  BRRG  A4EE
BB  FERG e a5t i EREBR AMEE  ZEER st
Note RMB000  RMB000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBO00 ~ RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
Wit ARBTT ARBTR ARBTL ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARBTT ARET:R

At 1 January 2020 W-Z-%%-f-A 824,366 66,113 725 (62,151) 23,185 165,619 = (731,959) 215,902

Exchange difference arising from BERNEBFELER 2R

translation of foreign operation - 32,263 - - - - - - 32,263
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - (4919200  (491,920)
Total comprehensive loss FEXEFBAE

for the year - 32,263 - - - - - (4919200 (459,657)
Movement of employes share EERGETEREY

trust account 35(b) - - - (20,284) - - - - (20,284)
Employes share-based compensation [ £ RSN 35 (0) - - 10,861 - - - 13,805 - 24,666
Transfer of share premium to BROEEEABS R

contriouted surplus (800,000) - - - - 800,000 - - -
Dividend declared to ordinary shareholder [ B R E RS 14 - - - - - (351,583) - - (351589
Subtotal of transaction BRRR ANt

with shareholders 800,000) - 10881 (20284 - BT 13,805 - 00
At 31 December 2020 R=2-%£+-A=1-H 24,366 98,376 11,586 (82,435) 23,185 604,036 13805  (1,223,875) (630,956)
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47 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

U)

On 4 January 2022, the Group entered into an agreement
with its ultimate controlling company, Landsea Group Co.,
Ltd. for the borrowing facility of RMB500 million with a term
of 24 months and bears no interests. As at the date of
approval of the consolidated financial statements, RMB125
million has been drawn down.

On 18 January 2022, the Group acquired 100% of Hanover
Family Builders, LLC (“Hanover”), a Florida-based
homebuilder based on purchase price of US$179,241,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,142,787,000) adjusted
for deposits of side agreement of US$15,608,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB99,512,000) and other
working capital adjustment of US$3,251,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB20,727,000). Concurrently with the
closing of the acquisition, the Group repaid all
US$69,335,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB442,061,000) in principal of Hanover’s outstanding
indebtedness. The Company funded the acquisition,
including the repayment of Hanover’s indebtedness from a
combination of cash on hand and borrowings under the
Group’s existing revolving credit facility. The total assets of
Hanover include approximately 20 active communities
(unaudited) and 3,800 lots owned and controlled
(unaudited).

The preliminary estimated fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired as at the acquisition date is
US$219,896,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,401,991,000). The valuation of properties under
development and other net assets acquired in the
transaction has not been completed as at the date of the
approval of the consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, the fair value amounts of the identifiable net
assets may be subsequently adjusted.

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

47 HEHERSEE

)

AZE-—F—ANA - AEEHERR
ERAFIAFEERNBERQRFIIH
FOUERARBSEILNER £
R4 A - TETE - RERE B KikFz it
HERHERBRARE1.258TT °

NRZZE_Z_F—HA+N\B  "EEKE
2% 2 # M B E & & Hanover Family
Builders, LLC ([Hanover]) #)100% * Fff
BB EEH179,241,0003% 7T (HERL
AR#1,142,787,0007T) * E 7t M 5
# 1R ©15,608,000E T(HERDAR
#99,512,000 7T ) #E1THRAEE » Jhat REM
BIEE & FH%53,251,000F T (FEE R4
AR 20,727,0007T) ° 1EHHE TERCEF -
NEE TR BB Hanover h K BB EH D
B € 69,335,000 T (HE R DO AR
#442,061,0007T) ° "R AIE B EER
HES ERRERBUAFERSEAN
CEEREREFERETHERER
Hanover R & 75 ° Hanover H 48 & &= £ ¥
2920 (&S B4t [ (RASEAZ) LA R A B2
22 il 3,800 R 1 E]R (RASEIZ) ©

RIS BESM AT R R FEENT L
st A 7 B1E5219,896,000 % 7T (&
R AR ¥ 491,401,991,0007T ) ° 4R
B BEMAMEAHEREXNEBR S
RATREER P B E R EMFEEN
mE- Bt ATBRFEENAAEE
SRR HBEITHAE -



FINANCIAL SUMMARY
5 75 i

Year ended 31st December
BE+-A=+—HILLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—EB-—F —T-FTF —T-NF T N\F ZT—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTrT ARETT ARBTT ARETT

Results E
Revenue* N 8,076,070 8,991,903 8,712,893 7,560,526 6,213,931
Profit before income tax* FR 1S AR A AR (506,910) 521,739 2,011,955 2,261,739 1,127,411
Income tax expense* Frisfi & f* (189,281) (489,148) (513,821) (821,169) (406,570)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(ER),/FHE (696,191) 32,501 1,498,134 1,440,570 720,841
Attributable to: BN
The shareholder of the Company ~ ZxA FII& 5 (777,504) (100,572) 1,171,943 1,112,774 580,523
Non-controlling interest JEFE I MERE RS 81,313 133,163 326,191 327,796 140,318
(696,191) 32,591 1,498,134 1,440,570 720,841
Including continuing and discontinued operations * BIEREREEBRERIEES
At 31st December
R+t=B=+—8H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B-—F —T-FTF —FT-NF T )\F —T—LF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT AREBTT ARETT AREFTT
Assets and liabilities BEMEE
Total assets R E 27,883,353 24,700,795 25,842,208 26,775,274 20,320,501
Total liabilities BwafE (22,302,091) (19,205,656) (19,737,977) (22,014,379) (16,622,438)
5,581,262 5495139 6,104,231 4,760,895 3,698,063
Attributable to: BN
The shareholder of the Company ~ ZxA FIJE & 3,924,507 4,983,486 5,298,698 4,383,555 3,491,941
Non-controlling interest I A A 1,656,755 511,653 805,533 377,340 206,122

5,581,262 5,495,139 6,104,231 4,760,895 3,698,063
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REMY=FE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR RENTAL PURPOSE

Location

B

Nature of
property
L/ E =1

Attributable
interest of

the Group
7S R A A

Lease term

BAFH

Nanjing Huafei Apartment,
Block 11 Zhangying Estate Huadian Road,
Qixia District,

Nanjing City,

Jiangsu Province,

The PRC

a3

LERE

FR™

BER
EFERRENI1R
FARERAS

Landsea Neighbourhood Union,
Southwest side B of intersection of
Yunhe West Road and Ningjia Road,
New District,

Wuxi City,

Jiangsu Province,

The PRC

G

LERA

mHm

Bl

EN PR BB S P AX X 1

A fiB

A EE

Huangxing Building,
No.18 Huangxing Road,
Yangpu District,
Shanghai City,

The PRC

a3

=37

SRR

= HREK185%

HEAR

BREeMERRAR/ —T - —FFf

Apartment

5
e

Commercial

[

Commercial and
Apartment

BEMAE

D

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Medium-term lease

T AR A

Medium-term lease

R HARE 4

Medium-term lease

R HATE A



PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BREMEYRFR

Attributable
Nature of interest of
Location property the Group Lease term

1t B M E AR M PR S R BAFH

Nanjing Wangjiawan Building, Commercial 60% Medium-term lease
Building Block No. 5 of

Landsea Green Center,

The southwestern corner of

the intersection of

Xuanwu Avenue and

Jiangwangmiao Street,

Xuanwu District,

Nanjing City,

Jiangsu Province,

The PRC

e [EES 60% FRERTEAY
TLA#RA

=]

ZRARNERETBEARARAMEA

AR B OEE

AREREKRE

The 2nd floor of Building Block No. 5 of Commercial 100% Medium-term lease
International Business Park,

No. 280 Linhong Alley,

Changning District,

Shanghai City,

The PRC

a3 [EES 100% hHEIEE
Eam

R 4 5 280FF

FEIBPEIRE SRS E2E
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